
 

 

 

PENSIONS 

COMMITTEE 
________________________________________________ 

 
Tuesday, 24 February 2015 at 7.00 p.m. 

 
Room MP702, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, 

London E14 2BG 
 

This meeting is open to the public to attend.  
 

Members: 
Chair: Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Vice Chair: Councillor Clare Harrisson 
 
Councillor Andrew Cregan, Councillor Shafiqul Haque, Councillor Ayas Miah, Councillor 
Harun Miah and Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah 
 
John Gray (Non-Voting Member (Admitted Body)) and Frank West (Non-voting Member 
Representing Trade Unions) 
 
Deputies: 
Councillor Abdul Mukit MBE, Councillor John Pierce and Councillor Amy Whitelock 
Gibbs 
 
[The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]. 

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Nishaat Ismail, Democratic Services. 
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, E14 2BG 
E-mail: nishaat.ismail@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Tel: 020 7364 0842 
Web:http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 

Scan this code to 
view an electronic 
agenda  

 
 

 



 

 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend meetings of the Committee. However seating is limited 
and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings. 
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page. 
 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

 
Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place  
Blackwall station. Across the bus station then turn 
right to the back of the Town Hall complex, 
through the gates and archway to the Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf  
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 

display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda  

     
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and to 
the fire assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you 
to a safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, otherwise it will stand 
adjourned. 

Electronic agendas reports and minutes. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings can also be 
found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users. 

 



 

 

 
 PAGE 

NUMBER(S) 

 
 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY 
INTEREST  

 

1 - 4 

 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those 
restricting Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 
of the Local Government Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the 
Monitoring Officer. 
 
 

 

 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)  
 

5 - 12 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Pensions 
Committee held on 19/11/2014 
 
 

 

 

3. TRAINING - ASSET ALLOCATION BY  WELLINGTON 
MANAGEMENT   

 

  
 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION    

  
4 .1 Investment Performance Review for Quarter End 31 December 2014   13 - 178 
  

 
4 .2 Investment in London LGPS Collective Investment Vehicle - Joint 

Committee Meeting 17th December 2014   
179 - 184 

  
 

4 .3 Tower Hamlets Pension Scheme-  Social, Environmental and Ethical 
Investment   

185 - 212 

  
 

4 .4 LGPS Governance Regulations and LBTH Local Pensions Board 
Establishment   

213 - 242 

  
 

4 .5 Pension Fund Business Plan and Budget for 2015/16   243 - 254 
  

 
4 .6 Review of discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme   255 - 272 
  

 
 



 

 

5. ANY OTHER  BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT    

  
Next Meeting of the Committee: 
To be confirmed. 
 

   
    

 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 

Agenda Item 1

Page 1



When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE PENSIONS COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON WEDNESDAY, 19 NOVEMBER 2014 
 

ROOM MP702, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE 
CRESCENT, LONDON E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
  
 Councillor Andrew Cregan  
Councillor Clare Harrisson  
Councillor Ayas Miah  
Councillor Mohammed Mufti Miah  
John Gray Non-Voting Member (Admitted Body) 
Frank West Non-voting Member Representing Trade 

Unions 
  
Admitted Bodies, Non-Voting Members Present: 

 
 John Gray – Non-Voting Member (Admitted Body) 
Frank West – Non-voting Member Representing Trade Unions 
 
Others Present: 

James Sparshott                     Head of Local Authorities  
Barry Mckay                             Actuary for LBTH LGPS 
Officers Present: 
 
 Anant Dodia – (Pensions Manager) 
Chris Holme – (Acting Corporate Director - Resources) 
Kevin Miles – (Chief Accountant,  Resources) 
Bola Tobun 
Ngozi Adedeji 

– (Investments and Treasury Manager, Resources) 
– Team Leader (Legal Services) 

 
 Nishaat Ismail – (Committee Officer, Democratic Services, 

Directorate Law Probity and Governance) 
Antonella Burgio – (Democratic Services) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Shafiqul Haque and Councillor 
Harun Miah 

 

 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST 
 
No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S) 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting held on 17th September 2014 were 
presented for approval. 
 
Cllr Harrisson – noted that information previously requested on the investment 
strategy and ethical investments strategy had yet to be circulated 
 
 
RESOLVED:  

• That the minutes of 17th September 2014 be approved as a correct 
record of proceedings.  

 
ACTION BY: Kevin Miles (Chief Accountant) Bola Tobun (Investment 
&Treasury  Manager) 
 
 

3. PETITIONS 
 
No requests to present petitions were received. 
 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
 

4.1 Brief overview of roles, responsibilities & statutory documents 
 
The Investment & Treasury Manager delivered a presentation outlining the 
different roles involved in the management of a Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) fund.  
 
Which includes; 
 

• The investments or pensions committee 

• The Fund administrator  

• The administering authority  

• Employers 

• Investment managers 

• Custodians 

• The actuary  

Page 6



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

• Professional advisers  
 
The presentation explained having the necessary knowledge and skills to 
manage the LBTH Fund is an essential requirement for all those in the roles 
mentioned above. And that the Pensions Committee is the recommended 
decision-making body within the LGPS scheme, hence they have to meet 
quarterly. 
Larger LGPS funds have partial or full internal investment management, most 
investment managers are external appointments. 
In 2006 over50% of LGPS funds were managed by the top five managers. 
However, more recently there has been a significant increase in the number 
of external managers. This requires more internal resources for relationship 
management and 
performance monitoring. 
 
The committee were informed that the scheme actuary is an independent and 
appropriately qualified adviser who carries out statutorily required fund 
valuations and other valuations as required and who will also provide general 
actuarial advice. 
The actuary will prepare fund valuations, including setting employers 
contribution rates, after agreeing valuation assumptions with the administering 
authority. 
The results of the valuation determine the rate of the employer's contribution 
for the subsequentthree years. The actuary is required to certify employer 
contribution rates that will achieve fullsolvency over the longer-term, while 
keeping contribution rules as stable as possible. 
There is a regulation requirement to publish a Funding  strategy statement 
(FSS) after the triennial valuation review, in order to align funding strategy 
with the actuarial valuation results. The FSSwould be revise following any 
material change in its policy on relevant matters or in its statement of 
investment principles (SIP), and publish a revised FSS.  
The FSSwould state the measures that will be taken when a valuation reveals 
that the fund is in surplus or deficit and how employer contribution rates will 
be adjusted to restore the solvency position over a period of years (the 
recovery period).review every year but must be updated immediately after the  
Members were informed that one of the crucial roles under the new LGPS 
structure is that of fund administrator. For LBTH this role is carried out by the 
Acting Corporate Director, ensuring compliance with the statutory rules 
governing the investment of LGPS assets, including the various policy 
documents and statements required under the regulations. 
 
Another role the committee were informed about was that of the administering 
authority; (LBTH) some of the responsibilities carried out by LBTH as the 
administering authority are collecting and accounting for employer/employee 
contributions and transfer values, maintaining an accurate data base, 
monitoring and managing all aspects of the Fund’s performance and 
managing communication with employers, members and pensioners. 
 
Noted: 

• underpinning principles for choice of investments and the managers 

• funding strategy statement is revised triennially by the actuary 

Page 7



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

• the different  elements incorporated in the roles and responsibilities 
 
Action - Cllr Harrison stated that the  presentation should have happened at 
the first meeting of the municipal year. 
 
RESOLVED  

• that the report be noted. 
 

4.2 LGPS - The structure and Governance Arrangements of the LBTH 
Pension Fund 
 
John Jones, presented the report on LGPS- The structure and governance 
arrangements of the LBTH Pension Board.  
 
The Committee were informed that membership of the Pensions Board must 
consist of employers and councillors who are not members of thr Pensions 
Committee but are required to have understanding and knowledge of pension 
and others nominated by Council which may be equal in number but not 
exceed the number of employer members 
Members were informed, the most significant change will be the 
establishment of the Pensions Board.  

 
The Pension Board must consist of an equal number of employer and 
member representatives with the draft regulations requiring that there be a 
minimum number of four in total. 
 
The committee was told those with membership on the Pensions Board, must 
display knowledge and understanding of pensions and investments and 
training would be a requirement. 
 
The Pensions Board must be created by 1st April 2015- which means the 
council has to make the necessary arrangements before this date. 
 
The new structures that must be in place: 

• Scheme advisory board 

• Scheme Manager (the Council) 

• Pensions Board (mirrors private sector practice, review function) 
 

The Committee were informed that membership of the Pensions Board 
must consist of employers and councillors who are not members of the 
Pensions Committee but are required to have understanding and 
knowledge of pensions and others nominated by Council which may be 
equal in number but not exceed the number of employer members 
  
A number of issues surrounding the establishment of the Pensions 
Board was highlighted:  

• Conflicts of interest 

• Role of board and its interaction with PensionsCttee 

• Knowledge, understanding and capacity to undertake duties 

• Board must be established by 1 April 2015 

Page 8



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

• Size / membership / recruitment 

• Recommend Council delegate work to establish Board to Officers in 
consultation with Chair 

• DCLG amenable to proposal for joint boards 
 
Members requested; 

• To see collaboration proposals before giving view. Especially 
interested in reporting and accountability matters. 

• Clarity on proposed size and makeup.  
And more information on; 

• Breadth of employee representation. 

• How selection will be decided  
Members highlighted that composition must be sufficient to manage 
potential conflicts and ensure expertise. 
 
RESOLVED 

• That the Members approve recommendations to full Council and 
establish a working group. 

• Cllrs, Clare Harrisson, Ayas Miah and John Gray to work with the 
Acting Corporate Director on the proposals.  

 
4.3 Investment Performance Review for Quarter End 30 September 2014 

 
The Investment and Treasury Manager presented the Investment 
Performance Review for Quarter End 30 September 2014 informing the 
Committee about the performance of the Fund and its investment managers 
for the quarter ending 30th September 2014. 
 
The Members were told about the recent economic performance in the UK, 
Europe, USA and the East, highlighting the UK economy’s position.  
 
The Members were told, this quarter, Japanese equities stood out however 
sterling returns were lower. 
 
UK and European markets performed badly with low returns and are lagging 
behind global equity markets. 
 
For the quarter end 30th September 2014, the Fund performance was below 
the benchmark over the quarter, this was due to the poor performance and 
low returns from fund managers Baillie Gifford Global Equities, GMO and 
Schroder. 
 
Members were also informed that investments redeemedfrom  GMO portfolio 
is  being held as cash investments awaiting further guidance on market 
development to govern where best future investment opportunities would lie in 
order to invest appropriately. 
 
In response to Members comments and questions, the Committee were; 

Page 9



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

• Advised by the independent investment advisor at the meeting, not to 
place unallocated cash in UK equities as it is not performing well at  
present and to retain cash and invest at a more opportune moment. 

• Regarding concerns over performance of fund managers the Members 
were told; that Schroder and Investec showed improvement in 
performance and the committee were also advised to take long term 
view of performance monitoring instead of taking the quarter by quarter 
approach. 

• Note: Schroder and Investec are  propertyand bond managers which 
are long term (property yes, bonds less so) categories of investment. 

 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

4.4 Presentation & Training on Fixed Interest by Fund Manager - Legal & 
General (James Sparshott) 
 
The Committee received a presentation and training delivered by the Head of 
Local Authorities.  
 
The presentation and training was on bond asset class investments, 
explaining terminologies, categories, yields and their drivers and risks and 
ratings. 
 
Bonds 

• A bond is a loan from one organisation to another. Issuers and buyers 
include governments and banks and insurance companies. 

• The amount of bonds issued by the UK government has gone up to 
one trillion.  

• Bonds deliver set amount of cash flow over time. 

• There are two types of bonds; Conventional Gilts and Index-linked 
Gilts. 

• Pension schemes prefer index-linked gilts because pension schemes 
are linked to liability and investment in index-link gilts provides 
protection from inflation. 

• The Committee were told that in general Bonds are good for Pension 
scheme investors. 

 
RESOLVED  
That the presentation be noted. 
 

4.5 Hymans - Overview of actuarial valuation by Barry McKay (Actuary) 
 
Members received a presentation on the overview of the Actuarial Valuation 
delivered by Barry McKay of Hymans. 
 
The Actuarial review is an assessment of solvency of a fund and calculation 
for all contributors of the benefits at joining or leaving the fund  
 

Page 10



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

Barry McKay informed Members that; 

• The fund valuation has to be carried out every three years due to 
amount of work involved. 

• The funding strategy purpose is to ensure long term solvency and 
stable and affordable contribution rates. 

• Actuaries are based on guilt yields 
 
The presentation also noted the changing nature of the LGPS; 

• Active membership is declining which means less income coming in  

• This may then require the use of investment income. 
 
The Committee also heard that discounting permits LGPS’ to determine how 
much money needs to be held to meet pay outs required now and for the 
future which is also an indication of how mature the fund is 
It was noted that Hymans and Mercer use similar evaluation principles 
 
The representative accompanying Mr McKay informed the Committee further 
about the establishment of a Pensions Board. 

• The Pensions Board covers all of the public sector  

• It was noted that every fund must have its individual board and a 
shared pensions board may not be permissible. 

 
A suggestion was made to the working group, to consult the draft code of 
practice for LGPS and Pensions board as the codes of practice can be 
applied to many areas and not just for the governance of Pensions. 
 
It was emphasized that the Pensions Board has much more onus on it as 
there is a legal requirement for all members of the Board to be trained and 
have knowledge to be able to carry out duties and be willing to commit. 
 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the report be noted 
 
 

4.6 2013/14 Local Government Pension Fund Annual Report 
 
The Chief Accountant introduced this report  
 
The Committee were informed that auditors at KPMG had finished audit of the 
Pension Fund and if the Committee agreed the report, auditors would provide 
the Council with an official statement of accounts. 
 
It was also said that the accounts had not gone through much change since 
the last audit. 
 
The Investment and Treasury Manager informed the Committee that Fund 
Managers would be invited to present on the assets at a future Committee 
meeting.  

Page 11



PENSIONS COMMITTEE, 19/11/2014 SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

8 

 
She also informed Members that the Council had joined the Collective 
Investment Vehicle (CIV) which required a representative from each LGPS, so 
Members were asked to nominate a representative as the first meeting had 
been scheduled to be held on 22nd December 2014. 
 
Members requested to see a report on early retirement. 
 
It was  
RESOLVED 

• That Members agreed on the accounts 
 

 
5. ANY OTHER  BUSINESS CONSIDERED TO BE URGENT 

 
 
Report to be presented on early retirements and implications on the Pensions 
fund. 
 
Councillor nominations requested for London CIV committee membership – 
Councillor Clare Harrisson volunteered, the first meeting to be held on the 
22nd December and the Acting Corporate Director agreed to send the details 
of the meeting to Cllr Harrisson. 
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.59 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 

Chair, Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Pensions Committee 

 

Page 12



1 

COMMITTEE:

Pensions 
Committee 

DATE:

24 February 2015

CLASSIFICATION:

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO.

REPORT OF:

Acting Corporate Director of Resources 

ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 

Bola Tobun– Investment and Treasury 
Manager 

TITLE:

Investment Performance Review for 
Quarter End 31 December 2014 

Ward(s) affected: N/A 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report informs Members of the performance of the Fund and its 
investment managers for the quarter ending 31st December 2014.   

1.2 For the quarter, the Fund outperformed the benchmark by 0.3%, delivering a 
positive absolute return of 2.8% against benchmark return of 2.5%.  

1.3 The Fund is ahead its benchmark for the last twelve months to end of 
December 2014, the Fund returned 7.3%, and this exceeds the benchmark by 
0.2%. 

1.4 For longer term performance the Fund posted three year returns of 10.4% 
ahead the benchmark return of 10% and posted five year returns of 8.1% 
against benchmark return of 8.2%.   

1.5 For this quarter end, five out of the eight mandates matched or achieved 
returns above the benchmark. The Fund performance was above the 
benchmark over the quarter, this was mainly due to relatively good returns 
from Ruffer, Baillie Gifford Global Equities, Investec and Legal & General 
portfolio.  

1.6 The Fund is still in line with its long term strategic equity asset allocation and 
the distribution of the Fund’s assets amongst the different asset classes is 
broadly in line with the strategic benchmark weight.  

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

2.1 Members are recommended to note the contents of this report. 

3. REASONS FOR DECISIONS 

3.1 There are no decisions to be made as a result of this report. The report is 
written to inform committee members of the performance of pension fund 
managers and the overall performance of the Tower Hamlets Pension Fund.  

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establishes 
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Pension Fund.  

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 13



2 

5. BACKGROUND 

5.1 The Pension Fund Regulations require that the Council establish 
arrangements for monitoring the investments of the Fund. It considers the 
activities of the investment managers and ensures that proper advice is 
obtained on investment issues.   

5.2  Officers and fund advisers meet regularly with investment managers to 
discuss their strategy and performance and may recommend that investment 
managers are invited to explain further to the Pensions Committee.  

5.3 This report informs Members of the performance of the Fund and its 
investment managers for the quarter 31 December 2014. 

Legal & General Investment Management 

5.4 Legal & General was appointed (2 August 2010) to manage passively UK 
Equity and UK Index-Linked Mandates, which at 31 December 2014had a 
market value of £216.1m. The value of the assets taken on at the 
commencement of the contract was £204.7m. 

5.5 The performance target is to track the FTSE All Share index for the UK Equity 
mandate and FTSE A Gov Index-Linked > 5 years benchmark for the UK 
Index-Linked Mandates. 

Baillie Gifford & Co 

5.6 Baillie Gifford manages two distinct mandates; global equity mandate and 
diversified growth fund mandate. The global equity fund had a value of 
£118.9m at the start of the mandate in July 2007. The market value of the 
assets as of 31 December 2014 was £199.4m. The performance target for this 
mandate is +2% to 3% above the benchmark MSCI AC World Index gross of 
fees over a rolling 3-5 year periods.  

5.7 The diversified growth fund mandate was opened in February 2011 with 
contract value of £40m. The market value of assets as at 31 December 2014 
was £49.1m. The performance target for this mandate is to outperform the 
benchmark (UK base rate) net of fees over rolling 5 years with annual volatility 
of less than 10%. 

GMO 

5.8 GMO manages a Global Equity Mandate which at 31 December 2014 had a 
market value of £250.7m. £20.8m was redeemed from the portfolio in order to 
keep it in line with the strategic asset allocation weight for this manager. The 
initial value of the assets taken on at the commencement (29 April 2005) of the 
contract was £201.8m. 

5.9 The performance target is to outperform a balanced global equity benchmark 
by 1.5% per annum net of fees over a rolling three year period.  

Investec Asset Management 

5.10 Investec manages a Global Bond Mandate which at 31 December 2014had a 
market value of £99.5m. The initial value of the assets taken on at the 
commencement (26 April 2010) of the contract was £97m. 

Page 14



3 

5.11 The performance target is to outperform the benchmark (3 Month LIBOR) by 
2.0% per annum net of fees over a rolling three year period.  

Ruffer Investment Management 

5.12 Ruffer manages an Absolute Return Fund; the value of this contract on the 28 
February 2011 was £40m. The value of assets under management as of 31 
December 2014 was £48.3m.  

5.13 Their overall objective is firstly to preserve the capital over rolling 12 month 
periods and secondly to grow portfolio at a higher rate after fees than could 
reasonably be expected from the alternative of depositing the cash value of the 
portfolio in a reputable UK bank. 

  Schroder Investment Management 

5.14 Schroder manages a property mandate. The value of this mandate on 20 
September 2004 was £90m. The market value of assets at 31 December 2014 
was £119.2m. 

5.15 The performance target for this mandate is to outperform the IPD UK Pooled 
Property Fund Indices All Balanced Funds Median by 0.75% net of fees over a 
rolling three year period. 

6.      INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE
6.1 The Fund’s overall value has increased by £31.77m from £1,049.7m as of 30 

September 2014 to £1,081.5m as of 31 December 2014.

6.2 The fund outperformed the benchmark this quarter with a return of 2.8% 
compared to the benchmark return of 2.5%. The twelve month period sees the 
fund outperforming the benchmark by 0.2%. 

6.3 The performance of the fund over the longer term is as set out in the chart 
below.  

Table 1 – Pension Fund Performance 

6.4  The graph below demonstrates the volatility and cyclical nature of financial 
markets, but the outcomes are within the range of expectations used by the 
Fund actuary in assessing the funding position. The Fund can take a long term 
perspective on investment issues principally because a high proportion of its 

Current
Quarter

One Year Three Years Five Years

Fund 2.8% 7.3% 10.4% 8.1%

Bench Mark 2.5% 7.1% 10.0% 8.2%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

Pension Fund Performance

Page 15



4 

pension liabilities are up to sixty years in the future. Consequently it an 
effectively ride out short term volatility in markets. 

7.     MANAGERS 

7.1 A decision was made at the last quarterly meeting of rebalancing the Fund, in 
order to reduce the Fund’s overweight to equities given the strength of equity 
markets. And also to provide a better balance between the two global equity 
mandates. Taking into account the current overweight position of Baillie 
Gifford global equity portfolio, it was agreed that: 

• the target allocation to Baillie Gifford GE should be increased from 16% to 
18%; 

• the target allocation to GMO should be reduced from 25% to 23%; and 

• 2.0% would be subsequently disinvested from GMO portfolio to bring this 
mandate broadly in line with the new target allocation, to be held as cash 
for later investment opportunity. 

7.2  The Fund employs six specialist managers with eight mandates. The 
managers, mandate and funds held under management are set out below: 

��

��

��

�

�

�

�

�

��

��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�

	�
��

�	���

�����	��������
�	��	���	��������	��
	�������
���������	��

�����������������	��

�	


�������

�������

������

��������

�� �!"��

�������

�������

�#�$�

%&''��

Page 16



5 

Table 2: Management Structure 

Manager Mandate Value
December 
2014 £m 

Benchmark 
Weight % of 
Fund 
Managers 

Actual 
Weight % 
of Fund 
Managers 

Difference 
% 

Value
September 

2014        
£m 

Revised 
B/Mark 
Weight  
Dec 2014 

Date 
Appointed 

GMO 
Global 
Equity 250.74 25.0% 23.3% -1.7% 267.83 23.0% 

29 Apr 
2005 

Baillie Gifford 
Global 
Equity 199.44 16.0% 18.4% 2.4% 187.28 18.0% 5 Jul 2007 

L & G UK 
Equity 

UK 
Equity 216.08 20.0% 20.0% 0.0% 214.80 20.0% 

2 Aug 
2010 

Baillie Gifford 
Diversified 
Growth 

Absolute 
Return 49.08 5.0% 4.5% -0.5% 48.77 5.0% 

22 Feb 
2011 

Ruffer Total 
Return Fund 

Absolute 
Return 48.29 5.0% 4.5% -0.5% 46.34 5.0% 8 Mar 2011 

L & G Index 
Linked-Gilts 

UK Index 
Linked 57.65 3.0% 5.3% 2.3% 52.68 3.0% 

2 Aug 
2010 

Investec 
Bonds Bonds 99.49 14.0% 9.2% -4.8% 98.69 14.0% 

26 Apr 
2010 

Schroder Property 119.21 12.0% 11.0% -1.0% 114.27 12.0% 
30 Sep 

2004 

Cash Currency 41.47 0.0% 3.8% 3.8% 19.03   

Total   1,081.46 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 1,049.69 100.0%   

7.2 The Fund was valued at £1,081.5million as at 31 December 2014. This 
includes cash held and being managed internally (LBTH Treasury 
Management), this has increased to 3.8% of the total assets value.  

7.3 The performance, gross of fees of the individual managers relative to the 
appropriate benchmarks over the past five years is as set out in table 3. 

Table 3: Manager Investment Performance relative to benchmark 

Manager 
Current 
Quarter

One
 Year

Three 
Years

Five 
Years

GMO Global Equities -1.50% -0.50% -0.80% 0.00%

Baillie Gifford Global Equities 1.90% -0.10% 1.90% 2.00%

L & G UK Equity 0.00% 0.10% 0.10% N/A

Baillie Gifford Diversified 
Growth -0.03% 1.40% 3.00% N/A

Ruffer Total Return Fund 3.50% 3.70% 3.60% N/A

L & G Index Linked-Gilts 0.00% 0.00% 0.10% N/A

Investec Bonds 0.10% -0.60% -0.60% N/A

Schroder -0.30% -0.80% -0.70% -1.30%

Total Variance (Relative) 0.30% 0.20% 0.30% -0.10%

7.4 GMO - A rebalancing decision was made at the last meeting, to reduce the 
portfolio from 25% strategic allocation weight to 23%. As a result £20.8m was 
redeemed from the portfolio, which was equivalent of 2% of the total fund. 
GMO made absolute return of 1.3% in the quarter, underperforming the 
benchmark of 2.8% by 1.5%. 

Page 17



6 

7.5 With exception of the U.S market, global equities posted weak results for this 
quarter amidst heightened volatility and increased dispersion across regional 
markets around the world. GMO, U.S high quality position carries less cyclical 
economic exposure compared to the U.S market and this produced a positive 
selection impact during the quarter. High quality stock outperformed the U.S 
market during the period as U.S. investors generally favoured a mix of less 
cyclical sectors including Health Care and Consumer Staples. The light 
concentration in energy stocks also contributed to relative returns for the 
quarter. 

7.6 The emerging markets position produced negative allocation and selection 
impacts during the quarter. The largest detractor was Russia Energy as 
investors reacted to the oil price drop and continued concern around 
Russia/Ukraine. The portfolio position in China Financials was the biggest 
contributor for the quarter and it offset some of the shortfall. 

7.7 The Japan position produced a negative allocation and selection impact during 
the quarter. The largest detractor was the overweight position in Japan Autos, 
specifically Nissan and Honda, which underperformed during the quarter. 

7.8 The European value position produced a negative allocation impact during the 
quarter, as European value stocks trailed the broader market. Allocation within 
France and Italy was the leading detractor from returns. 

7.9 Strong performance over the past 12 months means that the portfolio’s 
performance since inception is now marginally above the benchmark, despite 
the poor relative performance exhibited during 2012 and Q1 2013.  

7.10 Baillie Gifford – the portfolio outperformed the benchmark of 4.5% over the 
quarter, delivering a return of 6.4% resulting in relative outperformance of 
1.9%.  The portfolio is relatively concentrated and seeks to generate strong 
absolute returns over the long-term through the use of an unconstrained 
bottom-up approach. The portfolio also delivered on this over the longer term, 
as performance remains ahead of the benchmark over 3 years and 5 years. 

7.11 The fund one year performance was under the benchmark return. Although the 
fund has delivered on its objective over the longer term, as performance 
remains ahead of the benchmark over 3 years, 5 years and since inception. 

7.12 The main contributors to performance were Naspers and Royal Caribbean 
Cruises, the Fund’s largest holding. Royal Caribbean Cruises saw strong yield 
growth driven by an improving economic outlook and positive pricing trends. 
Naspers has a significant stake in the Chinese gaming and ecommerce site, 
Tencent, to which its share price is highly correlated. Tencent released 
positive third quarter results which showed an increase in revenues and 
operating profits.  

7.13 The stocks that detracted from performance were Rolls-Royce, which has 
seen an extended period of share price weakness throughout 2014 and Ultra 
Petroleum, whose share price fell following the drop in oil and gas prices.  

Page 18



7 

7.14 Legal & General - L & G (UK Equity) – The portfolio returned 0.6% matching 
the index return over the quarter. At the quarterly index review there were two 
additions and four deletions. 

7.15 L & G Index Linked Gilts – The portfolio returned 9.4% matching the index 
return over the quarter. 

7.16 During the quarter there were four bond auctions, with maturities of 2024, 
2034, 2042 and 2050. These raised approximately £5.7bn. The 2019 maturity 
fell out of the index as its remaining maturity fell below five years. 

7.17 The portfolio held all 21 stocks contained within the benchmark index. The 
portfolio and index both had a modified duration of 22.51 years at the end of 
the quarter and the real yield was -0.74% (yield curve basis) 

7.18 Investec (Bonds) – The portfolio delivered a return 0.7% against a target of 
0.6% over the quarter. The marginal outperformance here was driven once 
again by the currency exposure. 

7.19 The strategic long in the US dollar was a notable contributor after a buoyant 
US economy, and the subsequently more hawkish tones from the US Federal 
Reserve, helped the dollar rally.  

7.20 Interest rate positioning and emerging market debt exposure both made 
broadly flat contributions. For the former, the contribution from the portfolio 
positioning in Australia was offset by the portfolio exposure to Japan. 
Meanwhile, emerging market debt came under significant pressure over the 
quarter and the fund manager selectivity served to help mitigate this drawdown 
and result in flat performance from their holdings here.  

7.21 Corporate credit once again came over the pressure for the quarter and 
detracted modestly from returns for the portfolio. The unexpected volatility and 
subsequent ‘risk-off’ environment that ensued resulted in credit spreads 
widening. Nonetheless, the portfolio’s defensive positioning helped limit the 
drawdown.  

7.22 Longer term performance remains below the benchmark for 12 months, 3 
years and since inception. 12 months to reporting period the benchmark 
returned 2.5% and the portfolio delivered 1.9%.  

7.23 Schroder (Property) – The portfolio returned 4.3% over the quarter; this is 
below the benchmark of 4.6% resulting in underperformance of the benchmark 
by 0.3%. 

7.24 There were a number of transactions in this quarter, with £3.2m of property 
purchases and £2.7m returns of capital. There were two returns of capital over 
the quarter: Columbus UK Real Estate Fund (£2.5m) and Schroder 
Continental European Fund I (£0.2m). 

7.25 Longer term performance continues to lag the benchmark; with an 
underperformance 1.3% p.a. over the 5 years to 31 December 2014.  

7.26 The UK investments assets (96% of the portfolio’s value) outperformed by 
+1.4% over the past twelve months and 0.9% over the three years. The UK 

Page 19



8 

assets marginally underperformed the benchmark over the quarter due in part 
to cash held on account pending investment.  

7.27 The Continental European Fund (4% of portfolio) produced a positive return 
this quarter, reducing the negative impact on overall portfolio performance. 

7.28 Please see below charts which illustrate the key drivers of performance in 
detail. 

7.29 Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Fund generated a return of 0.6% for the 
quarter, underperformed the benchmark of 1.0% by 0.4%.  

7.30 For the reporting quarter, the largest contributors to performance were 
absolute return, listed equities and property. The other asset classes were 

Page 20



9 

broadly flat over the quarter, with the exception of a negative contribution from 
active currency. 

7.31 The long term performances are ahead of the benchmark. The last 12 months 
are ahead by 1.4% and the last 3 years by 3.0% above benchmark returns.  

7.32 The greatest positive contributors over the past 12 months were listed equities, 
emerging market bonds and absolute return. 

7.33 Please see below charts which illustrate the strategic asset allocation of the 
portfolio at the quarter end. 

7.34 The fund returns exceeded the performance target for 12 months and 3 years 
as shown on table 3, page 5. 

7.35 Ruffer Total Return Fund (Absolute Return) – The portfolio performed very 
encouragingly by posting a positive return of 4.2% against a target return of 
0.6% over the quarter.  

7.36 The portfolio had a good quarter. The portfolio option positions helped weather 
October’s storm, while the promise of further low inflation readings, via weak 
commodity prices, caused government nominal and real bond yields to fall. 
Perhaps slightly unexpectedly this produced strong gains in the portfolio’s UK 
index-linked stocks, especially the longer-dated issues. Other helpful 
developments were further strength in the US dollar and the continued 
restoration of Japanese equities, which rose by 6% in yen. 

7.37 Other major contributors to positive returns were Chinese equities and key 
individual stock selections such as Oracle and Texas Instruments. 

7.38 Please see below charts which illustrate the strategic asset and currency 
allocations of the portfolio. 

Page 21



10 

Internal Cash Management 

7.39 Cash is held by the managers at their discretion in accordance with limits set 
in their investment guidelines, and internally by LBTH to meet working 
requirements, although transfers can be made to Fund managers to top up or 
rebalance the Fund. 

7.40 The Pension Fund invests in accordance with the Council’s Treasury 
Management strategy agreed by Full Council in February 2014, which is 
delegated to the Acting Corporate Director of Resources to manage on a day 
to day basis within set parameters.  

7.41 As at 31 December 2014 the Pension Fund internal cash balance was £41.5m. 
There was a rebalancing of managers’ asset allocation weights whereby it was 
proposed to reduce GMO asset allocation weight from 25% to 23%. This 
occurred during the quarter whereby 2% of the total fund was redeemed from 
GMO portfolio, £20.8m realised from this transaction is added to internal cash 
management pending best investment opportunity.  

7.42 Members will continue to be updated quarterly of the Pension Fund in house 
cash investment strategy. Security of the Fund’s cash remains the overriding 
priority, ahead of yield.  

Page 22



11 

8 ASSET ALLOCATION 

The benchmark asset distribution and the fund position at 31 December 2014 
are as set out below: 

Table 4: Asset Allocation 

Asset Class Benchmark 

Fund Position
as at 31 Dec 

2014

Variance  as 
at 31 Dec 

2014

UK Equities 24.0% 23% -1.0%

Global Equities 37.0% 39% 2.0%

Total Equities 61.0% 62% 1.0%

Property 12.0% 11.0% -1.0%

Bonds 14.0% 9.0% -5.0%

UK Index Linked 3.0% 5% 2.0%

Alternatives 10.0% 9.5% -0.5%

Cash 0.0% 4.5% 4.5%

Currency 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Equities 100.0% 100.0%   

8.1 The original allocation of investments between the different asset classes was 
determined in conjunction with the Council’s professional advisors in 2004 and 
is subject to periodic review by the Investment Panel – the latest review was 
carried out in January 2014.   

Asset allocation is determined by a number of factors including:- 

8.1.1 The risk profile. Generally there is a trade-off between the returns 
obtainable on investments and the level of risk. Equities have higher 
potential returns but this is achieved with higher volatility.  However, 
as the Fund remains open to new members and able to tolerate this it 
can seek long term benefits of the increased returns. 

8.1.2 The age profile of the Fund. The younger the members of the Fund, 
the longer the period before pensions become payable and 
investments have to be realised for this purpose. This enables the 
Fund to invest in more volatile asset classes because it has the 
capacity to ride out adverse movements in the investment cycle. 

8.1.3 The deficit recovery term. All Council funds are in deficit because of 
falling investment returns and increasing life expectancy. The actuary 
determines the period over which the deficit is to be recovered and 
considers the need to stabilise the employer’s contribution rate. The 
actuary has set a twenty year deficit recovery term for this Council 
which enables a longer term investment perspective to be taken.  

8.2 Allocations are therefore considered to be broadly in line with the benchmark.  
Individual managers have discretion within defined limits to vary the asset 
distribution. The overweight position in equities has helped the fund’s 
performance in recent months. 

Page 23



12 

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

9.1. The comments of the Acting Corporate Director Resources are incorporated in 
the report. 

10.  LEGAL COMMENTS 

10.1 Regulation 11(3) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 requires the Council, as an 
administering authority, to invest fund money that is not needed immediately to 
make payments from the Pensions Fund. Regulation 11(1) requires the 
Council to have a policy in relation to its investments. The investment policy 
should cover the following matters:  

 (a) the advisability of investing money in a wide variety of investments; and 

 (b) the suitability of particular investments and types of investments. The 
Council is also required to have a Statement of Investment Principles in 
accordance with regulation 12 (1) which cover the following matters: 

 (a) the types of investment to be held; 

 (b) the balance between different types of investments; 

 (c) risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and managed; 

 (d) the expected return on investments; 

 (e) the realisation of investments; 

 (f) the extent (if at all) to which social, environmental or ethical considerations 
are taken into account in the selection, retention and realisation of 
investments; 

 (g) the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments, 
if the authority has any such policy; and 

 (h) stock lending. 

   The Council must take proper advice at reasonable intervals about its 
investments and must consider such advice when taking any steps in relation 
to its investments. 

10.2 The Council does not have to invest the fund money itself and may appoint 
one or more investment managers.  Where the Council appoints an investment 
manager, it must keep the manager’s performance under review.  At least 
once every three months the Council must review the investments that the 
manager has made and, periodically, the Council must consider whether or not 
to retain that manager. 

10.3 One of the functions of the Pensions Committee is to meet the Council’s duties 
in respect of investment matters.  It is appropriate, having regard to these 
matters, for the Committee to receive information about asset allocation and 
the performance of appointed investment managers. The Committee’s 
consideration of the information in the report contributes towards the 
achievement of the Council’s statutory duties.   

Page 24



13 

11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

11.1 The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget 
and consequently any improvement in investment performance will reduce the 
contribution and increase the funds available for other corporate priorities. 

11.2 A viable pension scheme also represents an asset for the recruitment and 
retention of staff to deliver services to the residents. 

12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  

12.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication arising 
from this report. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. 

13.2  To minimise risk the Investment Panel attempts to achieve a diversified 
portfolio. Diversification relates to asset classes and management styles. 

14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

14.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report.

15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

15.1 The monitoring arrangement for the Pension Fund and the work of the Pension 
Fund Investment Panel should ensure that the Fund optimises the use of its 
resources in achieving the best returns for the Council and members of the 
Fund. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT

Brief description of "background papers" 
 Investment Managers Quarterly reports (Investec, GMO, Schroder, 
Baillie Gifford, LGIM and Ruffer) 
WM Quarterly Performance Review 

 Name and telephone number of holder
And address where open to inspection

Bola Tobun Investment &Treasury 
Manager x4733 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Quarterly 

Performance

Service

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER 

HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REVIEW

PERIODS TO END DECEMBER 2014

Produced 31 January 2015

Page 27



��������

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

����

Market Background 2

Fund Structure and Benchmarks 3

Performance Summary 4 - 5

Detailed Analysis of the Latest Quarter Performance 6

Long Term Performance Analysis 7

Long Term Asset Allocation 8 - 9

Long Term Stock Selection 10 - 11

Rolling Years with Relative Risk 12

Summary of Manager Performance 13 - 14

Performance Summary - Manager Attribution 15

������	
�� 16

Asset Mix and Returns 17

Summary of Long Term Returns 18

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - GMO World Equity 19

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - L&G Equity Uk 20

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - B Gifford World Equity 21

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - Schroders UK Property 22

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - Investec Global Bonds 23

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - L&G Index Linked 24

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - B Gifford Divers Growth 25

Rolling Years with Relative Risk - Ruffer 26

���������������������Page 28



��	
�����
�	����

Periods to end December 2014

 Pound Sterling

This page details the performance of the major markets.

UK 

Equities

N. 

America

Europe 

ex UK Japan Pacific

Other 

Intl.

UK 

Bonds

O/S 

Bonds UK IL

Cash/  

Alts Property

��������������

Return 

%
0.6 8.3 -0.5 1.6 0.7 5.0 6.3 2.8 8.4 0.1 4.4

����������� �

Return 

%
1.2 19.6 0.2 2.7 5.0 12.3 13.8 6.4 18.9 0.3 19.3

�����! ����"����

Return 

% pa
11.1 19.3 13.9 9.9 8.3 15.5 3.9 -1.4 6.3 0.4 10.6

������	#��"����

Return 

% pa
8.7 15.4 5.9 6.6 6.6 11.0 6.8 2.5 9.4 0.4 10.9

Index Used

FT All 

Share

FTSE 

WORLD N

FTSE 

WORLD E FT Japan

FT Pac x 

Jap

FT Wld x 

UK

UK Gilts 

AS

JPM Glb x 

UK I/L Gilts AS

7 Day 

LIBID

IPD 

Monthly

-25
-20
-15
-10
-5
0
5

10
15
20
25

-25
-20
-15
-10
-5
0
5

10
15
20
25

-25
-20
-15
-10
-5
0
5

10
15
20
25

-25
-20
-15
-10
-5
0
5

10
15
20
25

Return
%

Return
%

Return
%

Return
%

� ���������������������Page 29



�������	���	������������	
�

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

��	���	�

������	


Baillie Benchmark

L&G GMO Gifford Indices

Global Equities 100.0 MSCI AC World GDR

UK Equities 100.0 10.0 FTSE All Share

Overseas Equities 90.0

North America 30.0 FTSE AW North America

Europe 30.0 FTSE AW Dev Europe ex UK

Japan 17.0 FTSE AW Japan

Pacific ex Japan 8.5 FTSE AW Dev Asia 

Pacific ex Japan ex S. Korea

Emerging Markets 4.5 MSCI EM 

UK Gilts

Overseas Bonds

UK Index Linked

Cash

Property

20.0 25.0 16.0

Baillie Total Benchmark

L&G Investec Schroders Gifford Ruffer Combined Indices

Global Equities 16.0 MSCI AC World GDR

UK Equities 22.5 FTSE All Share

North America 7.4 FTSE AW North America

Europe 7.4 FTSE AW Europe ex UK

Japan 4.3 FTSE AW Japan

Pacific ex Japan 2.4 FTSE AW Dev Asia 

Pacific ex Japan ex S. Korea

Emerging Markets 1.0 MSCI EM 

Pooled Bonds 100.0 14.0 LIBOR 3 Month 2%

UK Index Linked 100.0 3.0 FTSE A Gov Index-Linked

> 5 yrs

Cash

Property 100.0 12.00 HSBC/IPD Pooled All 

Balanced Funds Average

Diversified Growth 100.0 100.0 10.0 50% Base Rate 3.5%/

50% 3 Month LIBOR +2%

3.0 14.0 12.0 5.0 5.0 100.0

��	����

GMO:  +1.5% p.a. net of fees over a rolling 3 year period.

Baillie Gifford Global Equity:  + 2 - 3 % p.a. gross of fees over a rolling 3 year period.

Schroders: +0.75% p.a. net of fees over a rolling 3 year period.

Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth: 3.5% p.a. above the UK Base Rate (after fees).

Investec: 3 Month LIBOR +2% p.a.

Ruffer: Overall objective is firstly to preserve the capital over rolling twelve month periods, and secondly to 

grow the Portfolio at a higher rate (after fees) than could reasonably be expected from the alternative of

depositing the cash value of the Portfolio in a reputable UK bank.

WM Contact:  Lynn Coventry

Direct Telephone:  (0131) 315 5258    Fax Number:  (0131) 315 2999    E-mail:  lynn.coventry@statestreet.com

The Fund is managed on a specialist basis with GMO and Baillie Gifford managing the Global Equities on an active basis.
UK equities and UK Index-Linked are passively managed by L&G. Investec manage an absolute return pooled bond fund
and Schroders are the property manager. During February 2011, Baillie Gifford and Ruffer were appointed to manage
Diversified Growth Funds. From 1/4/14 returns are shown net of fees.

The Fund's performance is analysed relative to customised benchmarks, the weighting and relevant indices are shown
below.
On a quarterly basis the Fund will be measured against its Customised Benchmark. On an annual basis there is
secondary analysis undertaken relative to the WM Local Authority Universe.
The fund structure and benchmarks are noted below.

$ ���������������������Page 30



�������	���	������������	
�

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

© 2015 The World Markets Company PLC (“WM”) a STATE STREET BUSINESS. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval 
system or transmitted, in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without WM’s prior written consent.
While all reasonable efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this document, there is no warranty, express or 
implied, as to its accuracy or completeness.  This document is for general information purposes only.  State Street Corporation and its affiliates (including 
WM and the State Street Investment Analytics division) accept no responsibility for any loss arising from any action taken or not taken by anyone using 
this material.
All statistics quoted are sourced by the State Street Investment Analytics division unless otherwise stated.

% ���������������������Page 31



��	��	����������	�

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page summarises the overall value and performance of the Fund.

�������&��

Value at Capital Value at %

Values (GBP)'000 Mandate 30/09/2014 Transactions  Gain / loss Income 31/12/2014 Fund

GMO Eq Glbl 267,830 -18,843 1,750 1,928 250,737 23

L & G Eq UK 214,802 0 1,276 -26 216,078 20

BAILLIE GIFF Eq Glbl 187,276 107 12,059 106 199,442 18

SCHRODERS Prop UK 114,273 989 3,948 933 119,210 11

INVESTEC Bd Glbl 98,694 0 800 -65 99,494 9

L & G Bd UK I/L 52,683 0 4,971 -5 57,654 5

BAILLIE GIFF Structured 48,768 18 298 18 49,084 5

RUFFER Absolute 46,342 0 1,948 0 48,290 4

INT MGD Cash 19,031 22,443 0 21 41,474 4

Total Fund 1,049,698 4,715 27,050 2,910 1,081,463 100

The table shows the value of each Portfolio at the start and end of the period.

The change in value over the period is a combination of the net money flows into or out of each Portfolio and any gain

or loss on the capital value of the investments. 

% ���������������������Page 32



��	��	����������	�

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page summarises the overall value and performance of the Fund.

������������

Latest Quarter 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

% pa % pa

Fund 2.8 7.3 10.4 8.1

Benchmark 2.5 7.1 10.0 8.2

Relative Return 0.3 0.2 0.3 -0.1

The graphs show the performance of the Fund and Benchmark over the latest period and longer term.

The relative return is the degree by which the Fund has out or underperformed the Benchmark over these periods

# = Data not available for the full period

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

20

25

Return
%

' ���������������������Page 33



�����������������������������������	��	���	��	����

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page analyses in detail the Fund performance over the latest period.

��((��)

Fund Return 2.8

Benchmark Return 2.5

Relative Performance 0.3

attributable to:

Asset Allocation 0.1

Stock Selection 0.1

The relative performance can be attributed to the effects of stock selection and asset allocation as detailed below:

UK 

Equities

O/S 

Equities Global Eq UK IL

Pooled 

Bonds Cash

Alternativ

es Curr Instr Property

Total 

Fund

�������&&�
��	��

Fund Start 22.6 23.0 17.8 5.0 9.4 2.5 9.1 -0.0 10.6 100.0

Fund End 21.9 21.0 18.4 5.3 9.2 4.4 9.0 -0.0 10.7 100.0

BM Start 22.5 22.5 16.0 3.0 14.0 10.0 12.0 100.0

BM End 22.1 22.6 16.3 3.2 13.7 9.8 12.2 100.0

Impact - - - 0.1 0.1 - - -0.1 - 0.1-0.2 -1.6 2.1 2.1 -4.5 4.4 -0.8 0.0 -1.5 0.0

���
*���&�
�	��

Fund 0.3 1.8 6.4 9.4 0.8 0.9 2.4 n/a 4.4 2.8

Benchmark 0.6 3.1 4.5 9.4 0.6 0.8 4.6 2.5

Impact -0.1 -0.3 0.3 - - 0.1 - 0.1

An asset allocation decision will have a positive impact if a Fund is invested more heavily than its Benchmark in an area that has performed well.

Conversely, a positive benefit would be derived from having a relatively low exposure to an area that has performed poorly.

Stock selection will have a positive impact if the Fund has outperformed  the Benchmark in a particular area.

The impact of both asset allocation and stock selection is weighted by the level of investment in the area.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-5

0

5

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative 
Weighting

%

Relative
Return

%

+ ���������������������Page 34



�����!��(����,��(��
�����&)�	�

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page looks in more detail at the long term performance, plotting it relative to the Benchmark.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

������������

Fund 4.7 -2.6 2.6 2.7 8.9 0.0 2.9 4.0 1.3 1.8 1.2 2.8 7.3 10.4 8.1

Benchmark 5.1 -1.9 2.6 2.4 8.4 -0.2 2.5 3.6 0.7 2.1 1.5 2.5 7.1 10.0 8.2

Relative -0.3 -0.6 -0.1 0.3 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.6 -0.3 -0.3 0.3 0.2 0.3 -0.1

The relative performance can be attributed to the effects of asset allocation and stock selection as detailed below:

�������&&�
��	��

Impact -0.2 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.2 -0.3 -0.1 - - - - 0.1 0.1 -0.1 -

���
*���&�
�	��

Impact -0.1 -0.7 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.6 -0.3 -0.3 0.1 0.1 0.4 -

An asset allocation decision will be positive if a Fund is invested more heavily than its Benchmark in an area that has performed well.

Conversely a positive benefit would be derived from investing less heavily in an area that has performed poorly.

Stock selection will be positive if the Fund has outperformed  the Benchmark in a particular area.

The impact of both asset allocation and stock selection is weighted by the level of investment in the area.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative
Return

%

Impact 
%

Impact 
%

- ���������������������Page 35



�������	�����������������

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page looks in more detail at asset allocation decisions, plotting the Fund's exposure at the end of each period relative

to the Benchmark and detailing the impact on the total fund performance.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

./0/���.�!���

Fund 22.6 22.7 23.0 22.9 22.9 22.8 23.4 23.9 23.0 23.1 22.6 21.9

Benchmark 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5

Impact - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

�����������.�!���

Fund 21.1 20.5 20.8 21.3 22.1 22.4 22.7 22.8 23.1 23.4 23.0 21.0

Benchmark 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5 22.5

Impact -0.1 - - - -0.1 - - - - - - - - - -

1��2��������3�����.0

Fund 16.5 16.1 16.5 16.5 17.5 17.8 17.8 18.0 18.0 17.7 17.8 18.4

Benchmark 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0

Impact - - - - - - - - - - - - 0.1 - -

!�!���2��3����.����3�45���0�3

Fund 17.1 17.5 17.0 16.9 16.0 15.6 15.1 14.5 14.4 14.2 14.4 14.5

Benchmark 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0 17.0

Impact -0.1 - -0.1 0.1 0.2 -0.2 - - 0.1 - 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.1 0.2

./0/���3�4�5����0�3

Fund 5.5 5.7 5.4 5.5 5.5 5.1 5.0 4.8 4.8 4.8 5.0 5.3

Benchmark 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0

Impact -0.2 0.1 -0.2 0.1 - -0.2 - -0.1 - - 0.1 0.1 0.2 -0.1 0.1

�����3�2��3�

Fund 11.5 11.8 11.6 11.3 10.4 10.4 10.1 9.8 9.6 9.4 9.4 9.2

Benchmark 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0 14.0

Impact 0.1 -0.1 - - 0.2 - 0.1 0.1 - 0.1 - 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.1

For each area of investment the initial weighting for the Fund and the Benchmark is shown and the difference plotted.

The impact will be positive when the Fund is overweight in an area that has outperformed or vice versa.

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

6 ���������������������Page 36



�������	�����������������

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page looks in more detail at asset allocation decisions, plotting the Fund's exposure at the end of each period relative

to the Benchmark and detailing the impact on the total fund performance.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

���78��!����!����

Fund 11.7 11.9 11.5 11.6 11.5 11.3 10.7 10.7 11.2 11.0 11.6 13.4

Benchmark 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

Impact -0.1 0.1 -0.1 - -0.1 - - - - - - - -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

!�!������7

Fund 1.7 1.8 1.5 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.3 1.5 2.2 2.0 2.5 4.4

Benchmark

Impact -0.1 0.1 - - -0.1 - -0.1 - - -0.1 - - -0.1 -0.2 -0.2

��!����!����

Fund 10.0 10.1 10.0 10.0 9.9 9.7 9.5 9.2 9.0 9.0 9.1 9.0

Benchmark 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

Impact - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

�.�����"����!�.��!�

Fund 0.0 0.0 -0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0

Benchmark

Impact - - - - 0.1 - - -0.1 - - - -0.1 -0.1 - -

!�!���������!"

Fund 11.0 11.4 11.2 10.9 9.9 10.1 10.2 10.2 10.2 10.6 10.6 10.7

Benchmark 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0

Impact - - - - 0.1 - - - - - - - -0.2 - -0.1

For each area of investment the initial weighting for the Fund and the Benchmark is shown and the difference plotted.

The impact will be positive when the Fund is overweight in an area that has outperformed or vice versa.

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

-5

0

5

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

Relative
Weight 

%

9 ���������������������Page 37



�����!��(����
*���&�
�	��

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page looks in more detail at the impact of stock selection, plotting the return in each area relative to

the Benchmark and detailing the impact on the total fund performance.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

./0/���.�!���

Fund 5.8 -2.5 4.7 3.6 10.3 -1.5 5.8 5.7 -0.4 2.7 -1.2 0.3 1.4 11.2 8.9

Benchmark 6.1 -2.6 4.7 3.8 10.3 -1.7 5.6 5.5 -0.6 2.2 -1.0 0.6 1.2 11.1 8.7

Impact -0.1 - - - - - - 0.1 0.1 0.1 - -0.1 0.1 - 0.1

�����������.�!���

Fund 6.3 -4.8 2.9 3.4 11.4 2.8 4.1 5.6 2.4 2.1 0.9 1.8 7.4 13.3 9.1

Benchmark 9.2 -4.5 3.7 4.2 14.6 0.5 2.5 4.2 0.5 2.1 1.8 3.1 7.6 14.2 9.4

Impact -0.6 -0.1 -0.1 -0.2 -0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.4 - -0.2 -0.3 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

1��2��������3�����.0

Fund 9.9 -5.0 5.1 2.8 15.8 1.7 2.8 5.1 2.0 0.3 1.9 6.4 11.0 16.7 12.7

Benchmark 9.0 -3.6 3.9 2.3 14.1 -0.1 1.2 5.0 0.5 2.6 3.2 4.5 11.2 14.6 10.5

Impact 0.1 -0.2 0.2 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.3 - 0.3 -0.4 -0.2 0.3 - 0.3 0.3

!�!���2��3����.����3�45���0�3

Fund 0.8 -0.0 -0.4 2.3 3.1 -2.5 -0.0 0.0 1.3 0.4 2.8 3.8 8.5 3.8 3.8

Benchmark 0.3 0.7 -0.0 1.4 2.1 -0.8 0.6 0.3 1.1 0.7 1.6 2.2 5.7 3.5

Impact 0.2 -0.1 - - - - -0.1 - - -0.1 0.1 - - - -0.3

./0/���3�4�5����0�3

Fund -2.0 0.8 -3.2 5.1 9.0 -7.3 0.6 -0.9 3.6 1.1 5.9 9.4 21.4 7.1 10.4

Benchmark -2.0 0.8 -3.2 5.0 9.0 -7.3 0.5 -0.9 3.6 1.1 5.9 9.4 21.4 7.0 10.5

Impact - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

�����3�2��3�

Fund 2.2 -0.4 0.9 1.0 0.2 0.1 -0.3 0.5 0.1 0.0 1.2 0.8 2.2 2.1

Benchmark 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 2.5 2.6

Impact 0.2 -0.1 - - - -0.1 -0.1 - - -0.1 0.1 - - -0.1 -0.3

For each area of investment the return for the Fund and the Benchmark is shown and the relative return plotted.

The impact of stock selection is the relative return weighted by the level of investment in the area.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

�: ���������������������Page 38



�����!��(����
*���&�
�	��

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page looks in more detail at the impact of stock selection, plotting the return in each area relative to

the Benchmark and detailing the impact on the total fund performance.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

���78��!����!����

Fund 2.9 -1.0 1.4 2.4 6.6 -1.8 0.2 1.5 -0.1 1.1 1.8 2.0 4.8 5.7 1.9

Benchmark 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 3.3 3.3 2.7

Impact 0.3 -0.2 0.1 0.2 0.6 -0.3 - 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 -

!�!������7

Fund -0.2 0.5 -0.4 0.1 1.5 0.2 -1.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.8 0.9 1.4 0.6 0.6

Benchmark

Impact

��!����!����

Fund 3.5 -1.3 1.7 2.8 7.4 -2.0 0.4 1.7 -0.1 1.4 2.0 2.4 5.8 6.7 -3.0

Benchmark 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 3.3 3.3 2.7

Impact 0.3 -0.2 0.1 0.2 0.6 -0.3 - 0.1 -0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 -

�.�����"����!�.��!�

Fund n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Benchmark

Impact

!�!���������!"

Fund 0.3 -0.4 -0.3 0.2 1.2 1.2 2.0 3.7 2.8 4.7 3.9 4.4 16.8 8.0 7.8

Benchmark 0.8 0.3 0.4 -0.4 0.8 1.4 2.4 4.3 3.3 4.3 4.0 4.6 17.2 8.9 9.1

Impact -0.1 -0.1 -0.1 0.1 - - - -0.1 - - - - - -0.1 -0.1

For each area of investment the return for the Fund and the Benchmark is shown and the relative return plotted.

The impact of stock selection is the relative return weighted by the level of investment in the area.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

- indicates a value less than 0.05 and greater than -0.05

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

�� ���������������������Page 39



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 794.3 829.5 809.6 829.0 853.8 929.4 930.3 956.0 998.4 1016.2 1035.1 1049.7

Net Investment -0.2 4.6 1.0 3.9 2.2 3.7 0.8 6.2 7.1 4.2 4.3 4.7

Capital Gain/Loss 35.5 -24.5 18.5 20.9 73.3 -2.7 24.9 36.2 10.8 14.7 10.3 27.0

Final 829.5 809.6 829.0 853.8 929.4 930.3 956.0 998.4 1016.2 1035.1 1049.7 1081.5

Income 2.2 3.2 2.3 1.9 2.3 3.2 2.3 2.1 2.1 3.8 2.3 2.9

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 

Proportions (%) In

Total Equity 60 59 60 61 63 63 64 65 64 64 63 61 

Bonds + IL 17 17 17 17 16 16 15 15 14 14 14 15 

Cash/  Alts 12 12 12 12 12 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 

Property 11 11 11 11 10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 

�������&)��������

Fund 4.7 -2.6 2.6 2.7 8.9 0.0 2.9 4.0 1.3 1.8 1.2 2.8

Benchmark 5.1 -1.9 2.6 2.4 8.4 -0.2 2.5 3.6 0.7 2.1 1.5 2.5

Relative Return -0.3 -0.6 -0.1 0.3 0.4 0.2 0.4 0.4 0.6 -0.3 -0.3 0.3 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 12.7 9.9 5.8 5.7 6.6 9.5 7.8 7.1 7.1 7.2 11.2 10.4

Benchmark 13.8 11.0 6.8 6.5 7.1 9.6 7.9 7.1 6.9 7.2 10.9 10.0

Relative Return -0.9 -0.9 -0.9 -0.7 -0.5 -0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.3 0.3 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 1.1 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.0 1.1

Information Ratio -0.8 -0.9 -0.9 -0.7 -0.5 -0.0 -0.1 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.3 0.3

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�� ���������������������Page 40



�����	�����������	���	��	����

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page summarises the performance of each investment manager plotting the return achieved relative to the Benchmark.

Latest Quarter 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

% pa % pa

1��5�!�!�������!�

LB TOWER HAMLET - GMO WOOLEY BM

Portfolio 1.3 6.6 13.0 9.4

Benchmark 2.8 7.1 13.9 9.4

Relative Return -1.5 -0.5 -0.8 0.0

�<1�5�!�!�������!�

FTSE All Share TR

Portfolio 0.6 1.2 11.2

Benchmark 0.6 1.2 11.1

Relative Return 0.0 0.1 0.1

2�������1�����3�<����5�!�!�������!�

MSCI AC WORLD GDR

Portfolio 6.5 11.1 16.8 12.7

Benchmark 4.5 11.2 14.6 10.5

Relative Return 1.9 -0.1 1.9 2.0

��7��3��������!/�1!/�5�!�!�������!�

London Borough of Tower Hamlets - Schroders

Portfolio 4.3 16.3 7.8 7.4

Benchmark 4.6 17.2 8.6 8.8

Relative Return -0.3 -0.8 -0.7 -1.3

�����!�������!����1���!�5�!�!�������!�

GBP 3 MONTH LIBOR + 2%

Portfolio 0.7 2.0 2.0

Benchmark 0.6 2.5 2.6

Relative Return 0.1 -0.6 -0.6

The graphs show the performance of each manager relative to their Benchmark.

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of the Benchmark over these periods.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

�$ ���������������������Page 41



�����	�����������	���	��	����

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page summarises the performance of each investment manager plotting the return achieved relative to the Benchmark.

Latest Quarter 1 Year 3 Years 5 Years

% pa % pa

�<1�5�!�!�������!�

FTSE UK GILTS INDEXED > 5 YRS

Portfolio 9.4 21.4 7.1

Benchmark 9.4 21.4 7.0

Relative Return 0.0 0.0 0.1

2�������1�����3�<����5�!�!�������!�

BANK OF ENGLAND BASE RATE + 3.5%

Portfolio 0.6 5.4 7.2

Benchmark 1.0 4.0 4.0

Relative Return -0.3 1.4 3.0

�.����������!��!�1!��!3�5�!�!�������!�

GBP 3 MONTH LIBOR + 2%

Portfolio 4.2 6.3 6.3

Benchmark 0.6 2.5 2.6

Relative Return 3.5 3.7 3.6

��!������"����1�3�5�!�!�������!�

LB TOWER HAMLETS INTERNAL BM

Portfolio 0.1 0.8 0.9 n/a

Benchmark 0.1 0.3 0.4 0.4

Relative Return -0.0 0.4 0.5 n/a

Relative Return

The graphs show the performance of each manager relative to their Benchmark.

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of the Benchmark over these periods.

# not invested in this area for the entire period

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

-4

-2

0

2

4

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

�% ���������������������Page 42



��	��	����������	����������	����	� �����

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS  Quarter to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page analyses in detail the contributions to the Fund performance over the latest period.

��((��)

Fund Return 2.8

Benchmark Return 2.5

Relative Performance 0.3

attributable to:

Strategic Allocation 0.2

Manager Contribution 0.1

Residual -

The relative performance can be attributed to the effects of manager contribution and strategic allocation.

3���	&

Policy Investment Weighted

Portfolio Benchmark Contribution Manager Contribution Portfolio Benchmark

25.4 25.0 -  GMO -0.4 1.3 2.8

20.4 20.0 -  L&G - 0.6 0.6

17.8 16.0 -  BAILLIE GIFFORD & CO 0.3 6.5 4.5

10.9 12.0 -  SCHRODER INVEST. MGMT. - 4.3 4.6

9.4 14.0 0.1  INVESTEC ASSET MANAGEMENT - 0.7 0.6

5.0 3.0 0.1  L&G - 9.4 9.4

4.6 5.0 -  BAILLIE GIFFORD & CO - 0.6 1.0

4.4 5.0 -  RUFFER INVESTMENT MGMT LTD 0.2 4.2 0.6

2.1 0.0 -0.1  INTERNALLY MANAGED - 0.1 0.1

0.2 0.1

The Strategic Allocation quantifies the impact of the fund being invested differently from the Strategic Benchmark set.

The Manager Contribution comes about from the out / underperformance of each manager relative to their benchmarks

weighted by the value of assets held.

# = not invested in this area for the entire period

Strategic Allocation Manager Contribution

Distribution       % Return

�' ���������������������Page 43



�!!������

�+ ���������������������Page 44



��������"�����#���	��

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLETS TOTAL B/MARK  Pound Sterling

This page provides the underlying detail for the fund over the latest period.

All values are shown
Asset Allocation Stock Selection

in GBP'000s 30/09/2014 Gain/ 31/12/2014

Value   % Purchases Sales Loss Income Value   % Return B'M

  TOTAL EQUITIES 666,211 63 66,236 84,019 15,401 2,018 663,829 61 2.6 2.5

  U.K. EQUITIES 237,410 23 5,355 6,209 484 216 237,040 22 0.3 0.6

  OVERSEAS EQUITIES 241,526 23 60,774 77,810 2,857 1,803 227,346 21 1.8 3.1

   NORTH AMERICA 103,449 10 20,134 23,596 8,074 469 108,060 10 8.6 8.3

    TOTAL USA 103,347 10 17,491 23,502 8,139 462 105,475 10 8.7

   CONTINENTAL EUROPE 84,131 8 15,726 38,496 -1,494 199 59,868 6 -2.7 -0.5

    EUROLAND TOTAL 75,692 7 12,965 34,636 -808 181 53,213 5 -2.0

     FRANCE 27,450 3 4,956 12,156 -1,165 159 19,085 2 -4.6

     GERMANY 21,865 2 4,269 11,872 902 15,165 1 2.6

     NETHERLANDS 3,786 0 1,070 2,168 339 5 3,027 0 6.7

     ITALY 8,271 1 668 3,112 -996 4,831 0 -14.0

     BELGIUM 960 0 204 406 70 5 828 0 6.6

     FINLAND 2,441 0 157 1,429 -34 1,134 0 -4.2

     AUSTRIA 721 0 53 -62 605 0 -9.0

     SPAIN 8,263 1 1,029 3,255 -124 4 5,913 1 -3.2

     IRELAND 1,359 0 553 93 309 9 2,129 0 19.0

     PORTUGAL 577 0 58 92 -46 -1 497 0 -8.1

     GREECE

     LUXEMBOURG

    NON EUROLAND TOTAL 8,439 1 2,761 3,860 -685 18 6,655 1 -8.1

     SWITZERLAND 2,483 0 1,667 2,059 45 2,135 0 1.2

     DENMARK 1,062 0 47 59 -107 943 0 -9.8

     NORWAY 2,837 0 299 1,127 -625 18 1,384 0 -22.8

     SWEDEN 2,058 0 748 615 2 2,193 0 -0.3

   JAPAN 28,482 3 3,712 10,103 -1,039 68 21,052 2 -4.0 1.6

   TOTAL PACIFIC (EX.JAPAN) 271 0 3,723 395 75 2 3,674 0 3.0 2.3

   OTHER INTL EQUITIES 25,193 2 17,479 5,220 -2,760 1,065 34,692 3 -4.2 -0.6

  GLOBAL POOLED INC UK 187,276 18 107 12,059 199,442 18 6.4 4.5

   BG INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUND 187,276 18 107 12,059 199,442 18 6.4

   INTERNATIONAL

   International Unit Trust 1

  U.K. INDEX - LINKED 52,683 5 4,971 57,654 5 9.4 9.4

  POOLED BONDS 98,694 9 800 99,494 9 0.8 0.6

  CASH/ALTERNATIVES 121,349 12 419,938 399,090 2,570 21 144,768 13 2.0 0.8

  CURRENCY INSTRUMENTS -496 0 206,739 205,635 -640 -32 0 n/a

  U.K. PROPERTY 106,254 10 5,449 4,705 3,792 990 110,791 10 4.5 4.6

  OVERSEAS PROPERTY 5,003 0 198 155 4,961 0 3.2

TOTAL ASSETS 1,049,698 100 698,362 693,647 27,050 2,910 1,081,463 100 2.8 2.5

The change in Fund value over the period is a combination of the net money flows into or out of the Fund and any gain

or loss on the capital value of the investments. 

# not invested in this area for the entire period

�- ���������������������Page 45



�����	������������	��#���	��

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - TOTAL COMBINED  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LOCAL AUTHORITY UNIVERSE  Pound Sterling

This page summarises the long term returns at asset class level

A ranking against the peer group is shown in brackets.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 --------------- 1yr 3yrs 5yrs

Return % Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 % pa % pa

  UK Equities 5.8 -2.5 4.7 3.6 10.3 -1.5 5.8 5.7 -0.4 2.7 -1.2 0.3 1.4 11.2 8.9

(86) (37) (50) (75) (78) (48) (52) (46) (33) (12) (68)

  N. America 8.5 -2.0 3.2 -0.7 14.5 1.2 -1.8 7.4 1.4 0.5 7.0 8.6 18.5 16.3 13.3

(73) (62) (80) (43) (98) (95) (98) (58) (36) (93) (6)

  Europe ex UK 5.6 -9.0 6.7 8.7 4.3 2.9 11.6 8.0 6.5 1.6 -5.6 -2.7 -0.5 12.7 4.4

(95) (98) (44) (15) (100) (6) (1) (4) (1) (16) (100)

  Pacific 11.7 -1.1 12.6 7.2 4.2 -6.5 7.2 4.6 -0.8 4.4 0.1 3.0 6.8 15.8 11.6

(10) (7) (2) (9) (96) (17) (4) (3) (75) (13) (66)

  Japan 3.0 -4.2 -3.2 2.4 18.6 6.1 2.1 -2.4 -4.8 6.3 0.9 -4.0 -1.9 6.4 6.7

(100) (27) (56) (77) (81) (20) (22) (92) (27) (8) (95)

  Global Eq 9.9 -5.0 5.1 2.8 15.8 1.7 2.8 5.1 2.0 0.3 1.9 6.4 11.0 16.7 12.7

(36) (75) (14) (30) (20) (18) (15) (50) (11) (100) (73)

  UK IL -2.0 0.8 -3.2 5.1 9.0 -7.3 0.6 -0.9 3.6 1.1 5.9 9.4 21.4 7.1 10.4

(61) (22) (63) (28) (27) (51) (30) (28) (21) (34) (20)

  Pooled Bonds 2.2 -0.4 0.9 1.0 0.2 0.1 -0.3 0.5 0.1 0.0 1.2 0.8 2.2 2.1

(50) (85) (84) (76) (92) (33) (78) (64) (93) (76) (30)

  Cash -0.2 0.5 -0.4 0.1 1.5 0.2 -1.0 -0.2 -0.2 -0.2 0.8 0.9 1.4 0.6 0.6

(81) (27) (87) (39) (22) (37) (81) (70) (80) (72) (23)

  Alternatives 3.5 -1.3 1.7 2.8 7.4 -2.0 0.4 1.7 -0.1 1.4 2.0 2.4 5.8 6.7 -3.0

(16) (77) (32) (20) (22) (86) (28) (39) (86) (39) (60)

  Curr Instr n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

  Property 0.3 -0.4 -0.3 0.2 1.2 1.2 2.0 3.7 2.8 4.7 3.9 4.4 16.8 8.0 7.8

(70) (78) (66) (54) (36) (77) (51) (58) (61) (36) (54)

Total Assets 4.7 -2.6 2.6 2.7 8.9 0.0 2.9 4.0 1.3 1.8 1.2 2.8 7.3 10.4 8.1

(79) (82) (84) (54) (60) (14) (33) (32) (21) (67) (86)

# not invested in this area for the entire period

�6 ���������������������Page 46



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5�1�����&���=�	�)

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - GMO  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - LB TOWER HAMLET - GMO WOOLEY BM Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 188.2 199.0 190.8 196.3 203.5 226.3 231.9 241.1 254.8 260.5 267.0 267.8

Net Investment 0.9 2.7 1.0 1.6 0.8 2.7 1.0 1.7 0.9 2.8 1.2 -18.8

Capital Gain/Loss 9.9 -10.9 4.5 5.6 22.0 2.9 8.2 12.0 4.8 3.7 -0.4 1.7

Final 199.0 190.8 196.3 203.5 226.3 231.9 241.1 254.8 260.5 267.0 267.8 250.7

Income 1.5 2.2 1.5 1.1 1.3 2.3 1.3 1.3 1.2 2.7 1.3 1.9

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 24 24 24 24 24 25 25 26 26 26 26 23 

�������&)��������

Fund 6.0 -4.3 3.1 3.4 11.4 2.3 4.1 5.5 2.4 2.4 0.3 1.3

Benchmark 8.9 -4.3 3.7 4.1 14.1 0.4 2.7 4.3 0.3 2.2 1.6 2.8

Relative Return -2.6 -0.0 -0.6 -0.7 -2.3 1.9 1.3 1.1 2.0 0.3 -1.2 -1.5 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 15.0 10.8 4.9 5.5 6.3 11.4 9.3 8.4 8.5 8.7 14.8 13.0

Benchmark 15.7 11.1 5.3 5.9 7.5 12.0 9.8 8.3 7.8 8.2 14.9 13.9

Relative Return -0.6 -0.3 -0.4 -0.5 -1.1 -0.6 -0.4 0.1 0.7 0.5 -0.1 -0.8 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 1.7 1.9 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.4 2.4 2.5 2.6

Information Ratio -0.3 -0.1 -0.2 -0.2 -0.5 -0.3 -0.2 0.1 0.3 0.2 -0.0 -0.3

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�9 ���������������������Page 47



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5��<1��=�	�)�.*

LB OF TOWER HAMLETS - L&G  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - FTSE All Share TR Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 156.8 166.5 162.2 169.8 176.3 194.6 191.5 202.3 213.4 212.1 216.9 214.8

Net Investment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Gain/Loss 9.7 -4.3 7.7 6.5 18.3 -3.1 10.8 11.1 -1.3 4.8 -2.1 1.3

Final 166.5 162.2 169.8 176.3 194.6 191.5 202.3 213.4 212.1 216.9 214.8 216.1

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 20 20 20 21 21 21 21 21 21 21 20 20 

�������&)��������

Fund 6.2 -2.6 4.7 3.8 10.4 -1.6 5.6 5.5 -0.6 2.3 -1.0 0.6

Benchmark 6.1 -2.6 4.7 3.8 10.3 -1.7 5.6 5.5 -0.6 2.2 -1.0 0.6

Relative Return 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 10.2 9.5 8.9 9.0 14.1 11.2

Benchmark 10.1 9.4 8.8 8.9 13.9 11.1

Relative Return 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0

Information Ratio 1.7 1.9 1.9 2.2 2.2 2.3

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�: ���������������������Page 48



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5�2�1	,,�������&���=�	�)

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - BAILLIE GIFFORD & CO  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - MSCI AC WORLD GDR Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 124.6 137.0 130.1 136.8 140.8 163.1 165.9 170.6 179.4 183.1 183.6 187.3

Net Investment 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

Capital Gain/Loss 12.4 -6.9 6.6 3.9 22.2 2.8 4.6 8.6 3.6 0.5 3.5 12.1

Final 137.0 130.1 136.8 140.8 163.1 165.9 170.6 179.4 183.1 183.6 187.3 199.4

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 17 16 17 16 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 

�������&)��������

Fund 9.9 -5.0 5.1 2.8 15.8 1.7 2.8 5.1 2.0 0.3 2.0 6.5

Benchmark 9.0 -3.6 3.9 2.3 14.1 -0.1 1.2 5.0 0.5 2.6 3.2 4.5

Relative Return 0.9 -1.5 1.1 0.5 1.4 1.8 1.6 0.0 1.5 -2.2 -1.1 1.9 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 20.7 15.6 9.7 8.8 10.5 15.0 12.0 10.4 10.4 10.4 17.3 16.8

Benchmark 17.1 13.2 7.4 6.9 8.3 12.5 9.8 8.3 7.7 8.5 15.7 14.6

Relative Return 3.1 2.1 2.1 1.7 2.0 2.2 2.0 2.0 2.5 1.7 1.4 1.9 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 2.5 2.2 2.2 2.3 2.3 2.6 2.6 2.8 2.9 3.2 3.2 3.2

Information Ratio 1.3 0.9 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.6

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�� ���������������������Page 49



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5��
 �������.0��������)

LB OF TOWER HAMLET PROPERTY PORTFOLIO - SCHRODER INVEST. MGMT.  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - London Borough of Tower Hamlets - Schroders Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 94.9 95.1 94.8 94.5 94.7 95.8 96.8 98.7 102.3 105.2 110.1 114.3

Net Investment 0.7 1.0 0.8 0.8 0.9 0.8 0.9 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.0 1.0

Capital Gain/Loss -0.4 -1.3 -1.1 -0.7 0.1 0.3 0.9 2.8 1.9 3.8 3.2 3.9

Final 95.1 94.8 94.5 94.7 95.8 96.8 98.7 102.3 105.2 110.1 114.3 119.2

Income 0.7 0.9 0.8 0.8 1.0 0.8 0.9 0.8 0.9 1.0 0.9 0.9

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 11 12 11 11 10 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 

�������&)��������

Fund 0.3 -0.4 -0.3 0.2 1.2 1.1 1.9 3.6 2.8 4.6 3.7 4.3

Benchmark 0.6 0.1 -0.1 -0.4 0.8 1.4 2.4 4.3 3.3 4.3 4.0 4.6

Relative Return -0.3 -0.5 -0.2 0.6 0.4 -0.3 -0.5 -0.6 -0.5 0.3 -0.3 -0.3 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 5.2 7.8 6.8 4.5 3.8 3.7 3.9 4.4 4.8 5.7 6.6 7.8

Benchmark 8.5 9.7 9.0 6.1 4.7 4.2 4.4 5.2 5.7 6.6 7.4 8.6

Relative Return -3.0 -1.8 -2.0 -1.5 -0.9 -0.4 -0.5 -0.8 -0.8 -0.9 -0.8 -0.7 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 2.4 1.4 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.3 1.3 1.4

Information Ratio -1.3 -1.3 -1.5 -1.2 -0.8 -0.4 -0.5 -0.7 -0.6 -0.7 -0.6 -0.5

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�� ���������������������Page 50



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5���#����
�1&�>�&�2����

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS - INVESTEC ASSET MANAGEMENT  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - GBP 3 MONTH LIBOR + 2% Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 93.5 95.5 95.1 96.0 96.9 97.0 97.2 96.9 97.4 97.5 97.5 98.7

Net Investment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Gain/Loss 2.0 -0.4 0.8 0.9 0.2 0.1 -0.3 0.5 0.1 0.0 1.2 0.8

Final 95.5 95.1 96.0 96.9 97.0 97.2 96.9 97.4 97.5 97.5 98.7 99.5

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 -0.1

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 12 12 12 11 10 10 10 10 10 9 9 9 

�������&)��������

Fund 2.2 -0.4 0.9 1.0 0.2 0.1 -0.3 0.5 0.1 -0.0 1.1 0.7

Benchmark 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

Relative Return 1.4 -1.2 0.2 0.3 -0.5 -0.5 -0.9 -0.1 -0.5 -0.7 0.5 0.1 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 0.9 0.3 0.1 -0.1 0.2 1.9 2.0

Benchmark 2.8 2.8 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6

Relative Return -1.8 -2.4 -2.6 -2.8 -2.5 -0.7 -0.6 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 2.5 2.4 2.3 2.3 2.3 1.6 1.3

Information Ratio -0.7 -1.0 -1.1 -1.2 -1.1 -0.5 -0.5

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�$ ���������������������Page 51



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5��<1�����?��	�*��

LB OF TOWER HAMLETS - L&G  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - FTSE UK GILTS INDEXED > 5 YRS Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 46.9 46.0 46.4 44.9 47.2 51.4 47.6 47.9 47.5 49.2 49.7 52.7

Net Investment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Gain/Loss -0.9 0.4 -1.5 2.3 4.3 -3.8 0.3 -0.4 1.7 0.6 3.0 5.0

Final 46.0 46.4 44.9 47.2 51.4 47.6 47.9 47.5 49.2 49.7 52.7 57.7

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.0 -0.0 -0.0

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 6 6 5 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

�������&)��������

Fund -2.0 0.8 -3.2 5.1 9.0 -7.3 0.6 -0.9 3.6 1.1 5.9 9.4

Benchmark -2.0 0.8 -3.2 5.0 9.0 -7.3 0.5 -0.9 3.6 1.1 5.9 9.4

Relative Return 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 8.4 7.7 9.0 7.8 7.2 7.1

Benchmark 8.3 7.6 8.9 7.8 7.1 7.0

Relative Return 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Information Ratio 1.5 1.6 2.1 2.5 2.8 2.7

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�% ���������������������Page 52



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5�2�1	,,����3	#����1��;� 

LB OF TOWER HAMLETS - BAILLIE GIFFORD & CO  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - BANK OF ENGLAND BASE RATE + 3.5% Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 39.7 41.7 42.0 42.9 44.1 46.3 45.0 45.5 46.5 46.9 47.9 48.8

Net Investment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Gain/Loss 2.0 0.2 0.9 1.2 2.2 -1.3 0.4 1.1 0.3 1.0 0.8 0.3

Final 41.7 42.0 42.9 44.1 46.3 45.0 45.5 46.5 46.9 47.9 48.8 49.1

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

�������&)��������

Fund 5.0 0.5 2.1 2.9 5.0 -2.9 1.0 2.4 0.7 2.3 1.7 0.6

Benchmark 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0

Relative Return 3.9 -0.5 1.1 1.9 3.9 -3.8 -0.0 1.4 -0.3 1.3 0.7 -0.3 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 5.1 5.2 7.2 7.2

Benchmark 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0

Relative Return 1.1 1.2 3.1 3.0 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 4.8 4.8 4.2 4.1

Information Ratio 0.2 0.2 0.7 0.7

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�' ���������������������Page 53



��&&	���"�����;	� ���&��	#���	�*�5���,,��

LB OF TOWER HAMLETS - RUFFER INVESTMENT MGMT LTD  Periods to end December 2014

Benchmark - GBP 3 MONTH LIBOR + 2% Pound Sterling

Category - TOTAL ASSETS

This page details the longer term performance of the Fund, plotting it relative to the Benchmark set.

--------------- 2012 --------------- --------------- 2013 --------------- --------------- 2014 ---------------

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Values (GBPm's)

Initial 40.2 41.0 39.8 40.2 41.3 45.5 45.0 44.9 45.4 45.0 45.3 46.3

Net Investment 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Capital Gain/Loss 0.8 -1.3 0.5 1.1 4.2 -0.5 -0.0 0.5 -0.4 0.2 1.1 1.9

Final 41.0 39.8 40.2 41.3 45.5 45.0 44.9 45.4 45.0 45.3 46.3 48.3

Income 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

Proportion Of Total Fund

(%) 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 

�������&)��������

Fund 2.1 -3.1 1.2 2.8 10.1 -1.2 -0.1 1.1 -0.9 0.5 2.4 4.2

Benchmark 0.8 0.7 0.7 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.6

Relative Return 1.3 -3.8 0.5 2.1 9.4 -1.8 -0.7 0.5 -1.5 -0.1 1.7 3.5 

�����&	������&&	���$�"�����������

Fund 4.3 4.1 5.7 6.3

Benchmark 2.7 2.7 2.7 2.6

Relative Return 1.6 1.4 3.0 3.6 

��&&	����$��"�����	�*

Relative Risk 5.5 5.5 4.9 5.2

Information Ratio 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.7

The relative return is the degree of out or underperformance of  the Benchmark over these periods.

Relative risk measures the degree of fund performance deviation from benchmark. The larger the relative risk number the greater the

monthly deviation from benchmark.

Information Ratio is often interpreted as a measure of manager skill in adding value over and above the benchmark.

-4.0

-3.0

-2.0

-1.0

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

-4.0

-2.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Return

%

Relative
Risk
%

�+ ���������������������Page 54



BAILLIE GIFFORD 
 

 

 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund - DG 
  
 

Report for the quarter ended 
31 December 2014 

Page 55



   

Contents 

01 Executive Summary 

02 Commentary 

05 Market Background 

06 Performance 

08 Portfolio Overview 

09 Risk 

10 List of Holdings 

13 Holdings Update 

14 Governance 

19 Trading 

23 Summary 

25 Transactions 

27 Valuation 

28 Fund Reconciliation 
 

Contacts 

Anthony Dickson 
Anthony.Dickson@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2725 

Fiona MacLeod 
Fiona.MacLeod@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2703 

Paulina Kozak-Kowalska (Investment Accountant) 
Paulina.Kozak-Kowalska@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2346 
 

 

 

 
Online Reporting 

You can access all your reports and other up-to-date 
portfolio information via our secure client extranet site 
https://clients.bailliegifford.com  
 

 

   
 

© iStockphoto.com/marygrekos 
 
Cross Section detail of a Nautilus 
Shell. 

Page 56



Executive Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 01 
 

 

 

Performance to 31 December (%)  Summary Risk Statistics (%) 

 Fund Base Rate 
+3.5% 

Since Inception* (p.a.) 6.0 4.0 

Three Years (p.a.) 7.8 4.0 

One Year 6.0 4.0 

Quarter 0.8 1.0 
 

 Delivered Volatility 4.7 

Annualised volatility, calculated over 5 years to the end of the reporting quarter 
Source: Baillie Gifford 

 
*22 February 2011 
The Fund’s objective is to outperform the UK base rate by at least 3.5% p.a. (net 
 of fees) over rolling five year periods with an annualised volatility of less than 10%. 
Source: StatPro, Baillie Gifford 

 
 

News flow in the final quarter of 2014 was 
dominated by the fall in the oil price and the knock-
on effects that this has had on various economies 
and companies 

Monetary policy continues to diverge, with the Bank 
of Japan embarking on further quantitative easing 
and the European Central Bank edging towards its 
own QE programme, while the US Federal Reserve 
ended its programme and looks to interest rate 
rises in 2015 

Investment markets have seen mixed performance, 
with government bonds and global equities 
producing positive returns while commodities fell 
sharply. Against this backdrop, the Diversified 
Growth Fund delivered a positive return 
 

 

Valuation  (after net flow of GBP 18,294)  
 

 

30 September 2014 
GBP 48,767,644 

31 December 2014 
GBP 49,084,047 

Page 57



Commentary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 02 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 
 

 

Investment environment  

News flow in the final quarter of 2014 was dominated by 
the fall in the oil price and the knock-on effects this had 
on various economies and companies. From a peak in the 
middle of June of $115, Brent oil fell to $93 at the end of 
September and then to $56 at the end of the year. The 
price fall reflects both lower demand, due to a weaker 
global growth outlook, and increased supply. This 
increased supply is down to continued growth in US 
shale oil, better than expected production from Libya and 
Iraq, and the reluctance of OPEC, and Saudi Arabia in 
particular, to cut supply in order to maintain higher 
prices.  

A lower oil price is generally believed to be good for 
overall global economic growth, especially when 
increased supply is the main driver. The International 
Monetary Fund estimates that the lower oil price should 
increase global GDP by between 0.3% and 0.7% in 2015. 
These benefits are likely to be felt most by major oil 
importers including China, Japan, the United States and 
the Eurozone. On the other hand, major oil producing 
economies will be the losers, and have been coming 
under pressure. Russia in particular has suffered as the 
fall in the oil price compounded the impact of economic 
sanctions, with the ruble falling substantially against the 
US dollar. 

Economic news was mixed over the quarter, with 
weaker data from the Eurozone, Japan and various 
Emerging Markets outweighing generally good data from 
the US. This is reflected in the reaction of central banks, 
with the US, Japan and the Eurozone at differing stages 
in their monetary easing cycles. With growth gradually 
picking up, the US Federal Reserve ended its quantitative 
easing (QE) programme, and attention is now on the 
timing of the first interest rate rise.  

In Japan, the economy fell into recession amid 
concerns that current economic policies (dubbed 
‘Abenomics’) are not working. The central bank 
responded by announcing a further round of QE in its 
attempt to get inflation to the 2% target. In addition, 
Prime Minister Abe called, and subsequently comfortably 
won, a snap election in December, taking advantage of 
his current popularity to consolidate his position and give 
him more time to carry out reforms.  

The Eurozone continues to be a key area of concern as 
deflationary pressures build. The lower oil price will 
inevitably add to these deflationary pressures but this 
could be beneficial in helping European Central Bank 
(ECB) president Mario Draghi to win over sceptics on the 
merits of a full-blown QE programme. Whilst the ECB 
commenced its purchase of asset-backed securities, it is 
unlikely that this will have a significant impact, and a 
larger programme involving government bond purchases 
is likely to be required. 

In investment markets, the lower growth and inflation 
outlook has resulted in a continued fall in developed 
market bond yields. For example, the ten-year UK Gilt 
yield fell from 2.4% to 1.8% over the quarter, having 
started the year at 3.0%. Equity markets have been a bit 
more volatile than in recent years with global equities 
falling by more than 5% twice in the past four months. 
However, despite bouts of short-term volatility, global 
equities produced a positive return over the quarter. The 
performance of other asset classes was mixed, with 
commodities falling sharply, and most other asset classes 
producing returns close to zero. 

Page 58



Commentary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 03 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 
 

 

Outlook 

A number of economies are struggling with high debt 
burdens and are battling to avoid deflation. As a result, 
investment markets remain very reliant on the policy of 
the major central banks. We continue to be of the view 
that most asset classes are priced to deliver lower returns 
than in recent years and that risk is not as well rewarded 
as it has been in the past. 

It is generally expected that the ECB will embark on a 
larger QE programme in the first half of 2015 and this 
should help to drive markets higher. However, given 
differing views and complex political issues within the 
Eurozone, there is a risk this is watered down and is a 
case of ‘too little, too late’. Elections may also prove 
disruptive as more radical parties, most notably Syriza in 
Greece, gain increasing influence. 

The US economy is expected to continue to do well, 
although one likely outcome of this is interest rate rises. 
Easy monetary policy in the US has been one of the key 
drivers of rising markets over the past five or six years. It 
is unclear how markets will react once interest rates start 
to rise. 

 

Positioning 

We continue to have a cautiously positioned portfolio 
with a relatively high weighting to less economically 
exposed assets such as cash, senior structured finance and 
gold. 

During the quarter we took some opportunities to add 
to listed equities and high yield credit after market falls. 
This was somewhat offset by taking profits on 
investments in US water utilities and German property 
that had performed very well and where valuations look 
stretched. The increase in listed equities included an 
additional allocation to Japan, where we feel that further  
QE, improving corporate governance and increasing 
equity allocations from domestic pension funds are all 
positives for the Japanese market. 

Following the rally in government bonds, we sold out 
of our European Investment Bank holding and our 
holdings in Australian government bonds. We now have 
a zero weighing in government bonds.  

Performance  

The Fund generated a return of 0.8% over the final 
quarter of 2014, leading to a 6.0% return over the past 12 
months. The annualised return for the past five years is 
7.9% with a realised volatility of 4.7% per annum (all 
performance numbers are quoted before fees).  

During the past three months, the largest contributors 
to performance were absolute return, listed equities and 
property. Most other asset classes were broadly flat over 
the quarter, with the exception of a negative contribution 
from active currency. 

Over the past 12 months the greatest positive 
contributors were listed equities, emerging market bonds 
and absolute return. 

  

Alexis Tsipras during the Resistance Festival 2014, organised 
by the Syriza Party. 

Page 59



Commentary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 04 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 
 

 

Special Paper: Diversified Growth Client Seminars 

We recently hosted a series of Client Seminars, in 
Manchester, London, Birmingham and Edinburgh. We 
were delighted that almost 200 people attended, 
representing more than 100 of our clients. 

The purpose of the seminars was to provide our 
clients with the opportunity to meet each of the four 
Diversified Growth Fund Managers, and to help clients 
develop a greater understanding of our philosophy and 
process, as well as offering a better insight into the 
various asset classes in which the Fund invests.  

The head of the Diversified Growth team, Patrick 
Edwardson, opened each seminar by emphasising the 
core values of our approach to Diversified Growth 
Investing:  

¾ Absolute returns – a focus on making money for our 
clients 

¾ Long-term big picture thinking – a focus on valuation 
and macroeconomic issues  

¾ Diversity and flexibility across a broad range of asset 
classes 

¾ Belief not conviction – a steer away from 
overconfidence, acknowledging that a wide range of 
outcomes is possible 

During what we cryptically entitled the Asset Class 
Snorkel, we took a look beneath the surface of a selection 
of asset classes, taking care not to dive into too much 
detail! 

James Squires explained which factors are most 
important when researching suitable investments in 
government debt markets, such as demographic trends 
and the credibility and independence of institutions such 
as central banks, alongside economic indicators including 
GDP growth, interest rates and inflation. James also 
talked about our infrastructure investments with a 
particular focus on renewable energy. 

David McIntyre explained the difference between 
high yield loans, which are typically secured against the 
company’s assets, and unsecured high yield bonds. David 
highlighted that despite their seniority, loans are currently 
offering higher returns than high yield bonds; hence the 
Diversified Growth Fund’s increased exposure to loans. 

Many people associate structured finance with the 
market collapse of 2008. However, David explained how 
this asset class is safer, more economically useful and a 
better investment opportunity than many investors would 
have you believe. Addressing each of these points, David 
illustrated why the Fund currently has a significant 
weighting across a spectrum of structured finance deals. 

The Asset Allocation Debate provided an opportunity 
for clients to be a ‘fly-on-the-wall’ at live extracts from 
our team discussions.  

This unscripted session showcased the nature of the 
Fund Managers’ debate. The session reminded clients 
that we should expect differences of opinion between the 
four fund managers, and that the monthly asset allocation 
debate focuses on coming to agreement on the optimal 
portfolio positioning. Each session began as it would in 
the office, with an overview of the global macro-
economic outlook. What followed was a discussion 
between the managers on two asset classes selected by 
the audience. 

In our final session, Mike Brooks explained how all of 
us act on emotions and as a result our decision making 
process may not be entirely rational at all times. It is this 
view that lies at the heart of Behavioural Finance. Posing 
various questions of the audience, Mike tried to uncover 
their behavioural biases before explaining how we 
endeavour to avoid such pitfalls when investing the 
Diversified Growth Fund. 

Images:  
© Darkop | Dreamstime.com 
© iStockphoto.com/mariusz_prusaczyk 
© iStockphoto.com/bunhill 
© iStockphoto.com/dennisjim 
© iStockphoto.com/AZaytsev 
© iStockphoto.com/MsLightBox 
© Vetta/Getty Images 
© LightRocket/Getty Images

Page 60



Market Background Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 05 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Market Background - Asset Class Returns 

 

Over One Quarter (%) Over One Year (%) 

% Change in GBP 
Source: Baillie Gifford 

 

-12.1 

-2.0 

-1.8 

0.2 

0.9 

4.3 

4.5 

6.3 

6.9 

12.9 

-15 -10 -5 0 5 10 15 

Commodities 

Emerging Market Bonds 

Hedge Funds 

Insurance Linked 

High Yield Bonds 

Investment Grade Bonds 

Listed Equities 

Government Bonds 

Private Equity 

Property 

-17.0 

-0.4 

0.1 

4.3 

5.7 

11.3 

11.7 

12.3 

13.9 

28.0 

-20 -10 0 10 20 30 40 

Commodities 

Hedge Funds 

Emerging Market Bonds 

Insurance Linked 

High Yield Bonds 

Listed Equities 

Private Equity 

Investment Grade Bonds 

Government Bonds 

Property 

Page 61



Performance Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 06 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Performance Objective 

To outperform the UK base rate by at least 3.5% per annum (net of fees) over rolling five year periods with 
an annualised volatility of less than 10%. 
 

Performance 

This table indicates the net performance of the Fund together with the UK Base Rate and the UK Base 
Rate +3.5%. 

 Fund Net (%) Base Rate (%) Base Rate (%) +3.5% 

Five Years (p.a.) 7.2 0.5 4.0 

Three Years (p.a.) 7.1 0.5 4.0 

One Year 5.3 0.5 4.0 

Quarter 0.6 0.1 1.0 

Source: StatPro, Baillie Gifford 

 

Fund, UK Base Rate and UK Base Rate +3.5% Returns Since Launch of the Fund* 
 

 
*31 December 2008 
Source: StatPro, Baillie Gifford. All figures are total returns in sterling from 31/12/08, net of fees.  

 

 

Summary Risk Statistics (%)   

Delivered Volatility 4.7 

Annualised volatility, calculated over 5 years to the end of the reporting quarter 
Source: Baillie Gifford 

  

 

80 

130 

180 

230 

Dec 08 Jun 09 Dec 09 Jun 10 Dec 10 Jun 11 Dec 11 Jun 12 Dec 12 Jun 13 Dec 13 Jun 14 Dec 14 

Fund (Net) UK Base Rate UK Base Rate +3.5% p.a. 

Page 62



Performance Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 07 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Contributions to Performance 

Quarter to 31 December 2014 

 
Asset Class 

 

Ave. 
Weight % 

7.9 20.6 2.6 4.8 14.1 5.0 1.6 5.0 6.5 1.9 0.6 5.7 13.1 11.0 -0.3 100.0 

Return % 7.3 1.7 10.4 2.3 0.3 1.4 3.7 1.2 0.2 0.6 -0.8 -0.9 -1.3 -1.4 -0.8 0.8 

 
One Year to 31 December 2014 

 
Asset Class 

 

Ave. 
Weight % 

16.9 13.2 6.7 2.2 12.1 8.4 5.1 4.0 4.2 5.7 11.1 2.4 0.6 7.5 0.0 100.0 

Return % 6.0 4.1 8.4 31.5 4.9 5.4 8.0 9.8 9.0 5.3 1.4 4.0 4.5 -0.2 -0.1 6.0 

Source: Statpro/Baillie Gifford, gross of fees in sterling. Totals may not sum due to rounding

0.6 

0.4 

0.3 
0.1 

0.1 
0.1 

0.1 
0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 -0.1 -0.1 

-0.1 
-0.8 

0.8 

0 
0.2 
0.4 
0.6 
0.8 

1 
1.2 
1.4 
1.6 
1.8 

2 

A
b

so
lu

te
 R

e
tu

rn
 

L
is

te
d

 E
q

u
it
ie

s 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y 

C
o

m
m

o
d

it
ie

s 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 

In
fr

a
st

ru
c
tu

re
 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e
n
t 

B
o

n
d

s 

In
su

ra
n
c
e
 L

in
k
e
d

 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

G
ra

d
e
 

B
o

n
d

s 

P
ri

va
te

 E
q

u
it
y 

S
p

e
c
ia

l O
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s 

C
a
sh

 a
n
d

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a
rk

e
t 

B
o

n
d

s
 

H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 C
re

d
it
 

A
c
ti
ve

 C
u
rr

e
n
c
y 

F
u
n
d

 (
T

o
ta

l) 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 %

 

1.1 

0.7 

0.7 

0.6 

0.6 
0.5 

0.4 
0.4 

0.4 
0.3 

0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 -0.1 6.0 

0 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

L
is

te
d

 E
q

u
it
ie

s 

E
m

e
rg

in
g

 M
a
rk

e
t 

B
o

n
d

s
 

A
b

so
lu

te
 R

e
tu

rn
 

P
ro

p
e
rt

y 

S
tr

u
c
tu

re
d

 F
in

a
n
c
e
 

In
ve

st
m

e
n
t 

G
ra

d
e
 

B
o

n
d

s 

In
su

ra
n
c
e
 L

in
k
e
d

 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e
n
t 

B
o

n
d

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
c
tu

re
 

C
o

m
m

o
d

it
ie

s 

H
ig

h
 Y

ie
ld

 C
re

d
it
 

P
ri

va
te

 E
q

u
it
y 

S
p

e
c
ia

l O
p

p
o

rt
u
n
it
ie

s 

C
a
sh

 a
n
d

 E
q

u
iv

a
le

n
ts

 

A
c
ti
ve

 C
u
rr

e
n
c
y 

F
u
n
d

 (
T

o
ta

l) 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 %

 

Page 63



Portfolio Overview Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 08 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Asset Allocation at Quarter End   

   (%) 

1 Listed Equities** 21.8 

2 Private Equity 2.0 

3 Property 2.1 

4 High Yield Credit 11.7 

5 Investment Grade Bonds 6.3 

6 Structured Finance 13.7 

7 Commodities 5.4 

8 Emerging Market Bonds 13.0 

9 Infrastructure 4.4 

10 Absolute Return 8.1 

11 Insurance Linked 5.3 

12 Special Opportunities 0.6 

13 Active Currency -0.9
† 

14 Cash and Equivalents 6.6 

 Total 100.0 
 

 

 
 
 

Changes in Asset Allocation Since Launch of the Fund†† (%) 

† This number shows the unrealised P&L of the Active Currency positions open in the Fund as at 31 December 2014 
†† 30 December 2008 
* Includes net Active Currency position 
** Reflects effective exposure in portfolio, including futures positions; cash adjusted accordingly 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

14 

0 

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

100 

Jan 09 Jul 09 Jan 10 Jul 10 Jan 11 Jul 11 Jan 12 Jul 12 Jan 13 Jul 13 Jan 14 Jul 14 

Cash and Equivalents* 

Special Opportunities 

Insurance Linked 

Absolute Return 

Government Bonds 

Infrastructure Bonds 

Infrastructure 

Emerging Market Bonds 

Commodities 

Structured Finance 

Investment Grade Bonds 

High Yield Credit 

Property 

Private Equity 

Listed Equities** 

Page 64



Risk Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 09 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

Summary Risk Statistics (%)   

Predicted Volatility 7.0 

Source: Baillie Gifford, Moody’s Analytics UK Limited 

 Volatility increased during the quarter on concerns 
over weaker global growth and the negative 
impacts of the sharply falling oil price on a number 
of economies and companies 

Key risks to markets in 2015 include the uncertain 
impact of likely US interest rate rises, the threat of 
deflation in the Eurozone, the increasing 
prominence of more radical parties in forthcoming 
European elections and uncertainty over Russia's 
response to its weakened economic position 

We have made small additions to equities on 
recent market weakness, but in broad terms the 
Diversified Growth portfolio remains cautiously 
positioned, reflecting our view that risks are not 
greatly rewarded 
 

   
   

Risk Attribution   

 
Source: Moody’s Analytics UK Limited, Baillie Gifford & Co 
Total may not sum due to rounding 

  

** Reflects effective exposure in portfolio, including futures positions; cash 

adjusted accordingly 

  

   
   
   
 
Predicted volatility is based on a snapshot of the Diversified Growth portfolio at the end of the quarter, and provides a one-year 
prediction of the volatility of returns. The risk model uses long and short-term volatility and correlation data to arrive at a view of 
the one-year volatility for each asset class, as well as the correlation between each asset class. The Diversified Growth portfolio’s 
holdings can then be mapped onto these estimates. The results are a prediction of portfolio volatility and detailed risk attribution, 
the latter of which shows the contribution to overall volatility from each asset class.

7.0 

16.9 

-2 

0 

2 

4 

6 

8 

10 

12 

14 

16 

18 

Diversified Growth Global Equities 

Listed Equities** 55.4% 

Private Equity 6.4% 

Property 2.9% 

High Yield Credit 3.8% 

Investment Grade Bonds 0.6% 

Structured Finance 9.7% 

Special Opportunities 0.7% 

Commodities 1% 

Emerging Market Bonds 11.4% 

Infrastructure 5.1% 

Government Bonds 0% 

Absolute Return 3.3% 

Insurance Linked 0.3% 

Active Currency -0.6% 

Cash 0% 

Page 65



List of Holdings Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 10 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Asset Name Fund % 

Listed Equities**  

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Growth Fund C Acc 5.7 

Baillie Gifford Global Income Growth Fund C Accum 5.0 

BG Worldwide Japanese C GBP Acc 2.6 

Baillie Gifford Pacific Fund C Accum 2.0 

Baillie Gifford LTGG Fund C Accum 1.9 

Euro Stoxx 50 Future Mar 15 1.0 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend Futures 15 0.6 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend Futures 16 0.6 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend Futures 17 0.6 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend Futures 18 0.6 

Fondul Proprietatea 0.5 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend 19 0.4 

Euro Stoxx 50 Index Dividend 20 0.3 

Damille Investments II 0.0 

Total Listed Equities 21.8 

  

Private Equity  

Electra Private Equity 0.4 

Graphite Enterprise Trust 0.3 

NB Private Equity Partners 0.3 

HarbourVest Global Private Equity 0.2 

Eurazeo 0.2 

Better Capital 0.2 

JZ Capital Partners 0.1 

Better Capital 2012 0.1 

Electra Convertible 5% 2017 0.1 

Dunedin Enterprise Investment Trust 0.1 

Total Private Equity 2.0 

  

Property  

LEG Immobilien 0.7 

Hammerson 0.5 

Tritax Big Box REIT 0.3 

LondonMetric Property 0.2 

Target Healthcare REIT 0.1 

Ediston Property Investment Company 0.1 

Japan Residential Investment Company 0.1 

Terra Catalyst Fund 0.0 

Deutsche Wohnen 0.0 

Invista 9% 2016 Pref 0.0 

Total Property 2.1 

  

Asset Name Fund % 

High Yield Credit  

Baillie Gifford High Yield Bond Fund C Gross Acc 4.7 

Credit Suisse Nova (Lux) Global Senior Loan Fund 1.5 

Henderson Secured Loans Fund 1.5 

ING (L) Flex Senior Loans Fund 0.9 

NB Global Floating Rate Income Fund 0.6 

NB Distressed Debt Invest F NPV 0.4 

Nuveen Floating Rate Income Fund 0.3 

Eaton Vance Floating Rate Income Trust 0.3 

Invesco Senior Income Trust 0.2 

Voya Prime Rate Trust 0.2 

CVC Credit Partners European Opportunities GBP 0.2 

BlackRock Floating Rate Income Trust 0.2 

Apollo Senior Floating Rate Fund 0.1 

Nuveen Senior Income Fund 0.1 

Eaton Vance Senior Income Trust 0.1 

CVC Credit Partners European Opportunities EUR 0.1 

Pioneer Floating Rate Trust 0.1 

First Trust Senior Floating Rate 0.1 

HarbourVest Senior Loans Europe 0.0 

Total High Yield Credit 11.7 

  

Investment Grade Bonds  

BG Worldwide Global Credit C USD Acc 6.3 

Total Investment Grade Bonds 6.3 

  

Structured Finance  

Galene Fund 4.0 

Metreta Fund 3.1 

Julius Baer Multibond ABS Fund 3.0 

TwentyFour Income Fund 0.4 

Sorrento Park CLO A-1 0.4 

German Residential Funding 2013-1 D 0.4 

Babson CLO 2014-2 A1 0.3 

Carlyle CLO 2014-3 A-1A 0.2 

Phoenix Park 1X A1 0.2 

Annington PIK 13% 2023 0.2 

St Pauls CLO V A 0.2 

Blackstone/GSO Loan Financing Fund 0.2 

Granite 2007-1 3M2 0.2 

Carador Income Fund 0.2 

German Residential Funding 2013-1 E 0.1 

Granite 2007-1 6A1 0.1 

Page 66



List of Holdings Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 11 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Asset Name Fund % 

Taberna 2005-1A A1A 0.1 

Phoenix Park 1X A2 0.1 

Sorrento Park CLO A-2 0.1 

St Pauls CLO V B 0.1 

Babson CLO 2014-2 B1 0.1 

Carlyle CLO 2014-3 A-2A 0.0 

Total Structured Finance 13.7 

  

Commodities  

Source Physical Gold P-ETC 2.0 

ETFS Physical Palladium 1.0 

Source Physical Palladium P-ETC 0.8 

Source Physical Platinum P-ETC 0.6 

ETFS Physical Platinum 0.5 

ETFS Brent Crude 0.4 

Total Commodities 5.4 

  

Emerging Market Bonds  

Baillie Gifford Emerging Mkts Bond Fd C Gross Acc 8.0 

Brazil CPI Linked 6% 15/08/2050 1.0 

Mexico IL 4% 15/11/2040 0.8 

Colombia 10% 24/07/2024 0.7 

Brazil CPI Linked 6% 15/08/2022 0.5 

Mexico 7.75% 13/11/2042 0.5 

Mexico 8.5% 18/11/2038 0.5 

Peru 6.85% 12/02/2042 0.3 

Brazil CPI Linked 6% 15/05/2045 0.3 

Afreximbank 5.75% 2016 0.2 

Colombia 7.5% 26/08/2026 0.2 

Colombia 7% 04/05/2022 0.1 

Total Emerging Market Bonds 13.0 

  

Infrastructure  

EDP Renovaveis 0.7 

3i Infrastructure 0.7 

OHL México 0.4 

Greencoat UK Wind 0.4 

Renewables Infrastructure Group 0.4 

National Grid 0.3 

John Laing Environmental Assets Group 0.3 

Foresight Solar Fund 0.2 

NextEnergy Solar Fund 0.2 

Bluefield Solar Income Fund 0.2 

Asset Name Fund % 

Terna 0.2 

Snam Rete Gas 0.2 

Total Infrastructure 4.4 

  

Absolute Return  

Allianz Merger Arbitrage Strategy 3.0 

Aspect Diversified Trends Fund 2.3 

Amundi Volatility World Equities 1.1 

Ferox Salar Convertible Absolute Return Fund 0.9 

Winton Futures Fund 0.6 

Boussard & Gavaudan 0.2 

Total Absolute Return 8.1 

  

Insurance Linked  

Everglades Re 2014-1 A 0.8 

Tar Heel Re 2013-1 A 0.6 

Everglades Re 2013-1 A 0.5 

Alamo Re 2014-1 A 0.4 

Lakeside Re III A 0.4 

Embarcadero Re 2012-2 A 0.4 

Tradewynd Re 2014-1 3B 0.3 

CatCo Reinsurance Opportunity Fund 0.3 

Pelican Re 2012-1 A 0.2 

Embarcadero Re 2012-1 A 0.2 

Mystic Re III A 0.2 

Blue Capital Reinsurance Holdings Fund 0.1 

East Lane Re V 2012 B 0.1 

Blue Capital Global Reinsurance Fund 0.1 

Tradewynd Re 2013-2 3B 0.1 

MultiCat Mexico 2012-1 B 0.1 

Compass Re 2011-1 3 0.1 

Skyline Re 2014-1 A 0.1 

Tradewynd Re 2014-1 1B 0.1 

Tradewynd Re 2014-1 3A 0.0 

K1 Life Settlement 0.0 

Total Insurance Linked 5.3 

  

Special Opportunities  

Juridica Investments 0.2 

Burford Capital 0.1 

DP Aircraft I 0.1 

Doric Nimrod Air Two 0.1 

Total Special Opportunities 0.6 

Page 67



List of Holdings Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 12 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Asset Name Fund % 

  

Active Currency  

Total Active Currency -0.9 

  

Cash and Equivalents  

Cash and UK T Bills 4.7 

BG Worldwide Active Cash Plus Fund C Acc 1.9 

Total Cash and Equivalents 6.6 

  

Total 100.0 

 

** Reflects effective exposure in portfolio, including futures positions; cash 

adjusted accordingly

Page 68



Holdings Update Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 13 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Fund Name  Update 

Baillie Gifford Diversified 
Growth Fund 

 The volatility in markets offered us opportunities to take advantage of more attractive valuations 
in some asset classes during the quarter. Most notably we increased our exposure to listed 
equities and high yield credit in mid-October following market falls. These increases were largely 
funded by selling out of government bonds and from cash. 
 
The total addition to listed equities was 4% of fund. A significant proportion of this (1.5%) was 
an addition to Japanese equities. We believe that there are a number of positive factors 
supporting Japanese equities including further QE, improving corporate governance and 
significant increases in equity exposure from Japanese pension funds. The remainder of the 
increase was into our Global Alpha fund (1.5%) and to a European index future (1%), reflecting 
our view of relatively attractive valuations in Europe and a belief that a likely QE programme will 
have a positive impact on European equities. 
 
With most developed government bond markets rallying strongly we took profits by selling our 
Australian government bonds (2%) and European Investment Bank bonds (1.6%). The increase 
in listed equities was also partially funded by the sale of our basket of US water utility holdings 
(1% within our infrastructure asset class) and German property (0.7%). These investments had 
produced strong returns and valuations are now much less attractive. 
 
Within commodities we took advantage of falls in the price of platinum and palladium to 
increase our holdings (1%). We also took a position in an oil ETF (0.5%) towards the end of the 
quarter. This gives us exposure to the oil price, through oil futures. We believe that the fall in the 
oil price will prove unsustainable and in the medium to long term we are likely to see price rises 
in excess of those priced into the futures market. 
 
Within structured finance we sold out of our holdings in airplane-backed bonds (1.7%), taking 
profits as valuations have moved to less attractive levels. Most of the proceeds were invested in 
the Galene fund, our core exposure to mezzanine structured finance, and the senior tranches of 
a new European CLO deal, managed by Babson. 
 
Elsewhere in the portfolio we continued to add to our renewable infrastructure funds as they 
raised more capital. Our Emerging Market Bond weighting was largely unchanged but within the 
asset class we increased our holdings in Mexican and Colombian bonds, following a sell-off 
driven by concerns over the falling oil price, and funded this through a reduction in our holdings 
of Peruvian bonds which had performed well. 
 
 
 

Page 69



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 14 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Voting Activity 

Votes Cast in Favour  

Companies 14 

Resolutions 91 
 

 Votes Cast Against  

Companies 1 

Resolutions 3 
 

 Votes Abstained/Withheld  

Companies 1 

Resolutions 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Climate change is a topic we have thought about frequently over the 
past ten years. It has been difficult to analyse a company's exposure 
to climate change risk with any degree of conviction. We are a partner 
in the Mercer Climate Change and Strategic Asset Allocation Study 

Supply chain management for the garment industry is complicated, 
with many competing priorities 

Historically, there has been limited access for non-domestic investors 
to companies listed on Chinese stock exchanges. This is beginning to 
change with the opening up of the A-share market via the Hong Kong-
Shanghai Stock Connect project 

 
 
 
 
 
Company Engagement 

Engagement Type  Company 

Corporate Governance  CyberAgent Inc, Yaskawa Electric Corp. 

AGM or EGM Proposals  CyberAgent Inc, Fondul Proprietatea 

Executive Remuneration  Rakuten 
 

Notes on company engagements highlighted in blue can be found in this report. Notes on other company 
engagements are available on request. 

 

Page 70



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 15 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 
 

 

As we have mentioned in previous letters, when 
incorporating ESG factors into our investment process we 
have had considerable focus on the ‘G’ of the term ESG 
over the past few years. This is understandable, and 
logical even. Governance is about people, relationships, 
values, and incentives, and these factors guide corporate 
attitudes and activities, including social and 
environmental performance. All of these governance 
factors will influence the long-term returns of the 
companies we invest in for our clients.  

The difficulty with environmental and social 
indicators is that they are less clear cut, and are often 
more relevant to sectors and countries than to individual 
companies. So, what is interesting and helpful for us is to 
understand how each company is responding to the 
broader risks and opportunities from a reputational and 
business operation perspective.  

Two significant ‘E’ and ‘S’ projects we are currently 

working on are climate change and garment supply 
chains. This is not an easy task because these are 
complex issues; the more time that is spent understanding 
the issues, the bigger the challenge seems to be. 

 

Environment – climate change 

Climate change is a topic we have thought about 
frequently over the past ten years, and it is an area where 
we are seeing an increasing amount of interest from our 
clients. It has been difficult to analyse a company’s 
exposure to climate change risk with any degree of 
conviction beyond saying ‘oil is more carbon intensive 
than gas; energy efficiency is a positive idea; and 
adaptation, remediation and mitigation technologies 
should be long-term winners’. We have carried out 
portfolio reviews and looked at renewable energy 
companies, but there remains a hurdle to answering the 
‘so what?’ question. Many factors interlink to create this 
uncertainty; lack of regulation, the very low carbon price 
where one exists; timeframes (climate is a very long-term 
issue); the inconsistency of subsidies, and the many 
difficulties in accurately estimating an individual 
company’s carbon footprint. But a shoulder shrugging 
‘it’s difficult’ is obviously not a satisfactory answer.  

To introduce a different perspective, we are 
participating in the Mercer Climate Change project. This 
is a global project involving a number of asset owners 
together with some investment managers. The report, 
which examines the potential implications for investors 
under various climate change scenarios, is expected in the 
first half of 2015. We hope it will increase knowledge 
levels, challenge accepted assumptions, and raise the 
baseline for continued thinking on this topic and for 
debate with investors and our clients. One of the first 
insights is that it is an even longer-term issue than one 
might believe. Climate change happens over hundreds of 
years. Even though we think we are adopting a long-term 
view in looking for companies we can hold for ten or 
even 20 or 30 years, climate change models are looking 
at 300 years. So, long-term investing and climate aren’t 
easy companions. What is clear though is that the 
volatility in weather patterns is increasing, and so 
companies should be looking to be energy efficient and 
able to adapt to increases in weather volatility. 

Page 71



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 16 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 
 

 

Social – supply chain management 
for the garment industry 

A number of our strategies have holdings in companies 
which are involved in the garment industry. Sitting 
behind a desk in Edinburgh is a very comfortable place to 
be when analysing garment companies and assessing 
their approaches to working conditions, pay scales, what 
the correct minimum age for employees is and whether 
subcontracting to an unaudited supplier factory is 
acceptable or not. Companies’ sustainability reports tend 
to describe the issues in black and white terms with a list 
of actions that are unacceptable and others that require 
improvement and monitoring. In reality, it is not that 
simple. And the challenge does not lie simply with the 
retail companies’ policies or the factory owners; order 
volumes are instantly reduced if there is a contraction of 
the European or US economies, for example. A member 
of the Corporate Governance team visited Bangladesh 
and Myanmar to learn about the realities of the 
challenges, what responsibilities lie with the brands 
themselves, the factories and with us. The 2014/15 
Governance Review (published in the second quarter of 
this year) will include a more detailed review of the trip 
and summarise the insights that we will be applying to 
our research of existing and potential holdings in the 
garment industry. 

 

Governance – China ‘A’ shares 

We realise that the evolving opportunities for investment 
in China are of interest to clients, regardless of whether 
their portfolio has direct exposure to the region. 
Historically, there has been limited access for non-

domestic investors to companies listed on mainland 
Chinese stock exchanges. This is beginning to change 
with the opening up of the A-share market via the Hong 
Kong-Shanghai Stock Connect project, which will 
significantly increase the number of investible companies 
for foreign investors. In conjunction with greater research 
efforts from our equity teams, we are increasing our 
focus on what arguably is one of the more inefficient 
markets that we will be able to invest in for our 
clients. Indeed, given the inefficiencies, China could be 
very rewarding for investors, such as Baillie Gifford, who 
have rigorous bottom-up research processes, and lead to 
significant opportunities for clients. However, 
opportunity comes with its own challenges. Information 
is limited in inefficient markets, bribery and corruption is 
a visible risk in the country, and the prospect of 
inaccurate, exaggerated disclosures from companies 
exists. The regulators have good laws but enforcement is 
often half-hearted, albeit this is improving. Assessments 
of governance structures, management quality and 
motivations are therefore a key component of the 
investment research for this market. This is something the 
investment and Corporate Governance teams look 
forward to cooperating on as opportunities for investment 
become available. 

These three topics are increasingly relevant to listed 
companies, regardless of where they are listed or the 
sector in which they operate. Climate change is a global 
issue, every company has a supply chain in some form 
and China is an increasingly important market for 
investors and investee companies. 

 
 
Image: © iStockphoto.com/ArtBoyMB

Page 72



Governance Engagement Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 17 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Company  Engagement Report 

CyberAgent Inc  CyberAgent is a Japanese corporation that invests in companies with internet-related 
business in the advertising and gaming sector. We had a call with investor relations to 
discuss the company's approach to governance. In line with changes in the governance 
landscape in Japan, CyberAgent is keen to improve its practices as part of supporting its 
long-term performance. Accordingly, the company recently removed its poison pill and is 
recruiting an independent outside director. We also discussed changes to the 
compensation policy and how the company structures incentives for its employees. This 
was an informative call which we will look to build upon in the future. 

Page 73



Voting Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 18 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

Votes Cast in Favour 

Company  Meeting Details  Resolution(s)  Voting Rationale 

HarbourVest Senior Loans 
Europe 

 EGM 
27/11/14 

 1  We supported the voluntary liquidation of the 
company. 

Companies  Voting Rationale 

Bluefield Solar Income Fund, Doric Nimrod Air Two, Eaton 
Vance Senior Income Trust, Fondul Proprietatea, 
Foresight Solar Fund, Greencoat UK Wind, HarbourVest 
Senior Loans Europe, Julius Baer Multibond ABS Fund, 
NextEnergy Solar Fund, Nuveen Floating Rate Income 
Fund, Nuveen Senior Income Fund, Renewables 
Infrastructure Group, Snam Rete Gas, Target Healthcare 
REIT 

 We voted in favour of routine proposals at the aforementioned 
meeting(s). 

  
 

 

Votes Cast Against 

Company  Meeting Details  Resolution(s)  Voting Rationale 

Electra Private Equity  OGM 
06/10/14 

 1, 2  We opposed a shareholder resolution to elect a 
board nominee as we do not believe it is in 
shareholders' long-term interests. 

Electra Private Equity  OGM 
06/10/14 

 3  We opposed a shareholder resolution to remove an 
existing non-executive director from the board as 
we do not believe it is in shareholders' best 
interests. 

  
 

 

Votes Abstained 

Company  Meeting Details  Resolution(s)  Voting Rationale 

Julius Baer Multibond ABS 
Fund 

 AGM 
20/10/14 

 1-3, 6  We abstained as the relevant documents were not 
publically available at the time of completing the 
vote. 

 
 

 

 

Votes Withheld 
 
We did not withhold on any resolutions during the period. 
 

 

 

Votes Not Cast 

Companies  Voting Rationale 

Amundi Volatility World Equities, ING (L) Flex Senior 
Loans Fund 

 We did not vote due to the practise known as "blocking" - the rules 
in some markets which restrict us from selling your shares during the 
period between the votes being cast and the date of the meeting. 

 

Page 74



Equity Trading Analysis Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 19 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Fund 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure 

Counterparty Trading Analysis 

Baillie Gifford Diversified 
Growth Fund 

Transactions  Commissions Paid Estimated Split of Commission 

  (%)   (GBP)  Execution (GBP) Research (GBP) 

 Value 
(GBP) 

Net Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Total 
Paid 

Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd Parties 
Retained 

by Broker 
Paid to 

3
rd Parties 

Morgan Stanley 113,636,963 0.0 76.5 23.5 113,637 86,951 26,686 90,910 0 22,727 0 

FundSettle 90,031,370 0.0 0.0 100.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

UBS AG 51,875,655 0.0 0.0 100.0 17,670 0 17,670 17,670 0 0 0 

Royal Bank of Canada 40,965,564 11.2 0.0 88.8 32,030 0 32,030 32,030 0 0 0 

Citigroup Inc 32,083,799 0.0 100.0 0.0 32,084 32,084 0 16,042 0 16,042 0 

ITG Europe Ltd (POSIT-MTP)  
(Crossing Network) 

31,910,267 0.0 0.0 100.0 17,398 0 17,398 17,398 0 0 0 

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA 13,199,753 0.0 100.0 0.0 13,200 13,200 0 10,560 0 2,640 0 

Investec Bank plc 12,264,156 0.0 100.0 0.0 12,264 12,264 0 8,585 0 3,679 0 

Jefferies International 
(Holdings) Ltd 

10,759,048 74.3 25.7 0.0 7,734 7,734 0 5,248 0 2,486 0 

Canaccord Genuity Limited 6,230,000 100.0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other Brokers * 18,524,176 58.6 9.4 32.0 6,208 1,749 4,460 5,684 0 525 0 

Total 421,480,750 7.0 35.4 57.6 252,225 153,982 98,243 204,126 0 48,099 0 

* The details of all other counterparties used during the period are available to clients upon request. 
 
 

Firm-Wide Comparators 

 Transactions  Commissions Paid Estimated Split of Commission 

   (%)   (%)  Execution (%) Research (%) 

 Value 
 (%) 

Net Negotiated 
Rate 

Other      
Rates 

Total 
Paid 

Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd
 Parties 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd
 Parties 

Baillie Gifford Diversified 
Growth Fund 

100.0 7.0 35.4 57.6 100.0 61.0 39.0 80.9 0.0 19.1 0.0 

BG Average * 100.0 4.8 27.6 67.6 100.0 44.6 55.4 88.7 0.0 11.3 0.0 

 

 

Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Fund Average Commission Rate 0.0598 % 

BG Average * 0.0449 % 

Total commission paid as a percentage of the value of the fund 0.0045 % 

* Based on all global equity trading conducted with counterparties by Baillie Gifford. 

 

 

Commission Analysis for any Baillie Gifford & Co. products held by the fund is shown below 

 Transactions Commissions Paid Estimated Split of Commission 

 (%) (GBP) Execution (GBP) Research (GBP) 

Fund Value 
 (GBP) 

Net Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Total 
Paid 

Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd Parties 
Retained 

by Broker 
Paid to 

3
rd Parties 

Global Income Growth 
Fund 

46,523,436 0.0 46.1 53.9 36,098 26,697 9,401 29,341 0 6,756 0 

Global Alpha Growth Fund 111,945,496 0.0 8.8 91.2 33,801 5,600 28,201 33,269 0 531 0 

Worldwide Japanese Fund 
17,020,066,0

25 
0.2 0.8 99.1 3,520,086 129,470 3,390,616 3,499,593 0 20,493 0 

Pacific Fund 60,455,739 0.0 43.7 56.3 111,919 95,429 16,491 69,571 0 42,349 0 

Long Term Global Growth 
Fund 

27,512,654 8.0 42.1 49.9 4,131 2,323 1,808 4,131 0 0 0 

 

 

Page 75



Equity Trading Analysis Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 20 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Fund 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure 

Comparative Analysis    

Fund  Average Commission Rate  Firm-Wide Comparator Average Commission Rate 

Global Income Growth Fund 0.08  Global 0.04 

Global Alpha Growth Fund 0.03  Global 0.04 

Worldwide Japanese Fund 0.02  Japan 0.05 

Pacific Fund 0.19  Pacific (ex Japan) 0.05 

Long Term Global Growth Fund 0.02  Global 0.04 

 

Page 76



Non-Equity Trading Analysis Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 21 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Fund 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure 

Direct Currency Transactions    

Counterparty Spot Transaction 
Value* (GBP) 

Forward Transaction 
Value (GBP) 

Total 
(GBP) 

Barclays Bank plc 0 3,523,557,812 3,523,557,812 

Deutsche Bank AG London 0 2,979,798,587 2,979,798,587 

HSBC 0 2,542,023,436 2,542,023,436 

National Australia Bank 0 2,473,132,076 2,473,132,076 

Royal Bank of Scotland plc 0 1,854,154,651 1,854,154,651 

Royal Bank of Canada 0 1,830,145,133 1,830,145,133 

Bank of New York Mellon (Custodian) 775,163,907 0 775,163,907 

UBS 60,047,593 0 60,047,593 

Brown Brothers Harriman 13,118,233 0 13,118,233 

Mellon Trust 3,443,700 0 3,443,700 

Northern Trust Company 1,390,788 0 1,390,788 

Total 853,164,221 15,202,811,695 16,055,975,916 
 

*Foreign exchange trading is on net basis; no commission paid. 

 

Direct Bond Transactions 

Counterparty Trading Value (GBP) 

HSBC Bank Plc 160,126,776 

National Australia Bank 110,700,482 

Royal Bank of Scotland plc 90,009,000 

Merrill Lynch International 71,030,200 

Citigroup Inc 64,011,017 

BBVA Banco Bilbao Vizcaya Argentaria S.A 54,441,388 

Goldman Sachs & Co 30,759,871 

Banco Santander SA 28,079,782 

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA 27,505,714 

Swiss Re 22,610,025 

Nomura Holdings 8,339,506 

Total 667,613,760 
 

Bond Trading is on net basis; no commission paid. 

 

Direct Futures Transactions   

Counterparty Consideration Paid* Commission Paid 

UBS AG London 0 19,068 

Total 0 19,068 
 

*Disclosure of consideration paid is a regulatory requirement, but please note that there is generally no cash paid or received on opening a future contract 

 
 
 

Page 77



IMA Disclosure Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 22 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

IMA Pension Fund Disclosure Code 
(Third Edition)  

 The Pension Fund Disclosure Code was first adopted in May 2002 and was drawn up by a Joint Working Party of 
Members of the Investment Management Association (IMA) and the National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF). 
The purpose of the Code is to promote accountability of fund managers to their clients through increased 
transparency and to assist clients in their understanding of the charges and costs levied on the fund assets for which 
they have responsibility.  
Under the Code, fund managers are required to provide clients with information on how they make choices between 
trading counterparties and trading venues, more detailed information on how the resulting commission spend is built 
up, and what services are met out of commission spend, in particular such execution and research services as are 
permitted by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). It also provides a comparison of client specific information on 
costs and trading with similar firm-wide information.  
Although the Code was initially drawn up with pension funds in mind, we provide the disclosures for all our clients in 
compliance with relevant regulatory requirements.  

There are two distinct types of disclosure required by the Code:-  
Level 1 requires disclosure of Baillie Gifford’s policies, processes and procedures in relation to the management of 
trading costs incurred on behalf of clients. This disclosure is provided annually to clients and is called the “Trading 
Procedures and Control Processes” document. This document is also available on request.  
Level 2 requires client specific information to be provided and is contained within this quarterly report. Level 2 aims to 
provide comprehensive, clear and standardised disclosure of information from which clients and their advisers can 
compare and monitor trading costs incurred during the fund management process and the services received in 
exchange for these commissions.  
We have included disclosure of transactions and commissions for Equities, Bonds, Currencies and Derivatives, where 
relevant..  

   

Broker Commission   This page gives information by geographic region on the commission paid by the fund on all commission bearing 
transactions in directly held equities.  

   

Equity Trading Analysis and 
Commissions  

 

 The trading and commissions analysis on the previous pages represents trading and commissions incurred by the 
fund over the quarter. Portfolio transactions are analysed by counterparty and type of trade. Transactions listed under 
“Other Rates” include programme trades, direct market access or algorithmic trades where commission rates may be 
lower. Commissions have been shown by counterparty where the fund holds stocks directly. Commissions paid have 
been analysed by the service purchased (execution or research) in compliance with the enhanced code. Where the 
fund gains exposure to equities via Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs), transactions and commission 
analysis have been provided at the total fund level. A full disaggregation by counterparty for each of these funds is 
available on request. Where relevant, the proportion of commissions paid under directed or recapture arrangements 
is also shown.  
The fund’s analysis of transactions, commissions paid and the commission split is compared with Baillie Gifford’s 
total transactions, commissions paid and the commission split across all trading in the same asset classes. The 
fund’s average commission rate is compared with Baillie Gifford’s average commission rate across all trading in the 
same asset classes. A similar analysis for OEIC holdings is shown, at the total fund level. 

   

Non-Equity Trading Analysis  

 

 The trading report for bonds shows trading volume by the fund over the quarter, analysed by counterparty. As all 
trades are executed on a net basis, no commission figures are available. Where derivative transactions are permitted, 
and executed, these are analysed by counterparty (executing broker) and show market value, underlying exposure 
and (execution) commission. Where the fund gains exposure to bonds via OEICs, transaction volume by 
counterparty, is available for each of these funds on request.  
All foreign exchange activity, for the entire portfolio is analysed by counterparty, distinguishing between spot and 
forward transactions. As all trades are executed on a net basis, no commission figures are available. Where the fund 
gains exposure to markets via OEICs, currency transaction volume by counterparty, is available for each of these 
funds on request.   

 

Income and Costs Summary  This shows costs deducted from the fund on an actual basis. Fund management fees and VAT are included during 
the period when the invoice is raised. Custody costs are included when the sum is debited from the funds managed 
by Baillie Gifford.  
Any holdings of in-house pooled funds are shown together with their total expenses on a rolling yearly basis, 
expressed as a percentage of fund value. Expenses include broker commission on transactions dealt within the fund, 
bank charges, audit, registrar, depository and Regulatory fees. Any tax paid by the fund is not included. For A and B 
class OEIC shares investment management fees are also included.  

A dilution levy may also be charged on OEIC purchases and sales in the case of large transactions.  
If the portfolio has a holding in a stock that is not covered by the code, such as third party funds or investment trusts, 
this is also shown.   

Page 78



Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 23 
Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund 

 

 

AIFMD 

The Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive 
(AIFMD) creates a regulatory and supervisory 
framework for alternative investment fund managers 
within the European Union. The scope of the Directive 
captures the management and the marketing of all non-
UCITS funds; the Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth 
Fund, a UK authorised Non-UCITS Retail Scheme, is 
therefore within its remit.   

The Fund’s manager, Baillie Gifford & Co Limited, 
received confirmation of its authorisation as an 
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM) by the 
Financial Conduct Authority, on 1 July 2014.  

The Directive includes disclosure requirements, and 
relatively minor amendments were made to the Fund’s 
prospectus to comply with the regime.  A copy is 
available to all investors on request. 

 

 

Leverage 

The term "leverage" is defined under AIFMD as any 
method by which the AIFM increases the exposure of a 
Fund whether through borrowing of cash or securities, or 
leverage embedded in derivative positions such as 
currency forward positions, or by any other means.  

The AIFM must set a maximum level of leverage 
which the Fund is entitled to employ. AIFMs must 
employ two methods for calculating the amount of 
leverage employed: (i) the Gross Method and (ii) the 
Commitment Method. The overall leverage of a Fund 
should be expressed as a ratio between the exposure of 
the Fund and its net asset value. The Gross Method, 
generally speaking, takes account of the absolute 
exposure of the Fund while the Commitment Method 
takes into account netting or hedging arrangements put in 
place. 

We believe that the methodology results in the 
disclosure of figures that do not represent a typical 
definition of leverage within the Fund.  The Diversified 
Growth Fund does not borrow money to leverage our 
investments.  The Fund does take matching long/short 
currency positions in order to generate returns and to 
hedge currency exposure, and these currency positions 
have a material impact on leverage as defined under 
AIFMD.  Typical types and sources of leverage which 
the Fund employs include: (i) derivatives for efficient 
portfolio management purposes (including hedging), and 
(ii) use of derivatives for investment purposes. 

The maximum level of exposure to be employed by 
the Diversified Growth Fund, calculated in accordance 
with the Gross Method, is 1,000%.  The total amount of 
leverage employed at 31 December 2014 under the Gross 
Method was 354%. 

The maximum level of exposure to be employed by 
the Diversified Growth Fund calculated in accordance 
with the Commitment Method is 300%.  The total 
amount of leverage employed at 31 December 2014 
under the Commitment Method was 177%                   
(i.e. incremental leverage of 77%). 

Any changes to these maximum levels will be advised 
to clients.  

Page 79



Fees and Expenses Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 24 
 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure. 

 

         Annual Expenses (%)         Trading Expenses (%)  

 

Investment 
Management 

Fee 

Other 
Expenses 

 

Total 
Expense 

Ratio 

Stamp Duty 
and Other 

Taxes 

Broker 
Commissions 

Total Expenses 
inc Direct 

Trading Costs 

Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth 
Pension Fund 

0.65 0.23 0.88 0.00 0.02 0.90 

 

You are invested in the Baillie Gifford Pooled Funds listed above. The Investment Management of the Funds has been delegated 
to Baillie Gifford & Co.   

Costs are disclosed as a % of the Fund on a historical rolling 12 month basis.   

Investment Management Fees represent the standard annual investment management fee for each of the Pooled Funds listed 
and may not represent the fee actually paid by you. Please refer to your Policy Terms or Management Agreement. 

Other expenses will include custody charges unless separate provision is made for custody fee payment in your Policy Terms or 
Management Agreement. Where the Fund is a sub-fund of an OEIC (Open Ended Investment Company) or invests in underlying 
OEIC sub-funds, it will also include expenses such as depositary fees, registration fees and audit fees.   

Trading Expenses (stamp duty, other taxes and broker commission) arise when buying or selling stocks in the market. Buying or 
selling of stocks may result from: individual stock considerations, portfolio changes due to broader implementation of Baillie 
Gifford’s investment policy and from both investment inflows and outflows from the Fund. When the Fund buys or sells 
investments in response to investment inflows and outflows the trading expenses are passed onto the incoming/outgoing 
investor through the pricing mechanism by means of a dilution adjustment.   

Therefore, it is important to note that the above costs represent the costs of all trading undertaken by the Pooled Funds listed 
and do not reflect costs associated with investments or disinvestments that you may have undertaken during the period. 

 

The Total Expense Ratio of the Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension Fund is calculated by including the underlying 
expenses of the Fund and all open-ended fund investments, the management charges made by Baillie Gifford and the 
management charges of other open-ended funds. The Fund's investments change from time to time and so the figure quoted is 
an estimate based on the latest available data and asset allocation. Investments are also made in closed ended listed 
companies, none of which are managed by BG & Co; the underlying management expenses of these companies are not 
included in the above figure. 

Page 80



Summary Transaction Listing Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 25 
 

 

 

 
Proceeds 

 (GBP) 
Book Cost 

 (GBP) 
Profit/Loss 

 (GBP) 

Total Purchases  18,294  

Accrued Interest  0  

  18,294  

Total Sales 0 0 0 

Accrued Interest 0   

 0 0 0 

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment  18,294 

    

Net Accrued Interest   0 

    

Total   18,294 

Page 81



Transaction Listing Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 26 
 

 

 

Trade Date 
Settlement 
Date 

Asset Name 
Sedol Code 

Quantity 
Price 

Proceeds 
 (GBP) 

Book Cost 
 (GBP) 

Profit/Loss 
(GBP) 

Quantity 
Balance 

 

Book Cost 
Balance 

(GBP) 

Diversified Growth       

UK       

Purchases        

24/10/14 
24/10/14 

Baillie Gifford 
Diversified Growth 
Pension Fund 
B3CRJ02 

9,851.780 
GBP 1.86 

 18,294  26,141,908.386 40,236,754 

Total Purchases   18,294    

        

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment UK     18,294 

        

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment Diversified Growth     18,294 

        

Total       18,294 

Page 82



Valuation Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 27 
 

 

 

Asset Name Nominal 
Holding 

Market 
Price 

Book Cost 
(GBP) 

Market Value 
(GBP) 

Fund 
(%) 

Diversified Growth      

Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension 
Fund 

26,141,908.386 GBP 1.88 40,236,754 49,084,047 100.0 

Total Diversified Growth   40,236,754 49,084,047 100.0 

      

Total   40,236,754 49,084,047 100.0 

 

 

Valuation of securities  Holdings in Baillie Gifford Pooled Funds are valued at month end using a single price which reflects 
closing prices of the underlying assets in the funds. This month end price may differ from the price 
used for buying and selling units in the funds which is calculated daily at 10am and uses intra-day 
prices. This provides a consistent basis for reporting.  

Page 83



Fund Reconciliation Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 28 
 

 

 

 Market Value 
30 September 2014 

(GBP) 

Net Investment/ 
Disinvestment 

 (GBP) 
 

Capital 
Gain/Loss 

 (GBP) 
 

Market Value 
31 December 2014 

(GBP) 

Diversified Growth     

Baillie Gifford Diversified Growth Pension 
Fund 

48,767,644 18,294 298,109 49,084,047 

Total Diversified Growth 48,767,644 18,294 298,109 49,084,047 

     

Total 48,767,644 18,294 298,109 49,084,047 

 

 

 (GBP) Book Cost 
(GBP) 

Market Value 
(GBP) 

As at 30 September 2014    

Diversified Growth  40,218,459.96 48,767,644.04 

  40,218,459.96 48,767,644.04 

Income    

Management Fee Rebate 18,293.77   

 18,293.77   

Net Total Income and Charges  18,293.77 18,293.77 

Change in Market Value of Investments  0.00 298,109.38 

As at 31 December 2014  40,236,753.73 49,084,047.19 

Of which:    

Diversified Growth  40,236,753.73 49,084,047.19 

Total  40,236,753.73 49,084,047.19 

 

 

Page 84



  

 

  

 

Head Office 
Calton Square, 1 Greenside Row, Edinburgh EH1 3AN 
Telephone 

+
44 (0)131 275 2000 

 
Copyright © Baillie Gifford & Co 2009 

 

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



BAILLIE GIFFORD 
 

 

 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 
  
 

Report for the quarter ended 
31 December 2014 

Page 87



   

Contents 

01 Summary 

02 Commentary 

04 Statistics Summary 

05 Market Background 

06 Performance 

08 Portfolio Overview 

09 Transactions 

11 Portfolio Characteristics 

12 List of Holdings 

14 Governance 

21 Trading 

25 Valuation 

26 Fund Reconciliation 
 

Contacts 

Anthony Dickson 
Anthony.Dickson@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2725 

Fiona MacLeod 
Fiona.MacLeod@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2703 

Paulina Kozak-Kowalska (Investment Accountant) 
Paulina.Kozak-Kowalska@bailliegifford.com 
Tel: +44 (0)131 275 2346 
 

 

 

 
Online Reporting 

You can access all your reports and other up-to-date 
portfolio information via our secure client extranet site 
https://clients.bailliegifford.com  
 

 

   
 

© iStockphoto.com/marygrekos 
 
Cross Section detail of a Nautilus 
Shell. 

Page 88



Executive Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 01 
 

 

 

Performance to 31 December (%) 

 Fund 
Gross 

Fund 
Net 

Benchmark 

Since Inception* 
(Cumulative) 

 84.6 59.9 

Since Inception* (p.a.) 9.0 8.5 6.5 

Five Years (p.a.) 13.4 12.9 10.5 

One Year 11.7 11.2 11.2 

Quarter 6.6 6.5 4.5 
 

*05 July 2007 
Net performance now calculated using the client’s own fee schedule 
Source: StatPro 

 

 

The plummeting oil price caught the headlines with 
Russia being the highest profile casualty. For many 
companies lower energy costs should be beneficial 

A planned research focus during the year was on 
Japan, visits by our investors have led to initial 
purchases of two interesting companies 

We will continue to concentrate on company 
fundamentals which remain good for most of the 
companies in your portfolio 

 

 

Valuation  (after net flow of GBP 107,173)  
 

 

30 September 2014 
GBP 187,275,641 

31 December 2014 
GBP 199,442,251 

Page 89



Commentary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 02 
 
 

 

A violent plunge in the oil price was caused by OPEC’s 
late-November meeting when the cartel of oil producing 
nations failed to cut production targets. This, and the 
flood of US shale, led to an imbalance of supply and 
demand and the oil price lurched sharply downward. 
Brent finished the year at $56, a drop of $39 on the level 
at the start of October. The negative ramifications are 
being felt most acutely in Russia, the economy of which 
remains precariously reliant upon its oil and gas exports. 
A leap in interest rates to 17% failed to shore up the 
crumbling ruble; these rates of interest were last seen in 
1998, when the Russian government defaulted on its 
debt. On the positive side, the precipitous fall in the oil 
price is estimated to represent at least 0.5% boost to 
global GDP in 2015.  

By comparison to the gyrations in the energy market, 
the stumbling recovery in Europe, another Japanese 
recession and robust job growth in the US seem 
mundane. The global index fell sharply early in the 
quarter, recovered and then stepped back before 
recovering once more as volatility, as measured by the 
VIX index, rose to levels last seen in late 2012. 

 

Portfolio positioning 

Whilst Russia was capturing the world’s attention, we 
stuck to the path laid out in our 2014 Research Agenda. 
Part of our research effort was focused on Japan and, 
with this front of mind, both Malcolm (in August) and 
Charles (in November) headed east.  

Japan is highly indebted, bureaucratic, nepotistic, 
unwilling to embrace new ideas and heavily reliant on an 
ageing customer base. In addition, it has had six different 
leaders in seven years. It is ripe for change. Prime 
Minister Abe’s three arrows are starting to change 
behaviour, and his decision to call a snap general 
election, which subsequently saw him returned to power 
with a landslide victory, will give him a whole term to 
complete his reforms. 

His first arrow, currency devaluation, has seen 
Japanese exports become more than 20% cheaper in 
euros and nearly 30% cheaper in US dollars and Chinese 
yuan. His second, a more flexible fiscal policy, has had 
mixed results thus far though we see a U$80 billion (or 
2% of GDP) infrastructure stimulus as very promising.  

The consensus remains sceptical of Abe’s policies, 
notably the third arrow – Reform. Following our visits 
we are inclined to take a different view and we have an 
increasing belief in the reform agenda which we think 
will help both traditional Japanese companies, and those 
who are prospering by rejecting the norms of Japanese 
orthodox corporate culture.   

We are excited to have unearthed one of Japan’s 
leading disruptors, CyberAgent. In 1998, a year after 
graduating from Aoyama Gakuin University, Susumu 
Fujita founded what was to become CyberAgent in which 
we have just taken a holding for your portfolio. Mr. 
Fujita rejected the norms of Japanese business, noting he 
didn’t “want to become a salaryman

1
”. Two years later, 

aged 26, he became the youngest President of a company 
listed on the Mothers TSE index. CyberAgent proves 
what the world often forgets, that Japan still has a kernel 
of highly entrepreneurial businesses. Its largest business 
unit is now the leading digital advertising agency in 
Japan, having successfully fought off traditional 
advertising incumbents such as Dentsu.   

CyberAgent combines a strong core franchise and a 
culture that supports the development of new businesses. 
In addition to the digital advertising business, its 
companies encompass a blogging platform and social 
gaming. On top of this, it has a venture capital unit with a 
portfolio of dynamic early stage technology companies in 
Japan, other parts of Asia and the US. We have invested 
previously in companies with an entrepreneurial culture 
that are willing to direct resources into new start ups – 
our successful investment in Naspers being the prime 
example with its online investments, and Schibsted which 
we hope may follow suit with its own e-commerce 
businesses. 

1 http://info.japantimes.co.jp/info/100-next-era-ceos/2010/contents/093.html 

Page 90



Commentary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 03 
 
 

 

If CyberAgent represents the new Japan, then 
MS&AD represents the old. Having previously owned 
this insurance company (formerly known as Mitsui 
Sumitomo Insurance), we decided to re-initiate a position 
towards the end of the quarter. MS&AD should benefit 
from Japanese reform in two ways. It has its own self 
help plans – improving underwriting profits through a re-
pricing of policies, and increasing overseas earnings 
through organic growth. It can also benefit from reform 
by proxy, through its ownership of Japanese equities 
within its insurance portfolio as traditional companies 
sharpen their focus on shareholder value. Some of its 
larger holdings include Toyota, Honda, Panasonic, and 
Sharp. 

Maintaining this theme of ‘change’, we have 
purchased another reforming company in Fiat Chrysler 
Automobiles which has ambitious plans to grow through 
leading automotive brands such as Maserati, Jeep, 
Chrysler and Alfa Romeo. Evidence of the appetite for 
change occurred shortly after our initial investment when 
the group announced it would spin off its premier 
marque, Ferrari, to shareholders. We also bought 
Monsanto, the global leader in seeds, plant biotechnology 
and crop protection, the future of which is less dependent 
on US corn than its past. We think that Monsanto can 
enjoy profitable growth from Intacta (a soybean product 
which meets Latin American climatic and insect 
conditions), and Precision Agriculture (supplying micro 
climate data to farmers) which we think could be the next 
leg in agricultural productivity.  

As well as the new purchases highlighted above, we 
added to your position in TripAdvisor which continues to 
grow quickly in its chosen market of online travel and 
experience recommendations. 

We sold three long-term holdings from your portfolio 
to fund these purchases. The shares of China Mobile have 
enjoyed a re-rating this year but we think the longer-term 
prospects are increasingly dull. We have owned Investor 
since the fund’s inception in 2005. Whilst the guiding 
hand of the Wallenberg family is still firmly on the tiller 
of this Swedish holding company, the discount to net 
asset value has narrowed and we have become 
increasingly underwhelmed by some of its largest 
holdings (such as SEB, AstraZeneca, Ericsson and 
Electrolux). We also sold New York Community Bank, 
whose performance has been lacklustre in the past few 
years. We hoped it would regain market share in its core 
business of rent-regulated, multi-family housing units in 
metropolitan New York and that net interest margins 
would recover. However, neither scenario has played out 
as we would have hoped and the company’s earnings 
power has not recovered substantially. 

In 2014, Global Alpha’s portfolio turnover has 
remained low and for the sixth year in a row it has been 
below the long-term average of 20%. 

 

Outlook 

In the early days of the quarter, when markets were once 
again under stress, we were continuing to find that the 
majority of the companies we own on your behalf were 
still reporting strong growth and many were seeing 
earnings upgrades just as share prices were falling 
sharply.  

Equities are a high volatility asset class, and markets 
are not always logical so it is reasonable to conclude that, 
looking forward to 2015, there will be further periods 
when fundamentals and share prices become 
disconnected. Short-term or even inconsequential news 
flow will inevitably be extrapolated and exaggerated by 
Mr. Market. Guarding against this myopic short-termism, 
our job is to closely monitor the fundamentals of the 
businesses we own on your behalf, and keep a check on 
the progress they are making towards the goals we think 
they can achieve.  

In a few weeks time we will share with you our 2015 
Research Agenda. We have used the preceding agendas 
successfully over the past three years to drive forward our 
efforts to unearth some exciting new growth ideas. Our 
optimism can usually be measured by how many new 
stocks are emerging for consideration, and there has been 
an uptick in this metric in recent months. The headlines 
will once again be filled with seemingly important 
macro-economic news, but we think that long-term 
corporate value lies in fundamentals. It is our adherence 
to this philosophy that gives us confidence that we can 
continue to deliver very worthwhile active equity returns. 

 

 
Images: 
© Darkop | Dreamstime.com 
© iStockphoto.com/mariusz_prusaczyk 
© iStockphoto.com/bunhill 
© Stone Sub/Getty Images 
© The Asahi Shimbun/Getty Images 
© Bloomberg/Getty Images 
© The Image Bank/Getty Images 
© iStockphoto.com/gmalandra

Page 91



Statistics Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 04 
Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 

 

 

Product Overview 
 

 

Baillie Gifford is primarily a bottom-up, active investor, seeking to invest in companies that it believes enjoy sustainable 
competitive advantages in their industries and which will grow earnings faster than the market average. This is based on our 
belief that share prices ultimately follow earnings. The aim of the Global Alpha investment process is to produce above average 
long term performance by picking the best growth stocks available around the world by combining the specialised knowledge of 
Baillie Gifford’s investment teams with the experience of some of our most senior investors. 
 

 
 
Risk Analysis  Top Ten Holdings 

Key Statistics  

Number of Holdings 99 

Number of Countries 25 

Number of Sectors 8 

Number of Industries 40 

Active Share 92% 

Rolling One Year Turnover 15% 
 

 Asset Name % of Portfolio 

Royal Caribbean Cruises 4.1 

Prudential 3.4 

Naspers 3.4 

TSMC ADR 2.3 

Ryanair 2.2 

TD Ameritrade Holding Corp 2.1 

Roche 2.1 

Anthem Inc 1.9 

Moody's 1.8 

Amazon.com 1.8 
 

 
 
New Purchases During Quarter 

Asset Name 

CyberAgent Inc 

Fiat Chrysler Automobiles 

Leucadia National 

Monsanto Company 
 

 Complete Sales During Quarter 

Asset Name 

China Mobile (Hong Kong) 

Investor B 

Namco Bandai Holding 

New York Community Bancorp 
 

Page 92



Market Background Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 05 
 

 

 

Index Information 

 

Regional Returns Over One Year (%)  Sector Returns Over One Year (%) 

 
 

 

 
 

Regional Returns During Quarter (%)  Sector Returns During Quarter (%) 

 
 

 

 
 

% Change in GBP 
Source: Baillie Gifford 

  

0.0 

0.5 

3.6 

4.3 

11.2 

19.6 

0 10 20 30 

Europe ex UK 

UK 

Developed Asia 

Emerging Markets 

MSCI AC World 

North America 

-7.5 

-1.3 

5.0 

7.0 

10.4 

10.4 

13.4 

21.8 

22.9 

26.1 

-10 0 10 20 30 

Energy 

Materials 

Telecommunications 

Industrials 

Financials 

Consumer Discretionary 

Consumer Staples 

Utilities 

Information Technology 

Health Care 

-0.6 

-0.5 

-0.4 

1.8 

4.5 

8.3 

-5 0 5 10 

Emerging Markets 

Europe ex UK 

UK 

Developed Asia 

MSCI AC World 

North America 

-12.0 

-1.9 

1.0 

5.1 

5.6 

7.1 

7.2 

7.6 

8.2 

10.0 

-15 -10 -5 0 5 10 15 

Energy 

Materials 

Telecommunications 

Industrials 

Financials 

Health Care 

Consumer Staples 

Utilities 

Information Technology 

Consumer Discretionary 

Page 93



Performance Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 06 
 

 

 

Performance Objective 

To outperform the MSCI AC World Index by 2.0 - 3.0% per annum (gross) over rolling five year periods. 
 

 

Relative Performance 

This table indicates the performance of the portfolio relative to the benchmark before fees. 

 Fund (%) Benchmark (%) Difference (%) 

Since Inception* (Cumulative) 90.9 59.9 31.0 

Since Inception* (p.a.) 9.0 6.5 2.5 

Five Years (p.a.) 13.4 10.5 2.9 

One Year 11.7 11.2 0.4 

Quarter 6.6 4.5 2.1 

 

 

Returns Since Inception* 

 

*05 July 2007  
Source: StatPro 

 

  

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

Jul 07 Jun 08 Jun 09 Jun 10 Jun 11 Jun 12 Jun 13 Jun 14 

Fund Benchmark 

Page 94



Performance Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 07 
 

 

 

Stock Level Attribution 

Top and Bottom Ten Contributors to Relative Performance 

Since Inception* to 31 December 2014 

Asset Name Contribution (%) 

Naspers 3.6 

Royal Caribbean Cruises 2.1 

Schindler 1.8 

Prudential 1.5 

Amazon.com 1.4 

Richemont 1.4 

Tesla Motors 1.3 

Genentech 1.3 

Svenska Handelsbanken 1.3 

Baidu.com ADR 1.2 
 

Apple -1.5 

OGX Petroleo E Gas Participa -1.0 

Q-Cells -1.0 

Celesio AG -0.9 

Ultra Petroleum Corp -0.8 

Coca Cola HBC (CDI) -0.7 

Northern Rock -0.7 

Man Group -0.7 

Johnson & Johnson -0.7 

Yamaha Motor -0.6 
 

*05 July 2007 
Source: StatPro 

 One Year to 31 December 2014 

Asset Name Contribution (%) 

Royal Caribbean Cruises 1.7 

Naspers 0.5 

Ryanair 0.5 

ICICI Bank 0.4 

Wellpoint 0.4 

CarMax Inc 0.4 

Tesla Motors 0.3 

Moody's 0.3 

TSMC 0.3 

Baidu.com ADR 0.3 
 

Rolls-Royce -0.6 

Ultra Petroleum Corp -0.5 

Coca Cola HBC (CDI) -0.5 

Apple -0.5 

Amazon.com -0.4 

Sberbank -0.4 

Carlsberg -0.3 

China Resources Enterprise -0.3 

Mindray Medical International -0.3 

Dia -0.2 
  

 

 

Page 95



Portfolio Overview Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 08 
 

 

 

 

 
 

Sector Weights (%) 

1 Financials 22.8 

2 Information Technology 20.8 

3 Consumer Discretionary 17.1 

4 Industrials 14.1 

5 Health Care 9.0 

6 Consumer Staples 6.6 

7 Energy 4.4 

8 Materials 3.9 

9 Cash 1.3 

 Total 100.0 
 

  

 
 

Regional Weights (%) 

1 North America 46.6 

2 Europe (ex UK) 19.6 

3 Emerging Markets 14.4 

4 Developed Asia Pacific 9.8 

5 UK 8.3 

6 Cash and Deposits 1.3 

 Total 100.0 
 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 
8 

Top Ten Holdings   

Asset Name Description of Business % of Portfolio 

Royal Caribbean Cruises Global cruise company 4.1 

Prudential Life insurer 3.4 

Naspers Media and e-commerce company 3.4 

TSMC ADR Semiconductor manufacturer 2.3 

Ryanair Irish based low cost airline 2.2 

TD Ameritrade Holding Corp Online brokerage firm 2.1 

Roche Pharmaceuticals 2.1 

Anthem Inc Healthcare insurer 1.9 

Moody's Credit rating agency 1.8 

Amazon.com Online retailer 1.8 

Total  25.1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

Page 96



Transaction Notes Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 09 
 

 

 

New Purchases 

Stock Name  Transaction Rationale 

CyberAgent Inc  CyberAgent is an internet holding company with exposure to internet advertising, online gaming 
and social media.  The company is benefitting from a shift in advertising budgets online, and has 
built a particularly strong position in mobile.  We like the company's dynamic, entrepreneurial 
culture and believe that it has the potential to emerge as a major force in the Japanese internet 
landscape. 
 

Fiat Chrysler Automobiles  Fiat Chrysler owns a portfolio of brands, including some undervalued gems. There is a 
significant opportunity to increase volumes at the likes of Jeep and Maserati, and a strategy to 
revive the Alfa Romeo brand. We are also intrigued by the industrial improvements underway at 
Chrysler, and while we are under no illusions about the challenges facing the US auto industry, 
the advances taking place here could also lead to a material improvement in the company's 
performance. Supporting both these trends is our confidence in the abilities of CEO Sergio 
Marchionne and Chairman John Elkann, who together are driving a deep organisational and 
cultural change through the entire company. 
 

Leucadia National  Leucadia is an investment holding company which owns the investment bank Jefferies. This 
company offers the potential combination of an undervalued investment capability (at a big 
discount to the underlying Net Asset Value) with an under-earning investment bank that has 
been investing counter-cyclically as others retreat. We have purchased a new holding for your 
portfolio. 
 

Monsanto Company  Monsanto is the leading producer of genetically modified (GM) seeds with the largest research 
and development budget in the industry.  Its products allow higher crop production at lower unit 
cost and we expect Monsanto's business to continue to grow rapidly as more farmers plant GM 
seeds and as the company introduces higher priced seeds with additional modifications. It 
should be a long-run beneficiary of the need to provide more food globally whilst controlling 
agricultural inflation. 
 

 

 

Page 97



Transaction Notes Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 10 
 

 

 

Complete Sales 

Stock Name  Transaction Rationale 

China Mobile (Hong Kong)  China Mobile is the largest mobile phone company in China.  The factors behind the investment 
case included subscriber growth via a more level playing field for China Mobile as the industry 
shifted to 4G technology (after the company was disadvantaged in 3G) and the growth 
opportunity in data.  However, voice revenues have been hit hard by the rapid progress of OTT 
(over-the-top) services which bypass mobile operators; this is a threat that we had 
underestimated.  In addition, the latest acquisition, of a stake in the third player in the Thai 
mobile market, brings into question the true value of the sizeable cash pile. 
 

Investor B  We have sold your holding in Investor following a period of good performance that saw the 
discount to Net Asset Value diminish. The underlying holdings still promise to compound net 
asset growth, but with the discount narrowed the upside is reduced. 
 

Namco Bandai Holding  Namco Bandai makes toys and computer games. The company has taken advantage of its 
strong library of content to grow its earnings and cash flows over the last few years and the 
share price has responded positively. While we still admire the underlying strengths of this 
company we no longer believe that we have a significantly differentiated view from the market 
on the future potential for value creation at Namco Bandai and we have therefore sold the 
holding. 
 

New York Community 
Bancorp 

 New York Community Bancorp is a bank which specialises in lending to the owners of rent-
stabilised apartment buildings in metropolitan New York. Despite impressive through-cycle 
asset quality, the opportunity to grow its high-quality loan book has not materialised to the 
degree we expected, as competitors have not exited the market. The company has 
consequently paid out a greater proportion of its earnings, lowering growth expectations. We 
have sold your holding. 
 

Page 98



Portfolio Characteristics Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 11 
Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 

 

 

Portfolio Characteristics 

Key Statistics  

Number of Holdings 99 

Number of Countries 25 

Number of Sectors 8 

Number of Industries 40 

Active Share 92% 

Rolling One Year Turnover 15% 
 

 
 

Your portfolio is diversified in terms of number of 
holdings, sectors and industries. Bottom-up stock 
specific risk is the main source of total active risk in 
your portfolio 

Overweight positioning in semiconductor 
companies comprises one of the largest active 
positions at the industry level.  Your portfolio 
continues to exhibit a bias away from traditionally 
defensive sectors such as telecommunications and 
utilities 

High active share and low turnover are consistent 
features in your portfolio and underpin our active 
stock-picking approach and long-term investment 
horizons 

 
 
Active Share (%) 
 

Active Share – This is a measure of how actively managed a portfolio is. “Active Share” ranges from 0% to 100%. If the fund is exactly in line with the benchmark then 
“Active Share” will be 0%. If the fund has no commonality with the benchmark then “Active Share” will be 100%. Active Share is calculated by taking 100 minus  
“Common Money” (the % of the portfolio that overlaps with the index). For the calculation of “Common Money”, for each stock the smaller of either the portfolio or 
benchmark weight is taken, and these numbers are then summed. 

 
 

Rolling One Year Turnover (%) 

 

Rolling One Year Turnover is calculated as the lesser of the sum of all purchases and the sum of all sales in each month divided by the month end market value, summed 
over 12 months. Turnover is a measure of average investment horizon, the lower the turnover the longer the average investment horizon. 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

Dec 11 Jun 12 Dec 12 Jun 13 Dec 13 Jun 14 Dec 14 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

Dec 11 Jun 12 Dec 12 Jun 13 Dec 13 Jun 14 Dec 14 

Page 99



List of Holdings Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 12 
 

 

Asset Name Fund % 

Equities  

Royal Caribbean Cruises 4.13 

Prudential 3.39 

Naspers 3.37 

TSMC ADR 2.32 

Ryanair 2.18 

TD Ameritrade Holding Corp 2.09 

Roche 2.08 

Anthem Inc 1.88 

Moody's 1.83 

Amazon.com 1.82 

Google Inc Class C 1.79 

Nestle 1.76 

AIA Group 1.62 

Markel 1.58 

M&T Bank 1.57 

Samsung Elec. Common GDR Reg S 1.57 

Baidu.com ADR 1.57 

Harley-Davidson 1.53 

First Republic Bank 1.53 

CarMax 1.51 

EOG Resources 1.40 

Wolseley 1.34 

Svenska Handelsbanken 1.32 

eBay 1.30 

Visa Inc-Class A Shares 1.24 

Schibsted 1.23 

Mastercard 1.23 

FLIR Systems 1.17 

ICICI Bank Ltd 1.14 

Tokyo Electron 1.14 

Atlas Copco B 1.11 

Dolby Laboratories 1.09 

Schindler 1.08 

Colgate-Palmolive 1.07 

Waters 1.04 

Fairfax Financial NYC 1.04 

Monsanto 1.04 

INPEX 1.02 

Myriad Genetics Inc 1.00 

Rolls-Royce 0.99 

Lincoln Electric Hdg. 0.98 

Bank of Ireland 0.96 

Asset Name Fund % 

American Express 0.96 

SMC 0.93 

Teradyne 0.92 

Qualcomm 0.92 

Brambles 0.89 

SAP 0.87 

Bunzl 0.87 

Martin Marietta Materials 0.85 

Xilinx 0.85 

THK 0.84 

Tesla Motors 0.83 

Praxair 0.80 

DistributionNOW 0.79 

CRH 0.79 

Jardine Matheson 0.79 

Coca Cola HBC (CDI) 0.79 

Richemont 0.76 

Carlsberg 0.73 

Mindray Medical International ADR 0.73 

Olympus 0.72 

TripAdvisor 0.69 

Dia 0.68 

Ultra Petroleum 0.66 

Rohm 0.64 

Deutsche Boerse 0.64 

British American Tobacco 0.63 

Fiat Chrysler Automobiles 0.60 

Hays 0.59 

Ritchie Bros Auctioneers (USA) 0.59 

Volvo 0.57 

Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 0.57 

Facebook 0.54 

Jyske Bank 0.52 

China Resources Enterprise 0.51 

Leucadia National 0.50 

SK Hynix Inc 0.49 

Qiagen 0.48 

CyberAgent Inc 0.47 

Norsk Hydro 0.46 

Seattle Genetics 0.46 

Tsingtao Brewery 'H' 0.45 

Japan Exchange Group 0.44 

BM&F Bovespa 0.43 

Page 100



List of Holdings Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 13 
 

 

Asset Name Fund % 

Howard Hughes 0.41 

Teradata 0.38 

Dragon Oil 0.33 

Shandong Weigao 0.33 

Intuitive Surgical 0.30 

MS&AD Insurance 0.30 

Aggreko 0.29 

Sberbank Spon ADR 0.25 

Tullow Oil 0.20 

Twitter Inc 0.19 

Arcos Dorados 0.19 

Bank Negara Indonesia 0.19 

Financial Engines 0.09 

Rolls Royce C Preference 0.01 

Total Equities 98.73 

  
 
Total Cash and Deposits 1.27 

 

Total Fund 100.00 

Page 101



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 14 
 

 

 

Voting Activity 

Votes Cast in Favour  

Companies 9 

Resolutions 68 
 

 Votes Cast Against  

Companies 1 

Resolutions 1 
 

 Votes Abstained/Withheld  

Companies None 

Resolutions None 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Climate change is a topic we have thought about frequently over the 
past ten years. It has been difficult to analyse a company's exposure 
to climate change risk with any degree of conviction. We are a partner 
in the Mercer Climate Change and Strategic Asset Allocation Study 

Supply chain management for the garment industry is complicated, 
with many competing priorities 

Historically, there has been limited access for non-domestic investors 
to companies listed only on mainland Chinese stock exchanges. This 
is beginning to change with the opening up of the A-share market via 
the Hong Kong-Shanghai Stock Connect project 

 
 
 
 
 
Company Engagement 

Engagement Type  Company 

Corporate Governance  CyberAgent Inc, DIA, Shandong Weigao 
Group Medical 'H' 

AGM or EGM Proposals  CyberAgent Inc, Mindray Medical 
International Limited, Myriad Genetics 
Inc, Ryanair Holdings PLC, Tesla Motors, 
Wolseley PLC 

Executive Remuneration  Prudential, Tesla Motors 
 

Notes on company engagements highlighted in blue can be found in this report. Notes on other company 
engagements are available on request. 

 

Page 102



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 15 
 
 

 

As we have mentioned in previous letters, when 
incorporating Environmental, Social and Governance 
(ESG) factors into our investment process we have had 
considerable focus on the ‘G’ of the term ESG over the 
past few years. This is understandable, and logical even. 
Governance is about people, relationships, values, and 
incentives, and these factors guide corporate attitudes and 
activities, including social and environmental 
performance. All of these governance factors will 
influence the long-term returns of the companies we 
invest in for our clients.  

The difficulty with environmental and social 
indicators is that they are less clear cut, and are often 
more relevant to sectors and countries than to individual 
companies. So, what is interesting and helpful for us, as 
bottom-up stock-pickers, is to understand how each 
company is responding to the broader risks and 
opportunities from a reputational and business operation 

perspective.  

Two significant ‘E’ and ‘S’ projects we are currently 
working on are climate change and garment supply 
chains. This is not an easy task because these are 
complex issues; the more time that is spent understanding 
the issues, the bigger the challenge seems to be. 

 

Environment – climate change 

Climate change is a topic we have thought about 
frequently over the past ten years, and it is an area where 
we are seeing an increasing amount of interest from our 
clients. It has been difficult to analyse a company’s 
exposure to climate change risk with any degree of 
conviction beyond saying ‘oil is more carbon intensive 
than gas; energy efficiency is a positive idea; and 
adaptation, remediation and mitigation technologies 
should be long-term winners’. We have carried out 
portfolio reviews and looked at renewable energy 
companies, but there remains a hurdle to answering the 
‘so what?’ question. Many factors interlink to create this 
uncertainty; lack of regulation, the very low carbon price 
where one exists; timeframes (climate is a very long-term 
issue); the inconsistency of subsidies, and the many 
difficulties in accurately estimating an individual 
company’s carbon footprint. But a shoulder shrugging 
‘it’s difficult’ is obviously not a satisfactory answer.  

To introduce a different perspective, we are 
participating in the Mercer Climate Change project. This 
is a global project involving a number of asset owners 
together with some investment managers. The report, 
which examines the potential implications for investors 
under various climate change scenarios, is expected in the 
first half of 2015. We hope it will increase knowledge 
levels, challenge accepted assumptions, and raise the 
baseline for continued thinking on this topic and for 
debate with investors and our clients. One of the first 
insights is that it is an even longer-term issue than one 
might believe. Climate change happens over hundreds of 
years. Even though we think we are adopting a long-term 
view in looking for companies we can hold for ten or 
even 20 or 30 years, climate change models are looking 
at 300 years. So, long-term investing and climate aren’t 
easy companions. What is clear though is that the 
volatility in weather patterns is increasing, and so 
companies should be looking to be energy efficient and 
able to adapt to increases in weather volatility. 

Page 103



Governance Summary Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 16 
 
 

 

Social – supply chain management 
for the garment industry 

A number of our strategies have holdings in companies 
which are involved in the garment industry. Sitting 
behind a desk in Edinburgh is a very comfortable place to 
be when analysing garment companies and assessing 
their approaches to working conditions, pay scales, what 
the correct minimum age for employees is and whether 
subcontracting to an unaudited supplier factory is 
acceptable or not. Companies’ sustainability reports tend 
to describe the issues in black and white terms with a list 
of actions that are unacceptable and others that require 
improvement and monitoring. In reality, it is not that 
simple. And the challenge does not lie simply with the 
retail companies’ policies or the factory owners; order 
volumes are instantly reduced if there is a contraction of 
the European or US economies, for example. A member 
of the Corporate Governance team visited Bangladesh 
and Myanmar to learn about the realities of the 
challenges, what responsibilities lie with the brands 
themselves, the factories and with us. The 2014/15 
Governance Review (published in the second quarter of 
this year) will include a more detailed review of the trip 
and summarise the insights that we will be applying to 
our research of existing and potential holdings in the 
garment industry. 

 

Governance – China ‘A’ shares 

We realise that the evolving opportunities for investment 
in China are of interest to clients, regardless of whether 
their portfolio has direct exposure to the region. 
Historically, there has been limited access for non-

domestic investors to companies listed only on mainland 
Chinese stock exchanges. This is beginning to change 
with the opening up of the A-share market via the Hong 
Kong-Shanghai Stock Connect project, which will 
significantly increase the number of investible companies 
for foreign investors. In conjunction with greater research 
efforts from our equity teams, we are increasing our 
focus on what arguably is one of the more inefficient 
markets that we will be able to invest in for our 
clients. Indeed, given the inefficiencies, China could be 
very rewarding for investors, such as Baillie Gifford, who 
have rigorous bottom-up research processes, and lead to 
significant opportunities for clients. However, 
opportunity comes with its own challenges. Information 
is limited in inefficient markets, bribery and corruption is 
a visible risk in the country, and the prospect of 
inaccurate, exaggerated disclosures from companies 
exists. The regulators have good laws but enforcement is 
often half-hearted, albeit this is improving. Assessments 
of governance structures, management quality and 
motivations are therefore a key component of the 
investment research for this market. This is something the 
investment and Corporate Governance teams look 
forward to cooperating on as opportunities for investment 
become available. 

These three topics are increasingly relevant to listed 
companies, regardless of where they are listed or the 
sector in which they operate. Climate change is a global 
issue, every company has a supply chain in some form 
and China is an increasingly important market for 
investors and investee companies. 

 
 
Image: © iStockphoto.com/ArtBoyMB

Page 104



Governance Engagement Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 17 
 

 

 

Company  Engagement Report 

CyberAgent Inc  CyberAgent is a Japanese corporation that invests in companies with internet-related 
business in the advertising and gaming sector. We had a call with investor relations to 
discuss the company's approach to governance. In line with changes in the governance 
landscape in Japan, CyberAgent is keen to improve its practices as part of supporting its 
long-term performance. Accordingly, the company recently removed its poison pill and is 
recruiting an independent outside director. We also discussed changes to the 
compensation policy and how the company structures incentives for its employees. This 
was an informative call which we will look to build upon in the future. 

DIA  Dia is a Spanish-listed hard discount retailer. We had a video conference call with the 
chairwoman and chief operating officer to discuss governance issues, find out more about 
the company's long-term strategy and build on the relationship we have established with 
Dia. We discussed a wide range of issues which included: board composition, 
remuneration, the company's franchise model and the board's long-term focus. Through 
engaging with the chairwoman we were able to find out more about the board's views on 
these issues which we found insightful and helpful. We are following up our engagement 
by meeting the head of the remuneration committee and we will be meeting the CEO in the 
first half of next year as part of the company's investor roadshow. 

Tesla Motors  Tesla Motors designs, manufactures, and sells high-performance electric vehicles and 
electric vehicle powertrain components. We abstained on the executives' compensation at 
the 2014 AGM due to the stock option plan allowing the company to reprice previous 
awards which had suffered because of a falling share price. Although this is not the case 
with outstanding awards, and the company has never used this provision, we do not 
believe it is aligned with shareholders' best interests and therefore we communicated our 
concerns to the company. We were pleased that the company contacted us to explain its 
decision to remove the repricing provision from the stock option plan, as well as outlining 
other improvements to its governance and compensation policies. Tesla's willingness to 
engage with its shareholders on these issues is encouraging. 

Page 105



Voting Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 18 
 

 

 

Votes Cast in Favour 

Companies  Voting Rationale 

Anthem Inc, Brambles, Hays, ICICI Bank Ltd, Mindray 
Medical International ADR, Myriad Genetics Inc, Ryanair, 
Shandong Weigao, Wolseley 

 We voted in favour of routine proposals at the aforementioned 
meeting(s). 

  
 

 

Votes Cast Against 

Companies  Voting Rationale 

Wolseley  We opposed the proposal that gave the company the right to issue 
up to two-thirds of its issued share capital via a rights issue under 
Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006. We do not believe that it is 
in our clients' best interests to forego the right to vote on a large 
rights issue at an EGM. 

  
 

 

Votes Abstained 
 
We did not abstain on any resolutions during the period. 
 

 

 

Votes Withheld 
 
We did not withhold on any resolutions during the period. 
 

 

 

Correction 

Companies  Rationale 

Bank Negara  At Bank Negara’s AGM on 1 April 2014 we intended to oppose two 
management resolutions which proposed amending the Articles of 
Association and to change the bank’s management structure. Our 
intention to vote against both of these proposals was due to a lack 
of disclosure regarding the specific changes. However, owing to an 
administrative error we supported the amendments to the Articles, 
whilst opposing the change in the management structure. We have 
advised the company of the error. We have subsequently introduced 
a new proxy voting system which has increased functionality and 
should minimise the potential for future mistakes. 

 

 

Page 106



Summary Transaction Listing Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 19 
 

 

 

 
Proceeds 

 (GBP) 
Book Cost 

 (GBP) 
Profit/Loss 

 (GBP) 

Total Purchases  107,173  

Accrued Interest  0  

  107,173  

Total Sales 0 0 0 

Accrued Interest 0   

 0 0 0 

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment  107,173 

    

Net Accrued Interest   0 

    

Total   107,173 

Page 107



Transaction Listing Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 20 
 

 

 

Trade Date 
Settlement 
Date 

Asset Name 
Sedol Code 

Quantity 
Price 

Proceeds 
 (GBP) 

Book Cost 
 (GBP) 

Profit/Loss 
(GBP) 

Quantity 
Balance 

 

Book Cost 
Balance 

(GBP) 

Pension Funds       

Other        

International       

Purchases        

24/10/14 
24/10/14 

Baillie Gifford Global 
Alpha Pension Fund 
B1C4T87 

54,652.035 
GBP 1.96 

 107,173  94,276,649.152 109,736,996 

Total Purchases   107,173    

        

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment International     107,173 

        

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment Other     107,173 

        

Total Net Investment/Disinvestment Pension Funds     107,173 

        

Total       107,173 

Page 108



Fees and Expenses Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 21 
 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure. 

 

         Annual Expenses (%)         Trading Expenses (%)  

 

Investment 
Management 

Fee 

Other 
Expenses 

 

Total 
Expense 

Ratio 

Stamp Duty 
and Other 

Taxes 

Broker 
Commissions 

Total Expenses 
inc Direct 

Trading Costs 

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension 
Fund 

0.65 0.01 0.66 0.03 0.02 0.71 

 

You are invested in the Baillie Gifford Pooled Funds listed above. The Investment Management of the Funds has been delegated 
to Baillie Gifford & Co.   

Costs are disclosed as a % of the Fund on a historical rolling 12 month basis.   

Investment Management Fees represent the standard annual investment management fee for each of the Pooled Funds listed 
and may not represent the fee actually paid by you. Please refer to your Policy Terms or Management Agreement. 

Other expenses will include custody charges unless separate provision is made for custody fee payment in your Policy Terms or 
Management Agreement. Where the Fund is a sub-fund of an OEIC (Open Ended Investment Company) or invests in underlying 
OEIC sub-funds, it will also include expenses such as depositary fees, registration fees and audit fees.   

Trading Expenses (stamp duty, other taxes and broker commission) arise when buying or selling stocks in the market. Buying or 
selling of stocks may result from: individual stock considerations, portfolio changes due to broader implementation of Baillie 
Gifford’s investment policy and from both investment inflows and outflows from the Fund. When the Fund buys or sells 
investments in response to investment inflows and outflows the trading expenses are passed onto the incoming/outgoing 
investor through the pricing mechanism by means of a dilution adjustment.   

Therefore, it is important to note that the above costs represent the costs of all trading undertaken by the Pooled Funds listed 
and do not reflect costs associated with investments or disinvestments that you may have undertaken during the period. 

 

Page 109



Equity Trading Analysis Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 22 
Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure. 

 

Counterparty Trading Analysis 

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha 
Pension Fund 

Transactions  Commissions Paid Estimated Split of Commission 

  (%)   (GBP)  Execution (GBP) Research (GBP) 

 Value 
(GBP) 

Net Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Total 
Paid 

Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd Parties 
Retained 

by Broker 
Paid to 

3
rd Parties 

UBS AG 74,623,125 0.0 1.8 98.2 18,362 413 17,949 18,362 0 0 0 

Morgan Stanley 63,547,856 0.0 20.3 79.7 25,876 6,450 19,426 25,876 0 0 0 

Credit Lyonnais 28,382,772 0.0 0.0 100.0 18,746 0 18,746 18,746 0 0 0 

Allen & Co LLC 18,433,301 0.0 13.9 86.1 9,217 1,282 7,935 9,217 0 0 0 

Merrill Lynch International 14,742,106 0.0 94.6 5.4 9,168 8,817 351 8,535 0 633 0 

Deutsche Bank AG 7,687,176 0.0 0.0 100.0 5,381 0 5,381 5,381 0 0 0 

William Blair & Co LLC 6,269,643 0.0 100.0 0.0 2,607 2,607 0 2,300 0 308 0 

Weeden & Co 4,869,622 0.0 40.5 59.5 2,435 987 1,448 2,435 0 0 0 

Instinet Europe Ltd  
(Crossing Network) 

2,801,968 0.0 0.0 100.0 1,402 0 1,402 1,402 0 0 0 

Robert W Baird Ltd 2,673,282 0.0 100.0 0.0 1,337 1,337 0 1,337 0 0 0 

Other Brokers * 6,616,596 0.0 47.3 52.7 4,873 3,130 1,743 4,198 0 675 0 

Total 230,647,447 0.0 19.4 80.6 99,403 25,023 74,380 97,788 0 1,615 0 

* The details of all other counterparties used during the period are available to clients upon request. 
 
 

Firm-Wide Comparators 

 Transactions  Commissions Paid Estimated Split of Commission 

   (%)   (%)  Execution (%) Research (%) 

 Value 
 (%) 

Net Negotiated 
Rate 

Other      
Rates 

Total 
Paid 

Negotiated 
Rate 

Other 
Rates 

Retained 
by Broker 

Paid to 
3

rd Parties 
Retained 

by Broker 
Paid to 

3
rd Parties 

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha 
Pension Fund 

100.0 0.0 19.4 80.6 100.0 25.2 74.8 98.4 0.0 1.6 0.0 

BG Average * 100.0 4.8 27.6 67.6 100.0 44.6 55.4 88.7 0.0 11.3 0.0 

 

 

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund Average Commission Rate 0.0431 % 

BG Average * 0.0449 % 

Total commission paid as a percentage of the value of the fund 0.0029 % 

* Based on all Global equity trading conducted with counterparties by Baillie Gifford. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 110



Non-Equity Trading Analysis Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 23 
Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 

 

Some of the information on this page is confidential and is therefore not for public disclosure. 

 

Direct Currency Transactions    

Counterparty Spot Transaction 
Value* (GBP) 

Forward Transaction 
Value (GBP) 

Total 
(GBP) 

Bank of New York Mellon (Custodian) 82,990,404 0 82,990,404 

Northern Trust Company 34,425,300 0 34,425,300 

Brown Brothers Harriman 8,305,634 0 8,305,634 

Total 125,721,338 0 125,721,338 
 

*Foreign exchange trading is on net basis; no commission paid. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 111



IMA Disclosure Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 24 
 

 

 

IMA Pension Fund Disclosure Code 
(Third Edition)  

 The Pension Fund Disclosure Code was first adopted in May 2002 and was drawn up by a Joint Working Party of 
Members of the Investment Management Association (IMA) and the National Association of Pension Funds (NAPF). 
The purpose of the Code is to promote accountability of fund managers to their clients through increased 
transparency and to assist clients in their understanding of the charges and costs levied on the fund assets for which 
they have responsibility.  
Under the Code, fund managers are required to provide clients with information on how they make choices between 
trading counterparties and trading venues, more detailed information on how the resulting commission spend is built 
up, and what services are met out of commission spend, in particular such execution and research services as are 
permitted by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA). It also provides a comparison of client specific information on 
costs and trading with similar firm-wide information.  
Although the Code was initially drawn up with pension funds in mind, we provide the disclosures for all our clients in 
compliance with relevant regulatory requirements.  

There are two distinct types of disclosure required by the Code:-  
Level 1 requires disclosure of Baillie Gifford’s policies, processes and procedures in relation to the management of 
trading costs incurred on behalf of clients. This disclosure is provided annually to clients and is called the “Trading 
Procedures and Control Processes” document. This document is also available on request.  
Level 2 requires client specific information to be provided and is contained within this quarterly report. Level 2 aims to 
provide comprehensive, clear and standardised disclosure of information from which clients and their advisers can 
compare and monitor trading costs incurred during the fund management process and the services received in 
exchange for these commissions.  
We have included disclosure of transactions and commissions for Equities, Bonds, Currencies and Derivatives, where 
relevant..  

   

Broker Commission   This page gives information by geographic region on the commission paid by the fund on all commission bearing 
transactions in directly held equities.  

   

Equity Trading Analysis and 
Commissions  

 

 The trading and commissions analysis on the previous pages represents trading and commissions incurred by the 
fund over the quarter. Portfolio transactions are analysed by counterparty and type of trade. Transactions listed under 
“Other Rates” include programme trades, direct market access or algorithmic trades where commission rates may be 
lower. Commissions have been shown by counterparty where the fund holds stocks directly. Commissions paid have 
been analysed by the service purchased (execution or research) in compliance with the enhanced code. Where the 
fund gains exposure to equities via Open Ended Investment Companies (OEICs), transactions and commission 
analysis have been provided at the total fund level. A full disaggregation by counterparty for each of these funds is 
available on request. Where relevant, the proportion of commissions paid under directed or recapture arrangements 
is also shown.  
The fund’s analysis of transactions, commissions paid and the commission split is compared with Baillie Gifford’s 
total transactions, commissions paid and the commission split across all trading in the same asset classes. The 
fund’s average commission rate is compared with Baillie Gifford’s average commission rate across all trading in the 
same asset classes. A similar analysis for OEIC holdings is shown, at the total fund level. 

   

Non-Equity Trading Analysis  

 

 The trading report for bonds shows trading volume by the fund over the quarter, analysed by counterparty. As all 
trades are executed on a net basis, no commission figures are available. Where derivative transactions are permitted, 
and executed, these are analysed by counterparty (executing broker) and show market value, underlying exposure 
and (execution) commission. Where the fund gains exposure to bonds via OEICs, transaction volume by 
counterparty, is available for each of these funds on request.  
All foreign exchange activity, for the entire portfolio is analysed by counterparty, distinguishing between spot and 
forward transactions. As all trades are executed on a net basis, no commission figures are available. Where the fund 
gains exposure to markets via OEICs, currency transaction volume by counterparty, is available for each of these 
funds on request.   

 

Income and Costs Summary  This shows costs deducted from the fund on an actual basis. Fund management fees and VAT are included during 
the period when the invoice is raised. Custody costs are included when the sum is debited from the funds managed 
by Baillie Gifford.  
Any holdings of in-house pooled funds are shown together with their total expenses on a rolling yearly basis, 
expressed as a percentage of fund value. Expenses include broker commission on transactions dealt within the fund, 
bank charges, audit, registrar, depository and Regulatory fees. Any tax paid by the fund is not included. For A and B 
class OEIC shares investment management fees are also included.  

A dilution levy may also be charged on OEIC purchases and sales in the case of large transactions.  
If the portfolio has a holding in a stock that is not covered by the code, such as third party funds or investment trusts, 
this is also shown.   

Page 112



Valuation Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 25 
 

 

 

Asset Name Nominal 
Holding 

Market 
Price 

Book Cost 
(GBP) 

Market Value 
(GBP) 

Fund 
(%) 

Pension Funds      

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 94,276,649.152 GBP 2.12 109,736,996 199,442,251 100.0 

Total Pension Funds   109,736,996 199,442,251 100.0 

      

Total   109,736,996 199,442,251 100.0 

 

 

Valuation of securities  Holdings in Baillie Gifford Pooled Funds are valued at month end using a single price which reflects 
closing prices of the underlying assets in the funds. This month end price may differ from the price 
used for buying and selling units in the funds which is calculated daily at 10am and uses intra-day 
prices. This provides a consistent basis for reporting.  

Page 113



Fund Reconciliation Report for the quarter ended 31 December 2014 26 
 

 

 

 Market Value 
30 September 2014 

(GBP) 

Net Investment/ 
Disinvestment 

 (GBP) 
 

Capital 
Gain/Loss 

 (GBP) 
 

Market Value 
31 December 2014 

(GBP) 

Pension Funds     

Baillie Gifford Global Alpha Pension Fund 187,275,641 107,173 12,059,437 199,442,251 

Total Pension Funds 187,275,641 107,173 12,059,437 199,442,251 

     

Total 187,275,641 107,173 12,059,437 199,442,251 

 

 

 (GBP) Book Cost 
(GBP) 

Market Value 
(GBP) 

As at 30 September 2014    

Pension Funds  109,629,823.41 187,275,641.47 

  109,629,823.41 187,275,641.47 

Income    

Management Fee Rebate 107,172.64   

 107,172.64   

Net Total Income and Charges  107,172.64 107,172.64 

Change in Market Value of Investments  0.00 12,059,437.17 

As at 31 December 2014  109,736,996.05 199,442,251.28 

Of which:    

Pension Funds  109,736,996.05 199,442,251.28 

Total  109,736,996.05 199,442,251.28 

 

 

Page 114



  

 

  

 

Head Office 
Calton Square, 1 Greenside Row, Edinburgh EH1 3AN 
Telephone 

+
44 (0)131 275 2000 

 
Copyright © Baillie Gifford & Co 2009 

 

Page 115



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



GMO

London Borough of Tower Hamlets
Quarter Ending 31 December 2014

Investment
Management Review

Client Relationship Manager

Alex Bark

+44 (0)20 7814 7617

Alex.Bark@gmo.com

P
a
g

e
 1

1
7



Performance 3. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Change in Market Value 5. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Investment Review 6. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Profile Summary 7. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Attribution 9. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Process Review 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Table of Contents

Quarter Ending 31 December 2014

GMO

P
a
g
e

 1
1
8



3

Year

1

YearYTD
Market

Value (000)

*Since

Inception

5

YearInvestment QuarterMonth

Annualised

13.03 %6.84 %6.84 % 251,7519.19 %9.42 %Global Developed Equity Allocation

Separately Managed (GBP)

(29/04/2005)

1.52 %-2.94 %

14.057.357.35 9.269.40London Borough of TH Custom Benchmark 3.09-1.50

-1.02-0.51-0.51 -0.070.02Value Added -1.57-1.44

* Periods of less than a year are not annualised

Note:

The London Borough Custom Benchmark was comprised of 30% FTSE World North America, 30% FTSE Developed Europe ex-UK Index, 17% FTSE Japan Index, 10% FTSE All-Share, 8.5%

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific ex-Japan Index (ex Korea effective 21sep09), 4.5% MSCI Emerging Markets Index through  17/11/2014 and MSCI ACWI thereafter.

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Performance Gross of Management, Operating, Incentive Fees in GBP

Periods Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 3, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g

e
 1

1
9



3

Year

1

YearYTD
Market

Value (000)

*Since

Inception

5

YearInvestment QuarterMonth

Annualised

12.69 %6.61 %6.61 % 251,7518.73 %9.02 %Global Developed Equity Allocation

Separately Managed (GBP)

(29/04/2005)

1.47 %-2.96 %

14.057.357.35 9.269.40London Borough of TH Custom Benchmark 3.09-1.50

-1.36-0.74-0.74 -0.53-0.38Value Added -1.62-1.46

* Periods of less than a year are not annualised

Note:

The London Borough Custom Benchmark was comprised of 30% FTSE World North America, 30% FTSE Developed Europe ex-UK Index, 17% FTSE Japan Index, 10% FTSE All-Share, 8.5%

FTSE Developed Asia Pacific ex-Japan Index (ex Korea effective 21sep09), 4.5% MSCI Emerging Markets Index through  17/11/2014 and MSCI ACWI thereafter.

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Performance Net of Fees and Expenses in GBP

Periods Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 4, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g
e

 1
2
0



Gains/

Losses

Market

Value

31/12/2014

Cash

FlowsFund

Market

Value

30/09/2014

3,846,587 251,751,242-20,803,789London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 268,708,444

3,846,587 251,751,242-20,803,789Total 268,708,444

If you are an investor in a GMO fund who receives statements directly from the relevant Fund's transfer agent or administrator, we urge you to compare those statements with your GMO

statements.

Transaction Details

Gross AmountTransactionDate

London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund in GBP

-5,374,168.88Redemption19/11/2014

-4,077.36Redemption02/12/2014

-600.00Redemption02/12/2014

-15,424,831.12Redemption12/12/2014

-111.72Redemption16/12/2014

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Change in Market Value, Account Detail in GBP

QTD Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 5, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g

e
 1

2
1



 
 
With the exception of the U.S. market, global equities generally posted weak 
results during the fourth quarter amidst heightened volatility and increased 
dispersion across regional markets around the world.  Concerns about global 
economic growth, plunging oil prices, and continuing geopolitical tensions 
weighed on markets.  By quarter end, the MSCI All Country World index had 
eked out a gain of 0.4%, masking most of the excitement along the way.  Within 
major regional markets, the U.S. delivered the best performance for the quarter 
while Europe, the U.K., and Emerging Markets battled it out for the weakest 
quarterly performance in U.S. dollar terms.  The S&P 500 returned +4.9% for 
the quarter, MSCI Europe was down 4.4%, MSCI Emerging lost 4.5%, MSCI 
U.K. lost 4.2%, and MSCI Japan was down 2.4% during the quarter.  A strong 
dollar further dampened international returns for dollar-based investors.  In local 
terms, EAFE returned +1.8% for the quarter. 
 

Muted to weak returns for equity markets around the world during the fourth 
quarter generally resulted in small adjustments to GMO’s assessment of equity 

market opportunities.  In the U.S., we continue to favor high quality stocks, 
which modestly outperformed the U.S. broad market in the fourth quarter.  Our 
7-Year real return forecast for U.S. high quality stocks at the end of the quarter 
was +0.4%.  Among international developed equities, we continue to favor 
European and U.K. value stocks.  Our forecast for European value stocks 
(excluding financials) was +3.9%.  We also continue to favor value stocks within 
Emerging Markets.  Our forecast for value within Emerging Markets was +7.2%.  
 
Over the quarter, we made incremental changes to the portfolio’s allocations 

primarily oriented toward rebalancing as the relative opportunities remained little 
changed.  U.S. high quality, European value stocks, emerging markets, and Japan 
were the major positions driving returns relative to the MSCI ACWI during the 
quarter. 
 

The forecasts described above are forward-looking statements based upon 

the reasonable beliefs of GMO and are not a guarantee of future 

performance. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are 

made, and GMO assumes no duty to and does not undertake to update 

forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements are subject to 

numerous assumptions, risks, and uncertainties, which change over time. 

Actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in forward-

looking statements. 

 

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy 
 

Overview: 
 
§ The Strategy seeks total return greater than that of its benchmark.  
§ The Strategy uses multi-year forecasts of returns among asset classes 

to build a portfolio that primarily provides exposure to non-U.S. and 
U.S. equity markets. 

 

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Investment Review

Quarter Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 6, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g
e

 1
2
2



Group Exposures 5

     US Quality 34.2%

     US Opportunistic Value 5.7%

     Europe Value 31.0%

     Japan 8.2%

     Other Int'l Opportunistic Value 1.6%

     Emerging Markets 16.1%

     Cash & Cash Equiv. 3.3%

Risk Profile 

Since 30/04/2005 4

Portfolio Benchmark 2

Alpha -.43 .00

Beta .99 1.00

R-Squared .98 1.00

Sharpe Ratio .50 .54

Top Ten Holdings 3

Amazon.com Inc. 5.0%

Philip Morris International Inc. 4.1%

Express Scripts Holding Co 3.9%

LukOil OAO 3.4%

Oracle Corp. 2.2%

Apple Inc. 1.7%

Microsoft Corp. 1.6%

Total S.A. 1.5%

AstraZeneca PLC 1.4%

Nissan Motor Co. Ltd. 1.4%

26.2%Total

Characteristics

Portfolio Benchmark 1

Price/Earnings - Hist 1 Yr Wtd Median 16.9x 18.3x

Price/Cash Flow - Hist 1 Yr Wtd Median 10.7x 13.7x

Price/Book - Hist 1 Yr Wtd Avg 1.6x 2.1x

Return on Equity - Hist 1 Yr Med 14.1% 15.3%

Market Cap - Weighted Median -Bil 33.8 GBP 25.1 GBP

Number of Equity Holdings 1360 2470

Dividend Yield - Hist 1 Yr Wtd Avg 3.0% 2.5%

1 MSCI ACWI
2 London Borough of TH Custom Benchmark
3 Portfolio holdings are a percent of equity.  They are subject to change and should not be considered a recommendation to buy individual securities.
4 Alpha is a measure of risk-adjusted return; Beta is a measure of a portfolio's sensitivity to the market; R-Squared is a measure of how well a portfolio tracks the market; 

Sharpe ratio is the return over the risk free rate per unit of risk.  Risk profile data is net.
5 The groups indicated above represent exposures determined pursuant to proprietary methodologies and are subject to change over time.

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Profile Summary

As of 31 December 2014

GMO Page 7, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g

e
 1

2
3



Country AllocationRegional Weights

Sector Weights

GICS Sectors

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Profile Summary

As of 31 December 2014

GMO Page 8, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g
e

 1
2
4



The above information is based on a representative account in the Strategy selected because it has the fewest restrictions and best 

represents the implementation of the Strategy.

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Attribution Overview 

Quarter Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 9, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g

e
 1

2
5



London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Attribution Overview 

Quarter Ending 31 December 2014

GMO Page 10, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g
e

 1
2
6



Overview
The GMO Global Equity Strategy seeks to deliver high total return by investing in equities or groups of equities that the GMO Global Equity team believes will
provide higher returns than the benchmark.

The Strategy uses multi-year forecasts of returns among asset classes to build a portfolio that typically provides exposure to global equity markets.

Methodology
GMO's Global Equity team uses active investment management methods, which means that equities are bought and sold according to the team's evaluation of
companies' published financial information and corporate behavior, securities' prices, equity and bond markets, and the overall economy.

In selecting equities for the Strategy, the team uses a combination of investment methods to identify equities that the team believes present attractive return potential.
Some of these methods evaluate individual equities or a group of equities based on the ratio of their price relative to historical financial information and forecasted
financial information, such as book value, cash flow, and earnings, and a comparison of these ratios to industry or market averages or to their own history.  Other
methods focus on patterns of information, such as price movement or volatility of a security or group of securities relative to the Strategy's investment universe or
corporate behavior of an issuer.  The team also may adjust the Strategy's portfolio for factors such as position size, market capitalization, and exposure to groups such
as industry, sector, country, and currency.

The resulting portfolio reflects the team's assessment of the best investment opportunities within the Strategy's investment universe and takes into consideration factors
such as liquidity, transaction costs, and client mandate requirements.

Portfolio Construction
GMO believes the best form of portfolio management is an understanding and frequent examination of the underlying models and inputs used to generate portfolios.

Security weights are primarily a by-product of our security selection process.  Position sizes and group exposures, both absolute and relative to the broad market, are
monitored and reviewed by the portfolio management team.

The Strategy typically invests directly and indirectly (e.g., through underlying funds or derivatives) in equities of companies based around the world. Derivatives used
may include futures, options, forward currency contracts, and swap contracts.

The Strategy is managed to remain fully invested (typically less than 10% allocations to cash).

London Borough of Tower Hamlets

Global Developed Equity Allocation Strategy - Process Review

GMO

Last Updated: September 30, 2013

Page 11, 23 January 2015 10:29:41

P
a
g

e
 1

2
7



 

GMO

P
a
g
e
 1

2
8



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí

fåîÉëíãÉåí
oÉéçêí

içåÇçå _çêçìÖÜ çÑ qçïÉê e~ãäÉíë mÉåëáçå cìåÇ
fåîÉëíãÉåí oÉéçêí Ñçê íÜÉ
nì~êíÉê ÉåÇÉÇ O g~åì~êó OMNR

iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí
låÉ `çäÉã~å píêÉÉí
içåÇçå b`Oo R^^

qÉäÉéÜçåÉW MOM PNOQ POTT
bã~áäW ÅäáÉåíêÉéçêíáåÖíÉ~ã]äÖáãKÅçã

P
a
g
e

 1
2
9



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí

cìåÇ oÉéçêí N

vçìê cìåÇDë lÄàÉÅíáîÉë N

vçìê cìåÇDë ^Åíáîáíó ~åÇ s~äì~íáçå O

vçìê cìåÇDë mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ P

aÉ~äáåÖ `çëíë Q

`çêéçê~íÉ dçîÉêå~åÅÉ C oÉëéçåëáÄäÉ fåîÉëíãÉåí R

cìåÇ ^Åíáîáíó C mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ V

j~êâÉí _~ÅâÖêçìåÇ NN

^ÇÇáíáçå~ä fåÑçêã~íáçå NS

`çåíÉåíë

P
a
g
e
 1

3
0



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí N

cìåÇ oÉéçêí

fksbpqjbkq pb`qlo crka j^ohbq fkabu _bk`ej^oh B o^kdbp B

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cqpb ^ääJpÜ~êÉ UPKM TUKM J UUKM

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë cqpb ^ fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ [ R vÉ~êë NTKM NOKM J OOKM

qçí~ä NMMKM

j~å~ÖÉãÉåí ~åÇ aáëíêáÄìíáçå çÑ óçìê ^ëëÉíë

ÿ vçìê cìåÇDë ~ëëÉíë ~êÉ ã~å~ÖÉÇ Äó áåîÉëíáåÖ áå íÜÉ
éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇë ëÜçïå áå íÜÉ í~ÄäÉ ÄÉäçï

ÿ qÜÉ ÇáëíêáÄìíáçå çÑ íÜÉ cìåÇ áë ã~áåí~áåÉÇ ïáíÜáå áíë
Åçåíêçä ê~åÖÉë Äó íÜÉ ~ééäáÅ~íáçå çÑ Å~ëÜ Ñäçïë ~åÇI ïÜÉêÉ
åÉÅÉëë~êóI ëïáíÅÜÉë ÄÉíïÉÉå íÜÉ áåîÉëíãÉåí ëÉÅíçê ÑìåÇë

P
a
g
e

 1
3
1



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí O

vçìê cìåÇDë ^Åíáîáíó ~åÇ s~äì~íáçå

ÿ ^ ÄêÉ~âÇçïå çÑ ~åó áåîÉëíãÉåíëI ÇáëáåîÉëíãÉåíë ~åÇ ëïáíÅÜÉë áë ÇÉí~áäÉÇ áå íÜÉ qê~åë~Åíáçå
pí~íÉãÉåíë ïÜáÅÜ Ü~îÉ ÄÉÉå áëëìÉÇ íç óçìê åçãáå~íÉÇ êÉÅáéáÉåíëK `çéáÉë ~êÉ ~äëç ~î~áä~ÄäÉ
íÜêçìÖÜ óçìê ïÉÄëáíÉ ~ÅÅÉëë çê ìéçå óçìê êÉèìÉëí

fåîÉëíãÉåí s~äìÉ ~åÇ aáëíêáÄìíáçå kÉí s~äìÉ ~åÇ aáëíêáÄìíáçå _ÉåÅÜã~êâ

pÉÅíçê cìåÇ ~í PM pÉéíÉãÄÉê OMNQ qê~åë~Åíáçåë ~í PN aÉÅÉãÄÉê OMNQ aáëíêáÄìíáçå

d_m EjáÇF B d_m d_m EjáÇF B B

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ ONQIUMNIVVR UMKP J ONSIMTTITRM TUKV UPKM

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë ROISUPIMMN NVKT J RTISRPIRRR ONKN NTKM

qçí~ä ^ëëÉíë OSTIQUQIVVS NMMKM J OTPITPNIPMR NMMKM NMMKM

P
a
g
e
 1

3
2



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí P

vçìê cìåÇDë mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ

ÿ qÜÉ í~ÄäÉ ÄÉäçï ëÜçïë íÜÉ êÉíìêåë Ñçê É~ÅÜ ÑìåÇ Åçãé~êÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ íçí~ä êÉíìêå çÑ íÜÉ êÉäÉî~åí ã~êâÉí
áåÇÉñI ÅçãéçëáíÉ áåÇÉñ çê Åçãé~ê~íçê

ÿ qçí~ä ~ëëÉí ÑáÖìêÉë ëÜçï íÜÉ íáãÉJïÉáÖÜíÉÇ êÉíìêåë áKÉK í~âáåÖ çìí íÜÉ ÉÑÑÉÅíë çÑ Å~ëÜ ÑäçïI Ñçê íÜÉ íçí~ä
ÑìåÇ ~åÇ ïÜÉêÉ ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉ áíë ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ

ÿ ^ää ÑìåÇ êÉíìêåë ~êÉ ëÜçïå ÄÉÑçêÉ íÜÉ ÇÉÇìÅíáçå çÑ ÅÜ~êÖÉë ÉñÅÉéí íÜçëÉ ã~êâÉÇ ÚEÅÜÖëFÛ çê ÚEÅÜ~êÖÉë
áåÅäìÇÉÇFÛK pçãÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåë ~êÉ åÉí çÑ ÑÉÉë

ÿ ^ÇÇáíáçå~ä áåÑçêã~íáçå Å~å ÄÉ ÑçìåÇ ä~íÉê áå íÜÉ êÉéçêí

qfjbJtbfdeqbaobqrokp ql PN ab`bj_bo OMNQ

i~ëí qÜêÉÉ jçåíÜë i~ëí qïÉäîÉ jçåíÜë i~ëí qÜêÉÉ vÉ~êë páåÅÉ PN gìä OMNM

fåîÉëíãÉåí pÉÅíçê cìåÇ fåÇÉñ aÉîá~íÛå cìåÇ fåÇÉñ aÉîá~íÛå cìåÇ fåÇÉñ aÉîá~íÛå cìåÇ fåÇÉñ aÉîá~íÛå

cìåÇë B B B B B B B é~ B é~ B é~ B é~ B é~ B é~

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ HMKS HMKS HMKM HNKP HNKO HMKN HNNKP HNNKN HMKO HVKV HVKU HMKN

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë HVKQ HVKQ HMKM HONKQ HONKQ HMKM HTKN HTKN HMKM HNNKS HNNKR HMKN

qçí~ä ^ëëÉíë HOKP åL~ åL~ HQKV åL~ åL~ HNMKP åL~ åL~ HNMKO åL~ åL~

P
a
g
e

 1
3
3



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí Q

aÉ~äáåÖ `çëíë
fåîÉëíãÉåí ^ëëçÅá~íáçåÛë mÉåëáçå cìåÇ aáëÅäçëìêÉ `çÇÉ
qÜÉ îçäìåí~êó `çÇÉ EqÜáêÇ sÉêëáçåF ïÜáÅÜ Ü~ë ÄÉÉå ~ÇçéíÉÇ Äó íÜÉ fåîÉëíãÉåí ^ëëçÅá~íáçå ~åÇ ëíêçåÖäó
ÉåÇçêëÉÇ Äó íÜÉ k~íáçå~ä ^ëëçÅá~íáçå çÑ mÉåëáçå cìåÇë áë áåíÉåÇÉÇ íç ~ëëáëí íÜçëÉ êÉëéçåëáÄäÉ Ñçê éÉåëáçå
ÑìåÇ ~ëëÉíë áå íÜÉ ìåÇÉêëí~åÇáåÖ çÑ íÜÉ ÅÜ~êÖÉë ~åÇ Åçëíë äÉîáÉÇ çå íÜÉ ~ëëÉíëK qÜÉ `çÇÉ ëÉíë çìí íÜÉ ÇáêÉÅí
Åçëíë ~åÇ êÉä~íÉÇ íçéáÅë ïÜáÅÜ ÑìåÇ ã~å~ÖÉêë ëÜçìäÇ ÄÉ ~ÄäÉ íç êÉéçêí íç íÜÉáê éÉåëáçå ÑìåÇ ÅäáÉåíëK

qÜÉêÉ ~êÉ íïç äÉîÉäë çÑ ÇáëÅäçëìêÉ êÉèìáêÉÇ Äó íÜÉ `çÇÉK

iÉîÉä låÉ J ÜçìëÉ éçäáÅáÉëI éêçÅÉëëÉë ~åÇ éêçÅÉÇìêÉë áå êÉä~íáçå íç íÜÉ ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí çÑ Åçëíë áåÅìêêÉÇ çå
ÄÉÜ~äÑ çÑ ÅäáÉåíëK idfj Ü~ë áëëìÉÇ íç ÅäáÉåíë ~ é~éÉê ÅçîÉêáåÖ iÉîÉä låÉ aáëÅäçëìêÉ ~åÇ íÜáë áë ìéÇ~íÉÇ
óÉ~êäóK
iÉîÉä qïç J ÅäáÉåí ëéÉÅáÑáÅ áåÑçêã~íáçåK qÜÉ `çÇÉ êÉèìáêÉë ÇÉí~áäë íç ÄÉ ~î~áä~ÄäÉ çÑ ÅçìåíÉêé~êíáÉë ìëÉÇ ~åÇ
íÜÉ ëéäáí çÑ Åçããáëëáçåë ÄÉíïÉÉå ÉñÉÅìíáçå ~åÇ êÉëÉ~êÅÜK fí ÑìêíÜÉê êÉèìáêÉë ~ Åçãé~êáëçå ïáíÜ ~ééêçéêá~íÉ
ÑáêãJïáÇÉ ÑáÖìêÉëK cçê áåîÉëíçêë áå éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇë íÜáë Åçãé~êáëçå áë ~í íÜÉ éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇ äÉîÉäX áí áë ~î~áä~ÄäÉ çå
êÉèìÉëí Ñêçã óçìê `äáÉåí ^ÅÅçìåí j~å~ÖÉêK

kçíÉë íç iÉîÉä qïç aáëÅäçëìêÉ Ó `äáÉåí péÉÅáÑáÅ fåÑçêã~íáçå Ñçê mççäÉÇ cìåÇ `äáÉåíë
ÿ mêçéçêíáçå çÑ éçêíÑçäáç ÅçîÉêÉÇ Äó íÜÉ `çÇÉ ~í éÉêáçÇ ÉåÇW

^ää ~ëëÉí Åä~ëëÉë ~êÉ ÅçîÉêÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ ÉñÅÉéíáçå çÑ mêçéÉêíó ïÜáÅÜ áë çìíëáÇÉ çÑ íÜÉ `çÇÉK

ÿ cìåÇ ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÑÉÉëW
qÜÉ ÑÉÉë ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉ íç óçìê ~êê~åÖÉãÉåíë ~êÉ ëÜçïå áå óçìê èì~êíÉêäó áåîçáÅÉ EÉñÅÉéí áå íÜÉ
ÅáêÅìãëí~åÅÉë ëí~íÉÇ çééçëáíÉFK

ÿ `ìëíçÇó Åçëíë ÄçêåÉ ÇáêÉÅíäó Äó íÜÉ ÑìåÇW
`ìëíçÇó Åçëíë ~êÉ áåÅäìÇÉÇ áå íÜÉ ÑìåÇ ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÑÉÉë ~åÇ ~êÉI íÜÉêÉÑçêÉI åçí ÄçêåÉ ÇáêÉÅíäó Äó íÜÉ
éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇ EÉñÅÉéí áå íÜÉ ÅáêÅìãëí~åÅÉë ëí~íÉÇ çééçëáíÉFK

ÿ qê~åë~Åíáçå î~äìÉëLÉñéäáÅáí ÇÉ~äáåÖ ÅçëíëW
få íÜÉ Åçäìãå çééçëáíÉ íÜÉêÉ ~êÉ íïç í~ÄäÉëK qÜÉ Ñáêëí ÖáîÉë ÇÉí~áäë çÑ íÜÉ íçí~ä Åçëí íç íÜÉ ëÅÜÉãÉ çÑ
ÇÉ~äáåÖ áå ìåáíë ÇìêáåÖ íÜÉ êÉéçêíáåÖ éÉêáçÇ Å~äÅìä~íÉÇ Äó Åçãé~êáåÖ íÜÉ ~Åíì~ä î~äìÉ çÑ íÜÉ ìåáíë ÇÉ~äí
ïáíÜ íÜÉáê ãáÇ î~äìÉK qÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ í~ÄäÉ éêçîáÇÉë ~å Éëíáã~íÉ çÑ íÜÉ íçí~ä ÉñéäáÅáí ÇÉ~äáåÖ Åçëíë áåÅìêêÉÇ
Äó É~ÅÜ çÑ íÜÉ éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇë ÇìêáåÖ íÜÉ èì~êíÉêI ~ÑíÉê ~ääçïáåÖ Ñçê íÜÉ ÇÉ~äáåÖ Åçëíë êÉÅÉáîÉÇ Äó íÜÉ
éççäÉÇ ÑìåÇ íÜêçìÖÜ íÜÉ ÄáÇLçÑÑÉê ëéêÉ~Ç Ñêçã íÜÉ ÇÉ~äáåÖ áå ìåáíëK få íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ í~ÄäÉI çåäó íÜÉ
ÉñéäáÅáí ÇÉ~äáåÖ Åçëíë ~êÉ ëÜçïåK _çåÇë ~êÉ ÇÉ~äí çå ~ åÉí Ä~ëáë EáKÉK åç ÄêçâÉê Åçããáëëáçå áë é~áÇF ~åÇI
íÜÉêÉÑçêÉI åç ÉñéäáÅáí Åçëíë ~êÉ ëÜçïåK

ÿ råÇÉêïêáíáåÖLëìÄJìåÇÉêïêáíáåÖ Åçããáëëáçåë êÉÅÉáîÉÇW
^åó Åçããáëëáçåë êÉÅÉáîÉÇ ~êÉ ÅêÉÇáíÉÇ íç íÜÉ ÑìåÇë íÜ~í ìåÇÉêïêçíÉ íÜÉ ëÜ~êÉ áëëìÉK

ÿ píçÅâ äÉåÇáåÖW
píçÅâ äÉåÇáåÖ çÅÅìêë áå ~ äáãáíÉÇ åìãÄÉê çÑ çîÉêëÉ~ë ÉèìáíáÉë áåÇÉñ ÑìåÇëK ^ää áåÅçãÉ ~êáëáåÖ Ñêçã
ëíçÅâ äÉåÇáåÖ äÉëë íÜÉ ÅìëíçÇá~åL~Çãáåáëíê~íçêÛë Åçëíë ~êÉ ÅêÉÇáíÉÇ íç íÜÉ ÑìåÇë äÉåÇáåÖ íÜÉ ëíçÅâëK idfj
ÇçÉë åçí êÉÅÉáîÉ ~åó êÉîÉåìÉ Ñêçã íÜÉ ëíçÅâ äÉåÇáåÖK

ÿ q~ñ~íáçåW
^åó rh ëí~ãé Çìíó ~åÇ çîÉêëÉ~ë í~ñÉë ~êÉ áåÅäìÇÉÇ áå íÜÉ Åçëíë ëÜçïåK s^q áë åçí é~ó~ÄäÉ çå íÜÉ ÑìåÇ
ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÑÉÉë ìåÇÉê ÅìêêÉåí äÉÖáëä~íáçåK

`lpqp lc ab^ifkd fk rkfqp arofkd obmloqfkd mbofla

qçí~ä
råáí qê~åë~Åíáçåë

qçí~ä
aÉ~äáåÖ `çëíë

^îÉê~ÖÉ
aÉ~äáåÖ `çëí

d_m d_m B

bñÅäìÇáåÖ ^ëëÉíë M M MKMM

fåÅäìÇáåÖ ^ëëÉíë M M MKMM

crka ab^ifkd `lpqp arofkd obmloqfkd mbofla

cìåÇ bñéäáÅáí aÉ~äáåÖ `çëí EBF ïáíÜáå cìåÇ

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ äÉëë íÜ~å MKMNB

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë åáä

P
a
g
e
 1

3
4



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí R

aáêÉÅíçê êÉä~íÉÇ EPTKPBF

oÉãìåÉê~íáçå EOOKOBF

`~éáí~ä píêìÅíìêÉ ENVKTBF

dÉåÉê~ä dçîÉêå~åÅÉ EMKPBF

oçìíáåÉ C líÜÉê ÄìëáåÉëë ESKMBF

q~âÉçîÉêLjÉêÖÉê ENOKRBF

^ìÇáíçêë EMKSBF

båîáêçåãÉåí~ä áëëìÉë ENKNBF

^åíá J í~âÉçîÉê ãÉ~ëìêÉë EMKPBF

pçÅá~ä áëëìÉë EMBF

mçäáÅó ~åÇ ä~íÉëí ÇÉîÉäçéãÉåíë áå
`çêéçê~íÉ dçîÉêå~åÅÉ C oÉëéçåëáÄäÉ fåîÉëíãÉåí

mçäáÅó ~åÇ mê~ÅíáÅÉ

tÉ ~áã íç ã~ñáãáëÉ ~åÇ éêçíÉÅí ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉê î~äìÉ çå ÄÉÜ~äÑ çÑ çìê ÅäáÉåíë Äó
ÉñÉêÅáëáåÖ íÜÉáê îçíáåÖ êáÖÜíëK tÉ ~äëç ÉåÖ~ÖÉ ïáíÜ Åçãé~åáÉë ÄçíÜ ÇáêÉÅíäó ~åÇ
Åçää~Äçê~íáîÉäó ïáíÜ çíÜÉê áåîÉëíçêë íç êÉÇìÅÉ êáëâë çÑ Åçêéçê~íÉ Ñ~áäìêÉ ~åÇ éêçãçíÉ
ÄÉëí éê~ÅíáÅÉK tÉ Åçãéäó ïáíÜ íÜÉ éêáåÅáéäÉë ëÉí çìí áå íÜÉ rh píÉï~êÇëÜáé `çÇÉ ~åÇ
~êÉ ~ ëáÖå~íçêó íç íÜÉ rk mêáåÅáéäÉë çÑ oÉëéçåëáÄäÉ fåîÉëíãÉåí EmofF
ÜííéWLLïïïKäÖáãKÅçãLìâLÉåLÅ~é~ÄáäáíáÉëLÅçêéçê~íÉJÖçîÉêå~åÅÉL

få çêÇÉê íç ÇÉãçåëíê~íÉ âÉó ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ áëëìÉëI îçíáåÖ ëí~íáëíáÅë ~êÉ ÇáîáÇÉÇ ìé áåíç
ã~áå îçíáåÖ Å~íÉÖçêáÉëK tÉ ÉåÖ~ÖÉ çå ~ ê~åÖÉ çÑ båîáêçåãÉåí~äI pçÅá~äI dçîÉêå~åÅÉ
EbpdF ~åÇ cáå~åÅá~ä áëëìÉë ~åÇ áåíÉÖê~íÉ ~ää ÅçãéçåÉåíë ïÜÉêÉ ~ééêçéêá~íÉK ^ää rh
îçíÉë ~êÉ ÇáëÅäçëÉÇ çå çìê ïÉÄëáíÉK

tÉ Ü~îÉ ÉñíÉåÇÉÇ çìê éìÄäáÅ îçíáåÖ ÇáëÅäçëìêÉ íç ÅçîÉê íÜÉ kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~å ~åÇ
g~é~åÉëÉ ã~êâÉíëK qÜÉëÉ Å~å ~äëç ÄÉ ÑçìåÇ çå çìê ïÉÄé~ÖÉK

idfj îçíÉë áå ~ää ã~àçê ÇÉîÉäçéÉÇ ã~êâÉíë áåÅäìÇáåÖW bìêçéÉI kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~I g~é~å
~åÇ ^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅI ~åÇ ÅçåíáåìÉ íç ãáåáãáëÉ ~ÄëíÉåíáçåëK tÉ ~äëç îçíÉ áå íÜÉ ã~àçê
ÉãÉêÖáåÖ ã~êâÉíë ~åÇ Ü~îÉ ëí~êíÉÇ êÉéçêíáåÖ çå çìê ~ÅíáîáíáÉë áå íÜáë êÉÖáçåK

i~íÉëí kÉïë ~åÇ aÉîÉäçéãÉåí
mêÉëë `çîÉê~ÖÉ
aìêáåÖ íÜÉ óÉ~ê ïÉ Ü~îÉ ÄÉÉå áå åÉ~êäó ÉîÉêó ã~àçê å~íáçå~ä åÉïëé~éÉê çå î~êáçìë ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ
íçéáÅëK qÜáë èì~êíÉêI ïÉ ÅçåíáåìÉÇ íç éêçãçíÉ âÉó áëëìÉë ëìÅÜ ~ë ÅóÄÉê ëÉÅìêáíóI Äç~êÇ ÇáîÉêëáíóI
Äç~êÇ ÉÑÑÉÅíáîÉåÉëë êÉîáÉïëI ~ìÇáíçê áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåÅÉ ~åÇ ïÉêÉ èìçíÉÇ çå êÉãìåÉê~íáçå êÉä~íáåÖ íç
_d dêçìé ïÜáÅÜ Ñ~ÅÉÇ çééçëáíáçå Ñêçã î~êáçìë ëí~âÉÜçäÇÉêëK

aáîÉêëáíó áå cqpb ORM
tÉ ãÉí ïáíÜ ëÉîÉê~ä çÑ íÜÉ êÉã~áåáåÖ cqpbORM Åçãé~åáÉë ïáíÜ ~ää ã~äÉ Äç~êÇë ~ÑíÉê ïêáíáåÖ íç
É~ÅÜ çÑ íÜÉã íç êÉèìÉëí ãÉÉíáåÖë ~åÇ ÇáëÅìëë íÜÉ áëëìÉ çÑ ÇáîÉêëáíóK qÜÉ Åçãé~åáÉë ïÉ ÉåÖ~ÖÉÇ
ïáíÜ áåÅäìÇÉÇ _êáí éäÅI mÉêëçå~ä ^ëëÉíë qêìëíI póåíÜçãÉê ~åÇ qÉäÉÅçã mäìëK ^ää íÜÉ Åçãé~åáÉë
êÉÅçÖåáëÉÇ íÜÉ ÅÜ~ääÉåÖÉ çÑ áåÅêÉ~ëáåÖ ÇáîÉêëáíó ~åÇ í~äÉåí ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí áå íÜÉáê çêÖ~åáë~íáçåëK tÉ
ïáää ÅçåíáåìÉ íç éìëÜ Ñçê ãçêÉ éêçÖêÉëë áå íÜÉ ~êÉ~ çÑ ÇáîÉêëÉ Äç~êÇëK

fåëíáíìíÉ çÑ `Ü~êíÉêÉÇ pÉÅêÉí~êáÉë ^ëëçÅá~íáçå Ef`p^F ~åÇ k^mc píÉï~êÇëÜáé `çåÑÉêÉåÅÉ
lìê aáêÉÅíçê ï~ë ~ é~åÉä ãÉãÄÉê ~í íÜÉ f`p^ ÅçåÑÉêÉåÅÉ éêÉëÉåíáåÖ íç ~ ä~êÖÉ Öêçìé çÑ Åçãé~åó
ëÉÅêÉí~êáÉë ÇáëÅìëëáåÖ ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ Ñêçã ~å áåîÉëíçê éÉêëéÉÅíáîÉK tÉ ÜáÖÜäáÖÜíÉÇ íÜÉ áãéçêí~åÅÉ çÑ
íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ëÉÅêÉí~êá~ä êçäÉ áå ã~áåí~áåáåÖ ÖççÇ ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ ëí~åÇ~êÇëK ^ éêÉëÉåí~íáçå Äó íÜÉ
idfj `bl ï~ë ~äëç ÖáîÉå íç k^mc ãÉãÄÉêë çå Üçï áåÇÉñ ÑìåÇë ~Åí ~ë äçåÖ íÉêã ~åÇ ~ÅíáîÉ
çïåÉêëK

`Üáå~ ~åÇ eçåÖ hçåÖ îáëáí
tÉ îáëáíÉÇ `Üáå~ ~åÇ eçåÖ hçåÖ íç ~ííÉåÇ ~ Åçêéçê~íÉ ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ E`dF ÅçåÑÉêÉåÅÉ ~åÇ ãÉÉí
ëÉîÉê~ä `ÜáåÉëÉ Åçãé~åáÉëK fëëìÉë áå `Üáå~ ~êÉ Ççãáå~íÉÇ Äó ä~êÖÉ ëí~âÉë ÜÉäÇ Äó íÜÉ ëí~íÉ ~åÇ áíë
áåÑäìÉåÅÉ çå Äç~êÇ Åçãéçëáíáçå ~åÇ ãáåçêáíó ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉê êáÖÜíëK `d êÉèìáêÉãÉåíë Å~å î~êó
ÄÉíïÉÉå eçåÖ hçåÖ ~åÇ íÜÉ ã~áåä~åÇI Äìí ïáíÜ íÜÉ åÉï pÜ~åÖÜ~áJeçåÖ hçåÖ ÅçååÉÅíI íÜÉêÉ
ïáää ÄÉ ÖêÉ~íÉê ~ÅÅÉëë íç `ÜáåÉëÉ äáëíÉÇ Åçãé~åáÉë Ñçê ÖäçÄ~ä áåîÉëíçêëK qÜáë ïáää áåÅêÉ~ëÉ íÜÉ åÉÉÇ
íç éìëÜ Ñçê ÑìêíÜÉê ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ ~ï~êÉåÉëë ~åÇ ÇáëÅäçëìêÉ áå `Üáå~K ^ÇÇáíáçå~ääóI ïÉ ãÉí ïáíÜ
áåÇìëíêó äÉ~ÇÉêë áå íÜÉ ÉåÉêÖó ~åÇ Åäáã~íÉ ÅÜ~åÖÉ ëé~ÅÉ íç ìåÇÉêëí~åÇ íÜÉ ä~íÉëí ~ííáíìÇÉ íç ÉåÉêÖó
íê~åëáíáçå EÑêçã Åç~ä íç Ö~ë íç êÉåÉï~ÄäÉëF ~åÇ íÜÉ áãé~Åíë çÑ éçääìíáçå çå ÉåÉêÖó ÅçåëìãéíáçåK

c`^ Åçåëìäí~íáçå çå ëéçåëçê ÅçåÑäáÅíë
idfj ÅçåíáåìÉÇ íç éìëÜ Ñçê ÅÜ~åÖÉ áå íÜÉ êÉÖìä~íçêó ëé~ÅÉ êÉÖ~êÇáåÖ íÜÉ êçäÉ çÑ ëéçåëçêë ~åÇ
áåîÉëíãÉåí Ä~åâë áå íÜÉ äáëíáåÖ éêçÅÉëë ~åÇ íÜÉ ÅçåÑäáÅíë íÜ~í ã~ó çÅÅìêK lìê îáÉïë çå ÄÉííÉê
ÇáëÅäçëìêÉ ~åÇ ÅçåÑäáÅí ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ïÉêÉ ëìÄãáííÉÇ íç íÜÉ c`^K

cçê EVMBF

^Ö~áåëí ENMBF

sçíáåÖ aÉÅáëáçåë ^Ö~áåëíL^Äëí~áå sçíÉë Äó qçéáÅ

P
a
g
e

 1
3
5



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí S

hÉó sçíáåÖ aÉÅáëáçåë
råáíÉÇ háåÖÇçã

pâó mäÅ jK`~éW ¡NRÄå jÉÇá~ rh
idfj îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ êÉãìåÉê~íáçå êÉéçêí ÇìÉ íç íÜÉ ÅçãéäÉñáíó çÑ íÜÉ iqfmI
ÅçåÅÉêåë ïáíÜ íÜÉ éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ ãÉ~ëìêÉë ~åÇ íÜÉ ä~Åâ çÑ íê~åëé~êÉåÅó ëìêêçìåÇáåÖ
ÇáëÅêÉíáçå ~ééäáÉÇK NNKOB çÑ áåîÉëíçêë îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí ~åÇ NVB ~Äëí~áåÉÇK

a~áêó `êÉëí EbdjF jK`~éW ¡SUOKRã cççÇ mêçÅÉëëáåÖ rh
^í íÜÉ bdj áå aÉÅÉãÄÉê íç ~ééêçîÉ íÜÉ Çáëéçë~ä çÑ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóÛë a~áêáÉë ÄìëáåÉëë
~åÇ çéÉê~íáçåëI ïÉ îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ êÉëçäìíáçå íç éêçîáÇÉ ~å ~ÇÇáíáçå~ä çåÉJçÑÑ
~ï~êÇ íç íÜÉ `bl ïÜáÅÜ áë çå íçé çÑ ~å ÉñáëíáåÖ iqfm ~ï~êÇ ~åÇ çìíëáÇÉ íÜÉ ëÅçéÉ çÑ
íÜÉ oÉãìåÉê~íáçå mçäáÅóK ^í íÜÉ ãÉÉíáåÖI PRKTB çÑ ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêë îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëíK

_~äÑçìê _É~ííó EbdjF jK`~éW ¡NKQSÄå `çåëíêìÅíáçå rh
tÉ îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ ë~äÉ çÑ m~êëçåë _êáåâÉêÜçÑÑ ëìÄëáÇá~êóK tÉ ÑÉäí íÜÉ íáãáåÖ Ñçê íÜÉ
ë~äÉ çÑ íÜáë Å~ëÜ ÖÉåÉê~íáîÉ ÄìëáåÉëë ï~ë åçí áå äáåÉ ïáíÜ äçåÖ íÉêã ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëÛ
áåíÉêÉëíëK qÜáë áë ÄÉÅ~ìëÉ çÑ íÜÉ ~êêáî~ä çÑ ~ åÉï `bl ~åÇ ÇÉé~êíìêÉ çÑ âÉó ÇáêÉÅíçêë
äÉ~îáåÖ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóK pÜ~êÉë Ü~îÉ ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉÇ íÜÉ ã~êâÉí ëáÖåáÑáÅ~åíäó ÇìêáåÖ
OMNQK

rp

jáÅêçëçÑí jK`~éW APUOKUUÄå qÉÅÜåçäçÖó rp
tÉ ÉåÖ~ÖÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ `Ü~áêã~å ~ÜÉ~Ç çÑ íÜÉ ^dj íç ÇáëÅìëë íÜÉ ëìÅÅÉëëáçå éêçÅÉëë çÑ íÜÉ åÉï
`bl ~åÇ íÜÉáê åÉï êÉãìåÉê~íáçå ëíêìÅíìêÉK tÉ ÜáÖÜäáÖÜíÉÇ çìê ÅçåÅÉêåë ïáíÜ íÜÉ éê~ÅíáÅÉ çÑ
ã~âáåÖ ÇáëÅêÉíáçå~êó é~óãÉåíë ~åÇ íÜÉ ÜáÖÜ èì~åíìã çÑ ~ï~êÇ íç íÜÉ åÉï `blK cìêíÜÉêãçêÉI
ïÉ Éñéä~áåÉÇ íÜ~í êÉãìåÉê~íáçå ëÜçìäÇ ÄÉ Éñ~ãáåÉÇ ãçêÉ ÅäçëÉäó ~äçåÖëáÇÉ ëìÅÅÉëëáçå ÖçáåÖ
Ñçêï~êÇ íç ÉåëìêÉ íÜ~í ä~êÖÉ ÇáëÅêÉíáçå~êó ~ï~êÇë ~êÉ åçí ã~ÇÉK idfj îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ
êÉãìåÉê~íáçå êÉéçêí ~ë ÇáÇ TOB çÑ ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëK tÉ ïáää ÅçåíáåìÉ íç ÉåÖ~ÖÉ ïáíÜ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóK

lê~ÅäÉ jK`~éW ANVTKQUÄå qÉÅÜåçäçÖó rp
lìê ÉåÖ~ÖÉãÉåí ïáíÜ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó Ü~ë ÄÉÉå çåJÖçáåÖ ~åÇ ÇÉëéáíÉ íÜÉ êÉÇìÅíáçå áå Éèìáíó
~ï~êÇë Ñçê íÜÉ `blI íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ëìÑÑÉêÉÇ ~ íÜáêÇ Ñ~áäÉÇ ë~ó çå é~ó îçíÉK tÉ îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ
éä~å ÄÉÅ~ìëÉ ïÉ Ü~îÉ Åçåíáåì~ä ÅçåÅÉêåë íÜ~í é~ó áë åçí ëìÑÑáÅáÉåíäó äáåâÉÇ íç íÜÉ éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ
~åÇ íÜÉ èì~åíìã áë ÉñÅÉëëáîÉK tÉ ~äëç îçíÉÇ áå Ñ~îçìê çÑ íÜÉ éêçñó ~ÅÅÉëë éêçéçë~ä ~ë ïÉ ÑÉÉä
íÜ~í íÜÉ Äç~êÇ Åçãéçëáíáçå êÉã~áåë ~å áëëìÉ ÇìÉ íç íÜÉ `blÛë ÜáëíçêáÅ~ä êçäÉ ~í íÜÉ Åçãé~åóI
ÇÉëéáíÉ íÜÉ êÉÅÉåí ÅÜ~åÖÉë çÑ ~ééçáåíáåÖ ~ ÅçJ`bl ~åÇ Üáã ëíÉééáåÖ Ççïå íç bñÉÅìíáîÉ
`Ü~áêã~åK qÜáë éêçéçë~ä êÉÅÉáîÉÇ QQKSB ëìééçêí Ñêçã ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëK

kÉïë `çêéçê~íáçå jK`~éW AUKVUÄå jÉÇá~ rp
tÉ ÅçåíáåìÉ íç ÄÉ ÅçåÅÉêåÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ Äç~êÇ ëíêìÅíìêÉ ~í íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ~åÇ íÜÉ éêçíÉÅíáçå Ñçê
ãáåçêáíó ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêë ~ë íÜÉêÉ áë ~ Çì~ä Åä~ëë ëÜ~êÉ ëíêìÅíìêÉK idfj îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí ~ää ÇáêÉÅíçêë
ÇìÉ íç ~ éçáëçå éáää ÄÉáåÖ éìí áå éä~ÅÉ ïáíÜçìí ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉê ~ééêçî~äK dáîÉå íÜÉ îçíáåÖ éçïÉê áë
~äêÉ~Çó ÅçåÅÉåíê~íÉÇ ïáíÜ oìéÉêí jìêÇçÅÜ ~åÇ Üáë Ñ~ãáäóI íÜáë ÅçåíáåìÉë íç ÄäçÅâ çìíëáÇÉêë ïÜç
ïáëÜ íç áåÅêÉ~ëÉ íÜÉáê îçíáåÖ êáÖÜíë ~åÇ Ü~îÉ ~ ÖêÉ~íÉê ë~ó áå íÜÉ Åçãé~åóÛë ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ ëíêìÅíìêÉK
^í íÜÉ ãÉÉíáåÖI aáêÉÅíçêë êÉÅÉáîÉÇ ÄÉíïÉÉå SPB ~åÇ TPB ëìééçêí Ñêçã ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëK tÉ ~äëç
îçíÉÇ áå Ñ~îçìê çÑ íÜÉ Éäáãáå~íáçå çÑ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóÛë Çì~ä Åä~ëë Å~éáí~ä ëíêìÅíìêÉ ïÜáÅÜ êÉÅÉáîÉÇ
QTB ëìééçêí Ñêçã ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëK

^ëá~ Óm~ÅáÑáÅ

eçéÉïÉää eáÖÜï~ó
fåÑê~ëíêìÅíìêÉ iíÇ

jK`~éW ehaNNKVSÄå `çåëíêìÅíáçå eçåÖ hçåÖ

tÉ çééçëÉÇ íÜÉ ÉäÉÅíáçå çÑ íïç ÇáêÉÅíçêë ÄÉÅ~ìëÉ ïÉ Ü~îÉ ÅçåÅÉêåë ïáíÜ íÜÉ Äç~êÇ Åçãéçëáíáçå
~åÇ íÜÉêÉ áë ~ ÅçåÑäáÅí çÑ áåíÉêÉëíK jçêÉçîÉêI Äç~êÇ áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåÅÉ áë ÄÉäçï çåÉJíÜáêÇ ~åÇ íÜÉ
Åçãé~åó Ü~ë Ñ~áäÉÇ íç ëÉí ìé ~ åçãáå~íáçåë ÅçããáííÉÉ ïÜáÅÜ áë åçí áå Åçãéäá~åÅÉ ïáíÜ íÜÉ
eçåÖ hçåÖ píçÅâ bñÅÜ~åÖÉ äáëíáåÖ êìäÉëK

o~ãë~ó eÉ~äíÜ `~êÉ iíÇ jK`~éW ^raNNKSVÄå eÉ~äíÜÅ~êÉ pÉêîáÅÉë ^ìëíê~äá~
idfj îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ êÉJÉäÉÅíáçå çÑ íïç áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåí ÇáêÉÅíçêëI ~ë ÄçíÜ Ü~îÉ ÄÉÉå ëÉêîáåÖ çå
íÜÉ Äç~êÇ çÑ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó Ñçê NT ÅçåëÉÅìíáîÉ óÉ~êë ~åÇI ÜÉåÅÉI Å~ååçí ÄÉ ÅçåëáÇÉêÉÇ
áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåí ÇìÉ íç íÜÉáê äÉåÖíÜ çÑ íÉåìêÉK få ~ÇÇáíáçåI íÜÉ Äç~êÇ áë åçí ÅçãéêáëÉÇ çÑ ~ ã~àçêáíó
çÑ áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåí ÇáêÉÅíçêëK ^äíÜçìÖÜ ïÉ ~ééêÉÅá~íÉ íÜ~í íÜÉ Åçãé~åó áë ~ÅíáîÉäó äççâáåÖ íç
áåíêçÇìÅÉ ~å ~ééêçéêá~íÉ ëìÅÅÉëëáçå éä~ååáåÖ ëóëíÉãI íÜáë Ü~ë åçí ã~íÉêá~äáëÉÇ ~åÇ ëáÖåáÑáÅ~åí
íáãÉ Ü~ë é~ëëÉÇK

M

OM

QM

SM

UM

NMM

NOM

rh bìêçéÉ kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~ g~é~å ^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅ bãÉêÖáåÖ
j~êâÉíë

oÉÖáçå~ä _êÉ~âÇçïå çÑ ^d^fkpq sçíÉë Äó qçéáÅ

^ìÇíáçêë

båîáêçåãÉåí~ä áëëìÉë

sçíáåÖ êáÖÜíë

dÉåÉê~ä dçîÉêå~åÅÉ

oçìíáåÉ C líÜÉê ÄìëáåÉëë

^åíáJí~âÉçîÉê ãÉ~ëìêÉë

q~âÉçîÉêLjÉêÖÉêL oÉçêÖ~åáë~íáçå

`~éáí~ä píêìÅíìêÉ

oÉãìåÉê~íáçå

aáêÉÅíçê êÉä~íÉÇ

bìêçéÉ

bac jK`~éW �QOKTÄå ríáäáíáÉë cê~åÅÉ
idfj îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí Ñçìê êÉëçäìíáçåë êÉä~íÉÇ íç íÜÉ ~ãÉåÇãÉåí çÑ Åçãé~åó Äóä~ïëK
få é~êíáÅìä~êI íÜÉ Åçãé~åó éêçéçëÉÇ íç ã~áåí~áå áå áíë Äóä~ïë ã~åÇ~íçêó
ÅçãÄáå~íáçå çÑ íÜÉ ÇìíáÉë çÑ `Ü~áêã~å ~åÇ `bl ïÜáäÉ íÜÉ åÉï cêÉåÅÜ äÉÖáëä~íáîÉ
Ñê~ãÉïçêâ éêçîáÇÉë Ñçê íÜÉ éçëëáÄáäáíó íç ëÉé~ê~íÉ íÜÉ êçäÉëK tÉ ~äëç îçíÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ
ÉäÉÅíáçå çÑ ~ää íÜÉ åçãáå~íÉÇ aáêÉÅíçêë ÄÉÅ~ìëÉ íÜÉ éêçéçëÉÇ Çìê~íáçå áë áå ÉñÅÉëë çÑ
êÉÅçããÉåÇÉÇ ÖìáÇÉäáåÉë ~åÇ íÜÉêÉ áë ~ ä~Åâ çÑ áåÇÉéÉåÇÉåÅÉ ~í íÜÉ Äç~êÇ äÉîÉä ENTBFK

P
a
g
e
 1

3
6



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí T

idfj sçíáåÖ pìãã~êó Äó qçéáÅ ~åÇ oÉÖáçå

rh bìêçéÉ kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~ g~é~å ^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅ
bãÉêÖáåÖ
j~êâÉíë

qçí~ä

_ÉíïÉÉå MNLNMLOMNQ ~åÇ PNLNOLOMNQ c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

c
l
o
=

^
d
^
fk
p
q
=

=

aáêÉÅíçê êÉä~íÉÇ QPV O UP OT PMT OV OM O OUN QN VQ NR NPQM

oÉãìåÉê~íáçå NSM OP NN V RO U NQV NU PS NV QUR

`~éáí~ä ëíêìÅíìêÉ ORO U OS V U OV NS OON PS SMR

^ìÇáíçêë NPP N T N PS OV N OMU

sçíáåÖ êáÖÜíë

dÉåÉê~ä ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ

oçìíáåÉ ~åÇ Åçãé~åó ÄìëáåÉëë NUP O RQ Q P N O QV NM TR Q PUT

^åíáJí~âÉçîÉê êÉä~íÉÇ QN U N T RT

q~âÉçîÉêLãÉêÖÉêLêÉçêÖ~åáë~íáçå OS U NS NM N O OQ O NQS PP OSU

j~å~ÖÉãÉåí
mêçéçë~äë

pçÅá~ä áëëìÉë

pm Ó ^åíáJí~âÉçîÉê ãÉ~ëìêÉë

pm Ó aáêÉÅíçê êÉä~íÉÇ Q O N NR P S QM N TO

pm J oÉãìåÉê~íáçå N O P

pm J `~éáí~ä ëíêìÅíìêÉ

pm J sçíáåÖ êáÖÜíë

pm Ó `çêéçê~íÉ dçîÉêå~åÅÉ N N O Q

pm J oçìíáåÉ ~åÇ Åçãé~åó
ÄìëáåÉëë

NT NT

pm Ó eÉ~äíÜLbåîáêçåãÉåí O O Q

pm J pçÅá~ä áëëìÉë

pÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉê
mêçéçë~äë

pm J líÜÉê N P P T

qçí~ä sçíÉë NOPQ QU OMM RO QQR QV OQ O RSU VR SPO NMU

qçí~ä åìãÄÉê çÑ êÉëçäìíáçåë NOUO ORO QVQ OS SSP TQM PQRT

^ååì~ä dÉåÉê~ä jÉÉíáåÖë E^djF TV V PR P VM QM ORS

bñíê~çêÇáå~êó dÉåÉê~ä jÉÉíáåÖë EbdjF QU NV NQ N OP NPT OQO

kìãÄÉê çÑ Åçãé~åáÉë îçíÉÇ ~í NNV OU QV Q NNP NQU QSN

GqÜÉ ~ÄçîÉ í~ÄäÉ ÇÉí~áäë íÜÉ îçíáåÖ íÜ~í Ü~ë ÄÉÉå Å~êêáÉÇ çìí Ñçê íÜÉ mj` rhI bìêçéÉI kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~I g~é~åI ^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅ ~åÇ bãÉêÖáåÖ j~êâÉíë Ó bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cìåÇë
GGmäÉ~ëÉ åçíÉ íÜ~í ~ÄëíÉåíáçåë ïÉêÉ áåÅäìÇÉÇ ïáíÜáå íÜÉ Ú^Ö~áåëíÛ Å~íÉÖçêáÉë áå íÜÉ í~ÄäÉ ~ÄçîÉK qÜáë ï~ë ëáñ áå kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~

P
a
g
e

 1
3
7



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí U

jÉÉíáåÖë ÅçîÉêáåÖ çåÉ çê ãçêÉ
çÑ bpd ~åÇ c íçéáÅëG

kìãÄÉê çÑ
ãÉÉíáåÖë

b p d c

QM RU NTU TR
ONS

båîáêçåãÉåíL pìëí~áå~Äáäáíó QM

pçÅá~äLÉãéäçóÉÉ áëëìÉë RU

_ç~êÇ píêìÅíìêÉ OS

oÉãìåÉê~íáçå PO

`~éáí~ä píêìÅíìêÉ S

q~âÉçîÉêLjÉêÖÉê NN

dÉåÉê~ä dçîÉêå~åÅÉGG NMP
GmäÉ~ëÉ åçíÉ ãÉÉíáåÖë ã~ó ÄÉ ÇçìÄäÉ ÅçìåíÉÇ ~ë ïÉ çÑíÉå
ÇáëÅìëë ãçêÉ íÜ~å çåÉ áëëìÉ áå ~ ãÉÉíáåÖ

GGdÉåÉê~ä dçîÉêå~åÅÉ Å~íÉÖçêó ÅçîÉêë íçéáÅë áåÅäìÇáåÖ
Åçãé~åó éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ ~åÇ ëíê~íÉÖóI ~ìÇáí ~åÇ êáëâI ~åÇ
îçíáåÖ êáÖÜíë

hÉó `çãé~åó båÖ~ÖÉãÉåíë çå bEbåîáêçåãÉåí~äFI pEpçÅá~äFI dEdçîÉêå~åÅÉF ~åÇ cEcáå~åÅá~äF qçéáÅë

qÉëÅç jK`~éW ¡NRKPÄå oÉí~áä rh dc

pìÄàÉÅíW cáå~åÅá~ä éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉI ^ìÇáí ~åÇ oáëâ j~å~ÖÉãÉåí
aìêáåÖ íÜÉ èì~êíÉêI qÉëÅç ìåÅçîÉêÉÇ ~ÅÅçìåíáåÖ áêêÉÖìä~êáíáÉë íÜ~í äÉÇ íç éêçÑáíë ÄÉáåÖ çîÉêëí~íÉÇ Äó çîÉê ¡OSMãK qÜáë ï~ë
ëÜçêíäó ÑçääçïÉÇ Äó ~åçíÜÉê éêçÑáí ï~êåáåÖK tÉ ãÉí íÜÉ pfa íç ÇáëÅìëë íÜÉ ~ÅÅçìåíáåÖ áëëìÉë ~åÇ íÜÉ Çáëãáëë~ä çÑ âÉó
ÉãéäçóÉÉëK cìêíÜÉêãçêÉI ïÉ ãÉí íÜÉ åÉï `bl íç ÜÉ~ê Üáë ëíê~íÉÖó Ñçê íìêåáåÖ ~êçìåÇ íÜÉ ÄìëáåÉëëK pìÄëÉèìÉåíäóI íÜÉ
`Ü~áêã~å Ü~ë çÑÑÉêÉÇ íç êÉëáÖå çåÅÉ ~ êÉéä~ÅÉãÉåí Ü~ë ÄÉÉå ÑçìåÇK idfj Ü~ë ã~ÇÉ áíë îáÉïë âåçïå íç íÜÉ _ç~êÇ ~åÇ ïáää
ÄÉ ÅçåëìäíÉÇ çå íÜÉ ëìÅÅÉëëáçå çÑ íÜÉ `Ü~áêã~åK

_d dêçìé jK`~éW ¡OVKRÄå láä ~åÇ d~ë rh d

pìÄàÉÅíW pìÅÅÉëëáçå ~åÇ oÉãìåÉê~íáçå
lîÉê íÜÉ é~ëí ÑÉï óÉ~êëI íÜÉ `çãé~åó Ü~ë Ü~Ç åìãÉêçìë éêçÑáí ï~êåáåÖ ~åÇ ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÅÜ~åÖÉëK qÜáë áåÅäìÇÉÇ íÜÉ ä~ëí
`bl ~ååçìåÅáåÖ áå ^éêáä íÜ~í ÜÉ ï~ë äÉ~îáåÖ ~ÑíÉê NS ãçåíÜë áå íÜÉ àçÄK få j~óI ïÉ ÉåÖ~ÖÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó
ÉñíÉåëáîÉäó çå áíë åÉï OMNQ é~ó éçäáÅóK eçïÉîÉê ä~íÉê áå kçîÉãÄÉêI íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ~ååçìåÅÉÇ áíë áåíÉåíáçå íç ÜçäÇ ~å bdj
íç ~ééêçîÉ ~ é~Åâ~ÖÉ çìíëáÇÉ áíë éçäáÅó ÉîÉå íÜçìÖÜ áí ï~ë êÉåÉïÉÇ ëáñ ãçåíÜë ~ÖçK tÉ ëéçâÉ íç íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ÉñíÉåëáîÉäó
çå é~ó ~åÇ íÜÉêÉ ï~ë Åçää~Äçê~íáçå ÄÉíïÉÉå áåîÉëíçêëK pìÄëÉèìÉåíäó íÜÉ `çãé~åó ~ååçìåÅÉÇ íÜ~í áí ï~ë ïáíÜÇê~ïáåÖ íÜÉ
bdj ïáíÜ íÜÉ åÉï `bl ëíáää àçáåáåÖ çå íÜÉ ë~ãÉ Ç~íÉ ~åÇ ïáää ÉåëìêÉ íÜ~í íÜÉ êÉÅêìáíãÉåí é~Åâ~ÖÉ áë áå äáåÉ ïáíÜ íÜÉáê
åÉïäó ~ééêçîÉÇ éçäáÅóK tÉ ïáää ÅçåíáåìÉ íç ÉåÖ~ÖÉ ïáíÜ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó çå ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉI ëìÅÅÉëëáçå ~åÇ éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ áëëìÉëK

^ééäÉ jK`~éW ASQTKQÄå qÉÅÜåçäçÖó rp bpd
pìÄàÉÅíW pìëí~áå~Äáäáíó ~åÇ oÉãìåÉê~íáçå

idfj îáëáíÉÇ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóÛë çÑÑáÅÉë áå `~äáÑçêåá~ íç ÇáëÅìëë î~êáçìë bpd áëëìÉëK qÜÉ Åçãé~åó Ü~ë ïçêâÉÇ Ü~êÇ ~êçìåÇ áíë
ëìëí~áå~Äáäáíó Ñê~ãÉïçêâI é~êíáÅìä~êäó áå íÉêãë çÑ ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí çÑ áíë ëìééäó ÅÜ~áåK få ~ÇÇáíáçåI íÜÉ `çãé~åó Ü~ë ã~ÇÉ ~
íê~åëáíáçå íçï~êÇë ~ ëíêìÅíìêÉ íÜ~í áë ãçêÉ ëçÅá~ääó êÉëéçåëáÄäÉK idfj ïáää ÉåÅçìê~ÖÉ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó íç ÅçåíáåìÉ íÜáë
áãéêçîÉãÉåí ~åÇ íç ÅçããìåáÅ~íÉ íÜáë ëíçêó ãçêÉ ïáÇÉäóK tÉ ~äëç Ü~Ç ~å çéÉå ÇáëÅìëëáçå çå êÉãìåÉê~íáçå ~åÇ ïáää
Ñçääçï ìé ïáíÜ íÜÉ Åçãé~åóÛë `Ü~áê çÑ íÜÉ `çãéÉåë~íáçå `çããáííÉÉ íç ÇáëÅìëë íÜÉëÉ áëëìÉë áå ãçêÉ ÇÉí~áäK

`áëÅç póëíÉãë jK`~éW ANQOKPÄå qÉÅÜåçäçÖó rp d

pìÄàÉÅíW _ç~êÇ Åçãéçëáíáçå
tÉ ëéçâÉ íç íÜÉ Åçãé~åó íç ÇáëÅìëë Äç~êÇ ëíêìÅíìêÉI êÉãìåÉê~íáçå ~åÇ ÖçîÉêå~åÅÉ áëëìÉëK qÜÉ Åçãé~åó êÉÅÉáîÉÇ ~ éêçñó
~ÅÅÉëë éêçéçë~ä ~í áíë ^dj ~åÇ ïÉ ÉåÅçìê~ÖÉÇ íÜÉ Åçãé~åó íç íÜáåâ ãçêÉ ~Äçìí Äç~êÇ íìêåçîÉê ~ë íÜÉêÉ ~êÉ ëÉîÉê~ä äçåÖJ
ëÉêîáåÖ ÇáêÉÅíçêëI áåÅäìÇáåÖ íÜÉ `Ü~áêã~å C `blK ^äíÜçìÖÜ ïÉ ÑÉÉä íÜÉ Åçãé~åó ëÜçìäÇ êÉÑêÉëÜ áíë Äç~êÇI ïÉ ÇáÇ åçí
ëìééçêí íÜáë éêçéçë~ä ~ë áí ïçìäÇ Ü~îÉ Éå~ÄäÉÇ ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêë íç êÉéä~ÅÉ QMB çÑ íÜÉ Äç~êÇ ïÜáÅÜ ïÉ ÑÉäí ïçìäÇ ÄÉ íçç
ÇáëêìéíáîÉ íç íÜÉ ÄìëáåÉëëK qÜÉ éêçéçë~ä Ö~áåÉÇ RB ëìééçêí Ñêçã ëÜ~êÉÜçäÇÉêëK

h^w jáåÉê~äë jK`~éW ¡NKNÄå jáåáåÖ rh bp

pìÄàÉÅíW pìëí~áå~Äáäáíó
idfj ÉåÖ~ÖÉÇ ïáíÜ h^w jáåÉê~äëI ÑçÅìëáåÖ éêáã~êáäó çå ÜÉ~äíÜ ~åÇ ë~ÑÉíó áëëìÉëI ÅçåëáÇÉêáåÖ íÜÉ ÜáÖÜ ê~íÉ çÑ Ñ~í~äáíáÉë
ÉñéÉêáÉåÅÉÇ Äó íÜÉ Åçãé~åó áå íÜÉ é~ëíK qÜÉ Åçãé~åóI ~ë ~ êÉëìäí çÑ áíë êÉëíêìÅíìêáåÖ éä~åI áë ãçÇÉêåáëáåÖ áíë ÉèìáéãÉåíI ~ë
ïÉää ~ë éêçîáÇáåÖ ÉñíÉåëáîÉ íê~áåáåÖ íç áíë ÉãéäçóÉÉë ~åÇ äáåâáåÖ ÜÉ~äíÜ ~åÇ ë~ÑÉíó íç ã~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÅçãéÉåë~íáçåK aÉëéáíÉ
ÅçåëáÇÉê~ÄäÉ êÉÇìÅíáçåë áå Ñ~í~äáíó ê~íÉë Ó Ñêçã PO áå OMNM íç NQ áå OMNQ Ó íÜÉ Öç~ä çÑ òÉêç Ñ~í~äáíáÉë êÉã~áåë Ñ~ê ~ï~ó ~åÇ
íÜÉ Åçãé~åó áë ëíáää ÅçåëáÇÉêÉÇ ~ ä~ÖÖ~êÇ ~ãçåÖ áíë éÉÉêëK eÉåÅÉI ïÉ ïáää ÅçåíáåìÉ íç ãçåáíçê íÜÉáê éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ ~åÇ áåíÉåÇ
íç ãÉÉí íÜÉ `çãé~åó áå OMNR íç ~ëëÉëë áíë éêçÖêÉëë ~åÇ ÇáëÅìëë çíÜÉê áãéçêí~åí ~êÉ~ë êÉä~íÉÇ íç íÜÉ ëÉÅíçêI ëìÅÜ ~ë ï~íÉê
ã~å~ÖÉãÉåíK

båÖ~ÖÉãÉåí qçéáÅë C cêÉèìÉåÅáÉë

b J båîáêçåãÉåíL pìëí~áå~Äáäáíó

p J pçÅá~äLÉãéäçóÉÉ áëëìÉë

d J _ç~êÇ píêìÅíìêÉ

d J oÉãìåÉê~íáçå

d J `~éáí~ä píêìÅíìêÉ

d J q~âÉçîÉêLjÉêÖÉê

d J dÉåÉê~ä dçîÉêå~åÅÉ

P
a
g
e
 1

3
8



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí V

cìåÇ ^Åíáîáíó C
mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ

P
a
g
e

 1
3
9



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NM

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ

ÿ qÜÉ cìåÇ êÉíìêåÉÇ MKSB ã~íÅÜáåÖ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêå çîÉê íÜÉ èì~êíÉê

ÿ ^í íÜÉ èì~êíÉêäó áåÇÉñ êÉîáÉï íÜÉêÉ ïÉêÉ íïç ~ÇÇáíáçåëI kÉñíbåÉêÖó pçä~ê cìåÇ ~åÇ gáããó
`ÜççI ~åÇ Ñçìê ÇÉäÉíáçåëI _äìÉ`êÉëí _äìÉíêÉåÇ Ed_mFI mÉíêçé~îäçîëâI ghu láä C d~ë ~åÇ ^ëá~
oÉëçìêÅÉ jáåÉê~äë

ÿ líÜÉê Åçêéçê~íÉ ~Åíáîáíó áåÅäìÇÉÇ oÉÅâáíí _ÉåÅâáëÉê ÇÉãÉêÖáåÖ áíë ~ÇÇáÅíáçå ìåáí fåÇáîáçêX qrf
qê~îÉä ãÉêÖáåÖ ïáíÜ dÉêã~å Öêçìé qrf ^dX ~åÇ ÉåÖáåÉÉê ^ãÉÅ ~ÅèìáêáåÖ rp Öêçìé cçëíÉê
tÜÉÉäÉê ^d íç ÄÉÅçãÉ ^jb`K `~ëÜ í~âÉçîÉêë ïÉêÉ ÅçãéäÉíÉÇ Ñçê eóÇÉê `çåëìäíáåÖ ~åÇ
mÉêÑçêã dêçìéK r_jI `çåëçêí jÉÇáÅ~äI om` ~åÇ `çååÉÅí dêçìé ~ää ê~áëÉÇ Å~ëÜ îá~ êáÖÜíë
áëëìÉë íç ÑìåÇ Éñé~åëáçåK qp_ _~åâáåÖ dêçìé áåÅêÉ~ëÉÇ áíë ÑêÉÉ Ñäç~í íç RMB ÑçääçïáåÖ ~
ëÉÅçåÇ~êó ëÜ~êÉ éä~ÅáåÖ Äó iäçóÇë _~åâáåÖ dêçìé

JRKM

MKM

RKM

NMKM

g~å cÉÄ j~ê ^éê j~ó gìå gìä ^ìÖ pÉé lÅí kçî aÉÅ N óê R óêë

MKM HMKN MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM HMKN HMKNé~

B oÉíìêå

rh bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cqpb ^ääJpÜ~êÉ

cìåÇ páòÉ d_m PTIRRQKVã

rh bnrfqv fkabu J crka ^ka fkabu jlsbjbkqp J OMNQ

qê~ÅâáåÖ í~êÖÉí �MKORB é~ íïç óÉ~êë áå íÜêÉÉ

qê~Åâ
aÉî B

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë

ÿ qÜÉ cìåÇ êÉíìêåÉÇ VKQB ã~íÅÜáåÖ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêå çîÉê íÜÉ èì~êíÉê

ÿ rh dam êÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ OKSB óÉ~êJçåJóÉ~ê ÖêçïíÜ áå nP OMNQK qÜÉ ÇÉÄ~íÉ çîÉê íÜÉ Ñáêëí Ä~ëÉ ê~íÉ
áåÅêÉ~ëÉ áë ÄÉÅçãáåÖ ãçêÉ Ä~ä~åÅÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ Ñ~ää áå íÜÉ çáä éêáÅÉ ÄêáåÖáåÖ íÜÉ omf äÉîÉä çÑ
áåÑä~íáçå Ççïå íç OKMB áå kçîÉãÄÉê

ÿ aìêáåÖ íÜÉ Ñáå~ä èì~êíÉê íÜÉêÉ ïÉêÉ ~ìÅíáçåë çÑ OMOQI OMPQI OMQO ~åÇ OMRM ÄÉáåÖ í~ééÉÇK qÜÉëÉ
ê~áëÉÇ ~ééêçñáã~íÉäó ¡RKTÄåK qÜÉ OMNV ã~íìêáíó ÄçåÇ ÑÉää çìí çÑ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ ~ë áíë êÉã~áåáåÖ
ã~íìêáíó ÑÉää ÄÉäçï ÑáîÉ óÉ~êë

ÿ qÜÉ cìåÇ ÜÉäÇ ~ää ON ëíçÅâë Åçåí~áåÉÇ ïáíÜáå íÜÉ ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ áåÇÉñK qÜÉ cìåÇ ~åÇ áåÇÉñ ÄçíÜ
Ü~Ç ~ ãçÇáÑáÉÇ Çìê~íáçå çÑ OOKRN óÉ~êë ~í íÜÉ ÉåÇ çÑ íÜÉ èì~êíÉê ~åÇ íÜÉ êÉ~ä óáÉäÇ ï~ë JMKTQB
EóáÉäÇ ÅìêîÉ Ä~ëáëF

JRKM

MKM

RKM

NMKM

NRKM

OMKM

ORKM

g~å cÉÄ j~ê ^éê j~ó gìå gìä ^ìÖ pÉé lÅí kçî aÉÅ N óê R óêë

MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM HMKN HMKN MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM MKM HMKNé~

B oÉíìêå

lîÉê Ró fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ dáäíë cqpb ^ fåÇÉñJiáåâÉÇ [ R vÉ~êë

cìåÇ páòÉ d_m NUIVMNKVã

lsbo Rv fkabuJifkhba dfiqp J crka ^ka fkabu jlsbjbkqp J OMNQ

qê~ÅâáåÖ í~êÖÉí �MKORB é~ íïç óÉ~êë áå íÜêÉÉ

qê~Åâ
aÉî B

P
a
g
e
 1

4
0



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NN

j~êâÉí
_~ÅâÖêçìåÇ

P
a
g
e

 1
4
1



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NO

bÅçåçãáÉë

ÿ qÜÉ Ñáêã éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ çÑ íÜÉ rp ~åÇ rh ÉÅçåçãáÉë êÉã~áåÉÇ áå ëí~êâ Åçåíê~ëí íç íÜ~í çÑ íÜÉáê
Éìêç òçåÉ ~åÇ g~é~åÉëÉ éÉÉêëK ^äíÜçìÖÜ ëäáÇáåÖ çáä éêáÅÉë áåÅêÉ~ëáåÖäó áãé~ÅíÉÇ çå íÜÉ oìëëá~å
ÉÅçåçãó ~ë lmb` Ñ~áäÉÇ íç áãéäÉãÉåí éêçÇìÅíáçå ÅìíëI ÜçéÉë ÖêÉï íÜ~í äçïÉê ÉåÉêÖó Åçëíë
ÅçìäÇ ~Åí ~ë ~ Ñáääáé íç ÖäçÄ~ä ÖêçïíÜ

ÿ qÜÉ rp ÉÅçåçãó ÖêÉï Äó ~ ëíêçåÖÉêJíÜ~åJÉñéÉÅíÉÇ RKMB çå ~å ~ååì~äáëÉÇ Ä~ëáë áå nPI ÜÉäéÉÇ
Äó ÑáêãÉê ÅçåëìãÉê ëéÉåÇáåÖK ^Ö~áåëí íÜáë Ä~ÅâÇêçéI ÅçããÉåíë Ñêçã cÉÇÉê~ä oÉëÉêîÉ `Ü~áê
vÉääÉå ê~áëÉÇ ÉñéÉÅí~íáçåë íÜ~í áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë ÅçìäÇ êáëÉ ~ë ëççå ~ë nO OMNR

ÿ qÜÉ rh ÉÅçåçãó ÖêÉï Äó MKTB áå nPK ^ãáÇ ëéçê~ÇáÅ ëáÖåë íÜ~í ~Åíáîáíó ãçÇÉê~íÉÇ ëäáÖÜíäó áå
nQI ÜÉ~ÇïáåÇë Ñêçã íÜÉ Éìêç òçåÉ ~åÇ ÑìêíÜÉê ïÉ~âåÉëë áå áåÑä~íáçåI áåîÉëíçêë éìëÜÉÇ Ä~Åâ
ÑçêÉÅ~ëíë Ñçê íÜÉ Ñáêëí êáëÉ áå _~åâ o~íÉ íç ~êçìåÇ íÜÉ ãáÇÇäÉ çÑ OMNR

ÿ táíÜ ÉÅçåçãáÅ ~Åíáîáíó ÅçåíáåìáåÖ íç Çáë~ééçáåí ~Åêçëë íÜÉ Éìêç òçåÉ ~åÇ dêÉÉâ éçäáíáÅ~ä
ÅçåÅÉêå êÉ~ééÉ~êáåÖ ~ÜÉ~Ç çÑ g~åì~êó ÉäÉÅíáçåë íÜ~í ÅçìäÇ ëÉÉ ~åíáJÉìêç éçäáíáÅá~åë Ö~áå éçïÉêI
ëéÉÅìä~íáçå ÖêÉï íÜ~í íÜÉ bìêçéÉ~å `Éåíê~ä _~åâ ÅçìäÇ óÉí áåíêçÇìÅÉ èì~åíáí~íáîÉ É~ëáåÖ

`ìêêÉåÅáÉë

ÿ qÜÉ rp Ççää~ê ã~ÇÉ ÑìêíÜÉê Ö~áåë ÇìêáåÖ nQI êÉÅçêÇáåÖ ÇçìÄäÉJÇáÖáí Ö~áåë ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ óÉå Äìí
~äëç Ö~áåáåÖ ~Ö~áåëí ëíÉêäáåÖ ~åÇ íÜÉ Éìêç çîÉê íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ Ü~äÑ çÑ OMNQK táíÜ íÜÉ rp êÉÅçîÉêó
éáÅâáåÖ ìé é~ÅÉ ÇìêáåÖ nPI ÅçããÉåíë Ñêçã íÜÉ cÉÇÛë g~åÉí vÉääÉå ê~áëÉÇ íÜÉ éêçëéÉÅí íÜ~í rp
áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë ÅçìäÇ êáëÉI ÄççëíÉÇ íÜÉ Ççää~ê

ÿ qÜÉ Ççää~ê äÉ~éí ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ óÉå çîÉê nQ ~ë íÜÉ êçÄìëí rp ÉÅçåçãáÅ Ä~ÅâÇêçé Åçåíê~ëíÉÇ ïáíÜ
g~é~åÛë êÉíìêå íç êÉÅÉëëáçåK cçääçïáåÖ íÜÉ g~é~åÉëÉ ÉÅçåçãóÛë ëìêéêáëÉ MKRB nP ëÜêáåâ~ÖÉI
ëéÉÅìä~íáçå êçëÉ íÜ~í íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ äÉÖ çÑ íÜÉ ë~äÉë í~ñ áåÅêÉ~ëÉ ÅçìäÇ ÄÉ ÇÉä~óÉÇK jÉ~åïÜáäÉI íÜÉ
_çg ~ååçìåÅÉÇ ~ ä~êÖÉ Éñé~åëáçå çÑ áíë ëíáãìäìë éêçÖê~ããÉ

ÿ qÜÉ Éìêç ïÉ~âÉåÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ Ççää~ê áå nQK táíÜ Ñ~ääáåÖ çáä éêáÅÉë ëÉí íç éìí êÉåÉïÉÇ
Ççïåï~êÇ éêÉëëìêÉ çå ~äêÉ~ÇóJïÉ~â Éìêç òçåÉ áåÑä~íáçåI ëäìÖÖáëÜ ÉÅçåçãáÅ ÖêçïíÜ ~åÇ êáëáåÖ
éçäáíáÅ~ä êáëâë áå dêÉÉÅÉ ê~áëÉÇ ëéÉÅìä~íáçå íÜ~í èì~åíáí~íáîÉ É~ëáåÖ ÅçìäÇ óÉí ÄÉ áåíêçÇìÅÉÇ

ÿ píÉêäáåÖ ëäáééÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ Ççää~ê Äìí êçëÉ îÉêëìë íÜÉ Éìêç çîÉê nQK aÉëéáíÉ ÅçåíáåìÉÇ ëçÑíåÉëë
áå rh áåÑä~íáçå ~åÇ ëéçê~ÇáÅ ëáÖåë íÜ~í íÜÉ é~ÅÉ çÑ íÜÉ êÉÅçîÉêó ÅçìäÇ Åççä ÑìêíÜÉêI ëéÉÅìä~íáçå
áåÇáÅ~íÉë íÜ~í íÜÉ _~åâ o~íÉ ÅçìäÇ êáëÉ áå ãáÇJíçJä~íÉ OMNR

lb`a dT ib^afkd fkaf`^qlo C fkarpqof^i molar`qflk J vçv

fkarpqof^i molar`qflk ib^afkd fkaf`^qlo

SV TN TP TR TT TV UN UP UR UT UV VN VP VR VT VV MN MP MR MT MV NN NP
JPRM

JPMM

JORM

JOMM

JNRM

JNMM

JRM

M

RM

NMM

NRM

OMM

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

bu`e^kdb o^qbp

alii^o î pqboifkd
brol î pqboifkd brol î alii^o

vbk î alii^oalii^o î pqboifkd
brol î pqboifkd brol î alii^o

vbk î alii^o

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a
VM

VR

NMM

NMR

NNM

NNR

NOM

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

P
a
g
e
 1

4
2



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NP

_çåÇë

ÿ dçîÉêåãÉåí ÄçåÇ óáÉäÇë ÉñíÉåÇÉÇ íÜÉáê óÉ~êJäçåÖ ÇçïåíêÉåÇ áå nQK táíÜ ÖäçÄ~ä áåÑä~íáçå ëíáää
ëìÄÇìÉÇI íÜÉ åÉ~êJÜ~äîáåÖ çÑ çáä éêáÅÉë ëáåÅÉ gìäó ~ÇÇÉÇ íç ÖçîÉêåãÉåí ÇÉÄíÛë ~ééÉ~ä

ÿ qÉåJóÉ~ê Öáäí óáÉäÇë íìãÄäÉÇ Ñêçã OKRB íç NKUB çîÉê nQK rh dam ÖêÉï Äó MKTB áå nPI
Åçãé~êÉÇ íç ~ Ççïåï~êÇäóJêÉîáëÉÇ MKUB áå nOK táíÜ íÜÉ ÜçìëáåÖ ã~êâÉí ÅççäáåÖ ëäáÖÜíäó ~åÇ
íÜÉ ëäìÖÖáëÜ Éìêç òçåÉ ~ÅíáåÖ ~ë ~ ÜÉ~ÇïáåÇ íç ÖêçïíÜI ~ Ñ~ää áå áåÑä~íáçå íç àìëí NKMB ë~ï
áåîÉëíçêë éìëÜ Ä~Åâ íÜÉáê íáãÉëÅ~äÉ Ñçê ÜáÖÜÉê áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë íç íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ Ü~äÑ çÑ OMNR

ÿ rp íÉåJóÉ~ê ÄçåÇ óáÉäÇë ÑÉää Ñêçã OKRB íç OKOBK aÉëéáíÉ èì~åíáí~íáîÉ É~ëáåÖ EnbF ÉåÇáåÖ áå
lÅíçÄÉêI íÜÉ rp ÉÅçåçãáÅ êÉÅçîÉêó êÉã~áåÉÇ êçÄìëíI ~ë ~ååì~äáëÉÇ ÖêçïíÜ éáÅâÉÇ ìé íç RKMB
áå nPK táíÜ cÉÇ ÅÜ~áê vÉääÉå Ççïåéä~óáåÖ íÜÉ ëáÖåáÑáÅ~åÅÉ çÑ oìëëá~JêÉä~íÉÇ íìêãçáä çå íÜÉ rp
ÉÅçåçãóI ëéÉÅìä~íáçå êçëÉ íÜ~í áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë ÅçìäÇ êáëÉ ~ë ëççå ~ë nO OMNR

ÿ dáîÉå íÜÉ ~å~ÉãáÅ Éìêç òçåÉ ÉÅçåçãáÅ Ä~ÅâÇêçé ~åÇ êáëáåÖ dêÉÉâ éçäáíáÅ~ä êáëâI ëéÉÅìä~íáçå
êçëÉ íÜ~í íÜÉ b`_Ûë éä~ååÉÇ ÄçåÇ êÉéìêÅÜ~ëÉ éä~å ÅçìäÇ óÉí ãçêéÜ áåíç nbK dÉêã~å íÉåJóÉ~ê
óáÉäÇë ÑÉää Ñêçã NKMB íç MKSB ~åÇ fí~äá~å óáÉäÇë ÑÉää Ñêçã OKQB íç NKVB

ÿ g~é~åÉëÉ óáÉäÇë ÑÉää Ñêçã Ñêçã MKRB íç MKPBK táíÜ íÜÉ ÉÅçåçãóÛë MKRB nP Åçåíê~Åíáçå
éìëÜáåÖ íÜÉ Åçìåíêó Ä~Åâ áåíç êÉÅÉëëáçåI íÜÉ _~åâ çÑ g~é~å ÉñíÉåÇÉÇ áíë ëíáãìäìë é~Åâ~ÖÉ

rh bèìáíáÉë

ÿ qÜÉ cqpb ^ääJpÜ~êÉ áåÇÉñ êçëÉ Äó MKSB áå ëíÉêäáåÖ íçí~ä êÉíìêå íÉêãë çîÉê nQI ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãáåÖ
áíë ÖäçÄ~ä ÅçìåíÉêé~êíë ~åÇ ëáÖåáÑáÅ~åíäó ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãáåÖ áíë rp éÉÉêëK lå ~ íçí~ä êÉíìêå Ä~ëáëI
íÜÉ cqpb NMM áåÇÉñ ÑÉää Äó MKOBI é~êíäó êÉÑäÉÅíáåÖ íÜÉ ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ çÑ äÉ~ÇáåÖ çáä ëíçÅâëK
eçïÉîÉêI íÜÉ cqpb ORM ÅäáãÄÉÇ Äó RKOB ~ë ãáÇ Å~éë êÉíìêåÉÇ íç Ñ~îçìê ïÜÉêÉ~ë íÜÉ cqpb
pã~ää `~é EÉñ áåîÉëíãÉåí íêìëíëF áåÇÉñ çåäó êçëÉ MKPB

ÿ ^äíÜçìÖÜ íÜÉ rh ÉÅçåçãó ÅçåíáåìÉÇ íç çìíé~ÅÉ áíë ëíêìÖÖäáåÖ Éìêç òçåÉ éÉÉêëI rh ÖêçïíÜ
É~ëÉÇ Ñêçã MKUB áå nO íç MKTB áå nPK mêáî~íÉ Åçåëìãéíáçå ~åÇ ÖçîÉêåãÉåí ëéÉåÇáåÖ
êÉã~áåÉÇ ëíêçåÖ Äìí ÄìëáåÉëë áåîÉëíãÉåí ~åÇ Éñéçêíë ëÜê~åâ ~ãáÇ ÅçåÅÉêåë çîÉê íÜÉ ÇÉã~åÇ
çìíäççâ Ñêçã íÜÉ bìêç òçåÉK ^äíÜçìÖÜ áåÑä~íáçå ÑÉää íç NOJóÉ~ê äçï çÑ NKMBI Ñ~ê ÄÉäçï íÜÉ
çÑÑáÅá~ä OKMB í~êÖÉíI ~ ãáåçêáíó çÑ _~åâ çÑ båÖä~åÇÛë jçåÉí~êó mçäáÅó `çããáííÉÉ ÅçåíáåìÉÇ íç
îçíÉ Ñçê ÜáÖÜÉê áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë ~ë ï~ÖÉë Ñáå~ääó çìíé~ÅÉÇ áåÑä~íáçåK ^ÅÅçêÇáåÖ íç ÅçåëÉåëìë
ÑçêÉÅ~ëíëI _~åâ o~íÉ áë ëÉí íç êáëÉ ~êçìåÇ ãáÇJOMNR

ÿ få ëÉÅíçê íÉêãëI ÉåÉêÖó ëìÑÑÉêÉÇ ëíÉÉé Ñ~ääëI êÉÑäÉÅíáåÖ íÜÉ ëäáÇÉ áå çáä éêáÅÉëI ïÜáäÉ ãáåáåÖ ëíçÅâë
~äëç ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉÇ ~ãáÇ Ñ~ääë áå ÅçããçÇáíó éêáÅÉëK cççÇ C ÄÉîÉê~ÖÉë éêçÇìÅÉêë

NM vb^o dlsbokjbkq _lka obabjmqflk vfbia

rp

rh g^m^k

dboj^kv
g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a

M

MKRM

NKMM

NKRM

OKMM

OKRM

PKMM

PKRM

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

rh bnrfqv mof`b fkaf`bp

cqpb ^ii pe^ob
cqpb pj^ii `^m

lfi C d^p molar`qflk

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a
UM

UR

VM

VR

NMM

NMR

NNM

NNR

NOM

clla molar`bop
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

P
a
g
e

 1
4
3



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NQ

kçêíÜ ^ãÉêáÅ~å bèìáíáÉë

ÿ rp ÉèìáíáÉë êçëÉ Äó QKNB ~åÇ UKPB áå äçÅ~ä ~åÇ ëíÉêäáåÖ íÉêãë ÇìêáåÖ íÜÉ èì~êíÉêI
çìíéÉêÑçêãáåÖ íÜÉáê g~é~åÉëÉI rhI bìêçéÉ Éñ rh ÅçìåíÉêé~êíëK e~îáåÖ êáëÉå Ñçê ÉáÖÜí
ÅçåëÉÅìíáîÉ èì~êíÉêëI íÜÉ pCm RMM áåÇÉñ ëÉí ~ åÉï ~ääJíáãÉ ÜáÖÜ áå aÉÅÉãÄÉê

ÿ aÉëéáíÉ íÜÉ ÉåÇáåÖ çÑ èì~åíáí~íáîÉ É~ëáåÖI íÜÉ rp ÉÅçåçãáÅ êÉÅçîÉêó Ö~áåÉÇ ÑìêíÜÉê
ãçãÉåíìãI ïáíÜ ÖêçïíÜ êáëáåÖ Ñêçã QKSB áå nO çå ~å ~ååì~äáëÉÇ Ä~ëáë íç RKMB áå nPI íÜÉ
ÜáÖÜÉëí é~ÅÉ ëáåÅÉ íÜÉ íÜáêÇ èì~êíÉê çÑ OMMPI ÜÉäéÉÇ Äó êáëáåÖ ÅçåëìãÉê ëéÉåÇáåÖ ~åÇ
áåîÉëíãÉåí

ÿ táíÜ cÉÇ `Ü~áê g~åÉí vÉääÉå Ççïåéä~óáåÖ íÜÉ ÉÑÑÉÅí çÑ oìëëá~JêÉä~íÉÇ íìêãçáä çå íÜÉ rp
ÉÅçåçãóI ëéÉÅìä~íáçå ÖêÉï íÜ~í rp áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë ÅçìäÇ êáëÉ ~ë ëççå ~ë íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ èì~êíÉê çÑ
OMNR

ÿ få ëÉÅíçê íÉêãëI íÜÉ åÉ~êJÜ~äîáåÖ çÑ ÅêìÇÉ çáä éêáÅÉë ëáåÅÉ gìäó ~ë lmb` ÇÉÅäáåÉÇ íç Åìí
éêçÇìÅíáçå ÇÉëéáíÉ êáëáåÖ rp ëÜ~äÉ ëìééäáÉë J ïÉáÖÜÉÇ ÜÉ~îáäó çå íÜÉ ÉåÉêÖó ëÉÅíçê ÇìêáåÖ nQK
qÜÉ ã~íÉêá~äë ëÉÅíçê ~äëç ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉÇ ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ Ä~ÅâÇêçé çÑ ïÉ~â ÖäçÄ~ä ÅçããçÇáíó
éêáÅÉëK eçïÉîÉêI íÜÉ ìíáäáíáÉë ~åÇ ÅçåëìãÉê ÇáëÅêÉíáçå~êó ëÉÅíçêë éêçÇìÅÉÇ ëíêçåÖ êÉíìêåë
ÇìêáåÖ nQ

`çåíáåÉåí~ä bìêçéÉ~å bèìáíáÉë

ÿ `çåíáåÉåí~ä bìêçéÉ~å ëíçÅâë éçëíÉÇ Ñ~ääë áå Éìêç íÉêãë áå nQI ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãáåÖ íÜÉáê ÖäçÄ~ä
éÉÉêë ~ãáÇ ÅçåÅÉêåë çîÉê íÜÉ êÉÖáçåÛë Çáë~ééçáåíáåÖ ÉÅçåçãáÅ ÉåîáêçåãÉåíK qÜÉ cqpb tçêäÇ
bìêçéÉ EÉñ rhF íçí~ä êÉíìêå áåÇÉñ ëÜÉÇ MKNB áå Éìêç íÉêãë ~åÇ MKRB áå ëíÉêäáåÖ íÉêãë

ÿ ^äíÜçìÖÜ dÉêã~åó ~îçáÇÉÇ ~ êÉíìêå íç êÉÅÉëëáçå ïáíÜ nP ÖêçïíÜ çÑ MKPBI ÅçåÅÉêåë çîÉê íÜÉ
Éñéçêí çìíäççâ íç ÅêáëáëJÜáí oìëëá~ ÇÉÉéÉåÉÇ ~ë çáä éêáÅÉë ~åÇ íÜÉ êçìÄäÉ ëäìãéÉÇK bìêç òçåÉ
áåÑä~íáçå ÑÉää íç àìëí MKPB ïÜáäÉ íÜÉ åÉ~ê RMB ëäáÇÉ áå çáä éêáÅÉë ÇìêáåÖ íÜÉ ëÉÅçåÇ Ü~äÑ çÑ íÜÉ
óÉ~ê ê~áëÉÇ ÑìêíÜÉê ÅçåÅÉêåë çîÉê íÜÉ ÇÉÑä~íáçå~êó êáëâë Ñ~ÅáåÖ íÜÉ êÉÖáçå

ÿ bìêç òçåÉ ÉÅçåçãáÅ Ç~í~ ÅçåíáåìÉÇ íç Çáë~ééçáåí Ó ÇÉëéáíÉ êÉÅçêÇJäçï áåíÉêÉëí ê~íÉë Ó ~åÇ
ëéÉÅìä~íáçå ÖêÉï íÜ~í íÜÉ bìêçéÉ~å `Éåíê~ä _~åâÛë éä~ååÉÇ éêáî~íÉ ~ëëÉí êÉéìêÅÜ~ëÉ éêçÖê~ããÉ
ÅçìäÇ óÉí ãçêéÜ áåíç Ñìää èì~åíáí~íáîÉ É~ëáåÖ ëÜçìäÇ éçäáíáÅ~ä êÉëáëí~åÅÉ Ñêçã dÉêã~åó ÄÉ
çîÉêÅçãÉ

ÿ dÉêã~åóI fêÉä~åÇ ~åÇ íÜÉ kÉíÜÉêä~åÇë éÉêÑçêãÉÇ êÉä~íáîÉäó ïÉää Äìí kçêï~ó ÑÉää ëÜ~êéäóI
êÉÑäÉÅíáåÖ áíë ÜáÖÜ ÉåÉêÖó ÉñéçëìêÉK dêÉÉâ ÉèìáíáÉë ~äëç ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉÇ ~ãáÇ éçäáíáÅ~ä êáëâë
~ÜÉ~Ç çÑ íÜÉ g~åì~êó ÉäÉÅíáçåë

cqpb kloqe ^jbof`^ mof`b fkaf`bp

kloqe ^jbof`^ J pqboifkd

kloqe ^jbof`^ J alii^o lfi C d^p molar`qflk

rqfifqfbp

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a

TR

UM

UR

VM

VR

NMM

NMR

NNM

NNR

NOM

NOR

NPM

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

cqpb brolmb Ebu rhF mof`b fkaf`bp

brolmb bu rh J pqboifkd
brolmb bu rh J brol cfk^k`f^ip

fkarpqof^ip

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a
US

UU

VM

VO

VQ

VS

VU

NMM

NMO

NMQ

NMS

NMU

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

P
a
g
e
 1

4
4



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NR

g~é~åÉëÉ bèìáíáÉë

ÿ cçääçïáåÖ ~å áåáíá~ä ëÉíÄ~Åâ çå ÖäçÄ~ä ÉÅçåçãáÅ ÖêçïíÜ ÅçåÅÉêåëI g~é~åÉëÉ ÉèìáíáÉë
ëìÄëÉèìÉåíäó ê~ääáÉÇ çå åÉïë íÜ~í íÜÉ _~åâ çÑ g~é~å ï~ë Éñé~åÇáåÖ áíë ã~ëëáîÉ ÉÅçåçãáÅ
ëíáãìäìë é~Åâ~ÖÉ

ÿ aÉëéáíÉ íÜÉ g~é~åÉëÉ ã~êâÉíÛë ãçÇÉëí Ö~áåë áå äçÅ~ä íÉêãëI ÑìêíÜÉê óÉå ïÉ~âåÉëë Éèì~íÉÇ íç
åÉÖ~íáîÉ êÉíìêåë Ñçê rp Ççää~êI ëíÉêäáåÖ ~åÇ Éìêç Ä~ëÉÇ áåîÉëíçêë

ÿ g~é~å ëäáééÉÇ Ä~Åâ áåíç êÉÅÉëëáçå ~ë íÜÉ ÉÅçåçãó Åçåíê~ÅíÉÇ Äó MKRB ÇìêáåÖ íÜÉ íÜáêÇ èì~êíÉêI
ïÉáÖÜÉÇ Äó ~ Ñ~ää áå ÄìëáåÉëë ëéÉåÇáåÖ

ÿ táíÜ ëìêîÉóë ëìÖÖÉëíáåÖ íÜ~í ÅçåÑáÇÉåÅÉ ~ãçåÖ ã~åìÑ~ÅíìêÉêë ïÉ~âÉåÉÇ áå ä~íÉ nQI ÇÉëéáíÉ íÜÉ
ïÉ~â óÉåI çéíáãáëã êÉã~áåÉÇ íÜ~í íÜÉ _~åâ çÑ g~é~åÛë Éñé~åëáçå çÑ áíë ãçåÉí~êó ëíáãìäìë
é~Åâ~ÖÉI Ñêçã �SMJTM íêáääáçå íç �UM íêáääáçå éÉê óÉ~êI ïçìäÇ ìåÇÉêéáå ÉÅçåçãáÅ ~Åíáîáíó

ÿ ^äíÜçìÖÜ mêáãÉ jáåáëíÉê ^ÄÉ ïçå ~ åÉï íÉêã ~í aÉÅÉãÄÉêÛë ëå~é ÉäÉÅíáçåëI ëçãÉ ~å~äóëíë
ëìÖÖÉëíÉÇ íÜ~í íÜÉ ëìêéêáëÉ ïÉ~âåÉëë áå íÜÉ g~é~åÉëÉ ÉÅçåçãó áë é~êíäó ÇìÉ íç ^éêáäÛë ë~äÉë í~ñ
áåÅêÉ~ëÉI ê~áëáåÖ ÇçìÄíë çîÉê íÜÉ ÑìêíÜÉê ë~äÉë í~ñ êáëÉ éä~ååÉÇ Ñçê OMNR

^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅ EÉñ g~é~åF bèìáíáÉë

ÿ qÜÉ êÉÖáçåÛë ã~êâÉíë éêçÇìÅÉÇ éçëáíáîÉ êÉíìêåë áå äçÅ~ä íÉêãë ÇìêáåÖ nQI ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãáåÖ rp
ÉèìáíáÉë Äìí çìíéÉêÑçêãáåÖ bìêçéÉ~å ã~êâÉíëK qÜÉ cqpb tçêäÇ ^ëá~Jm~ÅáÑáÅ EÉñ g~é~åF íçí~ä
êÉíìêå áåÇÉñ ÉåÇÉÇ íÜÉ èì~êíÉê NKMB ÜáÖÜÉê áå äçÅ~ä íÉêãë ~åÇ MKTB ~ÜÉ~Ç áå ëíÉêäáåÖ íÉêãë ~ë
íÜÉ rh ÅìêêÉåÅó ã~ÇÉ Ö~áåë êÉä~íáîÉ íç áíë ^ëá~å éÉÉêë

ÿ aáë~ééçáåíáåÖ ÉÅçåçãáÅ Ç~í~ Ñêçã íÜÉ ^ëá~ m~ÅáÑáÅ êÉÖáçåÛë ã~àçê ÉÅçåçãáÉë ~åÇ áåîÉëíçêëÛ
ëìÄÇìÉÇ ~ééÉíáíÉ Ñçê êáëâ ïÉáÖÜÉÇ çå ëÉåíáãÉåí íç ëçãÉ ÉñíÉåí ÇìêáåÖ nQ

ÿ e~îáåÖ Öêçïå Äó TKRB çå ~å ~ååì~äáëÉÇ Ä~ëáë áå nOI `ÜáåÉëÉ ÉÅçåçãáÅ ÖêçïíÜ ÇáééÉÇ íç
TKPB áå nPI íÜÉ ëäçïÉëí ÖêçïíÜ áå R óÉ~êëK aáë~ééçáåíáåÖ äÉîÉäë çÑ áåÇìëíêá~ä éêçÇìÅíáçåI
ëäçïáåÖ éêçéÉêíó áåîÉëíãÉåí ~åÇ ëçÑíÉê ÖêçïíÜ áå ÅêÉÇáí ïÉáÖÜÉÇ çå ÉÅçåçãáÅ ~Åíáîáíó

ÿ cçê ëíÉêäáåÖJÄ~ëÉÇ áåîÉëíçêëI `Üáå~I mÜáäáééáåÉë ~åÇ fåÇçåÉëá~ ïÉêÉ ~ãçåÖ íÜÉ ÄÉííÉêJ
éÉêÑçêãáåÖ ã~êâÉíë

ÿ j~ä~óëá~ ï~ë ~ãçåÖ íÜÉ ã~áå ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉêëI Üáí Äó ïÉ~â é~äã çáä éêáÅÉë ~Ö~áåëí íÜÉ
Ä~ÅâÇêçé çÑ Ñ~ääáåÖ ÖäçÄ~ä ÅçããçÇáíáÉë éêáÅÉëK qÜ~áä~åÇ ~åÇ hçêÉ~ ~äëç ìåÇÉêéÉêÑçêãÉÇ

cqpb g^m^k mof`b fkaf`bp

g^m^k J pqboifkd
g^m^k J vbk cfk^k`f^ip

fkarpqof^ip

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a
TR

UM

UR

VM

VR

NMM

NMR

NNM

NNR

NOM

Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

cqpb ^pf^Jm^`fcf` mof`b fkaf`bp Eil`^i obqrokpF

^pf^ m^` bu g^m^k J il`^i
^pf^ m^` bu g^m^k J pqboifkd mefifmmfkbp J il`^i

j^i^vpf^ J il`^i
Source: Thomson Reuters Datastream

g c j ^ j g g ^ p l k a
PQM

PSM

PUM

QMM

QOM

QQM

QSM

QUM

RMM

P
a
g
e

 1
4
5



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NS

^ÇÇáíáçå~ä fåÑçêã~íáçå
fåîÉëíãÉåí pÉÅíçê cìåÇ oÉíìêåë
pÉÅíçê ÑìåÇ êÉíìêåë ~êÉ Å~äÅìä~íÉÇ çå íÜÉ Ä~ëáë çÑ ÅäçëáåÖ ãáÇÇäÉJã~êâÉí éêáÅÉë ~åÇ ~êÉ Åçãé~êÉÇ ïáíÜ íÜÉ êÉäÉî~åí ã~êâÉí íçí~ä êÉíìêå áåÇÉñ áKÉK áåÅäìÇáåÖ ÄçíÜ áåÅçãÉ ~åÇ Å~éáí~äK cçê çîÉêëÉ~ë ã~êâÉíë íÜÉ ÑáÖìêÉë ~êÉ ëíÉêäáåÖ ~ÇàìëíÉÇ ~åÇ
åÉí çÑ ïáíÜÜçäÇáåÖ í~ñ ïÜÉêÉ ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉ

`çãéçëáíÉ fåÇÉñ
`çãéçëáíÉ cìåÇ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåëI ïÜáÅÜ ~ëëìãÉ ãçåíÜäó êÉÄ~ä~åÅáåÖI ~êÉ Ä~ëÉÇ çå íÜÉ mççäÉÇ cìåÇë ÅÉåíê~ä ÇáëíêáÄìíáçåI ~åÇ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåë E`^mp ïÜÉêÉ ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉF Ñçê É~ÅÜ áåîÉëíãÉåí ëÉÅíçê

_ÉåÅÜã~êâ oÉÄ~ä~åÅáåÖ
tÜÉêÉ ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉ íÜÉ ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ êÉíìêåëI ïÜáÅÜ ~ëëìãÉ éÉêáçÇáÅ êÉÄ~ä~åÅáåÖI ~êÉ Ä~ëÉÇ çå íÜÉ cìåÇÛë ÅÉåíê~ä ÇáëíêáÄìíáçå ~åÇ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåë Ñçê É~ÅÜ áåîÉëíãÉåí ëÉÅíçê

fåîÉëíãÉåí fåÅçãÉ

fåÅçãÉ áë êÉáåîÉëíÉÇ áå íÜÉ cìåÇ Ñêçã ïÜáÅÜ áí ÇÉêáîÉÇ Ñçê íÜÉ ÉñÅäìëáîÉ ÄÉåÉÑáí çÑ ìåáí ÜçäÇÉêëK fåÅçãÉ Å~å ÄÉ ïáíÜÇê~ïå çå ~ ãçåíÜäó Ä~ëáë Ñêçã íÜçëÉ ÑìåÇë áåîÉëíÉÇ ëçäÉäóLé~êíá~ääó áå rh ëÉÅìêáíáÉë ïáíÜçìí áåÅìêêáåÖ ÇÉ~äáåÖ Åçëíë

fåÇÉñJqê~ÅâáåÖ cìåÇë
qÜÉ çÄàÉÅíáîÉ çÑ É~ÅÜ cìåÇ áë íç íê~Åâ íÜÉ íçí~ä êÉíìêå çÑ íÜÉ êÉäÉî~åí ã~êâÉí áåÇÉñI ïáíÜáå ëéÉÅáÑáÉÇ íçäÉê~åÅÉë ~åÇ ~ÑíÉê ~ääçï~åÅÉ Ñçê ïáíÜÜçäÇáåÖ í~ñ ïÜÉêÉ ~ééäáÅ~ÄäÉ

iaf cìåÇë
cçê íÜÉ iá~Äáäáíó aêáîÉå fåîÉëíãÉåí EiafF cìåÇëI íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåë ëÜçïå áå íÜÉ éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ í~ÄäÉë ~êÉ Ñçê Åçãé~êáëçå éìêéçëÉëK cçê íÜÉ j~íÅÜáåÖ mäìë cìåÇ ê~åÖÉI íÜÉ Åçãé~ê~íçê êÉíìêåë ~êÉ Å~äÅìä~íÉÇ ìëáåÖ íÜÉ êÉíìêå çå ~ òÉêçJ
Åçìéçå ëï~é ïáíÜ íÜÉ ë~ãÉ íÉêã íç ã~íìêáíó ~ë íÜÉ êÉäÉî~åí ã~íìêáíó ÄìÅâÉíI íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêå çå íÜÉ ìåÇÉêäóáåÖ píÉêäáåÖ iáèìáÇáíó cìåÇI ~åÇ ~ëëìãáåÖ ~ ëáãáä~ê äÉîÉä çÑ äÉîÉê~ÖÉ ~ë íÜÉ êÉäÉî~åí ã~íìêáíó ÄìÅâÉí çîÉê íÜÉ éÉêáçÇK cçê íÜÉ
fåíÉêÉëí o~íÉ eÉÇÖÉÇ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ cìåÇëI íÜÉ Åçãé~ê~íçê áë ã~ÇÉ ìé Ñêçã ~ Å~ëÜ êÉíìêå éäìë URB çÑ íÜÉ ÅêÉÇáí ëéêÉ~Ç êÉíìêå çå íÜÉ áåÇÉñK cçê íÜÉ _ÉííÉê _çåÇë ê~åÖÉ íÜÉ Åçãé~ê~íçê êÉíìêåë ëÜçïå áå íÜÉ éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ í~ÄäÉë ÅçãÄáåÉ
íÜÉ j~íÅÜáåÖ cìåÇ Åçãé~ê~íçê ~åÇ íÜÉ fåíÉêÉëí o~íÉ eÉÇÖÉÇ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ cìåÇ Åçãé~ê~íçê áå íÜÉ ~ééêçéêá~íÉ ïÉáÖÜíë

j~å~ÖÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ
qÜÉ çÄàÉÅíáîÉ çÑ íÜÉ j~å~ÖÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ áë íç ÉñÅÉÉÇ íÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêå çÑ íÜÉ ^obcLfma rh nì~êíÉêäó ^ää _~ä~åÅÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇë fåÇÉñ çîÉê íÜêÉÉ ~åÇ ÑáîÉ óÉ~ê éÉêáçÇëK qÜÉ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêåëI ïÜáÅÜ ~êÉ ÚkÉí çÑ cÉÉëÛ ~êÉ ëÜçïå áå íÜÉ
ÚcìåÇ ^Åíáîáíó ~åÇ mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉÛ ëÉÅíáçå çÑ íÜÉ êÉéçêí íçÖÉíÜÉê ïáíÜ íÜÉ ~Åíáîáíó ~åÇ ÇáëíêáÄìíáçå çÑ íÜÉ j~å~ÖÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇK cçê ÜáëíçêáÅ êÉéçêíáåÖ éìêéçëÉëI íÜÉ ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ áåÇÉñ Çáëéä~óÉÇ áå íÜÉ ÚmÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ çÑ fåîÉëíÉÇ cìåÇë Ó
qáãÉ tÉáÖÜíÉÇ oÉíìêåëÛ í~ÄäÉ áë ~ ÅçãéçëáíÉ çÑ íÜÉ _çkvj `^mp mççäÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ fåÇÉñ Ñçê éÉêáçÇë íç PN j~êÅÜ OMNQI ÅÜ~áåJäáåâÉÇ íç íÜÉ ^obcLfma rh nì~êíÉêäó ^ää _~ä~åÅÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇë fåÇÉñ íÜÉêÉ~ÑíÉêK mêáçê íç PN j~êÅÜ
OMNQ íÜÉ cìåÇÛë ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ ï~ë íÜÉ _çkvj `^mp mççäÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ k^s jÉÇá~åK qÜÉ _çkvj `^mp mççäÉÇ mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ fåÇÉñ áë ìëÉÇ ~ë ~ éêçñó íç ~ääçï íÜÉ ÅÜ~áåJäáåâáåÖ çÑ êÉíìêåëK ^ë íÜÉ åÉï ^obcLfma rh nì~êíÉêäó
mêçéÉêíó ^ää _~ä~åÅÉÇ cìåÇë ÄÉåÅÜã~êâ áåÇÉñ êÉíìêå áë éìÄäáëÜÉÇ çå ~ èì~êíÉêäó Ä~ëáëI êÉíìêåë Ñçê éÉêáçÇë çìíëáÇÉ íÜÉ èì~êíÉê ÉåÇ éÉêáçÇ ïáää ÄÉ Ä~ëÉÇ çå íÜÉ ãçëí êÉÅÉåí ~î~áä~ÄäÉ èì~êíÉêäó êÉíìêå

pf`^s cìåÇë
cçê mj` EmÉåëáçåë j~å~ÖÉãÉåí `çãé~åóF cìåÇë áåîÉëíÉÇ áå ~ pf`^s EpçÅá¨í¨ ÇÛáåîÉëíáëëÉãÉåí ¶ `~éáí~ä s~êá~ÄäÉF ëìÄJÑìåÇ Ñçê ïÜáÅÜ ìåáí éêáÅÉë ~êÉ èìçíÉÇ ìëáåÖ ëáåÖäÉ ëïáåÖáåÖ éêáÅÉ ãÉíÜçÇçäçÖóI íÜÉ mj` ÄáÇI ãáÇ ~åÇ çÑÑÉê éêáÅÉë
E~åÇ íÜÉ êÉëìäí~åí î~äì~íáçåë çÑ ÅäáÉåí ÜçäÇáåÖëF ïáää ÄÉ áÇÉåíáÅ~äK mÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ áë Ä~ëÉÇ çå íÜÉ íÜÉçêÉíáÅ~ä pf`^s ãáÇ éêáÅÉK s~äì~íáçåë ~êÉ Ä~ëÉÇ çå íÜÉ ~Åíì~ä ÇÉ~äáåÖ éêáÅÉ

cìåÇ k~ãÉ `Ü~åÖÉ
táíÜ ÉÑÑÉÅí Ñêçã O g~åì~êó OMNR íÜÉ ÑçääçïáåÖ ÑìåÇë ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇW
mc pÉÅíáçå v^^dX Wbìêç iáèìáÇáíó EOMNOF cìåÇÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ WpíÉêäáåÖ iáèìáÇáíó Ebìêç eÉÇÖÉÇF cìåÇÒI mc pÉÅíáçå v^^`X Wbìêç iáèìáÇáíó EOMNOF cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ WpíÉêäáåÖ iáèìáÇáíó Ebìêç eÉÇÖÉÇF
cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒI mc pÉÅíáçå v^^eX Wbìêç iáèìáÇáíó EOMNOF cìåÇ EëÅÜÉãÉ C áåîÉëíãÉåí ÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ WpíÉêäáåÖ iáèìáÇáíó Ebìêç eÉÇÖÉÇF cìåÇ EëÅÜÉãÉ C áåîÉëíãÉåí ÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒK qÜÉëÉ å~ãÉ
ÅÜ~åÖÉë ~êÉ ÄÉáåÖ áãéäÉãÉåíÉÇ íç ãçêÉ ~ÅÅìê~íÉäó êÉÑäÉÅí íÜÉ mc pÉÅíáçåÛë ìåÇÉêäóáåÖ áåîÉëíãÉåí ÑìåÇ ïÜáÅÜ áë íÜÉ idfj píÉêäáåÖ iáèìáÇáíó cìåÇK cçê ÑìêíÜÉê áåÑçêã~íáçå éäÉ~ëÉ êÉÑÉê íç íÜÉ aÉëÅêáéíáçå çÑ cìåÇëK

mc pÉÅíáçå epX WjáÇÇäÉ b~ëíL^ÑêáÅ~ bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cìåÇÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ WjáÇÇäÉ b~ëíL^ÑêáÅ~ aÉîÉäçéÉÇ bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cìåÇÒI mc pÉÅíáçå qoX WjáÇÇäÉ b~ëíL^ÑêáÅ~ bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cìåÇ Ó d_m ÅìêêÉåÅó ÜÉÇÖÉÇÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ
WjáÇÇäÉ b~ëíL^ÑêáÅ~ aÉîÉäçéÉÇ bèìáíó fåÇÉñ cìåÇ Ó d_m ÅìêêÉåÅó ÜÉÇÖÉÇÒK qÜÉëÉ å~ãÉ ÅÜ~åÖÉë ~êÉ ÄÉáåÖ áãéäÉãÉåíÉÇ íç ÄÉííÉê êÉÑäÉÅí íÜÉ áåîÉëíãÉåí çÄàÉÅíáîÉ çÑ íÜÉ ÑìåÇ ~åÇ íÜÉ ÅêáíÉêá~ Ñçê áåÅäìëáçå áå íÜÉ áåÇÉñK

mc pÉÅíáçå ^^_`X WmêçéÉêíó råáí qêìëí Emj`FÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ íÜÉ Wrh mêçéÉêíó cìåÇ Em^fcFÒK qÜÉ å~ãÉ ÅÜ~åÖÉ áë ÄÉáåÖ áãéäÉãÉåíÉÇ ÑçääçïáåÖ íÜÉ êÉÅÉåí ÅçåîÉêëáçå çÑ íÜÉ îÉÜáÅäÉ ïáíÜáå ïÜáÅÜ íÜÉ mc pÉÅíáçåÛë ìåÇÉêäóáåÖ
áåîÉëíãÉåí áë ÜÉäÇ Ñêçã ~ éêçéÉêíó ~ìíÜçêáëÉÇ råáí qêìëí áåíç ~ mêçéÉêíó ^ìíÜçêáëÉÇ fåîÉëíãÉåí cìåÇ Em^fcFK

mc pÉÅíáçå `p^bX W^ÅíáîÉ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ Ó lîÉê NM vÉ~ê Ó cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇ OMNNFÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ W^ÅíáîÉ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ Ó lîÉê NM vÉ~ê Ó cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒI mc pÉÅíáçå `p^aX W^ÅíáîÉ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ Ó ^ää píçÅâë Ó
cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇ OMNNFÒ ïáää ÄÉ êÉå~ãÉÇ W^ÅíáîÉ `çêéçê~íÉ _çåÇ Ó ^ää píçÅâë Ó cìåÇ EÅÜ~êÖÉë áåÅäìÇÉÇFÒK

qÜÉëÉ ÅÜ~åÖÉë Çç åçí áãé~Åí íÜÉ çÄàÉÅíáîÉë çÑ íÜÉ ~ÄçîÉ ãÉåíáçåÉÇ mc pÉÅíáçåë

P
a
g
e
 1

4
6



ilkalk _lolrde lc qltboe^jibqp mbkpflk crka iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí NT

qÜÉ cqpb rhI cqpb ^ääJtçêäÇ ~åÇ cqpbQdççÇ» áåÇáÅÉë ëÉêáÉë ~êÉ
Å~äÅìä~íÉÇ Äó cqpb fåíÉêå~íáçå~ä iáãáíÉÇ EWcqpb»ÒFK cqpb» ÇçÉë åçí
ëéçåëçêI ÉåÇçêëÉ çê éêçãçíÉ íÜÉëÉ ÑìåÇëK qÜÉ cqpb däçÄ~ä _çåÇ áåÇÉñ
ëÉêáÉë áë çéÉê~íÉÇ Äó cqpb fåíÉêå~íáçå~ä iáãáíÉÇ áå ÅçåàìåÅíáçå ïáíÜ oÉìíÉêëI
íÜÉ fåëíáíìíÉ çÑ ^Åíì~êáÉë ~åÇ íÜÉ c~Åìäíó çÑ ^Åíì~êáÉëK cqpb»I oÉìíÉêëI íÜÉ
fåëíáíìíÉ çÑ ^Åíì~êáÉë ~åÇ íÜÉ c~Åìäíó çÑ ^Åíì~êáÉë ~ÅÅÉéí åç äá~Äáäáíó áå
ÅçååÉÅíáçå ïáíÜ íÜÉ íê~ÇáåÖ çÑ ~åó éêçÇìÅíë çå íÜÉëÉ áåÇáÅÉëK

^ää ÅçéóêáÖÜí áå íÜÉ áåÇáÅÉëÛ î~äìÉë ~åÇ ÅçåëíáíìÉåí äáëíë ÄÉäçåÖ íç cqpb»K
iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí iáãáíÉÇ Ü~ë çÄí~áåÉÇ Ñìää äáÅÉåÅÉ
Ñêçã cqpb» íç ìëÉ ëìÅÜ ÅçéóêáÖÜí áå íÜÉ ÅêÉ~íáçå çÑ íÜáë éêçÇìÅíK

Wcqpb»ÒI WcqJpb∆Ò ~åÇ WcççíëáÉ∆Ò ~êÉ íê~ÇÉ ã~êâë çÑ íÜÉ içåÇçå píçÅâ
bñÅÜ~åÖÉ mäÅ ~åÇ qÜÉ cáå~åÅá~ä qáãÉë iáãáíÉÇ ~åÇ ~êÉ ìëÉÇ Äó cqpb
fåíÉêå~íáçå~ä iáãáíÉÇ EWcqpbÒF ìåÇÉê äáÅÉåÅÉK W^ääJpÜ~êÉÒI W^ääJtçêäÇÒ ~åÇ
WcqpbQdççÇ»Ò ~êÉ íê~ÇÉ ã~êâë çÑ cqpb»K

qÜÉ î~äìÉ çÑ áåîÉëíãÉåíë ~åÇ ~åó áåÅçãÉ Ñêçã íÜÉã ïáää ÑäìÅíì~íÉ ~åÇ áë åçí
Öì~ê~åíÉÉÇ EíÜáë ã~ó é~êíäó ÄÉ ÇìÉ íç ÉñÅÜ~åÖÉ ê~íÉ ÑäìÅíì~íáçåëFK

m~ëí éÉêÑçêã~åÅÉ áë åç Öì~ê~åíÉÉ çÑ ÑìíìêÉ êÉëìäíëK

råäÉëë çíÜÉêïáëÉ ëí~íÉÇI íÜÉ ëçìêÅÉ çÑ ~ää áåÑçêã~íáçå ïáíÜáå íÜáë ÇçÅìãÉåí áë
iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí iíÇK

^åó ÑçêÉÅ~ëíë çê çéáåáçåë ~êÉ iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí iíÇDë
çïå ~åÇ áí ã~ó çê ã~ó åçí Ü~îÉ ~ÅíÉÇ çå íÜÉãI íÜÉó ~êÉ ~ë ~í íÜÉ Ç~íÉ çÑ íÜáë
ÇçÅìãÉåí ~åÇ ~êÉ ëìÄàÉÅí íç ÅÜ~åÖÉK

qÜÉ áåÑçêã~íáçå áë éêçîáÇÉÇ W~ë áëÒ ~åÇ W~ë ~î~áä~ÄäÉÒ ~åÇ áë ìëÉÇ ~í íÜÉ
êÉÅáéáÉåíÛë çïå êáëâK råÇÉê åç ÅáêÅìãëí~åÅÉë ëÜçìäÇ íÜÉ fåÑçêã~íáçå ÄÉ
ÅçåëíêìÉÇ ~ëW EáF äÉÖ~ä çê áåîÉëíãÉåí ~ÇîáÅÉX EááF ~å ÉåÇçêëÉãÉåí çê
êÉÅçããÉåÇ~íáçå íç áåîÉëí áå ~ Ñáå~åÅá~ä éêçÇìÅí çê ëÉêîáÅÉX çê EáááF ~å çÑÑÉê íç
ëÉääI çê ~ ëçäáÅáí~íáçå çÑ ~å çÑÑÉê íç éìêÅÜ~ëÉI ~åó ëÉÅìêáíáÉë çê çíÜÉê Ñáå~åÅá~ä
áåëíêìãÉåíëK

iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí iáãáíÉÇ éêçîáÇÉë áåîÉëíãÉåí ëÉêîáÅÉë
íç iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä ^ëëìê~åÅÉ EmÉåëáçåë j~å~ÖÉãÉåíF iáãáíÉÇI íÜÉ çéÉê~íáåÖ
Åçãé~åó Ñçê íÜÉ j~å~ÖÉÇ cìåÇëK

cçê ìåáí äáåâÉÇ äáÑÉ éçäáÅáÉëK

fëëìÉÇ Äó iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä ^ëëìê~åÅÉ EmÉåëáçåë j~å~ÖÉãÉåíF iíÇK
oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ lÑÑáÅÉW
låÉ `çäÉã~å píêÉÉí
içåÇçå
b`Oo R^^

oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ áå båÖä~åÇ ~åÇ t~äÉëK
oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ kçK MNMMSNNOK

^ìíÜçêáëÉÇ Äó íÜÉ mêìÇÉåíá~ä oÉÖìä~íáçå ^ìíÜçêáíó ~åÇ êÉÖìä~íÉÇ Äó íÜÉ
cáå~åÅá~ä `çåÇìÅí ^ìíÜçêáíó ~åÇ íÜÉ mêìÇÉåíá~ä oÉÖìä~íáçå ^ìíÜçêáíó
cáêã oÉÖìä~íçêó oÉÑÉêÉåÅÉ kìãÄÉê OMOOMOK

cçê ëÉÖêÉÖ~íÉÇ ã~åÇ~íÉëK

fëëìÉÇ Äó iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí iíÇK
oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ lÑÑáÅÉW
låÉ `çäÉã~å píêÉÉí
içåÇçå
b`Oo R^^

oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ áå båÖä~åÇ ~åÇ t~äÉëK
oÉÖáëíÉêÉÇ kçK MOMVNUVQK

^ìíÜçêáëÉÇ ~åÇ oÉÖìä~íÉÇ Äó íÜÉ cáå~åÅá~ä `çåÇìÅí ^ìíÜçêáíóK
cáêã oÉÖìä~íçêó oÉÑÉêÉåÅÉ kìãÄÉê NNVOTOK

räíáã~íÉ ÜçäÇáåÖ Åçãé~åó J iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä dêçìé éäÅK

iÉÖ~ä C dÉåÉê~ä fåîÉëíãÉåí j~å~ÖÉãÉåí ÇçÉë åçí éêçîáÇÉ ~ÇîáÅÉ çå íÜÉ ëìáí~Äáäáíó çÑ áíë éêçÇìÅíë çê ëÉêîáÅÉë Ñçê éÉåëáçå ÑìåÇ ÅäáÉåíë

P
a
g
e

 1
4
7



P
a
g
e
 1

4
8

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS PENSION

FUND

REPORT TO

31 DECEMBER 2014

Alex Lennard

Investment Director

Tel +44 (0)20 7963 8103

alennard@ruffer.co.uk  

Ian Rees

Investment Associate

Tel +44 (0)20 7963 8052

irees@ruffer.co.uk  

Tania McGhee

Investment Assistant

Tel +44 (0)20 7963 8057

tmcghee@ruffer.co.uk

 

© Ruffer LLP 2015 This document is intended for private circulation to professional clients and their advisers only in the United Kingdom. Ruffer 
LLP is a limited liability partnership, registered in England with registration number OC305288. The firm’s principal place of business and 
registered office is 80 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5JL. Ruffer LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

 

Page 149



 

 

PERIOD UNDER REVIEW 30 SEPTEMBER 2014 – 31 DECEMBER 2014
 

Portfolio value  £48,290,168

Performance (net of fees) to 31 December % 

3 months +4.2

12 months  +6.3 

Since inception (28 February 2011) +20.7 

Summary 

The fourth quarter of 2014 was nothing if not eventful. October’s ‘flash crash’ briefly took equities down 
7% from their September highs, while that month also witnessed the end of quantitative easing (QE) in the 
US, and a surprise expansion of Japanese QE. Elsewhere oil prices, as measured by Brent crude, slumped 
by 40%, ending the quarter at $57 per barrel, driving the rouble down over 30% against the US dollar. 
Eurozone risks returned in the form of the failure to elect a new Greek president, meaning an early general 
election in January, although there was a partial offset as hopes rose of full-blown QE from the ECB. 
Further afield Chinese equities surged by 37% as the authorities gave extra stimulus to the equity market 
with rate cuts. 

Against this background the portfolio performed very encouragingly, rising by nearly 4%, and taking the 
gain for the year to just over 6%, a reasonably pleasing outcome given the significant variation in market 
returns. Our option positions helped us weather October’s storm, while the promise of further low inflation 
readings, via weak commodity prices, caused government nominal and real bond yields to fall. Perhaps 
slightly paradoxically this produced strong gains in the portfolio’s UK index-linked stocks, especially the 
longer-dated issues. Other helpful developments were further strength in the US dollar and the continued 
rehabilitation of Japanese equities, which rose by 6% in yen. 

Factors that helped performance 

UK index-linked bonds Continued low inflation readings, collapsing commodity prices, further 
Japanese QE and hopes of full-blown eurozone QE all drove global yields lower, thus raising bond prices. 
The quest for duration drove the 2062 UK index-linked bond up 36% during the year. 

US dollar The end of QE from the US Federal Reserve, and a final estimate of 5% annualised GDP 
growth for the US in Q3 2014 drove the US dollar higher against all major currencies. 

China Life Chinese equities rose strongly as investors took heart from the authorities’ measures aimed 
at liberalising financial markets and diverting savings towards financial assets. 

Factors that hurt performance 

Gold and gold equities The gold price was adversely impacted both by the sell-off in commodities and 
the rise in the US dollar. 

Oil and gas equities With the oil price slumping 40% in US dollar terms the portfolio’s small positions 
in oil and gas equities had a negative impact. 

Summary performance attribution 

Five largest positive contributions % Five largest negative contributions %

UK index-linked bonds  +1.7  Gold and gold equities -0.3

US dollar +1.1  Options -0.1

China Life Insurance   +0.3  BP -0.1

Oracle  +0.2  Canadian Natural Resources -0.1

Texas Instruments  +0.1  Qualcomm -0.1

  

Page 150



 

 

CURRENT INVESTMENT STRATEGY

As Jonathan Ruffer explains in his investment review below, the world’s central banks have reached a 
crossroads in terms of policy. Despite six years of rock-bottom interest rates, and large-scale ‘money 
printing’ via quantitative easing (QE), the world’s economies have not reached escape velocity. In the 
erstwhile language of British Rail, RIP, the authorities have created the wrong sort of money, ‘voucher 
money,’ exchangeable and usable by financial institutions but not available for spending by the general 
public. In the desperate desire for growth such extraordinary measures might become even more 
extraordinary, with fiscal stimulation in the form of tax cuts or government spending. We thus remain 
utterly convinced of the need to retain our inflation-linked bonds, despite their egregious valuations and 
recent very strong gains.  

Some might argue that the asset allocation of our portfolios has recently exhibited few significant changes. 
First off we find succour in inverting Keynes’s observation, namely that the facts have not changed 
sufficiently for us to change our minds. We have dealt above with the need to retain inflation protection. 
Elsewhere Japan remains our most favoured equity market, a belief spurred on by the expansion of Japan’s 
QE programme announced at the end of October, Prime Minister Abe’s convincing victory in the snap 
election of December, and enhanced competitiveness via the falling yen. There have nonetheless been other 
changes. We took some profits on our US dollar exposure in November, but have retained a position of 
around 20%; while the US currency risks becoming a crowded trade, we feel this position might give us 
two ways to benefit, either from safe haven demand, or stronger relative US growth. During the quarter we 
added to Chinese equities and purchased eBay, a further representative of ‘old technology’. 

Lest this seem too pat, clear and present risks abound. The investment review highlights the benign 
economic effects of the collapsing oil price; it equally points out the malign financial risks in terms of the 
exposure of high yield debt markets to the energy sector. In this and other contexts the US Federal Reserve 
has recently been voicing concerns over the risk of dislocation from a lack of liquidity in certain pockets of 
the financial system. Elsewhere this month’s Greek election has the potential to set up another high stakes 
arm-wrestling contest between eurozone creditors and debtors. Combined with an equity bull market now 
almost six years old, these factors emphasise the need to keep our primary aim of capital preservation firmly 
in view. 

Asset allocation  Currency allocation 

 

 

  

Japan 

equities

19%

North 

America 

equities

12%

Asia 

ex-Japan 

equities

3%UK 

equities

10%Europe 

equities

4%

Illiquid 

strategies

2%

Gold and 

gold 

equities

4%

Cash

6%

Long-dated 

index-linked 

gilts

11%

Non-UK 

index-

linked

19%

Index-

linked gilts

10% US dollar

20%

Gold

4%

Yen

3%

Other

4%

Sterling

69%

Page 151



 

 

INVESTMENT REVIEW

 
The last year has been interesting in a number of ways. We have seen, at uncomfortably close hand, two of the 
Four Horsemen of the Apocalypse. The outbreak of Ebola has reminded us that disease has been a greater killer 
than war: (my 1912 manual of military hygiene tells me that in the 1895 Madagascar campaign, 5,600 people 
died from disease, as against seven killed in action). The Ukraine shows that Putin’s style of leadership has a 
long pedigree. Plucky North Korea illustrates the ‘woodlouse which bites’ phenomenon – objects of fun which 
need to be taken seriously. Our prediction for 2015? Don’t hold your breath for a film called ’The Interview II’. 
The horse named ‘famine’ was held at bay this year – commodity prices slumped. 

Commodity prices illustrated the relentless power of the deflationary conditions which are as strong as ever – 
and which, indeed, have gathered strength in 2014. There is now an articulated fear that the inflation rate, which 
has been dropping towards the zero level, might go negative, representing real deflation. Those who control 
monetary policy around the world are genuinely fearful that this deflationary force is unrelenting. Before 
addressing this interesting question, let me deal with an inevitable question – are we admitting that Ruffer have 
made a wrong call by predicting a coming inflation, and owning long dated inflation-linked bonds? The second 
part is best dealt with arithmetically – the longest such bond in the UK is up by 50 per cent in 2014, and the US 
equivalent (which we also own) is up by around 30 per cent. Both were comfortably ahead of the Portuguese 
bond market – the ‘best’ bond market in the world. We also held gold bullion and gold shares to protect the 
portfolios from deflation – both bad investments, notwithstanding the deflationary conditions. Investment is not 
as straightforward as it looks! 

When the central authorities think of deflation, they think primarily of America in the 1930s, and, less often, of 

Japan in the 1990s; it is, rather, the 1880s which provide the more authoritative parallel. The years 1873 to 1896 

saw consistently falling prices, low profitability, low wages, fullish employment, and a world of opportunity to 

all; it was the period when Andrew Carnegie became the richest man the world has ever seen – a phenomenon 

one would intuitively associate with boom conditions. It was a world of white bread for all, of sugar in the 

workman’s tea. Its key feature was ‘winner takes all’ – in the 1880s, changing technologies saw the Western 

hemisphere’s sugar-refining industry move no less than five times, ending up in Puerto Rico. The earlier 

iterations were left with almost modern plants, scarcely depreciated – but utterly useless. When the winds of 

change blow, they can destabilise even the most conservative of business models: a graphic example is food-

retailing in the UK. When a hitherto profitable model breaks down, the ramifications are wide; the retailers try 

to protect themselves by squeezing suppliers – it is estimated that some 30 per cent are underwater, including 

the whole of the milk producing industry, where prices are running at less than the cost of production. 

Its mischief stretches out into real estate – who would regard a 25 year upwards only rent on a Tesco warehouse 

with quite the same benign complacency as in days gone by? Aldi and Lidl may look like giant-killers, but they 

are entering an arena inherently compromised in terms of overall profitability – the very hallmark of 1880s-

style deflation. 

More recently, the world of central-bank economists has made a series of wrong calls – the humiliating thing 

for them is that it hasn’t really mattered. There was an assumption that economies could be declared robust 

again when unemployment fell; when Mark Carney, the new Governor of the Bank of England, drew his 

inaugural line in the sand as to when interest rates would rise, the employment figures on which he had hung 

his cap immediately signalled ‘time for a rise’. He wisely retracted his position on this. There were misgivings, 

though – perhaps interest rates would be held low too long, and inflation would erupt? But no, the inflation rate 

has continued down. This accounts for the rather odd situation of the fall in the oil price being treated as a 

solemn warning of deflation – when it was obvious to every cab driver and shoe-shine boy that this was manna 

from heaven to all except those in the oil industry.  

This is the background character of the world in which we live. One last aspect remains to be considered; it 

explains why the authorities have been seemingly powerless to combat these elemental deflationary forces. It is 

clear that quantitative easing (QE) is not enough to stop mother nature – and the effect on government balance 

sheets has been sufficiently damaging to bring this money-creating initiative to a halt. Why hasn’t it reversed 

the primary dynamic, even in Japan, where the target of doubling the money supply, accompanied by a sharp 

fall in the yen’s value, has not worked? The answer in layman’s language is that QE did not create fully-effective 

money, so much as vouchers which were only valid in the financial system. It did a great job in improving 

the finances of the banking system, but it did not go further than that, because the financial institutions did not 

remit it further – into the real world of corporations and consumers. It is partly a result of that ‘winner take all’ 

dynamic that we have already visited – corporations are not at all sure that they would be the winner in the 

Page 152



 

 

 

present climate, so are disinclined to borrow. Bank regulators, ruthlessly pursuing the problems of yesteryear, 

have reinforced this tendency by making it more expensive for banks to take risks on their balance sheets. In 

times of stability, this shows itself in subdued borrowing figures; if and when unstable markets appear, there 

will be an alarming lack of liquidity in the system, since the natural counterparties to frightened sellers are 

market makers accommodating them, and the banks have curtailed the size of their books. As things stand, no 

weapons have been fired against this deflation – but these weapons exist, and we believe that they will be used, 

early in 2015 in Japan. When it is established as effective, it will be used elsewhere – and the inflation we wait 

for will have arrived.  

To repeat, quantitative easing is a voucher, and not money – and, crucially, it is not available to consumers, who 

alone are capable of expanding the stock of money enough to create a rise in prices. The insight is to see that a 

drop in taxation has precisely that effect. We have seen that money to banks, coupled with an injunction to pass 

it on by way of loans does not work – the banks are ‘frit’. An increase in spending power through lower taxation 

is the way to achieve it. (Parenthetically, the drop in the price of oil might just have a similar multiplier, and end 

up as an inflationary force.) Governments are reluctant to do this, because through their central banks, their 

balance sheets are already compromised by QE, by having transferred the burden of debt from the financial 

sector to themselves. Economists have coined a word for extra borrowing without any balancing factor – they 

call it ‘monetising’ the debt. It’s a pretty uninteresting word, combining sleep inducement and opacity, but it’s 

a dog whistle in such circles for rampant inflation. 

We have an almost comical situation; the forces of deflation are seemingly irresistible, there’s one solution, 

which mustn’t be used because it would bring about inflation. The author of this review once complimented Sir 

Geoffrey Howe on his boldness and insight in breaking the inflationary spiral with policies deemed reckless at 

the time (1979/1980). He laughed and said that everything else had been tried and had failed; it was merely 

common sense to try it. So it is today. As deflation looms larger, tax cuts increasingly look like common sense. 

And we believe that Japan is already set on a dramatic course to achieve this, with corporation tax changes 

linked to wage hikes, and a supplementary budget. There are, of course, the usual moans of ‘too little, too late,’ 

but these would continue even if the Abe government posted a bundle of banknotes to every Watanabe in Tokyo. 

Consider the facts. The country knows what a generation of falling prices does for an economy, and the strains 

it puts on a society. Shinzo Abe was elected Prime Minister in 2012, and promptly declared war on deflation, 

promising to double the supply of money in Japan in three years. He is on course to deliver that – the currency 

has dropped from 75 yen against the dollar, to 120 since then – and yet there is still no inflation: the steps, radical 

as they were, turned out to be voucher-like in their effect. Government indebtedness is at seemingly impossible 

levels, at 250 per cent of GDP – but we have reason to believe that they are considering this course of action – 

providing the soap which will transform the behaviour of the unwashed consumer. Abe called a snap election 

in December, promising a delay of the consumption tax (VAT) to be introduced next year; he won, effectively 

unopposed. His radical agenda is treated by the rest of the world as the ravings of Shakespeare’s King Lear: ‘I 

will do such things – what they are yet I do not know – but they shall be the terrors of the earth’. 

He has the mandate. From 2012, we need not doubt his sincerity of purpose, nor his bravery. 

The rest of the central banks are reluctant to think like this, in case, in case… Once it is 

seen to work, others will join. 

Inflation, deflation are both symptoms of monetary instability. One of 

the by-products of deflation is that asset-prices are driven higher, and, 

alas, the opposite is true of inflation – hence our inflation-linked 

bonds. If this analysis is right, the onset of inflation in Japan, which 

is a generation ahead of the rest of the world, will be treated with 

euphoria; the deflation dragon is slain! Time enough to worry 

about the next mischief! Japan, which missed out in the bull 

market of the last 25 years, could miss out on at least the initial 

stages of the next global bear market, which is why we favour 

that region for our equity exposure.  

 Jonathan Ruffer 

January 2015 

Past performance is not a guide to future performance. The value of investments and the income 

derived therefrom can decrease as well as increase and you may not get back the full amount originally 

invested. Ruffer LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. 

© Ruffer LLP 2015. Registered in England with Partnership No 

OC305288. 80 Victoria Street, London SW1E 5JL 

  
Page 153



 

 

 

ABOUT RUFFER

 

Who we are Ruffer is a privately-owned investment management firm. We currently manage 

over £17 billion for pension funds, charities, companies and private clients, and 

employ over 200 people, with offices in London, Edinburgh and Hong Kong. We 

have a single investment strategy that has followed the same tried and tested 

investment approach since the firm started in 1994. 

Our investment 

objectives

Our goal is to deliver consistent positive returns, regardless of how the financial 

markets perform. We define this through two investment aims 

not to lose money in any rolling twelve-month period 

to generate returns meaningfully ahead of the ‘risk-free’ alternative of placing 

money on deposit 

Since Ruffer started, this approach has produced returns ahead of equity markets, 

but with much lower volatility and risk. Over shorter time periods, if equity markets 

are rising, our returns are likely to be lower than those of equity indices, since we 

will always hold protective assets as well.  

Although these are our aims there is always the chance that we may lose money 

because of the nature of the investments involved and it is possible that individual 

constituents of the portfolio lose all their value. 

How we invest Ruffer portfolios are predominantly invested in conventional assets, such as 

equities, bonds, commodities and currencies; we also will make use of derivatives. 

Part or all of your portfolio may be invested in Ruffer in-house funds. 

At the heart of our investment approach is an asset allocation which always 

maintains a balance of ‘greed’ and ‘fear’ investments. Protective assets, such as 

bonds, should perform well in a market downturn and defend the portfolio value; 

those in growth, principally equities, should deliver good returns in favourable 

market conditions. This blend of offsetting investments reflects the prevailing risks 

and opportunities that we see in financial markets, rather than any pre-determined 

allocation. We operate without the constraints of benchmarks that institutional 

investors have historically been tied to. 

The asset allocation is fulfilled through specific stock selections. We invest only in 

companies that reflect the themes we seek to benefit from in portfolios. We never 

simply invest in a stock market index.  

Our investment 

team

Ruffer’s investment team and strategy are led by Jonathan Ruffer (Chairman) and 

Henry Maxey (Chief Executive). They are supported by a Research Team of over 

20 analysts, focussing on economic and market trends, company analysis and 

developing investment ideas. These are used by portfolio managers on the Fund 

Management Team to construct portfolios in line with the investment strategy. The 

average experience of Ruffer’s investment team is over 15 years.  

 

Page 154



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 155



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 156



  

 

 

  

  

  

   

  

 

   

  
 

Page 157



  

 

 

  
 

 

  

   

   

   

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

     

 
    

     

 

 

     

     

 

Page 158



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 159



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 160



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 161



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 163



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

   

Page 164



  

 

 

  
 

    

 

 

  

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

   

 

Page 165



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 166



  

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 F

U
N

D

C
O

L
U

M
B

U
S

 U
K

 R
E

A
L

E
S

T
A

T
E

 U
N

IT
 T

R
U

S
T

W
E

S
T

 E
N

D
 O

F
 L

O
N

D
O

N
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 U

N
IT

 T
R

U
S

T

H
E

R
M

E
S

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 U
N

IT
T

R
U

S
T

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 U
K

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

F
U

N
D

 G
B

P
 I

 I
N

C
O

M
E

(G
R

O
S

S
)

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

R
E

A
L
 I

N
C

O
M

E
 F

U
N

D
 A

U
N

IT
S

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 L
IF

E
IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 U

K
 R

E
T

A
IL

P
A

R
K

 T
R

U
S

T

B
L
A

C
K

R
O

C
K

 U
K

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 F
U

N
D

C
a

s
h

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 R
E

A
L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
F

U
N

D
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 -
C

O
N

T
IN

E
N

T
A

L
 E

U
R

O
P

E
A

N
F

U
N

D
 I

 (
I 
U

N
IT

S
)

W
E

S
T

 E
N

D
 O

F
 L

O
N

D
O

N
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 U

N
IT

 T
R

U
S

T

C
O

L
U

M
B

U
S

 U
K

 R
E

A
L

E
S

T
A

T
E

 U
N

IT
 T

R
U

S
T

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 F

U
N

D

H
E

R
M

E
S

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 U
N

IT
T

R
U

S
T

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 U
K

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

F
U

N
D

 G
B

P
 I

 I
N

C
O

M
E

(G
R

O
S

S
)

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 L
IF

E
IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

S
 U

K
 R

E
T

A
IL

P
A

R
K

 T
R

U
S

T

R
R

E
E

F
 U

K
 O

F
F

IC
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 F
U

N
D

C
a

s
h

R
O

C
K

S
P

R
IN

G
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 U
N

IT
 T

R
U

S
T

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 R
E

A
L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
F

U
N

D
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 -
C

O
N

T
IN

E
N

T
A

L
 E

U
R

O
P

E
A

N
F

U
N

D
 I

 (
I 
U

N
IT

S
)

Page 167



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

W
E

S
T

 E
N

D
 O

F
 L

O
N

D
O

N
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 U

N
IT

 T
R

U
S

T

C
O

L
U

M
B

U
S

 U
K

 R
E

A
L

E
S

T
A

T
E

 U
N

IT
 T

R
U

S
T

IN
D

U
S

T
R

IA
L

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

IN
V

E
S

T
M

E
N

T
 F

U
N

D

H
E

R
M

E
S

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 U
N

IT
T

R
U

S
T

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 U
K

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

F
U

N
D

 G
B

P
 I

 I
N

C
O

M
E

(G
R

O
S

S
)

G
R

E
S

H
A

M
 R

E
A

L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
F

U
N

D
 I

I 
L
P

R
R

E
E

F
 U

K
 O

F
F

IC
E

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 F
U

N
D

R
O

C
K

S
P

R
IN

G
 H

A
N

O
V

E
R

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 U
N

IT
 T

R
U

S
T

C
a

s
h

S
C

H
R

O
D

E
R

 R
E

A
L
 E

S
T

A
T

E
F

U
N

D
 O

F
 F

U
N

D
S

 -
C

O
N

T
IN

E
N

T
A

L
 E

U
R

O
P

E
A

N
F

U
N

D
 I

 (
I 
U

N
IT

S
)

Page 168



  

 

 

  
 

 

 

   

 

  

 

 

    

    

 

   

 

   

 

   

    

    

 

   

 

  

 

 

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

  

Page 169



  

 

 

  
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

   

  

Page 170



  

 

 

  
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

 

    

 

   

 

 

 

     

       

 

     

       

Page 171



  

 

 

  
 

  

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 172



  

 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Page 173



  

 

 

  
 

   

 

   

 

Page 174



  

 

 

  
 

    

 

  

 

  

   

   

   

   

   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 175



  

 

 

  
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

    

 

    

 

    

     

 

    

     

 

    

 

    

 

    

 

    

    

 

    

    

  

Page 176



  

 

 

  
 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

    

    

     

     

    

    

 

 

  

 

Page 177



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 178



 1 

 

COMMITTEE: 
 
Pensions 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 
24 February 2015 

CLASSIFICATION: 

 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 
Acting Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
Kevin Miles – Chief Accountant 

TITLE: 
 
Investment in London LGPS 
Collective Investment Vehicle – Joint 
Committee Meeting 17th                   
December 2014   
 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 In an attempt to reduce pension fund administration costs, the creation of a 
London wide collective investment vehicle is being created through London 
Councils.The fund would allow pension fund investments to be pooled for the 
purpose of reducing fund manager’s fees as a lower fee is charged the larger the 
investment. 

1.2  At the moment, the scheme is in its early stages of development. This report 
summarises the business of a Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee meeting on 
the 17th December 2014. 

1.3 At the meeting, a further investment of £50,000 (in two instalments of £25,000) 
was requested to cover the set up costs of the CIV, plus an element of initial 
running costs.  If the scheme is created as expected, the reduced management 
fees would more than offset these costs. 

1.4 Any decisions to transfer pension fund investments to the Collective Investment 
Vehicle would need to be approved by this committee.  The investments available 
within the Investment Vehicle would need to match the council’s investment 
strategy. 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

2.1 Members are recommended to agreethe further investment of £50,000 into the 
CIV that will be used to contribute towards the setup and initial running costs of 
the fund. 

2.2 Note the progress made to date in the creation of the CIV as outlined at the 
Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee. 

 

3. REASONS FOR DECISIONS 

3.1 Members are being asked to agree that the Council continues to participate into 
the CIV scheme as it is expected that the improved bargaining power of the larger 
scheme will mean management fees for CIV investments will be significantly lower 
for the Council’s pension scheme than at present.  All but three London Boroughs 
have agreed to participate in the scheme.  The three Boroughs that are not 
participating yet may join at a later date.  The current CIV members would need to 
decide if late investors would be asked to pay a fee for late investing.  

 

Agenda Item 4.2

Page 179



 2 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

4.1 The theory of the CIV is that fund managers will charge a lower management fee 
on pooled investments managed.  If the CIV investment proves to be a popular 
fund, then if the Tower Hamlets fund was outside the scheme it would not have 
the potential to benefit from economies of scale. 

4.2 If the Pensions Committee did not approve the further payments totalling £50,000, 
this could mean that other Councils who have contributed £50,000 will question 
this Council’s participation in the CIV. 

 

5. BACKGROUND 

 
5.1 A joint London Borough Pension Working Group initiative is looking at ways in 

which pension schemes can work together to get financial benefits and 
efficiencies of scale from joint working. 

 
5.2 A pensions working group led by London Councils launched a Collective 

investment vehicle to enable London Boroughs to participate in a scheme of joint 
pension fund investing.  It will be an Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS).  This 
scheme will require FCA (Financial Conduct Authority) approval – this approval is 
being sought.  It is currently planned that the scheme will be launched in 
February 2015, though this date may slip to later in the year.  Details of the 
proposed scheme are shown in the attached London Councils report. 

 
5.3 This work is partly in response to the Government’s review of Local Government 

Pension Schemes.  Further Government announcements may be made to 
request more joint working by councils to reduce administration costs. 

 
5.4 Tower Hamlets Council agreed to participate in the CIV at Full Council in 2014 

following recommendation by Pension Committee and Cabinet.  The Council has 
invested £1 capital in the scheme.  If the investments available are in line with 
the pension investment strategy and will offer reduced costs to the fund. So far 
the organisers are interviewing potential fund managers.  At least one of the 
pension fund managers, Legal and General is likely to be involved in the scheme 
from inception.  Northern Trust has been appointed as the fund’s custodian. 

 
5.5 In theory, the Council could move an unlimited amount of its investments into the 

scheme if they were in line with the investment strategy and offered reduced 
fees.  The Council pension scheme has around £1 billion of investments with 
annual management fees total around £2.3 million.  Investments within the fund 
are likely to be unitised fund type investments.  
 

5.6 To maximise the value of pension schemes, ways to reduce the volume of 
management fees charged to pension schemes are being explored.  This 
Collective Investment Vehicle approach has been designed by London Councils 
as a way in which similar investment types within different London Boroughs can 
be combined to benefit from smaller fee charges.  Fund manager’s fees are based 
on the size of the fund and are based on a percentage of the amount managed.  
The larger the fund, the lower the percentage fee charged.   
 

 

 

Page 180



 3 

 

6PENSIONS CIV SECTORAL JOINT COMMITTEE 

6.1    London Councils held the first Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee on 17th 
December 2014.  Councillor Harrisson attended on behalf of the Council following 
Pension Committee agreement that Cllr Harrisson was to be the Council’s first 
representative at these meetings. 

6.2 The papers for the meeting are enclosed as an appendix.  The initial business 
concerned the election of meeting Chairs, agreeing the terms of reference, an 
update on progress made in creating the CIV, a fund manager analysis of current 
London Borough funds, the procurement of managers to the CIV and the dates of 
future meetings. 

 
6.3 Terms of Reference – draft terms of reference were tabled, they are included as 

the appendix to this report). The Pensions CIV Joint Committee will meet at least 
once a year and will appoint directors, auditors, agree the Articles of Association, 
Accounts and Annual Report.  The report included the appointedMember 
representatives from each participating Borough. 

 
6.4 Background and Progress Update - So far 30 London Councils have signed up 

to participate.  Those London Boroughs who are not participating might sign up in 
future, but the terms will need to be agreed.  The scheme might also admit non 
London based Councils in the future.  If the non-participating authorities wish to 
invest in the future the terms of their admission would need to be agreed by the 
group. 

 
6.5 Governance - The governance of the scheme was outlined – the intention is that 

the wishes and needs of the Boroughs are fulfilled (probably through an 
investment committee structure featuring experts from across the Boroughs), 
however the governance arrangements will need to be practical and follow best 
practice – the operation of these will need to be determined (i.e. how many 
representatives be at participating investment managers performance review 
meetings?).  Robust systems of managementwill need to be put into place. 

 
6.5 FCA Regulated - The scheme will be a Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) 

regulated UK domiciled Authorised Contractual Scheme (ACS).  This requires 
the scheme to operate in a transparent manner and is likely to provide some 
international tax advantages (i.e. to increase recoverable tax where possible). 

 
6.6 Procurement arrangements – Counsel advice is being sought to see if 

investment manager procurement can be conducted outside the OJEU 
procurement regime.  Procurement arrangements will be critical to the operation 
of the scheme.  The final legal advice will be reported back to this committee 
once known. 

 
6.7 CIV Budget – So far, each participating Council has contributed £25,000 towards 

costs exploring the CIV proposal.  Two further contributions totalling £50,000 for 
set up and initial business as usual costs have been proposed to contribute 
towards £1.73m of costs of the scheme up to April.  At the time of writing, the 
request for the first £25,000 has been received.  Committee members expressed 
some concerns on the escalation of the costs of setting up and running the CIV, 
but the organisers commented that costs would be more than offset by 
reductions in manager fees (likely to be in excess of £2.8m per paragraph 6.9).  

Page 181



 4 

Organisers commented that investment manager fees were being negotiated 
down below those currently being charged.  This Committee is asked to approve 
the further payment of £50,000 towards the CIV. 

 
6.8 Investment Manager Review – The technical sub-group are reviewing existing 

London Borough pension fund investments to see if there are common 
investments, strategies and fund managers between funds. 

6.9 The sub-group are liaising with 14 investment managers who control over 
£14.5bn of Borough assets.  This will include Legal & General.  An initial review 
has identified up to £9.9bn of investments with eleven managers that could 
potentially be combined by the launch of the CIV.  Though still subject to 
negotiation, the management fee could on average be reduced by 20% (£2.8m 
per annum across the fund).  LBTH’s level of benefit will depend on how its 
current fee compares to the new fees proposed.There is an expectation of fund 
managers that they will publish full information on investments held to 
participating investors. 

6.10 More precise estimates of savings will be known as the technical group continue 
discussions with fund managers.   As active manager fees are higher than 
passive managers, active manager fees are likely to have savings potential.  The 
CIV committee will report back as discussions continue.  Any infrastructure 
investments will be considered later in the CIV establishment process after more 
straightforward asset mandates have been combined.  

 
6.11 Asset Services Procurement–a report outlining how the CIV was procuring a 

custodianfor the fund.  Since the meeting in December, the appointment of 
Northern Trust has been announced.  Northern Trust is an established custodian 
for Local Authority pension investments. 

 
6.12 Future meeting dates.  A list of proposed future meeting dates was circulated.  

The next meeting was planned for 25th February 2015. 
 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

7.1. The comments of the Corporate Director Resources have been incorporated into 
the report. 

 

8. LEGAL COMMENTS 

8.1 Regulation 11(3) of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and 
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 requires the Council, as an administering 
authority, to invest fund money that is not needed immediately to make payments 
from the Pensions Fund. Regulation 11(1) requires the Council to have a policy in 
relation to its investments. The investment policy must be formulated with a view –  

 (a) to the advisability of investing money in a wide variety of investments; and 

 (b) to the suitability of particular investments and types of investments. The 
Council is also required to have a Statement of Investment Principles in 
accordance with regulation 12 (1) which covers the following matters: 

 (a) the types of investment to be held; 

 (b) the balance between different types of investments; 

 (c) risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and managed; 

 (d) the expected return on investments; 

Page 182



 5 

 (e) the realisation of investments; 

 (f) the extent (if at all) to which social, environmental or ethical considerations are 
taken into account in the selection, retention and realisation of investments; 

 (g) the exercise of the rights (including voting rights) attaching to investments, if 
the authority has any such policy; and 

 (h) stock lending. 

 In accordance with Regulation 11(5), The Council is required to take proper advice 
at reasonable intervals about its investments and must consider such advice when 
taking any steps in relation to its investments. 

8.2 It is desirable for the Council to take steps to reduce the costs of administering its 
pension fund. The proposal to create a Collective Investment Vehicle appears to 
be viable way to achieve savings.  

 
8.3 When deciding whether or not to proceed with the project, the Council must have 

due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, 
the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations 
between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the 
public sector duty).   

 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

9.1 The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s budget and 
consequently any improvement in investment performance or reduction in 
management fees will reduce the contribution and increase the funds available for 
other corporate priorities. 

9.2 A viable pension scheme also represents an asset for the recruitment and 
retention of staff to deliver services to the residents. 

 

10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  

10.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication arising from 
this report. 

 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 Any form of investment inevitably involves a degree of risk. 
11.2  To minimise risk the Investment Panel attempts to achieve a diversified portfolio. 

Diversification relates to asset classes and management styles. 
 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this report. 

 

13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

13.1 The monitoring arrangement for the Pension Fund and the work of the Pension 
Fund Investment Panel should ensure that the Fund optimises the use of its 
resources in achieving the best returns for the Council and members of the Fund. 

 

 

Page 183



 6 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

Brief description of "background papers"  Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

 Pensions CIV Sectoral Joint Committee agenda papers   

 

Page 184



 1 

COMMITTEE: 
 

Pensions 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

24 February 2015 

CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Interim Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Kevin Miles –  
Chief Accountant 

TITLE: 

Tower Hamlets Pension Scheme- 
Social, Environmental and 
EthicalInvestment 
 
 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 

 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 Following a request for information at a previous committee, this report informs 
Members of the Pensions Committee of the pension fund’s approach to Socially 
Responsible Investments. 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

 Members are recommended to note the contents of the report 
 

 

3. SRE INVESTMENTS 

3.1 The pension fund’s statement of investment principles (contained within the annual 
report) includes the following statement on Social, Environmental and Ethical 
Considerations: 
 

3.2 Social, Environmental and Ethical Considerations:The Council has a fiduciary 
responsibility to obtain the best level of investment return consistent with the defined 
risk parameters as embodied in the strategic benchmark. However, the Council 
recognises that Social, Ethical and Environmental issues are factors to be taken into 
consideration in assessing investments. The investment managers have confirmed 
they pay due attention to these factors in the selection, retention and realisation of 
investments. The Investment Panel or pensions committee will monitor the 
managers’ statements and activities in this regard. 
 

3.3 As a Local Government Pension scheme (LGPS), the pension fund managers are 
aware that SRE is of particular interest to members of the pension fund.London 
Borough of Tower hamlets (LBTH) pension fund approach is to ensure managers 
consider SRE issues as part of their overall investment strategy rather than have 
separate SRE investments.   
 

3.4 The following paragraphs make reference to comments and reports fromLBTH 
pension fund main equity managers in recent months.  Excerpts of the reports are 
included in the appendix.  The full reports have been circulated to committee 
members by email to reduce the length of the printed agenda. 
 

3.5 Baillie Gifford has included a summary of their approach in their December quarter 
report.  They make reference to visits to garment factories to monitor acceptable 
working environments, they also refer to climate change and as part of the Mercer 
Climate change project, consider if companies can adapt to increased weather 
volatility. They have also supplied copies of their environmental, social and 

Agenda Item 4.3

Page 185



 2 

governance policy and their latest Corporate Governance Annual Review at the last 
committee. 
 

3.6 Legal and General have provided their “Sharing Our Views” report on their approach 
to environmental, social and governance matters.  This report covers a number of 
subjects including sustainability on areas such as mining, voting activity and 
executive pay.  They also summarise work with international corporate governance 
organisations such as the International Corporate Governance Network (ICGN) and 
the Asian Corporate Governance Association (ACGA). 
 

3.7 GMO – GMO’s investment strategy is based with less emphasis on SRE investment 
and engagement with company management, especially as pooled funds are used 
widely.  GMO do address sustainability issues as part of their decision making.  They 
vote at company meetings via a proxy voting organisation, ISS.  GMO Renewable 
Resources (GMORR), a joint venture of GMO is a signatory of UN PRI (principles for 
responsible investment), though GMO are not signatories as they will only sign up 
when they know that they can meet all of the reporting requirements. GMO’s 
investment strategy is intended to be different to that of Baillie Gifford, so where one 
manager underperforms one period, the other manager is likely to outperform (but be 
beneficial to the fund overall).  GMO act as a contrast to GMO. 
 

3.8 In addition, LBTH is a member of the Local Authority Pension Fund Forum.  This 
service highlights items of concern regarding the management of companies and 
suggests how general meeting votes should be cast.  LAPFF consider shareholder 
action to vote against boards at AGMs as a last resort, they prefer to have 
constructive dialogue with company management on issues of concern.  
 

3.9 Where companies are aware of and consider factors that affect their environment 
(not necessarily “green” environmental issues), then this demonstrates that the 
company is monitoring the potential for changes in circumstances that might require 
action to protect the company’s long term interests, so in theory provide long term 
benefits for the pension fund. 
 

3.10 At a recent “Future of LGPS” conference, Dresdner Kleinwort presented an 
environmental equity fund that concentrates on investments to supply fundamental 
services, such as water, energy and increasing food production from limited 
resources.  This kind of fund is likely to be outside the Council’s mainstream 
investment strategy, so would only warrant a relatively small investment, however the 
creation of the CIV may give scope for a number of Boroughs to each contribute a 
relatively small investment to make a larger fund.  This kind of investment is likely to 
be considered as part of a later tranche of investments once the CIV has organised 
the first batch of investment consolidations as part of its launch later this year.  
Before investment is made, there are likely to be other similar fund managers who 
will need to be considered.  Also, the same conference outlined the risk of 
Government intervention into how LGPS funds invest assets; this could limit future 
investment opportunities.   
 

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

 
 There are no specific comments arising from the recommendations in the report. 
 
 
 

Page 186



 3 

5. LEGAL COMMENTS 

 

There are no specific legal comments arising out of this report. However when 
deciding whether or not to proceed with the project, the Council must have due 
regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, 
the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations 
between persons who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the 
public sector duty).   

 

6. EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES IMPLICATIONS 

 
 There are no specific equalities considerations arising from the recommendation 

in the report. 
 

7. ANTI-POVERTY IMPLICATIONS 

 
 There are no specific anti-poverty implications arising from this report though 

SRE does consider factors such as employment conditions. 
 

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 
 There are no specific risk management implications arising from the 

recommendations in the report. 
 

9. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 

 
 There are no specific environmental decisions implications arising from this 

report; however the report considers how the pension fund approaches socially 
responsible investment so might affect future investment strategies. 

 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972 SECTION 100D (AS AMENDED) 
LIST OF “BACKGROUND PAPERS” USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS 

REPORT 
         
Brief description of “background paper”    If not supplied    
        Name and telephone   
      

Baillie Gifford Governance Summary Report 
Legal & General Sharing Our Views Report 
GMO Statement regarding ESG 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 187



Page 188

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212

This page is intentionally left blank



 

COMMITTEE: 
 
PensionsCommitte
e 

 

DATE: 
 
24 February 2015 

CLASSIFICATION: 

 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 

Acting Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
Bola Tobun– Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

TITLE: 
LGPS Governance Regulations and 
the Local Pension Board 
Establishment 

Ward(s) affected: N/A 

 
 

1. SUMMARY 

 

1.1 The report explains the planned changes to the governance of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) as a result of the public 
Service Pensions Act 2013 AND Regulations issued on 28 January 
2015.  The main requirement is for a proposed new Local Pension 
Board to assist the Administering Authority in the running of thePension 
Fund and to monitor compliance with rules and standards. 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

  

 The Pensions Committee is recommended to: 

2.1 note the report; 

2.2 note that the monitoring officer will make the necessary changes to the 
constitution that the PensionsCommittee has the delegated authority 
and power to create the Local Pension Board in accordance with the 
decision made by Full Council on 26th November 2014; and   

2.2 to approve the Local Pension Board Terms of Reference as set out at 
Appendix A of this report. 

 

3. REASONS FOR DECISIONS 

3.1 The Public Service Pensions Act 2013 gave powers to the Secretary of 
State to introduce a number of changes to the administration of the 
LGPS.One of the changes introduced is the creation of the Local 
Pension Board. 

Agenda Item 4.4

Page 213



3.2 Under Regulation 2(2) of the LGPS Regulations 2013, the Scheme 
Manager responsible for the local administration of pensions and other 
benefits payable under those Regulations is referred to as the 
“administering authority”, this function has been delegated by Full 
Council to the Pensions Committee. 

3.3 Therefore the Pension Committee has the delegated authority to 
approve the delegation of the functions of the Scheme Manager under 
Section 101 of the Local government Act 1972.  

3.4  The Pensions Committee must be aware of all governance Regulations 
for the administration of the Fund. 

 

4. BACKGROUND 

 

4.1 The Public Service Pensions Act (PSPA) 2013 provides the platform for 
a more coherent and consistent system to establish assurance that 
benefits are paid, contributions are received and the Code of Practice 
is followed in accordance with the law. 

4.2  The Department of Communities and Local government (DCLG) issued 
final LGPS Governance regulations on 28 January 2015. These 
Regulations set out the requirements to establish a Local Pension 
Board and include its establishment, function and role. 

 
4.3 In the final Regulations, there are further changes to the initial draft 

regulations circulated at the last meeting. The changes are as follows: 
 

• Removal of the requirement for ‘relevant experience’ for those 
individuals to be appointed to a local pension board as a member or 
employer representative: There is now no requirement in the 
regulations (either regulation 107(2)(a) or 107(2)(b)) for a person 
who is appointed to a Board to have relevant experience. The 
requirement for capacity is retained. 

• Voting rights: New Regulation 106(7) provides that voting rights only 
apply to members of a Board who are either an employer or a 
member representative. In effect this means that ‘other members’ of 
a Board do not have voting rights. 

• Clarification that only officers or elected members of the 
administering authority relating to the local pension board are 
precluded from being members of that local pension board: 
Regulations now confirm that officers or elected members of one 
Administering Authority could be members of the Local Pension 
Board of a second Administering Authority. 

• Joint Pension Boards: New Regulation 106(3) provides for the 
establishment of a joint local pension board where the 
administration and management of a Scheme is wholly or mainly 
shared by two or more administering authorities. Approval for such 
a Board would have to be obtained from the Secretary of State. 

• Inclusion of new regulation 107(3)(b): Regulations now state that 
any elected member of the Administering Authority may only be 
appointed to the Board as either an employer or member 

Page 214



representative. This additional regulation dovetails with the new 
regulation 106(7) which restricts voting rights to employer and 
member representatives. 

• Inclusion of new regulation 107(4): This regulation provides further 
clarification on the constitution of a combined board and committee 
as provided for through regulation 106(2). 

4.4 The current published Regulations are shown as an Appendix B to this 
report. 

4.5  Consultation - A working group was established to create a feasible 
LBTH Local Pension Board.Thisgroup consists of two members of the 
Pensions Committee, officers of the Acting Corporate Director of 
Resources and the Monitoring Officer to established membership of the 
Local pension Board, frequency of meetings, delegations, roles and 
responsibilities of member’s in-line with the new Governance 
Regulations and Shadow scheme Advisory Board Guidelines. 

4.6 The terms of reference produced, is thus attached as an Appendix A to 
this report. 

 

5. LOCAL PENSION BOARD 

5.1 The Local Pension Board is established by London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets (LBTH) under regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013. 

5.2 Pension Board: Under regulation 106 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013.the Local Pension Board is responsible for 
assisting the administering authority to secure compliance with the rules 
of the scheme, and relevant legislation, and with any requirements 
imposed by the Pensions Regulator, and to ensure the effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the scheme. 

5.3 All persons appointed to the Board will adhere to the Committee’s Code 
of Conduct. The Board's role, members, and working arrangements are 
in the Terms of Reference included as an Appendix to this report. 

5.4 Powers of the Pension Board: The Pension Board will exercise all its 
powers and duties in accordance with the law and its Terms of 
Reference. 

5.5 The role of the Pension Board is defined by regulation 106 (1) of the 
LGPS Regulations as being to assist London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
as Scheme Manager of the LBTH Pension Fund: 

a) to secure compliance with the LGPS Regulations and any other 
legislation relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, 
and requirements imposed in relation to the LGPS by the Pensions 
Regulator  

b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of 
the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund 

5.6  The Pension Board is to provide oversight of these matters and, 
accordingly, the Pension Board is not a decision making body in relation 

Page 215



to the management of the Pension Fund. The Pension Fund’s 
management powers and responsibilities which have been, and may be, 
delegated by the Council to committees, sub-committees and officers of 
the Council, remain solely the powers and responsibilities of those 
committees, sub-committees and officers. 

5.7  In relation to ensuring the effective and efficient governance and 
administration of the Pension Fund, this means having oversight of 
whether the aims and objectives outlined within the Fund's Governance 
and Administration strategies are being achieved, having regard to any 
overriding requirements included within guidance from DCLG, the 
Scheme Advisory Board or the Pensions Regulator. 

5.8  The Pension Board will ensure that in performing itsrole it: 

• secures compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation 
relating to the governance and administration of the Scheme, and 
requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to 
the Scheme and; 

• ensures the effective and efficient governance and administration 
of the Scheme. 

5.9 The Board must provide minutes of each meeting to the following: 

• Pensions Committee, copied to the Corporate Director 
Resources, and may make reports and recommendations to the 
Pensions Committee insofar as they relate to the role of the 
Pension Board. 

5.10 In addition, an annual report of the Pension Board (as prepared by the 
Chair ofthe Pension Board), should be provided to the Lead Member for 
Resources andCorporate Director of Resources, 

5.11 In the exceptional circumstances that the Board considers that a matter 
broughtto the attention of the Pensions Committee and Corporate 
Director of Resources has not been acted upon or resolved to their 
satisfaction by thePensions Committee and/or Corporate Director of 
Resources, thePension Board will provide a report to Full Council. 

5.12 Membership: The Pensions Board consists of 7 persons made up of 
threeemployer and three member representatives in equal proportion 
and includean additional expert individual to assist in facilitating 
proceedings. The quorum is 3.  

5.13 A substitution for any persons appointed to the Pensions Board shall 
followthe administering authority’s procedure. The term of office for a 
person appointedto the Pensions Board shall be for a period of four 
years. Nomination to the boardshall take a four-year rotation with 
member nominations received in year one andemployer nominations 
received in year three. This is to ensure a consistency ofknowledge 
within the Board and to assist with the development of knowledge 
andexperience.  

5.14 The Pensions Board are expected to meetfor a minimum of four times a 
year.Peopleappointed to the Pensions Board are expected to make 

Page 216



themselves available toattend board meetings. Persons appointed who 
fail to attend three or moremeetings will be asked to leave the Board and 
a replacement sought from theirnominating body unless there are 
exceptional reasons for their failure to attend. 

5.13 The Pension Board’s role is to carry out the duties imposed on it 
underthe scheme regulations and associated legislation, to assist the 
Pensions Committee as Scheme Manager in its management and 
administrative role. The Pension Board is not a decision-making body. 
The Pension Board is not a scrutiny function 

 

6. FINANACIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1  The Fund will be required to facilitate the operation of the new board 
and this will require additional resources. The cost will be met from the 
Fund’s own resources and it is not proposed at this time to increase the 
staffing of the Fund but for the work to be absorbed within available 
resources. 

7. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

7.1. The comments of the Acting Corporate Director of Resources are
 incorporated inthe report. 
 

8.  LEGAL COMMENTS 

8.1 As stated in the body of the report, the government has introduced wide-
ranging changes to the administration and governance of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme. The changes were introduced by the 
Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013. Amendments to the 2013 Regulations were 
introduced by the Local Government Pensions Scheme (Amendment) 
(Governance) Regulations 2015 which are due to come into force on the 
20th February 2015. The intention of the Act and the Regulations is to 
ensure that the Local Government Pension Scheme is well managed at 
both national and local levels.  

8.2 Regulations 106 makes provision for each administering authority to 
establish a local pension board to assist it to comply with its legal 
obligations relating to its pension scheme. A local authority that 
discharges its pension functions through a committee, can with the 
approval of the Secretary of State appoint the existing committee to be 
the local pension board. The regulations require the local pension board 
to be established by the 1st April 2015. Thereafter the Board should be 
operational within four months of the above date. The membership of 
the Board must consist of an equal number of employer and member 
representatives who must not be officers or councillors of the 
administering authority responsible for the discharge of local 
government pension functions .i.e. the Pensions Committee.  

8.3 The report describes the functions and role of the Pension Board and 
sets out proposed terms of reference. The Board will be responsible for 
assisting the Council (Administering Authority) to secure compliance 
with the rules of the pensions scheme, relevant legislation, and with any 

Page 217



requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator, and to ensure the 
effective and efficient governance and administration of the scheme.  

 

8.4  When carrying out its functions and in its decision making process, the 
Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct 
under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity 
and the need to foster good relations between persons who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not (the public sector duty).  

 

9. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

9.1 The employer’s contribution is a significant element of the Council’s 
budget and consequently any improvement in investment performance 
will reduce the contribution and increase the funds available for other 
corporate priorities. 

9.2 A viable pension scheme also represents an asset for the recruitment 
and retention of staff to deliver services to the residents. 

 

10. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  

10.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication 
arising from this report. 

 

11. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no major risks foreseen from the implementation of these 
regulations. The main challenges would be sourcing and training 
individuals to sit on the new Pension Board. 

11.2  The rigorous robust management of LBTH Pension Fund results in 
better quicker and more effective decision making which can lead to 
better Fund performance and reduction in the contribution required from 
the Council towards the Fund. 

12. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 There are no crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this 
report. 

13. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

13.1 The monitoring arrangement for the Pension Fund and the work of the 
Pension Committee should ensure that the Fund optimises the use of its 
resources in achieving the best returns for the Council and members of 
the Fund. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 

LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 
Brief description of "background papers" 
 

 Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

 
 

Bola Tobun Investment&Treasury 
Manager x4733 

 

Page 218



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

LOCAL PENSION BOARD OF LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Introduction 

1. This document sets out the terms of reference of the Local Pension Board of 
[LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS] (the 'Administering Authority') 
a scheme manager as defined under Section 4 of the Public Service Pensions 
Act 2013. The Local Pension Board (hereafter referred to as 'the Board') is 
established in accordance with Section 5 of that Act and under regulation 106 
of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended).  

2. The Board is established by the Administering Authority and operates 
independently of the Committee. Relevant information about its creation and 
operation are contained in these Terms of Reference. 

3. The Board is not a committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 and therefore no general duties, responsibilities or 
powers assigned to such committees or to any sub-committees or officers 
under the constitution, standing orders or scheme of delegation of the 
Administering Authority apply to the Board unless expressly included in this 
document.  

4. Except where approval has been granted under regulation 106(2) of the 
Regulations the Board shall be constituted separately from any committee or 
sub-committee constituted under Section 101 of the Local Government Act 
1972 with delegated authority to execute the function of the Administering 
Authority. 

Interpretation 

5. The following terms have the meanings as outlined below: 

‘the Act’ The Public Service Pensions Act 2013. 

‘the Code’ means the Pension Regulator’s Code of Practice 
No 14 governance and administration of public 
service pension schemes. 

   
'the Committee'  means the committee who has delegated decision 

making powers for the Fund in accordance with 
Section 101 of the Local Government Act 1972 
(i.e. the Pensions Committee at LBTH).  

'the Fund' means the Fund managed and administered by 
the Administering Authority.  

'the Guidance' means the guidance on the creation and operation 
of local pension boards issued by the Shadow 
Scheme Advisory Board.  

Page 219



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

'the Regulations'  means the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013 (as amended from time to time), 
the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Transitional Provisions, Savings and Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 (as amended from time to time) 
including any earlier regulations as defined in 
these regulations to the extent they remain 
applicable and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2009 (as amended from time to time). 

'Relevant legislation'  means relevant overriding legislation as well as the 
Pension Regulator's Codes of Practice as they 
apply to the Administering Authority and the Board 
notwithstanding that the Codes of Practice are not 
legislation.  

'the Scheme'   means the Local Government Pension Scheme in 
    England and Wales. 

Statement of purpose 

6. The purpose of the Board is to assist1 the Administering Authority in its role as 
a scheme manager of the Scheme. Such assistance is to: 

(a) secure compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to 
the governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements 
imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme and; 

(b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the 
Scheme. 

Duties of the Board 

7. The Board should at all times act in a reasonable manner in the conduct of its 
purpose. In support of this duty Board members should be subject to and 
abide by the code of conduct for Board members2.  

Establishment 

The Board is established on [01 APRIL 2014] subsequent to approval by [FULL 
COUNCIL] on [26 NOVEMBER 2014]. (subject to the agreement of the Pensions 
Committee on 24 February 2015).  

���������������������������������������� �������������������
1
 Please see paragraph 3.28 of the Guidance for more information on what assisting the 

Administering Authority means. 
2
 See paragraphs 7.9 to 7.11 of the Guidance for more information on a Code of Conduct for Boards.  

Page 220



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

8. As stated above, the Pensions Board is not explicitly bound by the rules 
governing Committees established under Section 101 of the Local 
Government Act 1972, however, for consistency and best practice, the 
Pensions Board will, where practicable and subject to specific rules set out in 
these Terms of Reference, operate in the same way as the Council’s other 
Committees as set out in the Constitution. This includes: 

• Rules 6 - 10, 17.3, 17.6 and 18 to 25 of the Council Procedure Rules 
(Part 4 – Rules of Procedures) relating to : 

o Notice and summons to meetings 
o Chair of meeting (except in relation to casting votes) 
o Quorum 
o Duration of meetings 
o Cancellation of meetings 
o Voting (certain rules) 
o Minutes 
o Petitions 
o Record of Attendance 
o Exclusion of the Public 
o Members’ Conduct 
o Disturbance by Public 
o Suspension of Amendment of Council Procedure Rules

• Access to Information Procedure Rules (Part 4.2 of the Constitution) 

• Code of Conduct for Members (Part 5.1 of the Constitution) – with 
specific reference to registering and disclosing interests. 

• Members’ Allowance Scheme (Part 6 of the Constitution) – with 
particular reference to allowances and expenses payable. 

Membership 

9. The Board shall consist of [SIX] voting members, as follows: 

[THREE] Member Representatives; and  

[THREE] Employer Representatives. 

10. There shall be an equal number of Member and Employer Representatives. 
  

11. There shall also be [ONE] other representatives who is not entitled to vote.  

Member representatives 

12. Member representatives shall either be scheme members3 or have capacity to
represent scheme members of the Fund. 

13. Member representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity4 to 
attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in 
training as required.   

���������������������������������������� �������������������
�
�Active, deferred or pensioner members�

4
 See paragraphs 5.16 to 5.20 of the Guidance which outlines what 'capacity' in this context means.  

Page 221



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

14. Substitutes [SHALL] be appointed. Where appointed substitutes should be 
named and must undertake the same training as full members.  

15. A total of [THREE] member representatives shall be appointed5 from the 
following sources: 

a) [ONE] member representative shall be appointed by the recognised trade 
unions representing employees who are scheme members of the Fund. 

b) [ONE] member representative shall be appointed by [ADMITTED BODIES 
FORUM] where that body is independent of the Administering Authority and 
open to and representative of all scheme members of the Fund. 

c) [ONE] member representative shall be appointed  following a transparent 
recruitment process which should be open to all pensioners and be 
approved by the Administering Authority. 

Employer representatives 

16. Employer representatives shall be office holders or senior employees of 
employers of the Fund or have experience of representing scheme employers 
in a similar capacity. No officer or elected member of the Administering 
Authority who is responsible for the discharge of any function of the 
Administering Authority under the Regulations may serve as a member of the 
Board.  

17. Employer representatives should be able to demonstrate their capacity6 to 
attend and complete the necessary preparation for meetings and participate in 
training as required.    

18. Substitutes [SHALL] be appointed. Where appointed substitutes should be 
named and must undertake the same training as full members. 

19. A total of [THREE] employer representatives shall be appointed7 to the Board 
from the following sources: 

a) [ONE ELECTED MEMBER] employer representatives shall be appointed 
by [FULL COUNCIL] to and representative of all employers in the Fund.  

b) [ONE] employer representatives shall be appointed following a transparent 
recruitment process which should be open to all employers in the Fund and 
be approved by the Administering Authority. 

���������������������������������������� �������������������
5
 See paragraphs 5.25 to 5.28 of the Guidance for further information on the process for appointing 

member representatives.���
6
 See paragraphs 5.16 to 5.20 of the Guidance which outlines what 'capacity' in this context means. 

7
 See paragraphs 5.25 to 5.28 of the Guidance for further information on the process for appointing 

employer representatives.   

Page 222



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

c) [ONE] employer representatives shall be appointed by the Administering 
Authority where all employers will have been asked to submit their interest 
in undertaking the role of employer representative on the Board.  

Other members8

20. [ONE] other member shall be appointed to the Board by the agreement of 
both the Administering Authority and the Board to act as an Independent 
Chair.  

21. Other members do not have voting rights on the Board.  

Appointment of chair 

22. Subject to the meeting arrangements in paragraphs 35 to 37 below a chair 
shall be appointed for the Board  as set out below:

a) An independent chair to be appointed by the Administering Authority but 
shall count as an 'other' member under paragraphs 20-21 above. In this 
respect the term independent means having no pre-existing employment, 
financial or other material interest in either the Administering Authority or 
any scheme employer in the Fund or not being a member of the Fund. 

Duties of chair  

23. The chair of the Board: 

(a) Shall ensure the Board delivers its purpose as set out in these Terms of 
Reference, 

(b) Shall ensure that meetings are productive and effective and that 
opportunity is provided for the views of all members to be expressed and 
considered, and 

(c) Shall seek to reach consensus and ensure that decisions are properly 
put to a vote when it cannot be reached.  Instances of a failure to reach 
a consensus position will be recorded and published. 

Notification of appointments  

24. When appointments to the Board have been made the Administering Authority 
shall publish the name of Board members, the process followed in the 
appointment together with the way in which the appointments support the 
effective delivery of the purpose of the Board. 

Terms of Office9  

���������������������������������������� �������������������
8
 When considering whether to have other members on the Board regard should be given to the 

advice provided in paragraphs 5.21 to 5.24 of the Guidance. 

Page 223



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

25. The term of office for Board members is [FOUR] years.  

26. Extensions to terms of office may be made by the Administering Authority with 
the agreement of the Board.     

27. A Board member may be appointed for further terms of office using the 
methods set out in paragraphs 15 and 19. 

28. Board membership may be terminated prior to the end of the term of office 
due to: 

(a) A member representative appointed on the basis of their membership of 
the scheme no longer being a scheme member in the Fund10. 

(b) A member representative no longer being a scheme member or a 
representative of the body on which their appointment relied. 

(c) An employer representative no longer holding the office or employment 
or being a member of the body on which their appointment relied. 

(d) A Board member no longer being able to demonstrate to [LONDON 
BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS] their capacity to attend and prepare 
for meetings or to participate in required training. 

(e) The representative being withdrawn by the nominating body and a 
replacement identified. 

(f) A Board member has a conflict of interest which cannot be managed in 
accordance with the Board's conflict policy. 

(g) A Board member who is an elected member becomes a member of the 
Pensions Committee. 

(h) A Board member who is an officer of the Administering Authority 
becomes responsible for the discharge of any function of the 
Administering Authority under the Regulations.  

Conflicts of interest11

29. All members of the Board must declare to the Administering Authority on 
appointment and at any such time as their circumstances change, any 
potential conflict of interest arising as a result of their position on the Board.  

30. A conflict of interest is defined as a financial or other interest which is likely to 
prejudice a person’s exercise of functions as a member of the Board. It does 
not include a financial or other interest arising merely by virtue of that person 
being a member of the Scheme. 

31. On appointment to the Board and following any subsequent declaration of 
potential conflict by a Board member, the Administering Authority shall ensure 

���������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������� ���������������������
9
 See paragraphs 5.29 and 5.30of the Guidance which outlines points to consider when setting out the 

term of office for Board members. In particular consideration should be given to allowing members to 
retire on a rolling basis to ensure experience is retained.  
10

 This includes active, deferred and pensioner members. 
11

 See section 7 of the Guidance for more information on Conflicts of Interest.�

Page 224



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

that any potential conflict is effectively managed in line with both the internal 
procedures of the Board's conflicts policy and the requirements of the Code.  

Knowledge and understanding (including Training)12  

32. Knowledge and understanding must be considered in light of the role of the 
Board to assist the Administering Authority in line with the requirements 
outlined in paragraph 6 above. The Board shall establish and maintain a 
Knowledge and Understanding Policy and Framework to address the 
knowledge and understanding requirements that apply to Board members 
under the Act. That policy and framework shall set out the degree of 
knowledge and understanding required as well as how knowledge and 
understanding is acquired, reviewed and updated.  

33. Board members shall attend and participate in training arranged in order to 
meet and maintain the requirements set out in the Board's knowledge and 
understanding policy and framework.  

34. Board members shall participate in such personal training needs analysis or 
other processes that are put in place in order to ensure that they maintain the 
required level of knowledge and understanding to carry out their role on the 
Board.  

Meetings 

35. The Board shall as a minimum meet [FOUR] times13 each year.  

36. Meetings shall normally take place between the hours of [09:00] and [21:00] 
at [LBTH TOWNHALL].  

37. The chair of the Board with the consent of the Board membership may call 
additional meetings.  Urgent business of the Board between meetings may, in 
exceptional circumstances, be conducted via communications between 
members of the Board including telephone conferencing and e-mails.     

Quorum 

38. A meeting is only quorate when at least one person of each member and 
employer representatives are present including an independent chair. Or 50% 
of both member and employer representatives are present. 

39. A meeting that becomes inquorate may continue but any decisions will be 
non-binding.

���������������������������������������� �������������������
12

 See section 6 of the Guidance for more information on Knowledge and Understanding. 
13

 See 5.35.11 in Guidance for more advice on the number of meetings to hold each year.  

Page 225



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

Board administration

40. The Chair shall agree with [AN OFFICER FROM DEMOCRATIC SERVICES] 
(the 'Board Secretary') an agenda prior to each Board meeting. 

41. The agenda and supporting papers will be issued at least [SEVEN] working 
days (where practicable) in advance of the meeting except in the case of 
matters of urgency.   

42. Draft minutes of each meeting including all actions and agreements will be 
recorded and published within [TWENTY - ONE] working days of the meeting. 
These draft minutes will be subject to formal agreement by the Board at their 
next meeting. Any decisions made by the Board should be noted in the 
minutes and in addition where the Board was unable to reach a decision such 
occasions should also be noted in the minutes.  

Where necessary any information considered exempt as specified in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or considered  confidential 
for the purposes of Section 100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data 
covered by the Data Protection Act 1998 shall be included in a Part II minute 
that is not made available to the public. 

43. The Board Secretary, in consultation with [Investment & Treasury Manager] 
shall support Board members in maintaining their knowledge and 
understanding as determined in the Board's Knowledge and Understanding 
Policy and Framework and other guidance or legislation.  

44. The Board Secretary shall arrange such advice as is required by the Board 
subject to such conditions as are listed in these Terms of Reference for the 
use of the budget set for the Board. 

45. The Board Secretary shall ensure an attendance record is maintained along 
with advising the Administering Authority on allowances and expenses to be 
paid under these terms. 

46. The Board Secretary shall liaise with the Administering Authority on the 
requirements of the Board, including advanced notice for officers to attend 
and arranging dates and times of Board meetings. 

Public access to Board meetings and information 

47. The Board meetings will be open to the general public (unless there is an 
exemption under relevant legislation which would preclude part (or all) of the 
meeting from being open to the general public).  

  
48. The following will be entitled to attend Board meetings in an observer 

capacity:  

(a) Members of the Pensions Committee, 
(b) Any person requested to attend by the Board. 

Page 226



��������	
�����������	������������ �������

Any attendees will be permitted to speak at the discretion of the Chair. 

49. In accordance with the Act the Administering Authority shall publish 
information about the Board to include: 

(a) The names of Board members and their contact details. 
(b) The representation of employers and members on the Board.  
(c) The role of the Board. 
(d) These Terms of Reference. 

50. The Administering Authority shall also publish other information about the 
Board including: 

(a) Agendas and minutes 
(b) Training and attendance logs 
(c) An annual report on the work of the Board to be included in the Fund's 

own annual report. 

51. All or some of this information may be published using the following means or 
other means as considered appropriate from time to time: 

(a) On the Fund’s website. 
(b) As part of the Fund’s Annual Report.  
(c) As part of the Governance Compliance Statement.

52. Information may be excluded on the grounds that it would either involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 or it being confidential for the purposes of 
Section 100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data covered by the Data 
Protection Act 1998.  

Expenses and allowances14

  
53. The Administering Authority [SHALL] meet the expenses of Board members in 

line with the Administering Authority's policy on expenses as set out in the 
Members Allowances Scheme 

Budget 

54. The Board is to be provided with adequate resources to fulfil its role. In doing 
so the budget for the Board will be met from the Fund and determined by:  

a) The Board will seek approval from the Corporate Director of Resources for 
any expenditure it wishes to make. 

���������������������������������������� �������������������
14

Provision for the payment of expenses and allowances is a decision to be made locally by each 

Administering Authority. Full consideration should be given to information in Guidance - see section 9 
and paragraphs 5.18 and 5.35.17 for more information. Administering authorities should aim to ensure 
that no Board member is either better or worse off as a result of fulfilling their duties as a member of 
the Board.  

�

Page 227



��������	
�����������	������������ ��������

Core functions15

55. The first core function of the Board is to assist16 the Administering Authority in 
securing compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to the 
governance and administration of the Scheme, and requirements imposed by 
the Pensions Regulator in relation to the Scheme. Within this extent of this 
core function the Board may determine the areas it wishes to consider 
including but not restricted to: 

a) Review regular compliance monitoring reports which shall include 
reports to and decisions made under the Regulations by the Committee. 

b) Review management, administrative and governance processes and 
procedures in order to ensure they remain compliant with the 
Regulations, relevant legislation and in particular the Code.  

c) Review the compliance of scheme employers with their duties under the 
Regulations and relevant legislation.  

d) Assist with the development of and continually review such 
documentation as is required by the Regulations including Governance 
Compliance Statement, Funding Strategy Statement and Statement of 
Investment Principles. 

e) Assist with the development of and continually review scheme member 
and employer communications as required by the Regulations and 
relevant legislation. 

f) Monitor complaints and performance on the administration and 
governance of the scheme. 

g) Assist with the application of the Internal Dispute Resolution Process. 
h) Review the complete and proper exercise of Pensions Ombudsman 

cases. 
i) Review the implementation of revised policies and procedures following 

changes to the Scheme. 
j) Review the arrangements for the training of Board members and those 

elected members and officers with delegated responsibilities for the 
management and administration of the Scheme. 

k) Review the complete and proper exercise of employer and 
administering authority discretions. 

l) Review the outcome of internal and external audit reports. 
m) Review draft accounts and Fund annual report. 
n) Review the compliance of particular cases, projects or process on 

request of the Committee.  
o) Any other area within the statement of purpose (i.e. assisting the 

Administering Authority) the Board deems appropriate. 

56. The second core function of the Board is to ensure the effective and efficient 
governance and administration of the Scheme. Within this extent of this core 

���������������������������������������� �������������������
15

 In determining the role of the Board, further information can be found in paragraphs 3.27 to 3.29 of 
the Guidance. 
16

 Please see paragraph 3.28 of the Guidance for more information on what assisting the 
Administering Authority means.��

Page 228



��������	
�����������	������������ ��������

function the Board may determine the areas it wishes to consider including but 
not restricted to: 

a) Assist with the development of improved customer services. 
b) Monitor performance of administration, governance and investments 

against key performance targets and indicators. 
c) Review the effectiveness of processes for the appointment of advisors 

and suppliers to the Administering Authority.  
d) Monitor investment costs including custodian and transaction costs. 
e) Monitor internal and external audit reports. 
f) Review the risk register as it relates to the scheme manager function of 

the authority. 
g) Assist with the development of improved management, administration 

and governance structures and policies. 
h) Review the outcome of actuarial reporting and valuations. 
i) Assist in the development and monitoring of process improvements on 

request of Committee.  
j) Assist in the development of asset voting and engagement processes 

and compliance with the UK Stewardship Code. 
k) Any other area within the statement of purpose (i.e. ensuring effective 

and efficient governance of the scheme) the Board deems appropriate. 

57. In support of its core functions the Board may make a request for information 
to the Committee with regard to any aspect of the Administering Authority’s 
function. Any such request should be reasonably complied with in both scope 
and timing.  

58. In support of its core functions the Board may make recommendations to the 
Committee which should be considered and a response made to the Board on 
the outcome within a reasonable period of time. 

Reporting17

59. The Board should in the first instance report its requests, recommendations or 
concerns to the Committee. In support of this any member of the Board may 
attend a Committee meeting as an observer.  

60. Requests and recommendations should be reported under the provisions of 
paragraphs 59 and 60 above. 

61. The Board should report any concerns over a decision made by the 
Committee to the Committee subject to the agreement of at least 50% of 
voting Board members provided that all voting members are present. If not all 
voting members are present then the agreement should be of all voting 
members who are present, where the meeting remains quorate.   

62. On receipt of a report under paragraph 63 above the Committee should, within 
a reasonable period, consider and respond to the Board. 

���������������������������������������� �������������������
17

 See section 8 of the Guidance for more information on Reporting. 

�

Page 229



��������	
�����������	������������ ��������

63. Where the Board is not satisfied with the response received it may request 
that a notice of its concern be placed on the website and in the Fund's annual 
report. 

64. Where the Board is satisfied that there has been a breach of regulation which 
has been reported to the Committee under paragraph 63 and has not been 
rectified within a reasonable period of time it is under an obligation to escalate 
the breach. 

65. The appropriate internal route for escalation is to the Monitoring Officer and/or 
Acting Corporate Director of Resources, the Section 151 Officer.   

66. The Board may report concerns to the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board for 
consideration subsequent to, but not instead of, using the appropriate internal 
route for escalation.  

67. Board members are also subject to the requirements to report breaches of law 
under the Act and the Code [and the whistleblowing provisions set out in the 
Administering Authority's whistle blowing policy]. 

Review of terms of reference 

68. These Terms of Reference shall be reviewed on each material change to 
those parts of the Regulations covering local pension boards and at least 
every [THREE] years. 

69. These Terms of Reference were [adopted on [01 APRIL 2015].  

…………………………………………. 
Signed on behalf of the Administering Authority 

………………………………………… 
Signed on behalf of the Board 

Published 24 February 2015

Page 230



S T A T U T O R Y  I N S T R U M E N T S  

2015 No. 57 

PUBLIC SERVICE PENSIONS, ENGLAND AND WALES 

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) 

(Governance) Regulations 2015 

Made - - - - 26th January 2015 

Laid before Parliament 28th January 2015 

Coming into force in accordance with regulation 1(3) 

These Regulations are made in exercise of the powers conferred by sections 1, 3, 5(7), 7(2), 12(6) 

and 12(7) of, and Schedule 3 to, the Public Service Pensions Act 2013(a). 

In accordance with section 21 of that Act, the Secretary of State has consulted the representatives 

of such persons as appeared to the Secretary of State to be likely to be affected by these 

Regulations. 

In accordance with section 3(5) of that Act, these Regulations are made with the consent of the 

Treasury. 

The Secretary of State makes the following Regulations: 

Citation, interpretation, commencement and extent 

1.—(1) These Regulations may be cited as the Local Government Pension Scheme 

(Amendment) (Governance) Regulations 2015. 

(2) In these Regulations “the Principal Regulations” means the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013(b). 

(3) These Regulations come into force as follows— 

(a) on 20th February 2015, this regulation and regulations 2, 8 and 9— 

(i) so far as they insert regulation 105 (delegation) into the Principal Regulations, 

(ii) so far as they insert regulation 106 (local pension boards: establishment) into the 

Principal Regulations for the purposes of the obtaining of approval from the 

Secretary of State under paragraphs (2) to (4) of that regulation, and 

(iii) so far as they insert regulations 107 (local pensions boards: membership), 108 (local 

pensions boards: conflicts of interest), 111 (scheme advisory board: membership) 

and 112 (scheme advisory board: conflict of interest) into the Principal Regulations 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2013 c. 25.  Sections 5, 7 and 12 of that Act come into force in relation to regulations relating to local government workers 

on 1 April 2015 – see S.I. 2015/4. 
(b) S.I. 2013/2356. 

Page 231



 2

for the purposes of appointment of members of local pension boards and the Local 

Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board; and 

(b) on 1st April 2015— 

(i) this regulation and regulations 2, 8 and 9 so far as not already commenced, and 

(ii) the remainder of these Regulations. 

(4) These Regulations extend to England and Wales. 

Amendment of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 

2. The Principal Regulations are amended in accordance with regulations 3 to 9. 

3. Omit regulation 53(4) (scheme managers: establishment of pension board). 

4. In regulation 55(1)(d) for “regulation 53(4) (Scheme managers)” substitute “regulation 106 

(local pension boards: establishment)”. 

5. Omit regulation 63 (aggregate Scheme costs). 

6. Omit regulation 65 (aggregate Scheme costs: revised certificates). 

7. In regulation 66 (supply of copies of valuations, certificates etc) for “regulations 62 (actuarial 

valuations of pension funds), 64 (special circumstances where revised actuarial valuations and 

certificates must be obtained) or 65 (aggregate Scheme costs: revised certificates)” substitute 

“regulations 62 (actuarial valuation of pension funds) or 64 (special circumstances where revised 

actuarial valuations and certificates must be obtained)”. 

8. In Schedule 1 (interpretation)— 

(a) after the entry for “local government service” insert— 

““Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board” means the board established 

under regulation 110 (Scheme advisory board: establishment); 

“local pension board” means a board established under regulation 106 (local pension 

boards: establishment);”” and 

(b) after the entry for “the Scheme” insert— 

““Scheme actuary” means the actuary appointed under regulation 114 (Scheme 

actuary);””. 

9. After regulation 104(a) insert— 

“PART 3 

Governance 

Delegation 

105.—(1) The Secretary of State may delegate any function under these Regulations. 

(2) An administering authority may delegate any function under these Regulations 

including this power to delegate. 

Local pension boards: establishment 

106.—(1) Each administering authority shall no later than 1st April 2015 establish a 

pension board (“a local pension board”) responsible for assisting it— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) Regulation 104 was inserted by S.I. 2014/1146. 

Page 232



 3

(a) to secure compliance with— 

 (i) these Regulations, 

 (ii) any other legislation relating to the governance and administration of the 

Scheme and any connected scheme(a), and 

 (iii) any requirements imposed by the Pensions Regulator in relation to the 

Scheme and any connected scheme; and 

(b) to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme 

and any connected scheme. 

(2) Where the Scheme manager is a committee of a local authority the local pension 

board may be the same committee if approval in writing has been obtained from the 

Secretary of State. 

(3) Where the administration and management of a Scheme is wholly or mainly shared by 

two or more administering authorities, those administering authorities may establish a joint 

local pension board if approval in writing has been obtained from the Secretary of State. 

(4) Approval under paragraphs (2) or (3) may be given subject to such conditions as the 

Secretary of State thinks fit. 

(5) The Secretary of State may withdraw an approval if any conditions under paragraph 

(4) are not met or if in the opinion of the Secretary of State it is no longer appropriate for 

the approval to continue. 

(6) Subject to paragraph (7), an administering authority may determine the procedures 

applicable to a local pension board, including as to the establishment of sub-committees, 

formation of joint committees and payment of expenses. 

(7) Except where a local pension board is a committee approved under paragraph (2), no 

member of a local pension board shall have a right to vote on any question unless that 

member is an employer representative or a member representative(b). 

(8) A local pension board shall have the power to do anything which is calculated to 

facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of any of its functions. 

(9) The expenses of a local pension board are to be regarded as part of the costs of 

administration of the fund held by the administering authority. 

Local pension boards: membership 

107.—(1) Subject to this regulation each administering authority shall determine— 

(a) the membership of the local pension board; 

(b) the manner in which members of the local pension board may be appointed and 

removed; 

(c) the terms of appointment of members of the local pension board. 

(2) An administering authority must appoint to the local pension board an equal number, 

which is no less than 4 in total, of employer representatives and member representatives 

and for these purposes the administering authority must be satisfied that— 

(a) a person to be appointed to the local pension board as an employer representative 

has the capacity to represent employers; and 

(b) a person to be appointed to the local pension board as a member representative has 

the capacity to represent members. 

(3) Except where a local pension board is a committee approved under regulation 106(2) 

(committee that is a Scheme manager is also local pension board)— 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) See section 4(6) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the definition of connected scheme. 
(b) See section 5(6) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for definitions of these terms. 

Page 233



 4

(a) no officer or elected member of an administering authority who is responsible for 

the discharge of any function under these Regulations (apart from any function 

relating to local pension boards or the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Advisory Board) may be a member of the local pension board of that authority; 

and 

(b) any elected member of the administering authority who is a member of the local 

pension board must be appointed as either an employer representative or a member 

representative. 

(4) Where a local pension board is a committee approved under regulation 106(2) 

(committee that is a Scheme manager is also local pension board) the administering 

authority must designate an equal number which is no less than 4 in total of the members of 

that committee as employer representatives and member representatives and for these 

purposes the administering authority must be satisfied that— 

(a) a person to be designated as an employer representative has the capacity to 

represent employers; and 

(b) a person to be designated as a member representative has the capacity to represent 

members. 

Local pension boards: conflict of interest 

108.—(1) Each administering authority must be satisfied that any person to be appointed 

as a member of a local pension board does not have a conflict of interest(a). 

(2) An administering authority must be satisfied from time to time that none of the 

members of a local pension board has a conflict of interest. 

(3) A person who is to be appointed as a member of a local pension board by an 

administering authority must provide that authority with such information as the authority 

reasonably requires for the purposes of paragraph (1). 

(4) A person who is a member of a local pension board must provide the administering 

authority which made the appointment with such information as that authority reasonably 

requires for the purposes of paragraph (2). 

Local pension boards: guidance 

109. An administering authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of 

State in relation to local pension boards. 

Scheme advisory board: establishment 

110.—(1) A scheme advisory board (“the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory 

Board”) is established. 

(2) The function of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board is to provide 

advice to the Secretary of State on the desirability of making changes to the Scheme. 

(3) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board also has the function of 

providing advice to administering authorities and local pension boards in relation to the 

effective and efficient administration and management of the Scheme and any connected 

scheme and their pension funds. 

(4) Subject to these Regulations, the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board 

may determine its own procedures including as to voting rights, the establishment of sub-

committees, formation of joint committees and the payment of remuneration and expenses. 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) See section 5(5) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the meaning of “conflict of interest”. 

Page 234



 5

(5) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board shall have the power to do 

anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of 

any of its functions. 

Scheme advisory board: membership 

111.—(1) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board shall consist of a 

Chairman and at least 2, and no more than 12 members appointed by the Secretary of State. 

(2) When deciding whether to make appointments under paragraph (1), the Secretary of 

State must have regard to the desirability of there being equal representation of persons 

representing the interests of Scheme employers and persons representing the interests of 

members. 

(3) A member of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board is to hold and 

vacate office in accordance with the terms of that member’s appointment. 

(4) The Chairman of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board may, with 

the agreement of the Board, appoint a maximum of 3 persons to be non-voting advisory 

members of the Board. 

(5) An advisory member of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board is to 

hold and vacate that position in accordance with the terms of that member’s appointment. 

(6) The Chairman of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board may, with 

the agreement of the Board, appoint persons who are not members of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board to be members of sub-committees of that 

Board. 

(7) A member of a sub-committee of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory 

Board is to hold and vacate office in accordance with the terms of that member’s 

appointment. 

Scheme advisory board: conflict of interest 

112.—(1) Before appointing any person to be a member of the Local Government 

Pension Scheme Advisory Board, the Secretary of State must be satisfied that the person 

does not have a conflict of interest(a). 

(2) The Secretary of State must be satisfied from time to time that none of the members of 

the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board has a conflict of interest. 

(3) A person who is to be appointed as a member of the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Advisory Board must provide the Secretary of State with such information as the 

Secretary of State reasonably requires for the purposes of paragraph (1). 

(4) A person who is a member of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board 

must provide the Secretary of State with such information as the Secretary of State 

reasonably requires for the purposes of paragraph (2). 

Scheme advisory board: funding 

113.—(1) The expenses of the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board are to 

be treated as administration costs of the Scheme and are to be defrayed by the administering 

authorities within the Scheme in such proportions as shall be determined by the Board. 

(2) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board must identify the amount to 

be paid by each administering authority towards its annual costs based on— 

(a) its annual budget approved by the Secretary of State; and 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) See section 7(5) of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 for the meaning of “conflict of interest”. 

Page 235



 6

(b) the number of persons for which the administering authority is the appropriate 

administering authority. 

(3) An administering authority must pay the amount it is required to pay under this 

regulation at such time or times as the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board 

may determine. 

Scheme actuary 

114.—(1) The Secretary of State must appoint an actuary as Scheme actuary to carry out 

valuations of the Scheme and any connected scheme in accordance with Treasury directions 

made under section 11 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013(a) (“the Treasury 

directions”). 

(2) The person appointed as Scheme actuary under paragraph (1) must, in the opinion of 

the Secretary of State, be appropriately qualified to carry out a valuation of the Scheme. 

(3) The Secretary of State must secure that the Scheme actuary carries out actuarial 

valuations of the assets and liabilities of the Scheme on the dates specified in regulation 

62(1)(a) (actuarial valuations of pension funds) and prepare valuation reports in accordance 

with the Treasury directions, within such period as enables the requirements in those 

directions to be met. 

(4) An administering authority must provide the Scheme actuary with any data that the 

Scheme actuary reasonably requires, in accordance with the Treasury directions, in order to 

carry out a valuation and prepare a report on the valuation. 

Employer cost cap 

115.—(1) The employer cost cap for the Scheme is 14.6% of pensionable earnings of 

members of the Scheme. 

(2) Where the cost of the Scheme, calculated following a valuation in accordance with 

Treasury directions under section 11 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 is more than 

the margins specified in regulations made under section 12(5) of the Public Service 

Pensions Act 2013(b) (“the Cost Cap Regulations”) above or below the employer cost cap, 

the Secretary of State must follow the procedure specified in paragraph (3) for reaching 

agreement with administering authorities, employers and members (or representatives of 

employers and members) as to the steps required to achieve the target cost specified in the 

Cost Cap Regulations. 

(3) The procedure specified for the purposes of section 12(6)(a) of the Public Service 

Pensions Act 2013 is consultation for such period as the Secretary of State considers 

appropriate with the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board with a view to 

reaching an agreement endorsed by all members of that Board. 

(4) If, following such consultation, agreement is not reached within 3 months of date on 

which the consultation period ends, the Secretary of State must take steps to adjust the rate 

at which benefits accrue under regulation 23(4) or (5) (active member’s pension accounts) 

so that the target cost for the Scheme is achieved. 

Scheme advisory board: additional functions 

116.—(1) The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board (“the Board”) must 

obtain a Scheme cost assessment from the Scheme actuary detailing the overall cost of the 

Scheme and the proportions of that cost being met by Scheme employers and members on 

the dates specified in regulation 62(1)(a) (actuarial valuations of pension funds). 

                                                                                                                                            
(a) 2013 c. 25. 
(b) 2013 c. 25; see regulation 3 of S.I. 2014/575. 

Page 236



 7

(2) Subject to paragraphs (5) and (6), where the overall cost of the Scheme is above or 

below the target overall cost, the Board may make recommendations to the Secretary of 

State as to the steps to take to bring the overall cost of the Scheme back to the target overall 

cost. 

(3) Where the proportion of the overall cost of the Scheme which is met by contributions 

by employers is above or below the target proportion, the Board may make 

recommendations to the Secretary of State as to the steps to take to bring the proportion of 

the overall cost of the Scheme which is met by contributions by employers and members 

back to the target proportion. 

(4) The Board must, before obtaining a Scheme cost assessment under paragraph (1), 

prepare and publish a statement setting out its policy concerning recommendations to the 

Secretary of State about the steps to be taken to bring the overall cost of the Scheme back to 

the target overall cost and the proportions of that cost met by Scheme employers and 

members, back to the target proportion. 

(5) The Board must not make recommendations under paragraph (2) if steps are required 

to be taken under regulation 115 (employer cost cap). 

(6) Subject to paragraph (5) the Board must make recommendations under paragraph (2) 

if the overall cost of the Scheme is above or below the target overall cost by 2% or more of 

pensionable earnings of members. 

(7) In this regulation— 

“the overall cost of the Scheme” means the total cost as calculated by the Scheme 

actuary as part of a Scheme cost assessment making use of the data provided under 

regulation 114(4) (Scheme actuary) according to such methodology and assumptions as 

are determined by the Board; 

“the target overall cost” is 19.5% of the pensionable earnings of members of the 

Scheme; 

“the target proportion” means Scheme employers meeting two-thirds and members 

meeting one-third of the overall cost of the Scheme. 

(8) Each administering authority must provide the Scheme actuary with any data that the 

Scheme actuary requires in order to carry out any valuations and produce reports in 

accordance with directions from the Board for the purposes of this regulation. 

(9) Unless the Board is prevented by paragraph (5) from making recommendations under 

this regulation, it must, within 23 months of the date on which a Scheme cost assessment is 

obtained under paragraph (1), publish a report setting out— 

(a) the overall cost of the Scheme; 

(b) the proportions of the overall costs of the Scheme met by employers and members; 

(c) the assumptions and methodology used by the Scheme actuary; and 

(d) any recommendations made to the Secretary of State under this regulation. 

(10) The Board must send a copy of a report published under paragraph (9) to the 

Secretary of State and the Scheme actuary. 

(11) The Secretary of State must publish a response to a report received under paragraph 

(10) within six months of the date on which that report is received.”. 

 

We consent to the making of these Regulations 

 

 Mark Lancaster 

 Gavin Barwell 

23rd January 2015 Two of the Lords Commissioners of Her Majesty’s Treasury 

 

Signed by authority of the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

 

 Kris Hopkins 

Page 237



 8

 Parliamentary Under Secretary of State 

26th January 2015 Department for Communities and Local Government 

 

 

 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (“the 2013 

Regulations”) to make provision in respect of governance of the Scheme. 

Regulation 1 commences the substantive provisions from 20th February 2015 for the purposes of 

making appointments to local pension boards and the Scheme Advisory Board, and brings the 

provisions fully into force from 1st April 2015. 

Regulations 3 to 8 make minor amendments to the 2013 Regulations consequential to the 

substantive provisions. 

Regulation 9 inserts a new Part 3 into the 2013 Regulations. 

New regulation 105 permits the Secretary of State to delegate functions under the 2013 

Regulations. It permits administering authorities to delegate their functions and also for any 

delegated function to be sub-delegated. 

New regulations 106 to 109 make provision for each administering authority to establish a local 

pension board to assist it to comply with its legal obligations relating to the Scheme. Where a local 

authority discharges its pension functions through a committee, it can, with the approval of the 

Secretary of State appoint that existing committee to be the local pension board. Local pension 

boards must have equal representation of employer representatives and member representatives 

who must not be officers or councillors of the administering authority responsible for the 

discharge of local government pension functions. 

Regulations 110 to 113 establish the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board to 

advise the Secretary of State, administering authorities and local pension boards in relation to the 

Scheme. Provision is made for the appointment of members to the Board and for its funding. 

Regulation 114 requires the Secretary of State to appoint a Scheme actuary to carry out valuations 

of the Scheme. 

Regulation 115 sets the employer cost cap and requires the Secretary of State to seek agreement 

from those affected as to the changes to the design of the Scheme necessary to bring costs back to 

that level if valuation reports indicate that costs have varied by more than a margin specified in 

regulations made by the Treasury. If agreement can not be reached the Secretary of State must 

make amendments to the Scheme to vary the rate of accrual of benefits to bring the costs of the 

Scheme back to the employer cost cap level. 

Regulation 116 confers additional functions on the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory 

Board to monitor the overall costs of the Scheme and the proportion of those costs met by 

employers and members respectively and to make recommendations to the Secretary of State for 

changes to the Scheme where overall costs or respective proportions met by employer or member 

contributions vary from the initial costs. 

No impact assessment has been prepared for this instrument as no impact on the costs of business 

or the voluntary sector is foreseen. 
  

  

© Crown copyright 2015 

Printed and published in the UK by The Stationery Office Limited under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo, 

Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of Acts of Parliament. 

Page 238



 

 

Page 239



 

 

Page 240



 

 

Page 241



 

£6.00 

UK2015012633   01/2015   19585 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/id/uksi/2015/57 

 

Page 242



COMMITTEE: 
 

Pensions 
Committee 
 

DATE: 
 

24 February 2015 

CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Acting Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Bola Tobun– Investment and Treasury 
Manager 

TITLE: 

 
Pension Fund Business Plan and  
Budget for 2015/16 

 
Ward(s) affected: N/A 

 

1. SUMMARY 

1.1 This report outlines the Work Plan for the Council’s statutory function as the 
administering authority of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension 
Fund. 

 

2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 

Members are asked to: 

2.1 Agree the work plan attached as Appendix 1 to this report. 

2.2 Agree the revenue budget for 2015/16 attached as Appendix 2 to this 
report. 

 

3. REASONS FOR DECISIONS 
3.1 Under the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) Regulations, the 

Council is required to maintain a Pension Fund for its employees and other 
‘scheduled bodies’ as defined in the Regulations. The Regulations also 
empower the Fund to admit employees of other ‘defined’ (e.g. other public 
bodies, housing corporations) bodies into the Fund. 

 
3.2 The proposed work plan for the authority has been put together to assist in 

the management of the Fund, so that the Council is able to perform its role 
as the administering authority in a structured way. The Work Plan is not 
intended to cover all aspects of Pension Fund administration; rather it is 
designed to assist with meeting part of its delegated function as 
administering authority to the Fund.  
 

3.3 The Pension Committee is charged with meeting the duties of the Council in 
respect of the Pension Fund. Therefore it is appropriate that the Committee 
formally adopts a work plan to assist with the discharge of its duties. 

 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
4.1 The development and implementation of a work plan should ensure that a 

structured approach is in place for the monitoring and management of the 
Pension Fund. This should in turn ensure that the Council meets its 
statutory obligations as administering authority to the Fund. However, the 

Agenda Item 4.5

Page 243



Committee is under no obligation to adopt a work plan in carrying out its 
duties. 

 

5. BACKGROUND 
5.1 The Council has specific delegated functions that it has to fulfil as the 

administering authority to the Pension Fund. This requires that a number of 
monitoring and management activities are undertaken to ensure that it fully 
discharges its oversight and governance responsibilities to the Fund. 

 
5.2 It is appropriate that the Committee should set out how it intends to fulfil its 

obligations as the delegated authority appointed by the Council to be 
responsible for the Fund. Adopting a planned approach should make 
monitoring easier for the Committee and ensure that activities critical to the 
effective management of the Fund are being undertaken.  
 

5.3 The Key Performance Indicators cover the following areas: 
 

• Investment performance 

• Funding level 

• Death benefit administration 

• Retirement administration 

• Benefit statements 

• New Joiners 

• Transfers in and out 

• Employer and member satisfaction 

• Data quality 

• Contributions monitoring 

• Overall administration cost 

• Audit  
 

5.4 In line with best practice, future Pensions Committee meetings will be 
provided with a schedule of Pension Fund key performance indicators 
(KPIs) covering investment and administration practices.  

 
5.5 An annual Work Plan will be presented to Committee for agreement. The 

Work Plan should be presented to Committee by the last committee 
meeting of the prior financial year to which the Work Plan applies. 

 

6       WORK PLAN 

6.1    In designing the work plan, the priorities of the Council as the administering 
authority of the Fund have been considered and incorporated into the Plan.  
The Work Plan has been developed using the below outline action plan. 

 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE 

Administration&Governance  
Member training on specific and 
general issues 

To provide training on specific issues based on 
identified need or emerging/ current issues. To 

Page 244



provide ongoing training to members to enable 
them to challenge the advice received and 
equip them with the tools to enter into 
constructive dialogue with advisers. 

Pensions Committee to receive 
key performance indicators report 
on a quarterly basis. 

To ensure scheme is run in accordance with 
agreed service standards; and compliance with 
regulations and to deal with and rectify any 
errors and complaints in a timely way. 

Review the current pension 
administration strategy 

To ensure scheme is run in accordance with 
the rules. 

Review and refresh key policy 
documents; the Statement of 
Investment Principles, Funding 
Strategy Statement, Governance & 
Communications Policy Statement 
as necessary (i.e. where significant 
changes are made) 

Seek member approval and formally publish 
any updated documents where this is deemed 
appropriate. 

Set up pensions specific website or 
microsite 

A pension specific website is scheduled to be 
set up towards the latter half of 2015, which will 
include details on pension administration, 
pension investments.and to provide a platform 
for on-line training facilities. 

Minimum of four Pensions 
Committee meetings to be held 
during the financial year 2015/16. 

To ensure that members are kept up to date on 
key developments with the London Borough of 
Tower Hamlets Pension Fund and to ensure 
that approval is received on key tasks/issues 
that affect the effective operation of the Fund. 

Each Fund manager will attend at 
least one meeting during the year 
2015/16 and more if deemed 
necessary 

To oversee fund manager activities and 
monitor performance to ensure that they are 
achieving performance targets and investing 
fund assets within the confines of the risk 
parameters and approach agreed with the 
Council. 

Ensure high level support is 
available to monitor and review, 
monitor and manage the risks 
taken by the Fund.  

High level support is available via the Risk and 
Investment Management Team (RIMT) (this 
consists of officers and advisers) which 
oversees the implementation of the Pensions 
Committee decisions and as well as conceive 
and discuss new ideas for consideration by the 
Committee. 

Investment & Accounting  

Draft Pension Fund Annual 
Accounts approved by the Acting 
Corporate Director of Resources in 
July 2015. 

To ensure that the Council meets the 
regulatory timetable and fulfils its stewardship 
role to the Fund. 

Audited Pension Fund Annual 
Report to be published on or 
before the statutory deadline of 1 
December 2015 

Ensure that the Council fulfils it statutory 
obligation and to keep members abreast of the 
Pension Fund activities in a transparent and 
accessible way. 

Page 245



Review of the Funds investment 
strategy 

To ensure that the Fund’s investment strategy 
is optimal.  There are no current plans for a 
major investment strategy review over the 
financial year, although manager 
underperformance/ market developments may 
require a review of Strategy.   

Review of (Actuarial, Investment 
Consultant and Independent  
Adviser and Custodian Services) 

This may not lead to full re-tendering for these 
services, but reviews will be commissioned to 
ensure that the Fund is still receiving good 
value for its major services.  All options will be 
considered in the review including joining 
existing framework contracts. 

Preparation for 2016, Triennial 
Valuation of Pension Fund Assets 
and Liabilities 

The Fund is bound by legislation to undertake 
an actuarial valuation of its assets and liabilities 
to ensure that appropriate future contribution 
rates are set and that any Fund deficit is 
recovered over an appropriate period of time in 
line with the Fund’s Strategy Statement. This 
report will present to Members the outcome of 
this exercise. 

 

7. PENSION FUND REVENUE ACCOUNT 

7.1 The budget estimate outlined in this report will assist the Council in 
monitoringexpenditure of the Fund’s revenue account in accordance with its 
requirement tomanage resources effectively. The report provides details of 
the actual figuresas at 31st December 2014, forecast outturn figures for 
2014/15 and revenue budgetestimates for 2015/16 in respect of income and 
expenditure elements of the PensionFund. 

7.2  Members are requested to note the pension fund’s Revenue Account 
position for 2014/15 and approve the proposed budget set out in Appendix 
2. 
 
2014/15 Budget Estimates 

7.3 The estimates for the Pension Fund can be difficult to predict because of 
the uncertainty surrounding a number of aspects such as transfer values, 
death grants, and volatility in investment markets.  

7.4 Expenditure (benefits payable) is expected to rise from £43.9m in 2013/14 
to a forecast of £49.6min 2014/15. This is due to an increase in pension 
payments in 2014/15 and theincrease in retirement grants paid. 

7.5 Transfer of internal cash may be made to fund managers this year to 
rebalance the Fund. Some of the cash held in house will bedeployed to fund 
the investment opportunities as they become available. Cash heldinternally 
is invested in line with Tower Hamlets Council’s treasury management 
strategy,which is delegated to the Corporate Director of Resources to 
implement. 

 
 

Page 246



2015/16 Proposed Budget 
7.5 The budget for the Pension Fund can be difficult to predict because of 

the uncertaintysurrounding a number of aspects such as transfer 
values, death grants, and volatilityin investment markets. The following 
paragraphs set out some of the assumptionsbehind the proposed 
2015/16 budget estimates: 
Notes to Appendix 2 

 
1. Contribution Receivable 

The budget figure is based on 2014/15 activity levels using the 
contribution rate as stipulated by the actuary. Plus a 2.5% to reflect the 
pay award for 2015/16.  

 
2. Transfer Values In 

The level of transfers of staff in and out of the fund is not subject to 
control by the Council. Transfer values vary significantly depending on 
length of service and salary and can be either payable or receivable by 
the authority.  It is not possible to make reliable forecasts of the 
financial effect of transfer activity and a zero net budget has therefore 
been assumed. 

 
3. Other Income 

The budget figure is based on 2015/16 Internal interest earned on 
revenue balances.  

 
4. Benefits Payable 

The budget figure is based on 2014/15 activity levels plus a 2.5% 
increase to reflect the 2015/16 pay award. 
 

5. Payments to and on account of leavers 
The same assumptions have been made as for transfer values in. 

 
6. Administrative and other expenses borne by the scheme 

These costs are estimated on the basis of planned workloads with a 
3.5% allowance for inflation. Costs include officers’ time, the cost of 
provision of accommodation and IT facilities, bank charges, global 
custodian fees, audit fees and professional advisers’ fees. 

 
7. Investment Income 

Investment Income is assumed at 4% on assets of £1.085billion and 
over 2/3rd is subsequently re-invested by the Fund Managers. 

 
8. Change in Market Value of Investments 

An investment of £1.085m is assumed to increase by 2.75%.The 
combined return of investment income and capital growth on 15/16 
investments is based on assumed 6.75% per annum. 

 
 
 
9. Fund Managers Fees 

Page 247



Fund managers’ fees are calculated at an average rate of 0.38% on 
assets of £1.115billion. 

 
10. Global Custodian Fees 
 The fee is set at £120,000 as per fees schedule. 
 
11. Tax on Dividends 

Net tax on dividends is based on 8% of budgeted investment Income.    
 

8.  Financial Implications 
8.1 The performance of the Pension Fund’s investments affects the 

required level ofcontributions due from employers. 

8.2.  The employers’ contribution rate for the London Borough of Tower Hamlets 
is currently set at15.8%, this rate did not change following the 2010 triennial 
review however, followingthe 2013 triennial valuation the total implied 
employers contribution rate (based oncurrent pensionable pay) for the 
Council increased from 1 April 2014. As beforethe deficit funding aspect has 
been defined as cash value so if establishmentnumbers fall, a cash lump 
sum reimbursement will need to be paid to the fund by theCouncil to ensure 
the level of deficit funding is maintained. The estimated 
shortfallcashcontribution for 2015/16 is £20.5m, up from £18.5m in 2014/15. 
The next valuationexercise will occur in 2016 with the results taking effect 
from 1 April 2017. 

8.3 LGPS regulations specify that any net sums not immediately required 
should beinvested in accordance with regulations. The investment of 
Pension Fund cashhas been kept separate from Tower Hamlets Council’s 
investments but invested in accordancewith the Council’s Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

9.1. The comments of the Acting Corporate Director of Resources have been 
incorporated into the report. 

10. LEGAL COMMENTS 

10.1 In discharging their functions under the Local Government Pension 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009, thePensions 
Committee must have regard to: 

• The need for diversification of investments of the Fund’s 
money; 

• The suitability of investments which they propose to make 

• The Council must take proper advice at reasonable intervals 
about its investments and must consider such advice when 
taking any steps in relation to its investments.  

10.2  One of the functions of the Pensions Committee is to meet the Council’s 
duties in respect of investment matters. It is appropriate having regard to 
these matters, for the Committee to receive information about budgetary 

Page 248



matters. The Committee’s consideration of the information in the report 
contributes towards the achievement of the Council’s statutory duties.   

10.3 Members of the Pensions Committee are required by the Council’s 
Constitution to consider pension matters and meet the various statutory 
obligations and the duties of the Council.This Work Plan provides for certain 
statutory requirements to be met and for members to be well trained and 
kept up to date and thus fit for purpose. 

10.4 When making decisions regarding investment of pension funds, the Council 
must have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the 
Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need 
to foster good relations between persons who share a protected 
characteristic and those who don’t (the public sector duty).   

 

11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

11.1 The London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund represents an asset 
to the Council in terms of its ability for attracting and retaining staff who 
deliver services to residents. The adoption of a Work Plan should lead to 
more effective management of the Fund. 

11.2 A significant element of the Council’s budget is the employer’s contribution 
to the Fund. Therefore, any improvement in the efficiency of the Fund that 
leads to improvement in investment performance or cost savings will likely 
reduce contributions from the Council and release funds for other corporate 
priorities. 

 

12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  

12.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication 
arising from this report. 

13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

13.1 The adoption of a work plan will minimise risks relating to the management 
of the Fund and should assist in managing down the risk of non-compliance 
with the Council’s obligations under the Regulation as the administering 
authority of the London Borough of Tower Hamlets Pension Fund. 

14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

14.1 There are no any crime and disorder reduction implications arising from this 
report. 

15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 

15.1  A work plan and budget should result in a more efficient process of 
managing the Pension Fund. 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers" 

  
Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

  Bola Tobun x4733 

Page 249



 

Page 250



PENSIONS FUND MANAGEMENT WORK PLAN 2015/16                                           APPENDIX 1 

Activity Responsible Person Pensions Committee/ 
Adviser & Officers 

Meeting 

Meeting

Jun 2015 
(TBC) 

Meeting

Sep 2015 
(TBC) 

Meeting
  

Nov 2015 
(TBC) 

Meeting
  

Mar 2016 
(TBC) 

Quarterly Performance Reporting of 
Fund Managers and update on 
emerging/current issues 

Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

Pensions Committee 
� � � �

Quarterly Administrative Key 
Performance Indicators Report 

Pensions Manager Pensions Committee 
� � � �

Fund Managers’ Meeting 
Presentation 

Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

Adviser & Officers 
Meeting 

� � � �

Member Training  Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

Pensions Committee
� � �

Consideration of (Annual Review) of 
Statement of Investment Principles 
and Funding Strategy Statement (If 
necessary)  

Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

Pensions Committee

�   

Review asset allocation with Advisers Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

Adviser & Officers 
Meeting 

�   

Consideration of (Annual Review) of 
Communications Policy Statement 

Pensions Manager Pensions Committee 
�    

Consideration of Governance 
Compliance Statement  
(If necessary) 

Chief Accountant Pensions Committee
�    

Presentation on Fund Performance 
2014/15 

The WM Company & 
Hymans 

Pensions Committee 
�    

Review of actuarial and investment 
advice and custodial services 
arrangements for the Pension Fund 

Investment & Treasury 
Manager

Pensions Committee 
�   

Set up of pension specific website Investment & Treasury 
Manager 

  

Pension Fund Work Plan 2016/17  Investment & Treasury 
Manager

Pensions Committee 
   �

Review/Approval of Annual Report 
2015/16 

Investment & Treasury 
Manager

Pensions Committee 
� �

Review of Fund Managers’ internal 
control measures (SAS 70) 

Investment & Treasury 
Manager

Pensions Committee 
�

Other Ad-hoc items for consideration Various  Pensions Committee � � � �

Preparation for Triennial Valuation of 
the Fund 

Various Pensions Committee 
   �

P
a
g
e

 2
5
1



P
a
g
e
 2

5
2



���������	

������������������	����	���

������� ��	
	��� ������ �������

����� ���
��� ������ ������� �������

������������� �������� ������������� ������� 	������

����� ����� ����� ����� �����

���������������������� �

����� �! "��#�� ������� !"��#"� ������� �����$� !��$���

����� �! "��#��� $�$%�� ���	%�� %��%%� ���$�&� ���	!��

'��������(������)� ����&� "��""� ������ ���*$�

��+���)��� � ��� $�� ���

&���'�(��� �)���*� ���$��� �#��!	� ���%$�� �%�*��� �%�	���

����+����
�,�� �

��,���	��� ���*%�� "��#��� ������� ������� !	��$��

��,���+�������,���	���

��-� "�.� �/�0��	�� ��������1����� &���*� #�"��� ���*�� &����� #�"�#�

��-� "�.� �/�����+�2����� ������ ���#"� ���&�� ������


�,*������������������������+� ������

��0����������3����	4��	��� �� &�� $��

��'��������(��������� ��&&%� 	�%��� *��*&� %�����

����+���"�# ���� �� ���� �%��

��*������������������-�������������������,��-��

��-�*�

���� 	�	�����	�������"������	�
 *%*� #�#� ���� �*&� %���

��������	������� ��� "�� �� ��� ���

�����	������ ��� 	�� �� ��� 	��

��-�
���������+���"������	��������� ���� ���� �� ���� ����

&���'�(��� �.������� �&�*��� !%�%$%� ����&*� �%�&$%� �	��!��

(��� �/�������������01��-���2� �3�+��*� %�	$%� %�#!�� &�%� 5�%�6 ����!�

4�� �����2��-�5�*����

�.(6�/&�7/�)/8.&(5./(&

)�7��� ����)��� � ������� �"�"��� $��*�� ������� �	�!���

3+��
��	�����8���(��������)�7��� ���� *$����� ����!�� ������� *������ ��"%��

)�����*����*�����*����.�������

���������
������� 5���*�6 0	���!3 5��%��6 0	�%%�3

�,����� ������������ ������� 5��6 0	�3 5��6 0		3

�)�7��� ����3���������#���� 5���6 0!�3 5��6 0��3

(��� ��������7��)�����*���� ##�#��� ���!��� *���%*� &��*��� �!�$�!�

9!'�)930!�.!�5�!30!�.!6�)9�':!�;9� %*���$� #���!�� *%����� &���*�� ""�"%#�

�;0)92�':!�<!�0

�,!9)92�9!'��..!'.���':!�.3:!�! $�*�%&�� ����	�$"�� ������$��� ������$��� ���%��!�"�

3-�.)92�9!'��..!'.���':!�.3:!�! ������$��� ���%"��#�� ���%���*�� ���%���$�� ����!�%���

Page 253



�����

��������

Page 254



  

 

COMMITTEE: 
 

PensionsCommit
tee 
 

DATE: 
 

24February2015 

CLASSIFICATION: 
 

Unrestricted 

REPORT NO. AGENDA NO. 

REPORT OF: 
 

Acting Corporate Director of Resources 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 

Anant Dodia 
Pensions Manager 

TITLE: 

 
Review of discretions under the Local 
Government Pension Scheme 
 

 
Ward(s) affected: 
                         N/A 

 
 
1. SUMMARY 
 

1.1. The introduction of the new Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 
from 1 April 2014 required all scheme employers to review their existing 
discretionary pension arrangements and publish new policy statements. 

1.2. On 16 July 2014, Members considered the authority’s discretionary pension 
arrangements and agreed that a further report be brought to this Committee 
following a detailed review of the discretions. 

1.3. A complete review of all the required authority discretion decisions and 
policies has been undertaken. 

1.4. The Pension Regulations require that in preparing or making revisions to its 
pensions policy statements, the scheme employer must have regard to the 
extent to which the exercise of any of its policies could lead to a serious loss of 
confidence in the public service. The exercise of any discretions must therefore 
be reasonable, affordable, and justified in the circumstances and be 
consistently applied.  

1.5. This report summarises the Pension Policies which need reviewing at this 
time and make recommendations for the adoption of new policy 
statements.There are five discretions to reconsider.  

1.6. The adoption of current policy in relation to the discretionary provision of the 
new Scheme will not prevent the Council from reconsidering any of its 
decisions at a later stage should it be felt prudent to do so for the proper 
governance of the scheme.  

 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 

2.1 The Committee is recommended to approve:- 
 

(i) The employer discretions set out in Section 4 of this report, and 
 

(ii) The policy statement set out at Appendix 1. 
 

3. BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 The cost of providing public sector pension schemes has been steadily 
increasing over many years and the previous Government was concerned 
about their long term sustainability. As a result the Government appointed 

Agenda Item 4.6

Page 255



  

Lord Hutton to chair an independent Public Services Pensions Commission 
to undertake a fundamental review of public sector pension provision. 

 
3.2  TheGovernment accepted the Commission’s recommendations and 

government departments negotiated with the relevant employer 
representatives and trade unions, and as a result the LGPS Regulations 
2013 came into force on 1st April, 2014. 

 
3.3 The new regulations require all scheme employers to review their existing 

discretionary pension policy statements and publish new statements effective 
from 1st April, 2014. It is a requirement that the discretion policy statement is 
agreed and published.  

 
4. DISCRETIONSTO BE REVIEWED WITHIN THE SCHEME 

 
4.1 There are five ‘Employer Discretions’ available within the LGPS Regulations 

2013 which require a decision by each employing Authority.The first four 
discretions have previously been agreed by the authority and it is 
recommended that these are continued. The fifth one is a new discretion and 
it is recommended,to adopt this discretion.Full details are outlined in the 
Policy Statement attached at Appendix1 and detailed below is a summary of 
the options for consideration. 

 

• Whether the council will pay towards the cost of Shared Cost 
Additional Pension Contributions (SCAPC) made by an active scheme 
member to purchase extra pension benefits of up to £6,500 per 
annum. 

• Whether to permit flexible retirement for staff aged 55 or over. 

• Whether to waive in whole or part any actuarial reduction on benefits 
which a member voluntarily draws before normal pension age. 

• Whether to grant an additional pension of up to £6,500 to an active 
pension scheme member or within six months of leaving to a member 
whose employment was terminated on the grounds of redundancy or 
retirement on the grounds of efficiency. 

• Whether to apply the ‘85 year rule’ for a scheme member wishing to 
voluntarily draw benefits on or after age 55 and before age 60. 

 
4.1.1 Decision 1 - Employees can voluntarily choose to make Additional  Pension 

Contributions; there is the option for the employer to share the cost, under 
Shared Cost Additional Pension Contributions  (SCAPC). 

 
The LGPS regulations allow members to make additional pension 
contributions(APC) to the LGPS at their own cost either by a one-off lump 
sum or by regularon-going contributions in order to purchase additional 
pension. They also allowfor shared cost additional pension contributions with 
costs shared between theemployer and employee (SCAPCs). 
 
The amount of additional contributions to be paid is determined by reference 
to actuarial guidance issued by the Secretary of State. For example a 55 
year old female wishing to make contributions over a 10 year period to 
purchase an additional £6,500 will be required to pay extra £921.05 per 
month. The employer could decide to pay a certain percentage of the above 
monthly contributions. Alternatively a one off lump sum cost is £84,968. 

 

Page 256



  

� Employer Benefits 
 
- The provision could be used as a recruitment and retention tool e.g. 
for hard tofill posts. 

 
� Employer/Employee Disadvantages 

 
- The cost of purchasing additional pension could be substantial. 
 
- There might be potential tax implications for the member in relation 
to annualand lifetime allowances. 

 
Options suggested are: 
 
(a)  To make use of the discretion in exceptional circumstances where 

there is a clear financial or operational advantage for the Authority in 
doing so.  This would require authorisation by the Corporate Director 
of Resources and the Head of Human Resources & Workforce 
Development or their nominated representative. 

(b)  Continue not to exercise this discretion and not to fund on Shared 
Cost Additional PensionContributions (SCAPCs) 

 
This discretion was not previously adopted due to material cost implications. 
It is therefore proposed that at this time the Council will continue not to 
exercise this discretion and will not fund SCAPC on the basis of affordability 

 
 Recommendation: 
 

It is recommended that option (b) is adopted. 
  
4.1.2 Decision 2 - The discretion to allow Flexible Retirement.  
 

The LGPS Regulations allow a member aged 55 or over who reduces 
theirworking hours or grade, with their employer’s consent, to receive 
immediatepayment of all or part of their retirement benefits. Additionally, the 
employermay decide to waive any actuarial reduction that applies. 

 
Flexible retirement allows a pension scheme member who has attained the 
ageof 55 to request payment of their accrued pension benefits even though 
theyhave not ceased to be employed. This request can only be considered if 
themember of staff either reduces their working hours and or their 
grade.Payment of pension benefits under this provision is not automatic and 
can onlybe made if the Council consents to that payment. There is no 
provision tosubsequently withdraw benefits granted under this provision. The 
LGPS alsoallows the member to build up new pension rights in the LGPS 
based on thenew hours and or grade.A member requesting flexible 
retirement is not required to draw all of thebenefits due to them instead s/he 
may choose to receive all, some or none ofthe benefits built up on 
membership from 1 April 2008 onwards. However, s/hemust draw all of the 
pre-April 2008 accrued benefits. As the member has achoice of partial 
drawdown, the cost to the employer may be affected by thischoice. 
 
The Council’s current policy is to permit flexible retirement on the merit of 
each individual case. The Council has the discretion to waive the early 

Page 257



  

retirement reduction, but has stated that it will not normally be exercised 
other than in exceptional circumstances or on compassionate grounds. 

 
� Benefit to the Employer 

 
- Flexible retirement can enable the employer to retain the services 

of a skilledand experienced employee in a situation where the 
employee may, due tofactors outside the workplace, have 
previously chosen to resign or take fullretirement. It can act as a 
useful retention tool, particularly in hard to fill posts,as part of the 
Council’s Corporate Workforce Strategy, particularly in areaswhich 
combine an aging workforce with recruitment and retention 
difficulties,and act as a beneficial enhancement to the Council’s 
existing Flexible Workingprovisions. 

 
- Flexible retirement acts as a useful tool for the employer when 

managingorganisational change or staffing reductions, and could 
provide an alternativesolution in situations which otherwise might 
have involved redundancies orefficiency retirements with 
associated employer costs. It offers a means tomanage capacity, 
to assist with succession planning and to potentially createcareer 
opportunities for younger employees who are currently 
underrepresentedin the workforce. 

 
- Savings can be made through a reduced salary but it would 

depend on theneeds of the Service and individual factors which 
need to be taken into accountwhen considering requests for 
flexible retirement as well as the budget impactand on-going 
revenue savings. 

 
Benefit to the Employee 

 
- For the employee, it becomes possible to ‘partially’ retire, to draw 

pensionbenefits but in the meantime remain in employment in a 
changed capacity whichcan offer greater flexibility. The flexibility 
can help employees manage theirwork-life balance, help them 
step-down towards full retirement and/or help themmanage 
commitments outside the work place. It should be noted however 
thatany new pension scheme entitlements in the ‘step down’ post 
are built up in thenew scheme LGPS 2014 and will have a later 
normal retirement age linked tothe state pension age (SPA). 

 
Issues: 
 
There is a potential cost to the employer as any existing 85 year rule 
protectionsapply for flexible retirement; generally retirements over age 55 
whenmembership of the LGPS started pre October 2006. The length of 
service/agewill determine whether there is protection. The 85 year rule is 
determined byadding the employee’s age to the calendar length of 
pensionable service inwhole years and applies, prevents or limits actuarial 
reduction where the totalexceeds 85 at retirement or before reaching normal 
retirement age.Whilst Flexible Retirement can bring many benefits, there are 
some practicalissues which could present difficulties for the employer. 

 

Page 258



  

Where a reduction in hours is requested this may have an impact on 
thedeliveryof services, particularly where the request is to reduce by only a 
fewhours per week and it is therefore difficult to recruit a replacement. A 
request toreduce hours may also be difficult to agree to where part-time 
working is notsuitable in meeting business demands or where the member is 
already workingreduced hours. 

 
Agreement to a request to reduce grade may be dependent on whether there 
issuitable work available at the lower grade, and whether the duties no 
longerperformed can be covered by other means. 

 
Any decision to waive all or some of the actuarial reduction that may apply to 
themember’s benefits would require the employer to meet the additional 
costincurred by the pension fund. It should be noted that in all cases, once 
agreed,the payment of flexible retirement benefits is irrevocable regardless 
of whetherthe member resigns after only a short time in the new post. 

 
The likely level offuture take-up of flexible retirement is not known. There 
may be risks that shoulda large proportion of employees request flexible 
retirement there could be adetrimental impact to services although this has 
not been apparent in theoperation of the scheme so far. On the other hand, 
there could be potentialsaving of redundancy pay. 

 
As the level of likely take-up is not known, the potential costs are 
alsoimpossible to estimate, although costs are mitigated by assessing each 
case onits merits e.g. cost/benefit. 

 
Options suggested are: 
 
(a) Not to continue with the discretionary power to adopt a 

flexibleretirement scheme. 
(b)  To continue to permit a flexible retirement schemewhere there is a 

clear financial or operational advantage for the Authority in doing 
so.This would require authorisation by the Corporate Director of 
Resources and the Head of Human Resources & Workforce 
Development or their nominated representative. 

 
This discretion was previously adopted by the Council and is only agreed if it 
is in the economic and /or operational interest of the Council’s service to do 
so. The Council currently operates a Flexible Retirement Scheme as part of 
its flexible working arrangements and it is proposed that at this arrangement 
should continue. A summary of the policy is detailed below: 
 
Flexible retirement policy allows a member of the Local Government Pension 
scheme aged 55 or over, to reduce their contractual hours (the reduction in 
hours should normally be at least 40 per cent of the previous hours worked 
or moved to), to work in a lower graded post (the reduction in grade should 
normally be at least two grades or 25 per cent drop of gross salary), and 
draw their pension benefits from that time, whilst continuing if they wish, to 
accrue further benefits in the continuing employment. The reduction in hours 
or grade should not be temporary and will require their manager's consent. 
Their request will be considered on its merits (e.g. failing health/work life 
balance) and will only be agreed if it is in the economic interest and/or 
operational interests of the service to do so. 

Page 259



  

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that option (b) is adopted. 

 
4.1.3 Decision 3 - The Council has the discretion to waive actuarial reduction to 

pension, the costs of which will be borne by the Council.   
 

The LGPS 2014 regulations include a significant change in that an 
activemember of the LGPS or a deferred member, canchoose to retire 
voluntarily from age 55 without the employer’s consent.Currently employer’s 
consent is required for retirements before age 60, with noemployer consent 
required from age 60.Actuarial reductions will apply to pensions taken from 
age 55 up to normalretirement age using actuarial guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State. 

 
For some members employers may agree to waive all the actuarial reduction 
oncompassionate grounds or part of the actuarial reduction on any 
grounds.Waiving the reduction would require the Council to make a payment 
to thepension fund for the shortfall created by paying the pension early 
withoutreduction, known as a pension strain payment or employer pension 
cost.For pre LGPS 2014 members with 85 year rule protections on 
membership toApril 2014 [April 2016 if will be age 60 before this date or April 
2020 if will beage 60 between April 2016 and April 2020], the Council may 
choose to waive allactuarial reductions applicable to this membership on the 
grounds ofcompassion.In relation to membership built up from April 2014 
[April 2016 or April 2020]onwards, the Council may choose to waive all or 
some of the reductions on anygrounds. 

 
Currently the policy on waiving any reduction in benefits arising from 
earlypayment is that the discretion will not normally be exercised, but the 
Corporate Director of Resources and the Head of Human Resources & 
Workforce Development or their nominated representative will consider 
applications on a case by case basis. 
 
� Benefits to the Employer 

 
- The employer costs of waiving any actuarial reduction would be 

the same as ifan employee were to be made redundant between 
the ages of 55 – 60.However, in circumstances where redundancy 
was not an immediate option, butpotentially possible in the 
medium term, there could be a saving in cost throughavoiding any 
future redundancy payment and mitigation of on-going 
salarypayments. 

 
� Benefits to the Employee 

 
- If a request to retire early is granted without actuarial reduction, the 

employeereceives pension as earned without the reduction ahead 
of normal retirementage. 

 
Options suggested are: 

Page 260



  

 
(a) Not to make use of discretion to waive all or part of the 

actuarialreduction 
(b)  To consider the use of the discretion, the Council will waive reductions 

only in exceptional circumstances where there is a clear financial or 
operational advantage for the Authority in so doing or on 
compassionate grounds. This would require authorisation by the 
Corporate Director of Resources and the Head of Human Resources 
& Workforce Development or their nominated representative. 

 
 
This discretion was previously adopted by the Council, and is only agreed if it 
is in the economic and /or operational interest of the Council’s service to do 
so.  The Council will continue to waive reductions only in exceptional 
circumstances where there is a clear financial or operational advantage for 
the Authority in so doing or on compassionate grounds would this be 
considered.  This would require authorisation by the Corporate Director of 
Resources and the Head of Human Resources & Workforce Development or 
their nominated representative. 

 
Recommendation: 

 
It is recommended that option (b) is adopted. 

  
4.1.4 Decision 4- The discretion to award additional pension (whole cost to 

employer).   
 

This provision enables the employer to award an additional pension to an 
activemember. Under the LGPS 2014 regulations, the discretion to award 
anadditional pension of £6,500 per annum (from the previous maximum of 
£5,000)has been introduced.The Council’s current policy is generally not to 
award additional years of serviceor added pension to employees. The former 
is no longer applicable andtherefore does not need to be reviewed. 

 
� Benefits to Employer 

 
- The provision could be used in a range of circumstances, including 

as arecruitment and retention tool or as part of the compensation 
for dismissal onthe grounds of redundancy (including business 
efficiency). In the latter case,arrangements must be made within 6 
months of the date that the employee’semployment ended. Where 
an award is made on these grounds, no additionallump sum 
compensation can be paid in excess of a maximum 
severancepayment of statutory redundancy with weekly pay limit 
waived. 

 
� Benefits to Employee 

 
- The employee receives an increased pension without needing to 

voluntarilypurchase it. 
 

Issues: 
 

Page 261



  

The cost of awarding additional pension could be substantial and once 
awarded thepension cannot be taken away i.e. the employee could leave 
with the benefitsintact. As a guide the cost of purchasing a pension of £6,500 
for a male aged 40 years is £50,310 and for a female aged 40 years is 
£54,418. These costs increase the older the individual, for example rising to 
£71,158 for a female aged 50 years.There can be potential tax implications 
for the member in relation to annual andlifetime allowances.There are 
possible age and sex discrimination risks. The amount of 
employercontribution may vary in relation to the member’s normal retirement 
age, whichmay cost less for women than a comparator male due to 
variations in the stateretirement age. Possible age discrimination risks might 
occur if youngeremployees were directly excluded or any discretion was 
exercised on agefactors alone. 

 
Options suggested are: 

 
(a) Not to make use of the discretion on additional pension contribution. 
(b) To consider each application for additionalpension on its merits, where 

it is in the employer’s interests andtaking into account the employer 
costs of the additional pension. This would require authorisation by the 
Corporate Director of Resources and the Head of Human Resources 
& Workforce Development or their nominated representative. 

 
This discretion was not previously adopted by the Council due to material 
cost implications. It is therefore proposed that the Council will continue not to 
exercise this discretion on the basis of affordability. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that option (a) is adopted. 

   
4.1.5 Decision 5– The “85 year rule” can be activated for individual employees, 

prior to age 60 in the case of Early Voluntary Retirement, the cost of which 
will be borne by the Council.   

  
The 85 year rule was introduced to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
from 1 April 1998 replacing the previous ‘rule of 25’, and allowed pension 
benefits to be paid unreduced once the member’s age and service added 
together totalled 85. It was subsequently removed by Statutory Instrument 
with effect from 1 October 2006, but those with membership when it was part 
of the scheme still retain a protection to have it applied. 
 
The degree of protection varies dependant on age and members are 
accordingly split into groups, with different periods of membership attracting 
different degrees of protection. 
 
The 2014 LGPS scheme removed from the regulations the requirement for 
the employer to give consent to the release of pension benefits when 
requested by a member between the ages of 55 and 60. 
 
In the previous scheme the 85 year rule would automatically apply to a 
member whose benefits were released before age 60 if they met the 
requirements of the 85 year rule. This would have generated a cost as it 
meant the benefits were paid without the expected reductions (because of 

Page 262



  

the 85 year rule protection) before the members earliest normal retirement 
date. The cost of releasing benefits before age 60 would be taken into 
account when deciding whether or not the employer consented to the early 
release. 
 
Under the 2014 scheme, now that a member can choose to draw their 
benefits before age 60 without the consent of their employer, the 85 year rule 
does not automatically protect their benefits from reduction before the age of 
60. Instead the member suffers a reduction up to the point their benefits 
would have been payable unreduced (i.e. age 60 or the date the 85 year rule 
is met if later). 
 
As the 85 year rule does not automaticallyapply to members who would 
otherwise be subject to it and who choose tovoluntarily draw their benefits at 
age 55 and before 60, this provision allowstheemployer to switch the rule 
back on and thus bear the cost of this decision. 

 
� Benefits to Employer 

 
- Switching the 85 year rule back on might be a mechanism 

employers wouldwish to consider to encourage members to retire 
early to, for example, helpachieve a balanced age profile within the 
workforce or to avoid possibleredundancies later (which have 
attendant greater costs). Whilst also exercisingthe discretion to 
waive actuarial reductions would be more expensive than 
justswitching back on the 85 year rule, it would still (in nearly all 
cases) be lessexpensive than redundancy. 

 
� Benefits to Employee 

 
- The employee avoids some or all of the actuarial reduction and 

receivesincreased pension benefits. 
Issues: 

 
If the employer does agree to switch back on the 85 year rule, the employer 
willhave to meet the cost of any strain resulting from the payment of benefits 
beforeage 60.The cost would vary on a case by case basis depending on the 
employee’s degree of protection. 
 
Options suggested are: 
 
(a)  Not to make use of this discretion. 
(b)  To consider each case on its merits,where it is in the employer’s 

interests in doing so and taking into account the employercosts. This 
would require authorisation by the Corporate Director of Resources 
and the Head of Human Resources & Workforce Development or their 
nominated representative. 

 
This is a new discretion. It is therefore proposed to adopt this discretion. 

 
Recommendation: 

 
It is recommended that option (b) is adopted. 

  

Page 263



  

 
 
5. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
5.1 Employer decisions on the application of discretions can give rise to strain 

costs being payable by the employer to the fund. Strain costs are the 
capitalised financial value of the impact on the fund when a member draws 
their pension benefits before their Normal or State Pension Age. 

 
5.2 Factors that influence the strain costs are the members’ age, length of 

service, gender and marital status. The impact on the fund is the loss of 
future contribution streams from the employee and the member, and paying 
out benefits earlier than anticipated.  

 
5.3 Whenever individual decisions are taken in the use of discretions the 

potential cost implications have to be taken into account as part of the 
consideration process. 

 
5.4  The discretions can only be exercised if there is a minimal impact on the 

Fund’s financial position. 
 
5.5 The Council has a duty to ensure that it is spending public money wisely and 

any expenditure that arise from decisions taken under the pensions 
regulations would have to be funded from existing resources. 

 
5.6 Additional comments of the Chief Financial Officer have been incorporated 

elsewhere in the report. 
 
6. LEGAL COMMENTS 
 
6.1.1 TheLocal Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013came into force on 

1 April 2014. Regulation 60 requires Scheme Employers participating in the 
LGPS to formulate, publish and keep under review a writtenstatement of 
policy about the exercise of discretionary functions.Those discretions relate 
to: 

 a. funding of additional pension; 
 b. flexible retirement; 
 c. waiving of actuarial reduction; and 
 d. award of additional pension.  

. 
6.1.2 In accordance with paragraph 2(2) of Schedule 2 to the Local Government 

Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings & Amendment) 
Regulations 2014, the Council must prepare a written statement on whether 
to agree to waive in full or part, any actuarial reduction applied to the benefits 
of a member (pre 1st April 2014 membership) who voluntarily retires and 
elects to draw their benefits on or after the age of 55 but before the age of 
60. 
 

6.2 In preparing, or reviewing and making revisions to its statement, the Council  
must have due regard to the extent to which exercising the discretions unless 
properly limited could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public 
service. 
 

Page 264



  

6.3 The policies do not confer any contractual rights on scheme members and 
the employer reserves the  right to change policy at any time. 

 
6.4 When deciding whether or not to proceed with the scheme, the Council must 

have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality 
Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity and the need to foster 
good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic and 
those who don’t (the public sector duty).  A form of equality analysis will be 
required which is proportionate to the proposed scheme and its potential 
impact on scheme members, particularly in relation to any decision to award 
additional pension. The award of additional pension could lead to age or sex 
discrimination. The amount of an employer’s contribution may vary in relation 
to a member’s normal retirement age, which may cost less for women than a 
male comparator due to variations in the state retirement age. Possible age 
discrimination might occur if younger employees were directly excluded from 
the benefit of additional pension or any discretion was exercised on age 
factors alone.  

 
 

7. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 

7.1 The Pension Fund Accounts demonstrate the financial stewardship ofthe 
scheme members and employers assets. A financially viable andstable 
pension fund is a valuable recruitment and retention incentive. 

 
8. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT  
 

8.1 There is no Sustainable Action for A Greener Environment implication arising 
from this report. 

 
9.  RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 

9.1 The recommendations ensure that there is no risk to the pension fund and 
mitigates budgetary risks to revenue.  

 
10. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 

10.1 There are no any Crime and Disorder Reduction implications arising from this 
report. 

 

Page 265



  

 
11.  EFFICIENCY STATEMENT 
 

11.1  The monitoring arrangement for the Pension Fund and the work of the 
Pension Fund Investment Panel should ensure that the Fund optimises the 
use of its resources in achieving the best returns for members of the Fund. 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 (AS AMENDED) SECTION 100D 
LIST OF "BACKGROUND PAPERS" USED IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS REPORT 

 
Brief description of "background papers" 
 
None 

  
Name and telephone number of holder 
And address where open to inspection 

   

  Anant Dodia 

Tel: 020 7364 4248 

Page 266



  

 
 

APPENDIX 1 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION SCHEME REGULATIONS 2013 
 

STATEMENT OF POLICY - EXERCISE OF DISCRETIONARY FUNCTIONS 

 
The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) 2014 effective from 1 April 2014 
introduces or amends a number of discretionary elements over which the Council 
as the employing body can exercise its discretion.  
 
These policy discretions are, where appropriate, as close to the discretions 
previously applied by the Council. 
 
In accordance with Regulation 60 of the above regulations the Council must 
formulate, approve, publish and keep under review changes to the Council’s Policy 
in relation to the exercise of its employer discretions under regulations: 
 

• 16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d) (funding of additional pension); 

• 30(6) (flexible retirement); 

• 30(8) (waiving of actuarial reduction); and 

• 31 (award of additional pension). 
 
In addition and in accordance with Paragraphs 2(2) of Schedule 2 to the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings & Amendment) 
Regulations 2014 the Council must also prepare a written statement on whether, in 
respect of benefits relating to pre 1 April 2014 membership, to ‘switch on’ the 85 
year rule for a member who voluntarily retires (leaves employment) and elects to 
draw their benefits on or after the age of 55 and before the age of 60 thereby 
agreeing to waive in full or part any actuarial reduction applied to the member’s 
benefits. 
 
The Council is required to send a copy of this Statement to the Pensions 
Administering Authority and publish it in a place that is easily accessible to all of its 
eligible scheme employees. There is also the requirement to keep this Policy 
Statement under review and make such revisions as are appropriate following a 
change of policy.  
 
Where a revision is made a copy of the revised statement must be supplied to the 
Pension Administering Authority before the expiry of one month beginning with the 
date that any such revision is made.  The Council must also publish its revised 
statement ensuring that it is equally accessible.  
 
In preparing, or reviewing and making revisions to its statement, the Council must 
have regard to the extent to which the exercise of its discretionary powers, unless 
properly limited, could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service. 
 
This document outlines London Borough of Tower Hamlets policy on the employer 
discretions specified in LGPS 2014, effective from 1 April 2014. 

Page 267



  

 
 
 

PART A – Formulation of COMPULSORY policy in accordance with 
Regulation 60 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 

 
Regulation 16 – Additional Pension Contributions 
Where an active Scheme member wishes to purchase extra annual pension of up 
to £6,500* (figure at 1 April 2014) by making Additional Pension Contributions 
(APCs), the employer can choose to (voluntarily) contribute towards the cost of 
purchasing that extra pension via a Shared Cost Additional Pension Contribution 
(SCAPC) 
 
The Scheme employer may resolve to fund in whole or in part any arrangement 
entered into by an active scheme member to pay additional pension contributions 
by way of regular contributions in accordance with Regulation 16(2)(e), or by way of 
a lump sum in accordance with Regulation 16(4)(d). 
 
The Scheme employer may enter into an APC contract with a Scheme member 
who is contributing to the MAIN section of the Scheme in order to purchase 
additional pension of not more than the additional pension limit (£6,500 from 1 April 
2014 subject to annual increase in line with the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971). The 
amount of additional contribution to be paid is determined by reference to actuarial 
guidance issued by the Secretary of State. 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamletspolicy concerning the whole or part 
funding of an active member’s additional pension contributions - Regulation 
16(2)(e) and 16(4)(d) 
 
The Council’s policy is not to establish a Shared Cost Additional Pension 
Contribution Scheme for its employees either on the basis of regular ongoing 
contribution or by a one off lump sum. This would be costly and as such the 
Council will continuenot to exercise this discretion on the basis of 
affordability. 
 

 
Regulation 30(6) – Flexible Retirement  
An active member who has attained the age of 55 or over and who with the 
agreement of their employer reduces their working hours or grade of employment 
may, with the further consent of their employer, elect to receive immediate payment 
of all or part of the retirement pension to which they would be entitled in respect of 
that employment as if that member were no longer an employee in local 
government service on the date of the reduction in hours or grade (adjusted by the 
amount shown as appropriate in actuarial guidance issued by the Secretary of State 
– separate policy required under Regulation 30(8)). 
 
As part of the policy making decision the Scheme employer must consider whether, 
in addition to the benefits the member may have accrued prior to 1 April 2008 
(which the member must draw), to permit the member to choose to draw all, part or 
none of the pension benefits they built up after 31 March 2008 and before 1 April 
2014 and all, part of none of the pension benefits they built up after 1 April 2014. 
 

Page 268



  

Due consideration must be given to the financial implications of allowing an 
employee to draw all or part of their pension benefits earlier than their normal 
retirement age. 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets policy concerning flexible retirement 
 
The Council currently has a policy in place to consider applications for 
Flexible Retirement which is linked to the Council’s policies on retirement and 
flexible working. The Authority relies upon the knowledge and skills of its 
employees and as such this policy provides the opportunity for retaining 
skills and experience as part of a transition towards retirement.     
 
Flexible Retirement allows scheme members age 55 and over to apply to 
transfer to a lower graded post or to reduce hours of employment and at the 
same time access their retirement benefits. Both the transfer to a lower 
graded post or reduction in hours of work and the early release of retirement 
benefits is employer discretion. 
 
The Council currently operates a Flexible Retirement Scheme and as such 
this arrangement will continue.  
 

 
Regulation 30(8) – Waiving of Actuarial Reduction  
Where a Scheme employer’s policy is to consent to the immediate release of 
benefits in respect of an active member who is aged 55 or over, those benefits must 
be adjusted by an amount shown as appropriate in actuarial guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State (commonly referred to as actuarial reduction or early payment 
reduction). 
 
A scheme employer (or former employer as the case may be) may agree to waive 
in whole or in part and at their own cost, any actuarial reduction that may be 
required by the Scheme Regulations. 
 
Due consideration must be given to the financial implications of agreeing to waive in 
whole or in part any actuarial reduction. 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets policy concerning the waiving of actuarial 
reduction 
 
The Council will continue to waive reductions only in exceptional 
circumstances where there is a clear financial or operational advantage for 
the Authority in so doing or on compassionate grounds would this be 
considered.  This would require authorisation by the Corporate Director of 
Resources and Head of Human Resources & Workforce Development or their 
nominated representative. 
 

 
Regulation 31 – Award of Additional Pension  
 
A Scheme employer may resolve to award 
 
(a) an active member, or  
 

Page 269



  

(b) a member who was an active member but dismissed by reason of redundancy, 
or business efficiency, or whose employment was terminated by mutual consent on 
grounds of business efficiency, or whose employment was terminated by mutual 
consent on grounds of business efficiency, 
 
additional annual pension of, in total (including any additional pension purchased by 
the Scheme employer under Regulation 16), not more than the additional pension 
limit (£6,500 from 1 April 2014 subject to annual increase in line with the Pensions 
(Increase) Act 1971). 
 
Any additional pension awarded is payable from the same date as any pension 
payable under other provisions of the Scheme Regulations from the account to 
which the additional pension is attached. 
 
In the case of a member falling within sub-paragraph (b) above, the resolution to 
award additional pension must be made within 6 months of the date that the 
member’s employment ended. 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets policy concerning the award of additional 
pension 
 
The Council’s policy is not to fund additional pension at whole cost to the 
employer given the substantial costs associated with introducing an 
equitable scheme. This would be a costly and as such the Council will 
continue not to exercise this discretion on the basis of affordability. 
 

 
Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions and Savings) 
Regulations 2014 Schedule 2 – paragraphs 2 and 3  
 
Where a scheme member retires or leaves employment and elects to draw their 
benefits at or after the age of 55 and before the age of 60 those benefits will be 
actuarially reduced unless their Scheme employer agrees to meet the full or part 
cost of those reductions as a result of the member otherwise being protected under 
the 85 year rule as set out in previous regulations. 
 
So as to avoid the member suffering the full reduction to their benefits the Scheme 
employer can ‘switch on’ the 85 year rule protections thereby allowing the member 
to receive fully or partly unreduced benefits but subject to the Scheme employer 
paying a strain (capital) cost to the Pension Fund. 
 
London Borough of Tower Hamlets policy concerning the ‘switching on’ of 
the 85 year rule 
 
The Council’s policy is toconsider each case on its merits, where it is in the 
employer’s interests in doing so and taking into account the employer costs. 
This would require authorisation by the Corporate Director of Resources and 
the Head of Human Resources & Workforce Development or their nominated 
representative. 
 

 
The discretions contained within this Policy Statement are applicable to all eligible 
members of the Scheme. The Scheme rules allow for a revised statement to be 
issued at least one month in advance of the date that any new policy takes effect.   

Page 270



  

 
The revised statement must be sent to the Pensions Administering Authority and 
published in a place that is accessible to all of its eligible scheme members. 
 
The policies made above have regard to the extent to which the exercise of the 
discretions could lead to a serious loss of confidence in the public service and will 
be exercised reasonably and only used when there is a real and substantial future 
benefit to the Council for incurring the extra costs that may arise. 
 
The Council retains the right to change this Policy Statement at any time and only 
the version which is current at the time a relevant event occurs to an employee will 
be the one applied to that employee.  
 
24 February 2015 

Page 271



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST
	2 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING(S)
	4.1 Investment Performance Review for Quarter End 31 December 2014
	WM performance Dec14 report
	BG DGF Dec 2014 Report
	BG GE Dec 2014 Report
	GMO Dec 2014 report
	LGIM  - Report for Q4 2014
	2014 Q4 Ruffer report
	Schroders Property Portfolio

	4.2 Investment in London LGPS Collective Investment Vehicle - Joint Committee Meeting 17th December 2014
	4.3 Tower Hamlets Pension Scheme-  Social, Environmental and Ethical Investment
	SRE Appendix

	4.4 LGPS Governance Regulations and LBTH Local Pensions Board Establishment
	LBTH ToR LPB (Final) Legal and Governance clearance
	LGPS Reg 2015

	4.5 Pension Fund Business Plan and Budget for 2015/16
	2015-16 Work Plan Appendix1  v2
	PF budget 201516v2 Appendix 2

	4.6 Review of discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme

